
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 

You are summoned to attend a meeting of  

the Council 

on Tuesday, 26 February 2019, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

Note – For those who wish to attend, Prayers will be said 
in the District Council Chamber at 6.20 p.m. 

 

Membership 
Councillors 

 
Caroline Airey 
James Airey 
Giles Archibald 
Robin Ashcroft 
Rupert Audland 
Pat Bell 
Ben Berry 
Roger Bingham 
Matt Brereton 
Jonathan Brook 
Andrew Butcher 
Sheila Capstick 
Helen Chaffey 
Stephen Coleman (Vice-Chairman) 
Brian Cooper 
Michael Cornah 
Tracy Coward 

 

Philip Dixon 
Alvin Finch 
Gill Gardner 
Anne Hall 
Tom Harvey 
Eamonn Hennessy 
Hazel Hodgson 
Chris Hogg 
Rachael Hogg 
John Holmes 
Kevin Holmes 
Vicky Hughes 
Anne Hutton 
Helen Irving 
Andrew Jarvis 
Janette Jenkinson 
Dyan Jones 
 

Dave Khan 
Helen Ladhams 
Kevin Lancaster 
Pete McSweeney 
Ian Mitchell 
Eric Morrell (Chairman) 
Jon Owen 
Doug Rathbone 
Vivienne Rees 
Amanda Rigg 
Matt Severn 
Peter Thornton 
Graham Vincent 
David Webster 
David Williams 
Mark Wilson 
Shirley-Anne Wilson 
 

 
Friday, 15 February 2019 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 

 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Inge Booth 

 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


Roll Call : Apologies 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  MINUTES  7 - 34 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Council held on 18 December 2018. 

 

2  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   

 To receive announcements by the Chairman.  

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


6  POLITICAL BALANCE AND COMMITTEE PLACES  35 - 36 

 To note that the political balance of the Council remains unchanged following 
the Arnside and Milnthorpe District Ward By-Election on 20 December 2018, 
and to receive the updated Committee Membership List. 

 

7  CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 3 2018/19  37 - 62 

 To consider the projected year end position based on performance to the end of 
Quarter 3 2018/19 and the changes to the 2018/19 revenue budget as outlined 
in the report. 

 

8  COUNCIL PLAN  63 - 88 

 To consider the draft Council Plan 2019 to 2024.  

9  COUNCIL POLICY ON CLIMATE CHANGE  89 - 102 

 To consider a corporate Council Policy on Climate Change for adoption as part 
of the Council’s Policy Framework. 

 

10  REVIEW OF THE LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME.  103 - 110 

 To consider whether the current Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme is the 
most appropriate for this Council for the financial year commencing 1 April 2019. 

 

11  2019/20 TO 2023/24 BUDGET  111 - 282 

 Note – In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2014 and the consequential change to Council’s 
Rules of Procedure, this item will automatically be subject to a recorded vote in 
respect of setting the Council Tax and on any amendments proposed at the 
meeting. 
 
To consider the recommendations from Cabinet to determine the Council’s 
Budget for 2019/20 onwards, including fees and charges, the Capital 
Programme, the Pay Policy and the Chief Finance Officer’s Advice on the 
Robustness of Estimates and the Adequacy of Reserves. 

 

12  CALCULATING AND SETTING THE 2019/20 COUNCIL TAX  283 - 300 

 Note – In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2014 and the consequential change to Council’s 
Rules of Procedure, this item will automatically be subject to a recorded vote in 
respect of setting the Council Tax and on any amendments proposed at the 
meeting. 
 
To consider a report to enable the Council to calculate and set the Council Tax 
for 2019/20. At the time of printing the Agenda, formal confirmation of the 
precepts from Cumbria County Council and the Cumbria Police and Crime 
Commissioner are awaited and, if these differ from assumptions, revised figures 
will be issued as soon as possible. 

 

13  2019/20 PROCUREMENT STRATEGY AND PROCUREMENT SCHEDULE  301 - 324 

 To consider the updated Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy 
and the Procurement Schedule for 2019/20. 

 

14  TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL STRATEGIES 2019/20 - 2023/24  325 - 390 

 To consider the Treasury Management Strategy and Capital Strategy for 
2019/20 – 2023/24 and the authorised borrowing limits. 

 

15  SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE  391 - 396 

 To update Council on the recruitment to the Senior Management Structure.  



16  NOTICES OF MOTION   

 The following Notices of Motion have been given in accordance with Paragraph 
11.1 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure:- 
 
(1) “Adoption of the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance 

definition of antisemitism 
 
Council expresses alarm at the rise in antisemitism in recent years 
across the UK.  This includes incidents when criticism of Israel has been 
expressed using antisemitic tropes.  Criticism of Israel can be legitimate, 
but not if it employs the tropes and imagery of antisemitism. 
 
We therefore welcome the UK Government’s support of the 
internationally recognised International Holocaust Remembrance 
Alliance (IHRA) guidelines on antisemitism which define antisemitism 
thus: 
 
‘Antisemitism is a certain perception of Jews, which may be expressed 
as hatred toward Jews. Rhetorical and physical manifestations of 
antisemitism are directed toward Jewish or non-Jewish individuals and/or 
their property, toward Jewish community institutions and religious 
facilities.’ 
 
The guidelines highlight manifestations of antisemitism as including: 
 

 ‘Calling for, aiding, or justifying the killing or harming of Jews in the 
name of a radical ideology or an extremist view of religion. 

 Making mendacious, dehumanizing, demonizing, or stereotypical 
allegations about Jews as such or the power of Jews as collective — 
such as, especially but not exclusively, the myth about a world 
Jewish conspiracy or of Jews controlling the media, economy, 
government or other societal institutions. 

 Accusing Jews as a people of being responsible for real or imagined 
wrongdoing committed by a single Jewish person or group, or even 
for acts committed by non-Jews. 

 Denying the fact, scope, mechanisms (e.g. gas chambers) or 
intentionality of the genocide of the Jewish people at the hands of 
National Socialist Germany and its supporters and accomplices 
during World War II (the Holocaust). 

 Accusing the Jews as a people, or Israel as a state, of inventing or 
exaggerating the Holocaust. 

 Accusing Jewish citizens of being more loyal to Israel, or to the 
alleged priorities of Jews worldwide, than to the interests of their own 
nations. 

 Denying the Jewish people their right to self-determination, e.g., by 
claiming that the existence of a State of Israel is a racist endeavour. 

 Applying double standards by requiring of it behaviour not expected 
or demanded of any other democratic nation. 

 Using the symbols and images associated with classic antisemitism 
(e.g., claims of Jews killing Jesus or blood libel) to characterize Israel 
or Israelis. 

 Drawing comparisons of contemporary Israeli policy to that of the 
Nazis. 

 Holding Jews collectively responsible for actions of the state of 
Israel.’ 

 



 
Council welcomes the cross-party support within the Council for 
combating antisemitism in all its manifestations. 
 
Council hereby adopts the above definition of antisemitism as set out by 
the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance and pledges to 
combat this pernicious form of racism.” 
 
(signed by Councillor Giles Archibald) 
 

(2) “Climate Emergency 2019 
 
Council confirms that it is committed to reducing its carbon emissions 
and continues to look at all areas of policy and delivery. The Climate 
Change Policy and the work of the Green Team demonstrates and 
clarifies our position and ambitions. 
 
Council recognises that many organisations have been working hard 
locally and nationally to identify and address climate change in their own 
communities and with partners. However, council believes action needs 
to happen faster. Business as usual is not enough and there is a growing 
urgency to implement these actions more rapidly. 
 
Council notes: 
 
The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s 1.5˚C special 
report which provides, with sobering clarity, the evidence of the impact of 
climate change. 
 
The wider acknowledgement from some bodies that there is a 50% 
chance of a 2˚C rise by the end of this century. 
 
The World Meteorological Organisation in their annual bulletin 
(November 2018) state that carbon dioxide levels hit new highs of 
405.5 parts per million (ppm) in 2017, up from 403.3 ppm in 2016 and 
400.1 ppm in 2015. 
 
The UN Gap Report published before the COP24 in Poland this year, 
reminding us that the Paris Agreement targets are off track. 
 
UK Met Office’s 2018 Prediction offering an assessment of what we 
can expect to experience - higher sea levels, rise in temperatures, 
disrupted rainfall patterns, and as we have seen recently, flooding, over 
heating and torrential unpredicted rain. 
 
Council confirms that we are facing a climate emergency 
 
Council now urges government to recognise this urgency and to work 
with local authorities, health services, businesses, consumers, farmers, 
educational institutions and all other interested bodies to reduce to zero 
as quickly as possible our carbon emissions and their equivalents.” 
 
(signed by Councillor Dyan Jones) 



17  LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CABINET QUESTION TIME 
(30 MINUTES)  

 

 To receive announcements from the Leader and, in accordance with 
Paragraphs 10.2 and 10.3 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, to deal with any 
questions to the Leader and/or Portfolio Holders on any topic which is within the 
jurisdiction or influence of the Council and is relevant to their Portfolio.  Any 
Member who poses a question will be entitled to ask one supplementary 
question on the same topic. 
 
Members are encouraged to give 24 hours’ written notice of questions to the 
Solicitor to the Council of questions to be raised under the Agenda Item.  If no 
notice is received, then the Portfolio Holder can reserve the right to give a 
written answer.  Where written notice of questions has been given, these will be 
taken first.  Should a Member wish to ask more than one question, questions 
should be listed in order of priority.  If more than one Member sends in a 
question, these will be taken in alphabetical order of Members’ names, 
alternated from meeting to meeting.  Each question and each response is 
restricted to three minutes. 

 

18  MINUTES OF MEETINGS   

 To receive Chairmen’s comments (if any notified) in respect of the minutes of 
the Committee meetings held between 26 November 2018 and 18 January 
2019. 

 

19  QUESTIONS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR CHAIRMAN OF ANY 
COMMITTEE OR SUB-COMMITTEE  

 

 To deal with any questions under Rule 10.6 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, 
of which due notice has been given and/or the Chairman allows as a matter of 
urgent business and which are in relation to any matter over which the Council 
has powers or duties or which affect the area. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



41 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Council held in the District Council 
Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Tuesday, 18 December 2018, at 
6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Eric Morrell (Chairman) 
Stephen Coleman (Vice-Chairman) 

 
James Airey 
Giles Archibald 
Robin Ashcroft 
Rupert Audland 
Pat Bell 
Ben Berry 
Matt Brereton 
Jonathan Brook 
Andrew Butcher 
Sheila Capstick 
Brian Cooper 
Michael Cornah 
Tracy Coward 
 

Philip Dixon 
Alvin Finch 
Anne Hall 
Tom Harvey 
Eamonn Hennessy 
Hazel Hodgson 
John Holmes 
Kevin Holmes 
Vicky Hughes 
Anne Hutton 
Andrew Jarvis 
Janette Jenkinson 
Dyan Jones 
 

Dave Khan 
Helen Ladhams 
Kevin Lancaster 
Pete McSweeney 
Ian Mitchell 
Jon Owen 
Doug Rathbone 
Vivienne Rees 
Matt Severn 
Graham Vincent 
David Williams 
Mark Wilson 
Shirley-Anne Wilson 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Caroline Airey, 
Roger Bingham, Gill Gardner, Chris Hogg, Rachael Hogg, Helen Irving, Amanda Rigg, 
Peter Thornton and David Webster. 
 
Also in attendance at the meeting were members of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel, David Holden and Sally Parnaby (Chairman). 
 

Officers 
 

Tom Benson Electoral Services Manager 

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer 

Gareth Candlin Economic Development Manager 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Ruth Leahy Project Officer, Economic Development 

Anthea Lowe Solicitor to the Council 

Shelagh McGregor Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Simon McVey Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 

Paul Mountford Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer 

Fraser Robertson Senior Communications Officer 

Helen Smith Financial Services Manager 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

David Sykes Director People and Places 

Sion Thomas Corporate Asset Manager 

 

Page 7

Item No.1



42 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

C/48 TRIBUTE TO COUNCILLOR IAN STEWART  
 
The Chairman referred to the sad news of the recent death of Councillor Ian Stewart. 
 
Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader, said that Councillor Stewart had been well 
respected on both sides of the Chamber.  He had been Chairman of the Council from 
2006 to 2008, as well as a Member of the Cabinet for some time, and Members were 
privileged to have worked with Councillor Stewart over many years.  Councillor Stewart 
had made a wonderful contribution to the community and had worked hard to serve the 
public, at parish, district and county level.  Councillor Archibald referred to Councillor 
Stewart’s passion for helping the vulnerable and, in particular, to his advocacy in 
pursuing the implementation of the Council Tax exemption for care leavers.  Councillor 
Archibald said that whilst all mourned Councillor Stewart’s untimely passing and 
sympathised with his family, what he had achieved must be celebrated.  Councillor 
Stewart left a legacy of achievement which would last for a long time. 
 
Councillor Ben Berry, Leader of the Opposition, referred to Councillor Stewart’s ability 
to speak the truth.  He had been a fantastic politician who had always been willing to 
negotiate and reach a consensus in order to get things done. 
 
Councillor Mark Wilson, Leader of the Labour Group, commended Councillor Stewart’s 
enthusiasm and commitment. 
 
Councillor Stewart would be sorely missed. 
 
The Chairman invited all present to pay silent tribute to the memory of Councillor 
Ian Stewart. 
 

C/49 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 10 October 2018. 
 

C/50 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chairman referred to Item No.10 on the Agenda (Community Governance Review 
– End of Stage 1) and advice which had been received from the Monitoring Officer with 
regard to potential interests.  He asked those Members who were also town or parish 
councillors, and who felt that they were biased or predetermined, to indicate now and 
for other Members speaking during the debate to indicate at that stage whether they 
were members of town or parish councils and to provide the name of the relevant 
council. 
 
The Chairman then referred to Item No.6 (Petition) and indicated that, as Chairman of 
Grange CIC which had been set up in relation to the Lido, he would leave the Chamber 
and the Vice-Chairman would take the Chair for that item. 
 
In response to a query raised by Councillor Tom Harvey, the Solicitor to the Council 
provided clarification with regard to the Chairman’s interest, advice on which he had 
received from both herself and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that Councillor Eric Morrell declared an interest in 
Minute No.C/54 below. 
 

Page 8



43 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

C/51 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

C/52 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
A list of engagements which the Chairman had attended since the last meeting had 
been circulated at the commencement of the meeting. 
 

C/53 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Mrs Terry Lambert addressed Council with regard to swimming provision in South 
Lakeland and Cumbria.  She referred to the 1970s and the former pool on Allhallows 
Lane and that at Troutbeck Bridge which had been built by public subscription so that 
local children would not have to learn to swim in the lake.  Mrs Lambert had been 
involved in all aspects of club administration and had trained as a teacher, coach, 
official, timekeeper, judge and referee at club, county, district, national and international 
level.  She had been the Club County representative and had served as Cumbria 
Amateur Swimming Association President in 2007/08.  Mrs Lambert’s perspective was 
with regard to the impact of the lack of a 50 metre pool on the rural North West.  
Recent changes required swimmers to gain regional, national or international qualifying 
times in 50 metre pools in order for them to be able to take part in regional or national 
competitions.  This had placed Cumbria’s ten clubs’ swimmers, and those of North 
Lancashire, at a serious disadvantage, with no pool available to meet the requirements.  
The North West Region tried to provide opportunities for clubs and their members to 
train in a 50 metre pool, however, were only able to offer pool space at Liverpool 
Aquatics Centre in 2019 which involved a large amount of travel and cost.  Some 
Cumbria clubs had had to make costly private arrangements with other pools outside of 
the area, sometimes involving overnight stays.  Mrs Lambert raised the fact that local 
clubs had also been disadvantaged by the loss of pools such as Troutbeck Bridge, and 
local schools struggled to find the finances and time to travel to distant pools in order to 
fulfil the required swimming lesson timetables.  The problem was not limited to indoor 
swimming pools, with blue green algae present in many lakes.  Most clubs had open 
water swimmers, triathletes and Masters’ swimmers.  The popularity of the Great North 
Swim and the Chill Swims and similar activities were proof of the willingness of people 
to take part in outdoor swimming and to travel here to do so.  At a time when 
improvements were being made to Ulverston and Grange Baths, Mrs Lambert 
considered it important to raise this issue.  If Cumbria swimmers and school children 
wanted to aim and succeed in becoming international and Olympic swimmers, they 
needed a 50 metre pool. 
 
Mr George Parr referred to the Save Grange Lido petition and pointed out that South 
Lakeland District Council’s obligations were to satisfy the realities.  He also pointed out 
that the Save Grange Lido Group had not exposed their ideas in a public meeting in 
Grange.  Mr Parr felt that some of the support for the petition was politically motivated, 
pointing out that he had received encouragement to support it for political reasons.  He 
suggested that this could reduce the petition’s persuasiveness for the Save Grange 
Lido Group’s cause.  Mr Parr raised that the significant reason for the previous pool 
closure in 1993 had been low usage and wondered whether the potential for reversal of 
this had been convincingly demonstrated by the Save Grange Lido Group.  Mr Parr 
referred to the site having been listed Grade II by Historic England.  He pointed out that 
Historic England was in support of the Council’s designs, however, that the Save 
Grange Lido Group’s designs had not yet gained that support.  Mr Parr informed 
Council that, within the last month, volunteer staff from Grange Community Interest 

Page 9



44 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Company had been asked by a Save Grange Lido activist about a bridge over the 
railway line that used to provide direct pedestrian access to the Lido from the car park.  
He pointed out that that bridge had been demolished some 12 years ago and felt that 
Save Grange Lido Group’s query on this basic matter might suggest that problems of 
access required more consideration.  Mr Parr quoted from the Consulting Structural 
Engineer’s Report of 6 November 2018 which stated that the position of Save Grange 
Lido could not be defended by rational argument and should be rejected; the condition 
of the concrete was generally poor, beyond practical concrete surgical repair; grouting 
the underground tanks and infilling the pool with granular material would relieve all the 
primary elements; and this vision for the Lido was the most durable outcome in 
safeguarding the historic structure over the long term.  Mr Parr stressed that it would be 
foolish for South Lakeland District Council not to act in accordance with this 
professional advice. 
 
Peter Endsor, Councillor, Chairman, and Mayor of Grange Town Council spoke on 
behalf of the Town.  He said that Grange Town Council had been working with South 
Lakeland District Council for several years to resolve the problem of the Lido.  South 
Lakeland District Council had carried out public consultation in Grange community and 
now had a way forward.  He indicated that Grange Town Council continued to support 
the “light touch” refurbishment being proposed by South Lakeland District Council.  
This was because Grange Town Council believed that it was the most effective way of 
bringing the Lido back into the community where it belonged.  On behalf of the 
community, which Grange Town Council listened to, it wished to see:- 
 

 the site re-opened to the public, as soon as possible; 

 the heritage buildings preserved sympathetically and attractively; and 

 the site to be economically viable and low risk in terms of ongoing cost. 
 
The Town Council’s goal was for the area to become, once again, an asset to the 
Promenade and Town; a community facility rather than a derelict eyesore.  Town 
Councillors had listened carefully to the alternative vision presented and had read all 
the documentation.  They had also listened to the members of their community.  
Councillor Endsor had spoken to a lot of Grange residents, some of whom had signed 
the petition which was being presented at the meeting.  He said that they had told him 
that they had signed the petition thinking that the buildings were going to be 
demolished and used as rubble to infill the pool.  He said that most people would be 
happy with the light touch restoration.  He was referring to the people who had phoned, 
emailed the Town Council and spoken at its meetings, and who had also spoken to 
Town Councillors in the street.  Councillor Endsor felt that the refurbishment as 
proposed by South Lakeland District Council would be economically sustainable and 
would be used by the public all the year round.  The District Council had 100% support 
from the Town Council which hoped that the light touch refurbishment would go ahead 
as planned. 
 
Council was addressed by Town Councillor Claire Logan who had been born and 
brought up in Grange and, after a brief period of living in the north of our county, had 
returned to the Town with her family.  Councillor Logan practiced as a solicitor in 
Grange and her children attended Grange Primary School.  Grange held an enormous 
place in her heart.  Councillor Logan informed Council that she had become one of the 
first directors of the not-for-profit Grange-over-Sands Lido Community Interest 
Company at its incorporation on 10 April 2018.  Councillor Logan, as many locals, had 
fond memories of the Lido from when she was a child: swimming galas; watching 
people diving; and the cold water!  She had also seen photos of her late Father 
standing on poolside as a lifeguard.  Councillor Logan said that the Lido had been an 

Page 10



45 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

important facility for Grange since 1932 and the people of the Town once more wanted 
it to become an important place again, for both themselves and visitors.  Large 
numbers used the Promenade regularly and it was natural for them to see the Lido site 
as an extension of the Promenade.  Councillor Logan doubted very much that large 
numbers of townspeople would regularly use an outdoor pool in the future.  Those who 
did enjoy a chilly dip in the open air would naturally migrate to the numerous bodies of 
water in the neighbouring Lake District to undertake the, ever-increasing in popularity, 
pass time of wild swimming.  Councillor Logan imagined that the Lido site would bring 
great benefit to the people of Grange and its visitors if it became a multi-purpose space 
which was allowed to develop organically.  The Save Grange Lido Group business plan 
included the establishment of two holiday lets.  If such a proposal materialised and 
received planning permission, Councillor Logan was of the opinion that many people in 
the Town would see this as the first steps towards their Lido becoming an exclusive 
spa-type facility with expensive holiday lets and no space for community use.  
Councillor Logan felt that this important heritage site deserved a fresh lease of life, with 
a low-risk plan to give the community multiple possibilities without becoming an 
expensive burden to South Lakeland District Council taxpayers in years to come.  She 
felt that the “light touch” plan put forward by the District Council to date was fantastic.  It 
reopened the site to the community and its visitors which was what people wanted to 
see.  It provided an opportunity to work together, as a Community, to make the space 
accessible to all. 
 

C/54 PETITION  
 
Note – The Chairman, Councillor Eric Morrell, declared a non-pecuniary interest 
in this item of business by virtue of his involvement with the Grange Community 
Interest Company, and left the Council Chamber during the discussion and 
voting.  In his absence, the Vice-Chairman, Councillor Stephen Coleman, took 
the Chair. 

Mr Phil Bradby, Chair of Save Grange Lido, re-presented the petition brought to 
Council on 10 October 2018, over 1,000 signatures of which had subsequently been 
verified, the wording being, “we want GRANGE LIDO restoration to include the 
SWIMMING POOL, and South Lakeland District Council to confirm that any option 
without a swimming pool will be ruled out.” 

Mr Bradby said that Save Grange Lido was a voluntary community group working to 
help bring forward the restoration of a much loved swimming pool.  He said that, when 
he had last swam in the pool when he was about 10 years old and living in Kendal, little 
had he known that almost 40 years later he would be working with a group of 
volunteers to save it.  Mr Bradby said that it should not be forgotten that the decision 
being made today was not only for the current residents of Grange, but for the future 
generation of children in the whole South Lakeland District Council region who, the 
Group hoped, would one day thank the District Council for making the right decision.  
Mr Bradby said that he was also speaking on behalf of approximately 18,000 people 
who had signed the Group’s petitions and the 74% of respondents in the official 
consultation who had asked that the Lido be restored for swimming.  Mr Bradby pointed 
out that, a few miles away was one of the very best lidos in the country, and the District 
Council was its custodian.  The Lido was one of just four of its kind and was 
exceptional because of its historically important art deco design and because it had a 
50 metre swimming pool. 
 
Mr Bradby started with one very important point: the Group was not asking for any 
money.  It simply asked for the chance to raise the capital itself, and to make the 
business work.  The Group wanted to add the pool back into the plans being prepared 
by the District Council’s officers. 

Page 11



46 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

 
Mr Bradby said that the five minutes allocated was not long enough to cover what 
needed to be said, nor was it long enough to address all the misunderstandings and 
misinformation which abounded, so he would draw attention to just two points in this 
regard:- 
 
(1) Viability 
 
Contrary to what was being said, Mr Bradby said that the official reports showed that 
the Lido was viable with a pool. 
 
He quoted the Neo Now, Options Appraisal 2013, “Our conversations with other lidos 
and open air pools elsewhere in the UK, which have centred on their running costs and 
income streams, have confirmed that it is financially sustainable to operate a lido...” 
 
Mr Bradby said that the Group’s carefully researched business plan drew on the 
knowledge and experience of numerous successfully operating lidos, from Cornwall to 
Scotland, and came to the same conclusion.  He said that Council officers were, 
understandably, cautious, but the Lido was too important to dismiss the Group’s 
business plan without proper professional assessment.  The Group asked that 
consultants with the appropriate expertise be engaged to review this. 
 
In addition to the petition, Mr Bradby handed in letters of support from the Cumbria 
Amateur Swimming Association, Ulverston Triathlon Club, Carnforth and District Otters 
Swimming Club, Chillswim and Ulverston Amateur Swimming Club Otters. 
 
(2) Capital Costs 
 
Mr Bradby said that, in relation to capital costs, various enormous figures had been 
quoted, but he had the estimate from Wrightfield Pools to restore the pool and plant. 
They were a leading UK specialist and had restored the pool at the hugely successful 
Lido Ponty.  The estimated cost was £1.2m, which the Group had offered to raise. 
 
Mr Bradby felt that this was an investment opportunity which was too good to miss.  For 
a relatively small investment and at no cost to taxpayers, Cumbria could have a much 
needed 50 metre pool, a superb local amenity for schools and the community, and a 
tourist attraction for the Cartmel Peninsula. 
 
Mr Bradby said that the alternative option of filling it in, whether temporary or 
permanent, would lead to a long, expensive and contentious planning and legal 
process. It would also be a financially poor decision because the investment, of 
approximately £2m of public money would add nothing to Grange or South Lakeland.  It 
would just become a sad line on the ground and a space with no particular demand or 
function.  It would have none of the revenue generating potential that a properly 
restored lido would offer the area. 
 
Mr Bradby said that the £250,000 the Council planned to spend on filling in the pool 
could be spent in much better ways, especially as it could lead to another £250,000 to 
take it out. 
 
Mr Bradby pointed out that Cumbria swimming clubs were crying out for a 50 metre 
facility to save the huge amount of time they wasted driving to pools in other counties.  
Building a new one would be prohibitively expensive but renovation of an existing 
facility was achievable. 
 

Page 12



47 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Mr Bradby drew attention to the Group’s strong support from Cumbria Amateur 
Swimming Association, Swim England, numerous swimming clubs across the county, 
Chillswim, and Ulverston Triathlon Club. 
 
Mr Bradby referred to Morecambe which was thinking big and bringing about 
meaningful regeneration with its Eden Project, and felt that Grange Lido would fit 
perfectly into such a regeneration of the Bay.  He referred to the recent rise in 
popularity of lidos and outdoor swimming which meant that there had never been a 
better time to restore the Grange Lido.  He pointed out that, in the UK today, there were 
130 successful lidos and outdoor pools, the majority of which were run by community 
groups.  What the Group had in mind was, therefore, not unusual, unprecedented or 
unrealistic - it was, in fact, perfectly achievable with sound business planning and some 
positive thinking.  This positivity would bring Grange and the whole of South Lakeland a 
fantastic restored art deco lido that would be the envy of councils across the country.  It 
would bring new life, leisure opportunities and improve the health and wellbeing of 
children and adults alike.  It would do all that while enhancing the local economy. 
 
The Group, therefore, asked the Council to seize this opportunity to vote for the only 
sensible and feasible solution which was to restore Grange Lido with a swimming pool 
at its heart. 
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) drew attention to the fact 
that, subject to approval of the budget decision by Council, the decision on the design 
options for the Grange-over-Sands Lido, being an Executive function, would be made 
by Cabinet.  She explained, however, that it would be appropriate for Council to 
forward any comments raised to be taken into account during consideration of the 
matter by Cabinet at its meeting scheduled to be held on 23 January 2019.  Cabinet 
would be provided with a detailed report in order to enable an informed decision to be 
made. 
 
The Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) provided clarity with regard 
to suggested inaccuracies within paragraphs 3.13 and 3.14 of the report currently 
before Members relating to the petition, as follows:- 
 

3.13 The paragraph in the Neo Now report referred to mentions discussions 
with other lidos: 11 were considered to be viable, figures were not obtained on a 
further nine.  She explained that this was not a statement of Grange-over-
Sands Lido being viable, but rather a more general statement of viable lidos 
across the UK. 

 
3.14 She advised that it was correct to say that Historic England would not be 
supportive of permanent infill of the pool.  Currently, the South Lakeland District 
Council proposal was for partial temporary infilling of the pool, so as not to 
preclude any future or long-term restoration aspirations.  Officers had worked 
closely with Historic England and South Lakeland District Council’s 
Conservation Officer in order to ensure that the current design was appropriate 
and sympathetic with regards to the heritage listing. 

 
Councillor Jonathan Brook, Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation 
Portfolio Holder, thanked members of the Save Grange Lido Group for their passion 
and commitment to the project.  He reminded all present that there would be an 
opportunity for a further, more detailed debate at the Cabinet meeting scheduled to be 
held on 23 January 2019. 
 

Page 13



48 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Councillor Brook said that this was a complex issue with a long history and differing 
opinions about viability and finances.  The Council had listened to the different 
interested parties the proposals being put forward were for a light touch refurbishment 
allowing the Council to stabilise the structure and the sea defences, to make the area 
safe and to open it up to the public, whilst at the same time allowing Save Grange Lido 
Group to further develop its plans.  The District Council’s plan allowed for the possibility 
of a future pool, whilst enabling the Council to carry out the job of making urgent 
repairs to the existing structure. 
 
Councillor Brook did not believe it to be appropriate at this stage to narrow down the 
options and to commit to a re-watered pool whilst the costs and future liability of the 
Council in respect of a pool restoration were not fully understood.  He, therefore, 
moved the recommendations as set out within the report, adding that he looked forward 
to working further with all interested parties whilst, at the same time, getting on with the 
job of restoring this iconic structure and cleaning up and opening up a site that had 
been a blight on the town of Grange for too long. 
 
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Finance Portfolio Holder, seconded the motion. 
 
Councillor Tom Harvey indicated that he had been a Member of Grange Town Council 
for approximately 10 years and that he had heard both sides of the argument.  He felt 
that the Save Grange Lido Group, which was full of business expertise and drive as 
well as an ability to generate funding, should be given an opportunity to move forward 
with their plans.  He stressed, however, that the Council should work closely with the 
Group and fully scrutinise its plans.  Councillor Harvey proposed an amendment to 
recommendation (2) on the report, that, “following receipt of the petition, the Council 
endorses working with Save Grange Lido Group to fully scrutinise the plans with the 
view and ultimate aim of handing over the Lido to the Save Grange Lido Group, once 
fully constituted, and to do all it can to facilitate and assist the Group in delivering its 
ambitions.” 
 
The proposed amendment was seconded by Councillor James Airey who reminded 
Members that working in partnership with the community was key for South Lakeland.  
He felt that the proposals to temporarily infill the pool were ludicrous when the site 
could potentially be a jewel in the crown for South Lakeland.  He pointed out that the 
Save Grange Lido Group’s innovative idea ticked all boxes – health and wellbeing and 
economic viability.  He also stressed the fact that the Group would welcome the 
Council seeking the services of an independent consultant to look at and review the 
Group’s business plan.  He asked for Council to wait a little longer and consult on the 
Group’s plan and to give the people a chance to deliver. 
 
Members discussed the proposed amendment. 
 
Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder was 
of the opinion that the spirit of the amendment was consistent with what had been said 
by Councillor Brook.  The Council wanted to work with Save Grange Lido Group 
subject to conditions being satisfied.  The suggestion that the Council should hand the 
asset over to the Group was, however, problematic with regards to liabilities, and could 
jeopardise the Council’s aim to restore the site for the public. 
 

Page 14



49 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Councillor Janette Jenkinson highlighted the fact that initiatives such as lidos were 
back in vogue, with people seeking different experiences.  She was of the opinion that 
a pool element should be included in the plan.  She referred to the successes of the 
Coronation Hall and Haverthwaite Railway.  The Coronation Hall had been run by 
Ulverston Community Enterprise for the past five years, and that group was able to 
access funding that the Council could not. 
 
Councillor Matt Severn enquired if Councillor Harvey had changed his opinion on the 
matter since February 2017 when he had been quoted in Cumbria for saying that, with 
costs starting at £500,000 and getting higher, what was clear was that the site would 
lose money year after year as a swimming pool, and that it should not fall on taxpayers 
to pick up the burden. 
 
Councillor Ben Berry pointed out that his family was making a significant investment in 
the Low Wood Bay Resort and that the highlight was the provision of an outdoor pool.  
He was of the opinion that if a commercial operator was building an outdoor pool in the 
knowledge that this was what people wanted, then the Council should allow a 
community group do the same for the whole of the community and South Lakeland. 
 
Councillor Vivienne Rees explained that she represented an area, the people of which 
were concerned with problems around swimming provision in the Central Lakes.  She 
referred to the case of a former indoor pool facility and stressed the need for evidence 
for a realistic plan, with advice from experts.  She referred to the Save Grange Lido 
Group, to its willingness to take on board the asset and to the practical manner in 
which it was acting and believed that, with appropriate investigation and advice, then it 
could be worthwhile in pursuing the Group’s plan. 
 
Councillor Robin Ashcroft paid tribute to the Administration for having grasped the 
issue of the Lido which had been an eyesore for two decades.  Councillor Ashcroft was 
conscious of the diverse views across the community of Grange.  He believed that the 
site needed to be financially sustainable as well as having utility and felt that thought 
must be given to this, with an open process and good communication.  He felt 
heartened that there had been an improvement in communication in recent days and 
encouraged this moving forward.  He was of the opinion that the Save Grange Lido 
Group’s plans needed more work and hoped that the Group would be given an 
opportunity to further develop them.  He expressed support for Councillor Brook’s 
proposals and encouraged the continuation of negotiations. 
 
A vote was taken on the proposed amendment which was not carried. 
 
Councillor Jarvis having seconded the substantive motion said that there was no 
simple solution, discussions having been ongoing for the past 25 years since closure of 
the site.  He expressed concern with regard to the business case put forward by the 
Save Grange Lido Group, including the long term viability, inadequate provision for 
marketing and an optimistic income stream from events.  He felt that implementation of 
the Group’s plans could lead to a major risk and long term obligation to the Council and 
taxpayers, however, indicated a willingness to work with other parties to see if the 
issues could be resolved.  Given the uncertainties, Councillor Jarvis believed that it 
was essential that all options were fully considered, including on how decisions had 
been made or were made could constrain decisions in the future.  The suggestion from 
Save Grange Lido Group was for any option without a swimming pool to be ruled out.  
Councillor Jarvis was of the opinion that all options needed to be carefully assessed.  
He urged Members, therefore, to consider all of the options and issues and to consider 
the way in which to move forward for the best, or the least worst, option. 
 

Page 15



50 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

In response to a query, the Director People and Places indicated that representations 
raised would be provided by officers to Cabinet when considering the matter at its 
meeting on 23 January 2019. 
 
A vote was taken on the substantive motion and it was 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the petition be received; 
 
(2) the comments made during the debate be forwarded to Cabinet for 
consideration as part of the decision-making process; and 
 
(3) the Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) be delegated 
authority, in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder, to formulate any necessary 
response that accords with the decision of the Council. 
 
Note – Councillor Eric Morrell, Chairman, resumed the Chair for the remainder of 
the meeting. 
 

C/55 REPORT FROM THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL FOR 2019/2020  
 
Mrs Sally Parnaby, Chairman of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP), was 
invited to present the Panel’s report to Council. The report recommended an increase 
up to a maximum of 2% on the Basic Allowance for 2019/20 to bring it up to £4,118.76 
per annum.  
 
The IRP had also recommended the following:- 
  
• amendments to Special Responsibility Allowances (SRAs) as follows:- 
 

i. the SRAs for the Chairs of the Audit, Human Resources, Lake 
Administration and Overview and Scrutiny Committees to remain 
unchanged; 

ii. the SRA for the Chair of the Planning Committee to be £2,794.50; and  
iii. the SRAs for the Chairs of the Standards and Licensing/Licensing 

Regulatory Committees to be £931.50; 
 
• other than the Group Leaders’ Allowance, Members should receive no more 

than one SRA; 

• Out of County Mileage Allowance to remain part of the single travel allowance 
scheme as per the previous year; 

• travel expenses to be in accordance with the maximum rates set by HMRC 
without attracting a tax charge (currently 45p per mile), this to apply to the first 
150 miles of a return journey regardless of the destination and 25p per mile 
thereafter; 

• subsistence expenses to increase by RPI as at 1st April 2019; 

• no change to Childcare/Dependant Carers’ Allowance. Payments to remain at a 
maximum allowance of £15 per hour. The Allowance to be paid from the time 
the recipient leaves home to time of return; and 

• Co-optees’ Allowance be increased by up to a maximum of 2% to bring it up to 
£38.38 per meeting. 

Page 16



51 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

 
Mrs Parnaby thanked those Members and officers who had provided valuable input 
and, on behalf of the Panel, asked Council to accept the recommendations. 
 
On behalf of the Council, the Chairman thanked Mrs Parnaby and the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for their work. 
 
In moving the adoption of the recommendations, Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader 
and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, expressed gratitude to the Panel for its 
work.  He stressed that the position of a councillor could not be reserved for the 
independently wealthy and that, in order for the allowance to be meaningful, it needed 
to be increased to reflect inflation.  He also pointed out that the position of Chairman of 
the Planning Committee was an onerous task. 
 
Councillor Dyan Jones, Environment Portfolio Holder, seconded the motion. 
 
Councillor Ben Berry proposed an amendment, “To agree the proposals of the 
Independent Remuneration Plan, except the increase of 2% to the basic allowance for 
2019/20 and that the money saved be directed to fight poverty in South Lakeland.”  The 
amendment was seconded by Councillor James Airey. 
 
Councillor Archibald did not wish to accept the amendment, however, indicated that he 
would be content to consider a further amendment that the Leader’s allowance for this 
year be used to fight poverty in South Lakeland.  He believed, however, that it was 
important for every Member of the Council to have the opportunity to serve as a 
councillor and that it would be setting a bad precedent not to increase the allowance in 
line with inflation.  He reiterated though that he was willing, should Council so wish, to 
direct all of the Leader’s allowance to be used to fight the critical issue of poverty in 
South Lakeland. 
 
Councillor Berry suggested that he would be content to include the Leader’s allowance 
within his amendment and clarified that it would now read, “To agree the proposals of 
the Independent Remuneration Plan, except the increase of 2% to the basic allowance 
for 2019/20, plus the Leader’s pay rise for 2019/20, and that the money saved be 
directed to fight poverty in South Lakeland.”  Councillor James Airey indicated that he 
was content with the inclusion of the Leader’s allowance within the amendment. 
 
Councillor Archibald, however, did not accept this amendment either, maintaining that it 
was appropriate for Members to receive an allowance commensurate with the work 
that they carried out.  He stressed that the Independent Remuneration Panel existed to 
provide advice on allowances and that it was entirely appropriate for councillors to 
receive these allowances, some in need of the money in order to carry out their role.  
He remained, however, content to direct his Leader’s allowance to fight poverty in 
South Lakeland and suggested that, should Councillor Berry choose to also suggest 
that the Leader of the Opposition’s allowance be included, then he would be happy to 
support this as well. 
 
The Solicitor to the Council clarified that the current amendment was for the proposals 
of the Independent Remuneration Panel to be agreed, except the increase of 2% to the 
basic allowance for 2019/20, plus the Leader’s allowance for 2019/20, and that the 
money saved be directed to fight poverty in South Lakeland.  Having taken advice from 
the Finance Team, she pointed out that it would not be possible to ring-fence the 
money saved and that it would be put back into the Council budget in the usual 
manner. 
 

Page 17



52 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Councillors Andrew Jarvis, Jonathan Brook, Vicky Hughes, Vivienne Rees and 
Matt Severn all spoke against the proposed amendment for a number of reasons.  It 
was felt inappropriate for the money to be hypothecated from one source to another; 
there were Members who had little other income; it should be left to individual Members 
to decide on how to use their increase; and Members worked hard for their resident, 
some using their allowances for the good of their communities. 
 
A vote was taken on the proposed amendment, which was lost. 
 
Prior to a vote being taken on Councillor Archibald’s substantive motion, he sought 
further clarification from the Solicitor to the Council with regard to the possibility of an 
amendment for the Leader’s allowance to be directed to fight poverty.  The Solicitor to 
the Council said that such an amendment could be moved, however, reiterated that it 
was not possible to ring fence funds.  Councillor Archibald wished to make it clear that 
this had been his intent. 
 
A vote was then taken on the substantive motion and it was 
 
RESOLVED - That the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel and 
the Members’ Allowance Scheme for 2019/20, as attached at Appendix B of the Panel 
Report, be adopted with effect from 1 April 2019. 
 

C/56 CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 2  
 
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Finance Portfolio Holder presented the second quarter 
financial monitoring report of 2018/19, moving the recommendations contained therein. 

Although there was a current underspend of approximately £250,000, Appendix 1 set 
out the revenue variances to date which totalled a projected year-end overspend of 
£251,000.  The Portfolio Holder provided explanations for the key movements.  Further 
reviews of budgets had been carried out by senior management following the 
preparation of the report which had identified actions to mitigate the projected 
overspend, including reductions in the Minimum Revenue Provision, Development 
Control and Homelessness.  The net impact of these actions had resulted in a revised 
projection at year-end of an underspend of £112,000. 

Cabinet had given approval on 31 October 2018 (Minute CEX/49 (2018/19) refers) for a 
transfer of £82,000 from the Cumbria Non-Domestic Rate Pool Income Reserve to fund 
the costs of an additional £45,000 for the European Regional Development Fund Flood 
Alleviation Scheme application process; £25,000 to fund the Kendal Markets Review; 
and £12,000 to fund the project development phase of the Burton-in-Kendal Heritage 
Scheme.  Approval had also been given for the transfer of £20,000 from the General 
Reserve to the Community Grants budget heading further to a request at the July 
Council that a £20,000 Community Projects Fund be created.  A £12,000 transfer from 
the Statutory Duties Reserve had been approved to fund the costs associated with 
dealing with the planning appeal for the Kirkby Moor Wind Farm planning application. 
 
Appendix 2 to the report set out the position on the Capital Programme.  Spend against 
the Programme to the end of Quarter 2 was £2.366m.  Approval was sought from 
Council for a number of minor amendments which would bring the total of the current 
Programme to £9.795m, details of which were provided.  It was now clear that there 
was unlikely to be any spending on the European Regional Development Fund during 
the current financial year or the Cross-a-Moor junction.  A request to approve 
reprofiling of these projections, if required, would be sought as part of the updated 
Capital Programme submitted during the budget setting process. 
 

Page 18



53 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Appendix 3 to the report provided an update on Treasury Management for the quarter 
showing that all activity had been within the approved limits.  Investments had 
performed better than the relevant benchmarks.  No repayment of existing or new 
borrowing was anticipated up to the end of the financial year. 
 
The Finance Portfolio closed in thanking the Finance Team for highlighting the 
challenges and enabling time for options to be examined. 
 
Councillor Jarvis was seconded by Councillor Graham Vincent. 
 
Councillor Tom Harvey referred to the Period 6 Capital Programme position and sought 
an update on the Castle Diary scheme and uncertainties regarding payment and 
timing.  Councillor Jarvis undertook to provide a written response. 
 
In response to a query raised by Councillor David Williams, the Director People and 
Places explained that the £26,000 income shortfall relating to Lake Windermere 
moorings related to market pressures which needed to be addressed through 
marketing. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the contents of the report be noted; and 
 
(2) the virements and budget changes to increase the Capital Programme as 
outlined in paragraph 3.6.1 of the report and reflected in the revised Capital 
Programme at Appendix 2 to the report be approved. 
 

C/57 2019/20 TO 2023/24 DRAFT BUDGET  
 
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Finance Portfolio Holder, presented a first draft budget for 
2019/20 to 2023/24. 
 
The budget projections had been updated to reflect the ending of the Second Homes 
Agreement with the County Council, which reduced income across all years from 
2019/20 by approximately £700,000.  A number of additional budget pressures, growth 
bids and savings proposals had been identified that were outlined in the Appendices to 
the report.  The Capital Programme had been adjusted to reflect projects where there 
was a well-developed business case, where work was unavoidable or where a degree 
of outline approval had already been indicated or was shortly expected.  There were, 
additionally, a number of schemes where the business cases were not yet sufficiently 
advanced to include within the Medium Term Financial Plan capital budget.  There was 
one change to the 2018/19 capital budget as, due to high demand, it was necessary to 
increase the Disabled Facilities Grant funding budget through the transfer of £191,000 
of unallocated budget from the Affordable Homes budget.  The resulting revised Capital 
Programme was presented in detail at Appendix 6 to the report.  The report presented 
a draft position and work would continue to incorporate further changes into 
subsequent budget reports, such as the government grant position which was not yet 
known.  The final Draft Budget Report would incorporate the consideration of the 
internal and external consultation and be presented to Cabinet on 23 January 2019, 
prior to final recommendations being made to Council on 26 February 2019. 
 
Approval was also sought from Council for the proposed pay scales from 1 April 2019 
resulting from the national local government pay settlement for 2018/20 and 
consideration by the Human Resources Committee on 11 December 2018. 

Page 19



54 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

 
The Government had published the provisional Local Government finance settlement 
for 2019/20 earlier in December.  The settlement had included notification that the 
Cumbria business rate pilot bid had been unsuccessful but it was expected that the 
existing Cumbria business rate pool would continue for 2019/20.  No additional income 
had been included in the draft budget relating to the pilot bid. 
 
In moving the recommendations contained within the report, Councillor Jarvis informed 
Members that the Council was currently financially robust and thanked officers for their 
work.  However, future uncertainties could not be ignored, and potential severe cuts in 
funding and the need to address them, at the same time minimising the impact on 
residents, would be a major challenge.  He was seconded by Councillor Giles 
Archibald. 
 
Councillor Matt Severn expressed support for the motion and, in particular, 
commended officers for their work in relation to the prioritised capital bids relating to 
loans to housing associations utilising the Right to Buy receipts accumulated to date 
and the development of additional homelessness accommodation for families.  He was 
pleased that the Council was addressing the homelessness crisis.  Councillor 
Jonathan Brook also commended Councillor Jarvis and officers for their work and 
highlighted the fact that South Lakeland District Council would, from 1 April 2019, pay 
its staff the equivalent of the foundation living wage.  Councillor Giles Archibald spoke 
in praise of Councillor Dyan Jones who had first raised the issue of the foundation 
living wage and echoed thanks to Councillor Jarvis and officers for their work.  He also 
drew attention to the Capital Programme and all the additional work which was being 
carried out by the Council due to good financial management. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) it be noted that the development of the Budget is an iterative process between 
now and Council on 26 February 2019.  The assumptions, proposals and calculations 
included within it will be subject to change as more information from internal and 
external sources is provided and decisions around the final proposals can be made; 
 
(2) the proposals contained in the report to achieve a balanced budget in 2019/20 
be noted; 
  
(3) the projected deficit position of circa £590,000 in 2020/21 rising to circa £2.6m 
by 2023/24 (this is after the Customer Connect savings have been included), as set out 
in Appendix 2 to the report, be noted; 
 
(4) it be noted that proposals (1) and (2) form the basis of statutory consultation 
with stakeholders; 
 
(5) the amended 2018/19 Capital Programme as presented at Appendix 6 to the 
report, be approved, noting that the future years programme is still under development; 
and 
 
(6) the proposed pay scales from 1 April 2019 onwards, as set out in Appendix 9 to 
the report, be approved. 
 

Page 20



55 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

C/58 NOTICE OF MOTION  
 
In accordance with Paragraph 11.1 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, the following 
notice of motion had been put to Council by Councillor Philip Dixon, Health and 
Wellbeing Portfolio Holder:- 
 

“The Council notes: 
 
The increase in child poverty in this District over the past four years, from 14% 
to 15.9% (measured after housing costs). 
 
The increasing use of food banks in the country, as evidenced by the Trussel 
Trust figures, showing an annual 13% increase in usage, and Kendal’s Kings 
Food Bank showing a 16% increase. 
 
The current freeze on Benefits and the rollout of Universal Credit are partly to 
blame for these increases. 
 
Council calls on the government: 
 
To review its welfare strategy with a view to providing more support for the most 
vulnerable in our society. 
 
To take urgent steps to address this appalling trend and to reinstate ambitious 
targets for lowering child poverty. 
 
To take urgent action to help those who are most affected by poverty. 
 
In addition, Council asks: 
 
That the Chair of the Council write to the Local Government Minister expressing 
our dismay at these trends and seeking his support in requesting additional 
funds be provided to Local Authorities by Central Government to help those 
most disadvantaged.” 

 
In presenting the motion, Councillor Dixon referred to the fact that, although the 
national economy of the United Kingdom was the fifth largest in the world, there existed 
nevertheless the issue of poverty.  Councillor Dixon felt strongly that the Government 
could do more to address the situation.  He informed Members that the Joseph 
Rowntree Foundation had estimated that, in 2017, there had been four million children 
living in poverty, and these figures were increasing.  In South Lakeland in the past 
seven months, Council officers had dealt with 78 families at risk of homelessness.  In 
April 2018, 85 families had already been on the list of those being assisted and since 
then, 55 families had been accommodated in Town View Fields Hostel, with 31 families 
had been living in bed and breakfasts.  On average, people were living in Town View 
Fields for an average of 20 weeks.  Councillor Dixon stressed the fact that these 
figures related purely to Kendal, one of the most affluent areas.  Councillor Dixon also 
spoke about food banks and pointed out that attendance at Kings Food Bank had 
increased.  Approximately 1,800 meals had been provided in October 2018.  Councillor 
Dixon expressed the opinion that current Government policies picked off the poor and 
weak and encouraged Members to support the motion, which was seconded by 
Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder. 
 

Page 21



56 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Councillor Ben Berry drew attention to his suggestion earlier in the meeting to direct the 
increase of 2% in the basic allowance for Members for 2019/20 to assist in the fight 
against poverty in South Lakeland and to the fact that this proposal had not been 
accepted. 
 
Councillors Mark Wilson, Vicky Hughes, Matt Severn, and Dyan Jones, expressed 
support for the motion.  They spoke passionately on the subject of poverty and raised 
strong concerns on issues such as children being unable to take part in all areas of the 
school curriculum, the need for support for those facing the stresses of redundancy, the 
need for authorities to support children’s centres, cuts in benefits and cuts to social 
services. 
 
Councillor Archibald as seconder of the motion emphasised the unacceptability of living 
in such a society and the fact that something was seriously wrong in this country.  He 
hoped that Members would join in condemning this current regime which was punitive 
and causing hardship. 
 
A request having been received from the requisite number of Councillors, the following 
vote on the motion was recorded:- 
 
The following Members voted in favour (26) – Councillors Giles Archibald, 
Robin Ashcroft, Rupert Audland, Jonathan Brook, Stephen Coleman, Tracy Coward, 
Philip Dixon, Alvin Finch, Eamonn Hennessy, Hazel Hodgson, Vicky Hughes, 
Anne Hutton, Andrew Jarvis, Dyan Jones, Dave Khan, Helen Ladhams, 
Pete McSweeney, Ian Mitchell, Eric Morrell, Jon Owen, Doug Rathbone, 
Vivienne Rees, Matt Severn, Graham Vincent, Mark Wilson and Shirley-Anne Wilson. 
 
The following Member voted against (1) – Councillor Kevin Lancaster. 
 
The following Members abstained (12) – Councillors James Airey, Pat Bell, Ben Berry, 
Matt Brereton, Andrew Butcher, Sheila Capstick, Brian Cooper, Anne Hall, 
Tom Harvey, John Holmes, Kevin Holmes and David Williams. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the Council notes:- 
 

(a) the increase in child poverty in this District over the past four years, from 
14% to 15.9% (measured after housing costs); 
 
(b) the increasing use of food banks in the country, as evidenced by the 
Trussel Trust figures, showing an annual 13% increase in usage, and Kendal’s 
Kings Food Bank showing a 16% increase; and 
 
(c) the current freeze on Benefits and the rollout of Universal Credit are 
partly to blame for these increases; 

(2) Council calls on the Government:- 

(a) to review its welfare strategy with a view to providing more support for 
the most vulnerable in our society; 

(b) to take urgent steps to address this appalling trend and to reinstate 
ambitious targets for lowering child poverty; and 

(c) to take urgent action to help those who are most affected by poverty; 
and 

Page 22



57 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

 
(3) in addition, Council asks that the Chair of the Council write to the Local 
Government Minister expressing its dismay at these trends and seeking his support in 
requesting additional funds be provided to Local Authorities by Central Government to 
help those most disadvantaged. 
 

C/59 COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - END OF STAGE 1  
 
Note – Councillor Jonathan Brook declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item 
of business by virtue of the fact that he was a Member of Kendal Town Council 
which would potentially be affected by some of the recommendations.  He 
pointed out, however, that the purpose of the report was for Members to note the 
responses to the Stage 1 of the consultation and to agree the draft 
recommendations for progression to the second consultation stage which he 
believed, did not preclude him from being present and taking part in the 
discussion and voting on the item. 
 
Councillor Jonathan Brook, Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation 
Portfolio Holder, introduced a report on the responses to the first stage of the public 
consultation carried out as part of the Community Governance Review having regard to 
the South Lakeland Community Governance Review Terms of Reference as agreed by 
Council on 24 July 2018 (Minute C/30 (2018/19) refers). 
 
At its meeting on 24 July 2018, Full Council had agreed to carry out a Community 
Governance Review within the District.  The Terms of Reference of the Review had 
been agreed and a Community Governance Review Project Team had been 
established to consider the review and make recommendations to the Council. 
 
The first consultation period had commenced on 10 August 2018 and, as part of this, 
all of the parish councils within South Lakeland had been invited to contribute. 
 
The Review was being undertaken in accordance with Chapter 3 of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (“the Act”) and the Guidance 
on Community Governance Reviews (March 2010) provided by the Department for 
Communities and Local Government Boundary Commission for England.  The 
timetable was included within the Terms of Reference (detailed in Appendix 3 to the 
report) as agreed by Council on 24 July 2018. 
 
As part of Stage 1, as well as key stakeholders (including the Cumbria Association for 
Local Councils (CALC), Cumbria County Council, Lake District National Park Authority 
(LDNPA) and Yorkshire Dales National Park Authority (YDNPA)), residents 
associations, community groups and local people had been asked to make 
representations in connection with the Review. 
 
The Review had to ensure that the proposed community governance reflected the 
interests and identities of the community.  It also had to make certain that the 
arrangements were effective and convenient for the electors of that community. 
 
Parish wards had to be contained within district wards and county electoral divisions; 
that is, parish wards could not cross principal council ward and/or division boundaries. 
 

Page 23



58 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Further district-wide (stage two) consultation, as detailed in the Terms of Reference, 
would commence 4 March 2019 ending 31 May 2019.  Stage two consultation would 
consider any submissions made on these draft recommendations, culminating in the 
provision of final recommendations for approval. 
 
Final recommendations would be considered by Full Council on 23 July 2019, with any 
reorganisation order issued in August 2019. 
 
Following consideration of the responses received, details of which were provided 
within the report, draft recommendations had been drawn up and were set out in 
Appendix 1 to the report.  They contained a number of potential changes, including:- 
 
• reducing the number of councillors on Arnside Parish Council from eleven to 

eight; 
• the potential altering of the parish boundary of Kendal Town Council to include 

an area of proposed development of land north of High Sparrowmire; 
• the potential altering of the parish boundary of Kendal Town Council to include 

properties on Natland Mill Beck Lane and The Beeches, and to include a small 
area of proposed development on land at Watercrook; 

• abolishing the current wards of Dent and Cowgill and having Dent Parish 
Council as an un-warded parish; 

• the creation of a new Parish which amalgamated the parish of Fawcett Forest 
with the parish of Whitwell and Selside to create the Parish of Selside; 

• that the ward of Grange West be abolished and Grange Town Council be made 
up of two wards: Grange North and Grange South; 

• changing the naming of the wards in Kirkby Ireleth Parish Council; 
• altering the election cycle and reducing the number of councillors on Lower 

Allithwaite Parish Council; 
• a number of boundary changes to the parish of Natland; 
• altering the election cycle of Skelwith Parish Council to ensure that the elections 

were held on the same day as South Lakeland district elections for the ward of 
Ambleside and Grasmere; and 

• reducing the number of councillors on Windermere Town Council from twenty to 
thirteen. 

 
Council was being asked to consider and approve the recommendations for publication 
and for the second consultation stage, Stage 3 of the review to commence. 
 
Councillor Brook moved the recommendations contained within the report and was 
seconded by Councillor Philip Dixon. 
 
Councillor Andrew Jarvis raised concern with regard to the draft recommendation to 
reduce the number of councillors on Windermere Town Council from 20 to 13 due to a 
history of uncontested elections.  He pointed out that there were currently 
15 councillors on the Town Council and was of the opinion that a reduction in the 
number of councillors would be of a disadvantage to the people of the Town, as well as 
to the balance of membership of the Lake District National Park Authority, and lead to 
an increase in electoral inequality.  Councillor David Williams, who attended meetings 
of Windermere Town Council, disagreed, believing that the current number of seats 
could never be filled.  Councillor Brook explained that the recommendations were 
meant to precipitate exactly this type of conversation and that all representations would 
be taken into consideration in the second stage of the review prior to any decisions 
being made. 
 

Page 24



59 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Councillor Dixon, having seconded the motion, commended the recommendations and 
expressed the District Council’s gratitude for the work carried out by town and parish 
councillors. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the consultation responses received to the first Stage 1 of the consultation be 
noted; and 
 
(2) the draft recommendations as set out in Appendix 1 to the report be approved 
for progression to the second consultation stage. 
 
Note – In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Part 4, Rule 8 (Rules of 
Procedure), a motion to continue the meeting past 9.30 p.m., moved by 
Councillor Jonathan Brook and seconded by Councillor Kevin Lancaster, was 
carried. 
 

C/60 EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION STRATEGY  
 
Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, 
introduced the report and moved the recommendations contained therein, stressing the 
importance for all to be treated equally, with fairness and respect. 
 
The draft South Lakeland District Council Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) 
Strategy 2019-22 attached as Appendix 1 to the report set out how the Council was 
meeting the requirements of the public sector equality duty under the Equality Act 
2010. This included setting out specific equality objectives, as well as containing useful 
statistics about the Council’s communities to illustrate the different needs of people in 
South Lakeland. 
 
The draft EDI Strategy included definitions of the terms Equality, Diversity, and 
Inclusion.  It was being recommended to adopt this updated terminology into the title of 
the new document, and for this document to supersede the current Equality Scheme 
2016-19 which sat within the Council’s Policy Framework.  
 
It was also being proposed that the draft EDI Strategy would have its performance 
reviewed annually by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. This would make it a 
dynamic document allowing responses to emerging needs, such as changing 
population or rates of digital inclusion. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee had given to consideration to the report at its 
meeting on 26 October 2018 (Minute O&S/35 (2018/19) refers).  Members had 
acknowledged the need to embed equality and diversity, not only within the 
organisation but throughout the community, as well as the need to seek potential ways 
of passing on its message.  They had welcomed the new Strategy and in particular the 
opportunity for its annual review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Cabinet, at 
its meeting on 28 November 2018, had endorsed the Strategy for recommendation to 
Council (CEX/63 (2018/19) refers). 
 
Councillor Archibald was seconded by Councillor Philip Dixon. 
 
RESOLVED – That Council be recommended to adopt the draft South Lakeland District 
Council Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 2019-2022 to replace the existing 
Equality Scheme within the Council’s Policy Framework. 

Page 25



60 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

 

C/61 GOVERNANCE UPDATE  
 
Councillor Stephen Coleman, Chairman of the Audit Committee, presented the results 
of the review of the Council’s Local Code of Governance and Constitution carried out 
by the Audit Committee on 5 December 2018 (Minutes AUD/39 and AUD/41 (2018/19) 
refer). 
 
The Audit Committee had considered proposed amendments to the Local Code of 
Governance to ensure that it met best practice.  The proposed revised Local Code of 
Governance was set out at Appendix 1 to the report.  The majority of amendments 
were to include behaviours and actions under all principles to which they applied. One 
additional measure had been added:- 
 
D14: consider social value when preparing service plans, considering procurement and 
commissioning and monitoring performance. 
 
Other amendments reflected changes to standards and guidance. 
 
The Audit Committee had also considered proposed changes to the Council’s Financial 
Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules which formed part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  The proposed rules were set out at Appendices 2 and 3 to the report.  
The main changes were:- 
 

 to extend the current virement rules for revenue budgets to Capital Programme and 
reserves; 

 to clarify terminology and update references to other documents; 

 to propose more delegation around the use of reserves.  Under the current 
arrangements approval to use reserves was needed from Council as part of the 
final accounts process but there was not a Council meeting between the finalisation 
of the reserve movements and the approval of the accounts by Audit Committee; 

 to clarify that the Monitoring Officer can agree it is not expedient to comply with 
certain contract requirements, such as signing under seal or the use of Council 
policies.  This reflected the growing use of framework agreements where the terms 
and conditions to be used had already been agreed and would give the Council 
appropriate protection; 

 to remove references to paper tenders - all tender documents were now submitted 
electronically. 

 
The changes proposed would apply from the date of Council approval for the 
remainder of the current financial year and subsequent years. 
 
Further amendment of the Constitution would be required to reflect changes to the 
Leadership structure and other changes to job titles.  These changes would be 
included in the Monitoring Officer’s review of the Constitution which was due to be 
presented to the March meeting of Council. 
 
Councillor Coleman moved the recommendations contained within the report and was 
seconded by Councillor Matt Severn. 
 

Page 26



61 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

RESOLVED – That  
 
(1) the review of the Local Code of Governance be noted and the proposed 
changes set out at Appendix 1 to the report be approved; and 
 
(2) the review of the Constitution be noted and the proposed changes set out at 
Appendix 2 to the report be approved. 
 

C/62 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CABINET QUESTION TIME, INCLUDING THE 
COMPOSITE REPORT OF THE CABINET  (1 HOUR MAXIMUM)  
 
In introducing the Executive Reports (Mid-Year 2018/19), Councillor Giles Archibald, 
Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, informed Council that 
discussions had continued to take place between Members of Parliament, the Council 
and GKS regarding the forthcoming closure of its sterile injectables manufacturing unit 
at Ulverston.  GSK remained committed to work with the community.  There had been 
a proposal of a transfer of some land to the public sector on which to form new 
businesses and enterprises.  GSK was also committed to job creation and assisting 
people in finding new work, as well as the apprentice programme.  The Company had 
reconfirmed its commitment to support the new Leisure Centre at Ulverston to the tune 
of £2m.  Councillor Archibald said that he continued to emphasise to GSK the Council’s 
concern with regard to the effect of the closure on employees whose welfare was of the 
utmost priority. 
 
Councillor Archibald spoke of the need for the Council to ensure that children were 
provided with safe walking and cycling paths to school and referred to the excellent 
example of the Masters Grange path in Kirkby Lonsdale.  He asked Members to 
approach their local schools to find out if there was anything that the Council or other 
government tiers could do in order to assist. 
 
Councillor Archibald announced the good news of the award of a £60,000 grant for the 
scheme of improvements to Millerground, money for which had already been 
earmarked within the Capital Programme.  Millerground was an excellent example of 
partnership working with the community and the additional funding would help all 
aspirations to be met.  Councillor Archibald expressed thanks to all involved in the work 
and in attracting the grant. 
 
In accordance with paragraph 10.2 and 10.3 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, the 
following written questions had been submitted to the meeting:- 
 
From Councillor Tracy Coward to Councillor Graham Vincent, Economy and Assets 
Portfolio Holder - You often tell us of the strong South Lakeland economy.  Could you 
please put this into a North West context? 
 
Councillor Vincent responded by saying that, last year, the Office for National Statistics 
had shown that South Lakeland had the biggest economy in Cumbria.  New figures 
announced on the previous day had shown that South Lakeland was still the biggest 
economy, adding a further £21m.  South Lakeland’s economic partner, Barrow, once 
again showed strong growth.  Barrow and South Lakeland were the only Cumbrian 
districts to have increased Gross Added Value, all of the others having decreased.  
However, South Lakeland’s other economic partner’s, Lancaster’s, had grown by even 
more than South Lakeland.  This had brought the Council’s economic partnership into 
sixth place in the North West, behind Manchester, Cheshire East, Liverpool, Cheshire 
West and Chester and Trafford.  Morecambe Bay was now an official grouping in the 

Page 27



62 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Office for National Statistics charts.  Morecambe Bay was establishing a strong 
economic position and continued to grow collectively and individually.  It had prepared 
and distributed its prospectus and was in the final draft of its asks of the Government.  
This would require the Local Enterprise Partnerships of Cumbria and Lancashire to 
work together to support ambitions.  South Lakeland had a position in the North West 
as a powerful economy.  Although a further £0.5b increase in Gross Added Value was 
needed to move into fifth place, it was an aim. 
 
From Councillor Eamonn Hennessy to Councillor Graham Vincent, Economy and 
Assets Portfolio Holder - The Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership has Advanced 
Manufacturing as one of their 3 main priorities.  Is South Lakeland a contributor to this 
priority? 
 
Councillor Vincent explained that Advanced Manufacturing was the manufacture of 
products that required significant technical background and process control  South 
Lakeland and South Cumbria both had many significant Advanced Manufacturing 
companies, a number of which were leaders in their fields and, all together, provided 
the largest Advanced Manufacturing base in Cumbria:- 
 

 James Cropper – technical fibre products; 

 Anord-Mardix – switch gear and power distrubtion systems (500 employees); 

 Gilbert Gilkes – hydro turbines (150 employees); 

 Team – on-site pipe maintenance (100 employees in Cumbria); 

 Kendal Nutricare – highly nutricious baby food (140 employees); 

 Hollingsworth and Vose – global manufacture of filtration materia (50 employees); 

 Billerud – renewable packaging for pharmaceutical industry (140 employees); 

 Acrastyle – high voltage sub-station protection and controls (60 employees); 

 Marle International – LED technology (100 employees); 

 Oxley Group – LED technology (180 employees); 

 Siemens Subsea – high specification sub-sea connections; 

 Tritech – sonar specialists (60 employees); and 

 GSK – antibiotics manufacturing (190 employees); 
 
Councillor Vincent added that Barrow’s economy was booming, centred around BAE 
Systems, with high performance engineering on site.  Other Advanced Manufacturing 
included Gyro Data – steerable drilling systems.  This list demonstrated that South 
Lakeland was big not only in tourism but also in Advanced Manufacturing. 
 
From Councillor Kevin Lancaster to Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and Promoting 
South Lakeland Portfolio Holder - Some members will recall that some time ago I 
asked a question concerning Private Water Supplies in South Lakeland and the 
implementation of the EU Drinking Water directive.  Those members will also recall that 
I received a dismissive and unhelpful response.  The parish council in Garsdale, a ski 
instructor from Cautley and many others have since asked many questions and none 
has received what they considered to be a worthwhile answer.  Tales of the actions of 
our sub-contractors feature regularly in every bar in the more remote valleys of the 
district as I am sure Cllr Mitchell will be able to confirm.  One pensioner claims she was 
verbally threatened with imprisonment whilst another felt so intimidated that she 
needed my colleague Cllr Capstick to be present when the visit was conducted.  No-
one who has read any of the reports written by our contractor can be left in any doubt 
as to their poverty of argument.  Four years have passed.  How many of these reports 
have you read and is your administration proud of the way it has implemented the EU 
Drinking Water directive in this district? 
 

Page 28



63 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Councillor Dyan Jones, Environment Portfolio Holder, responded to the question, which 
fell within the remit of her portfolio.  She explained that local authorities acted as the 
regulators for private water supplies and had a number of statutory duties under the 
Private Water Supplies Regulations.  These Regulations placed a duty on local 
authorities to conduct a risk assessment of each private water supply within their area 
at least once every five years and to undertake monitoring in order to determine 
compliance with drinking water standards.  Most importantly, the service protected the 
health of residents and visitors who consumed water from a private supply whilst living, 
working, or exploring South Lakeland.  This was very important, as 10% of the local 
population relied on private water supplies and some 2.81 million visitors had stayed in 
hotels, bed and breakfasts, holiday cottages, camping and caravan sites and 
bunkhouses in 2017, many of which were on private water supplies.  Councillor Jones 
found it difficult to believe the accusations contained in Councillor Lancaster’s question 
and was not aware of any complaint having been made against the Council’s 
contractor, about whom only positive feedback had been received.  Councillor Jones 
took the opportunity to update members on South Lakeland’s private water service and 
the essential protection to public health which it provided.  South Lakeland had 
approximately 1,700 private water supplies, of which 690 were required to be 
Regulated.  The Regulated supplies were those which served either commercial 
premises, or those which served more than one property.  Single domestic supplies 
were exempt from the Regulations.  The most recent Chief Drinking Water Inspector’s 
(DWI’s) report, published in August 2018, showed that South Lakeland had the largest 
number of private water supplies of any District Council in England and Wales, with 
only the unitary authorities of Cornwall, Herefordshire, Shropshire, Carmarthenshire 
and Powys having more.  Since the last response to questions raised regarding this 
service, there had been a number of changes.  The Private Water Supply 2009 
Regulations had been superseded by the Private Water Supply (England) Regulations 
2016, and the Private Water supply (Amendment) Regulations 2018.  The Council had 
written to all residents and businesses within district whilst these Regulations had been 
in their consultation period in order to allow residents to respond to any concerns they 
may have directly to the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA).  
The main changes imposed by these Regulations had been:- 
 

 An increased consideration of radioactive and radiological substances which may 
be present in private water supplies – over the last three years the Council had 
carried out a survey of radon in private water supplies across the District and, as a 
result, has gained an exemption from the requirement for further monitoring – 
Councillor Jones understood that South Lakeland District Council was the only local 
authority in England and Wales to gain this exemption and this was important 
because the laboratory analysis cost for a radon sample alone was £90 and would 
increase to just over £100 in the New Year. 

 A requirement to now serve enforcement notices in all situations where supplies fell 
short of minimum standards or where they failed to meet microbiological and 
chemical parameters when tested. 

 Removal of the maximum fee which Local Authorities could previously charge in 
recognition that the time taken to bring many of these supplies up to minimum 
standards often far exceeded the limits previously set in 2009. 

 Under the 2018 Amendment Regulations the Council was now required to sample 
for a much wider range - approximately 45 – of parameters set out in the 
Regulations for three years (in most cases three annual samples) and then, 
providing samples were below 30% of the maximum permitted concentration or 
value, the Council could exercise its discretion and cease sampling for them.  This 
was a new additional resource demand and more time would be required to collect 
the samples.  As the Council started to reduce parameters, it would need a method 

Page 29



64 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

of managing the sampling programme so that it knew which parameters were 
required at each of the premises from where samples were taken.  The IT Group 
was currently helping the team develop a bespoke solution. 

 In order to accommodate the additional sampling requirements and ensure that 
samples were transported in the correct temperature-controlled environment, the 
Council would be trialling the use of a temperature controlled vehicle in the first 
quarter of the new year. 

 The 2018 Amendment Regulations also required local authority sampling officers to 
be United Kingdom Accreditation Service accredited – to assist local authorities, the 
Drinking Water Inspectorate was developing a local authority accreditation scheme 
and, once available, officers would become accredited. 

 
In response to these changes, the Private Water Team had submitted evidence to the 
DWI that radioactive and radiological substances were not a significant risk to supplies 
within district, saving approximately £100 per water test to residents.  Fees associated 
with the service still remained within the limits imposed by the 2009 Regulations, 
despite these limits having now been removed as requested by a number of Local 
Authorities.  The fees charged were done so on a reasonable cost recovery basis to 
support the service which the Council delivered.  Private water supply risk 
assessments had to be carried out by the local authority or those appointed by them 
and had to be carried out using a risk assessment tool produced by the DWI, which 
was part of DEFRA. The DWI was the competent authority for ensuring the Drinking 
Water Directive requirements were met in England and Wales.  It provided independent 
reassurance that public water supplies in England and Wales were safe and that 
drinking water quality was acceptable to consumers and had a statutory role to act as 
technical advisors to local authorities in relation to the implementation of the Private 
Water Supplies Regulation.  This included the provision of technical and scientific 
advice on all aspects of drinking water quality, including on private water supplies.  The 
Inspectorate published an annual report on private water supplies in England and 
Wales.  In February 2018, inspectors from the DWI had met with Council officers to 
discuss progress of its private water service.  Although generally pleased with the 
progress made, and the visible improvements to supplies within district which they 
visited, Inspectors had felt that the service was under-resourced in order to undertake 
the rolling programme of risk assessments on supplies.  A contractor had subsequently 
been identified and employed to support the work of the Council’s officers.  Any work 
submitted by the contractor, Watersense UK, was carefully reviewed by the Council’s 
officers to ensure that it met the DWI requirements before it was passed to those 
responsible for the water supply.  Additional resources to support this ongoing 
important public protection work for the future would be identified through the Customer 
Connect Programme.  In response to the final part of the question, Councillor Jones 
informed Members that she would not generally see personal and property specific 
information contained in Risk Assessment reports unless directly approached by a 
resident to investigate a specific enquiry.  Officers had implemented a complex series 
of Regulations which far exceeded the Regulatory requirement prior to 2009.  The work 
they have undertaken had led to the improvement of a significant number of private 
water supplies within the district.  They had implemented a charging regime which was 
fair, consistent with other similar sized local authorities, and focused on reasonable 
cost recovery.  Councillor Jones concluded that, despite comments, she was proud of 
how the Council had implemented the requirements of the Regulations. 
 

Page 30



65 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

Councillor Lancaster was of the opinion that the response demonstrated that the 
Administration of the Council was not interested in the poor way in which its officers 
implemented the Private Water Supplies Regulations.  He referred to the Council’s 
commitment to the provision of affordable housing and asked Councillor Jones if she 
would agree that this commitment did not extend to affordable water? 
 
Councillor Jones undertook to provide a written response. 
 
From Councillor Doug Rathbone to Councillor Jonathan Brook, Deputy Leader and 
Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder - I have heard good things about our 
handyman scheme. Please would you describe some of its successes?  How can 
Councillors and their Wards or Parishes tap into this valuable service? 
 
Councillor Brook responded, pointing out that, as indicated within his Executive Report, 
Handy Person scheme jobs were up by 48% and Disabled Facilities Grant completions 
up by 115% during 18/19.  Occupational Therapist referrals had increased, as well as 
the number of approvals for jobs.  The scheme was intended to help elderly or 
vulnerable householders carry out very simple, but essential, works at their homes.  
The labour was provided free-of-charge and the cost of items and materials paid for by 
the householder, unless these had been supplied to the scheme by a partner agency 
(as in the case of some security items).  They were small jobs but with significant 
results.  Types of jobs and the figures for those carried out in 2018/19 included:- 
 

 Supply and Fit Grab Handle(s) (220); 

 Supply and Fit Hand Rail(s) (147); 

 Fit Key Safe (105); 

 Fit Curtains/Pole/Rail/Blinds (61); 

 Fit LED Light Bulb (50); 

 Move/Assemble Furniture (49); 

 Fit Hand/Grab Handle(s) - Customer Supplied (48); 

 Replace Washers in Taps/Cisterns/Ball Valves (42); 

 Replace Light Bulb/Fluorescent Tube/Lamp Shade (41); 

 Repair Door(s)/Window(s) (37); 

 Repair/Renew Light Fitting (28); 

 Replace Sealant Around Sink/Bath (23); 

 Fit Picture/Mirror, etc., to Wall (23); 

 Repair/Fit Toilet Seat (23); 

 Unblock Sink/Repair Minor Leak (15); 

 Fit Passive Infrared Security Light(s) (14); 

 Fit Door Lock (13); and 

 Repair Gate/Fence/Path (11). 
 
Councillor Brook said that, bearing in mind the demographic of the area and the 
concerns of elderly and the need to move towards lifetime homes, the Handy Person 
scheme had a significant and growing role to play in the safety and security of South 
Lakeland’s residents and in the reduction in care costs.  Councillor Brook explained 
how councillors could tap into the scheme through the Website or directly through the 
Housing Standards Team.  He welcomed discussions with Members on how to 
publicise the scheme within individual wards, for example, in community centres. 
 

Page 31



66 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

The written questions having been presented and answered, the following verbal 
questions were taken from the floor:- 
 
Councillor James Airey asked Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Finance Portfolio Holder, 
about the financial implications of the plans to build a hotel and leisure complex on the 
Glebe and whether the Council was not simply content with having offered up the 
Royalty within the Lake District National Park Local Plan? 
 
Councillor Jarvis’ understanding was that nobody had the right to build on the Glebe as 
there was a covenant on the property.  He said that there had been no such 
discussions between officers, the Cabinet or the Lake District National Park Authority.  
There was no such intention, nor had it ever been the intention, and there was no such 
proposal in the Lake District National Park Local Plan. 
 
Councillor Airey, as a supplementary question, asked whether officers had put the 
Glebe forward in the Plan without the knowledge of the Administration. 
 
Councillor Jarvis responded by saying that since he had become a Member of the 
Cabinet, there had been no such proposal. 
 
Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, 
pointed out that this was misinformation.  He emphasised the fact that there was a 
covenant on the Glebe and that this had been pointed out at a recent meeting of the 
Cabinet.  Councillor Archibald reminded Members that when he had become Leader of 
the Council he had extended an offer to all group leaders for early discussions on 
issues in order to pre-empt misinformation, however, explained that not all had taken 
up the opportunity. 
 
Councillor David Williams referred to the Executive Report from Councillor 
Graham Vincent, Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder, and questioned the portfolio 
responsibility for the promotion of small businesses in both towns and rural areas, as 
well as Councillor Vincent’s earlier mention of Gilkes as being a local Advanced 
Manufacturing company.  He referred to a recent meeting of the Planning Committee at 
which Councillor Giles Archibald had spoken in opposition to a planning application for 
a gas fired electricity generation station at Old Hutton.  At that meeting, a 
representative from Gilkes had addressed Members in support of the application due to 
the fact that the Company would be supplying the machinery and that this was a 
contract which was urgently needed.  The Company had indicated that it was prepared 
to diversify its business to meet the contract. 
 
Councillor Vincent informed the Council that, during talks, Gilkes had only expressed 
interest in battery storage which formed an element of previous application that had 
been refused by the Planning Committee, and not in wind turbines.  He undertook to 
research the matter and to provide a response in writing.  Councillor Giles Archibald, 
Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, added that the Council had 
always believed in sustainable growth, however, that he had spoken in object at the 
Planning Committee meeting due to a lack of mention of carbon footprint during the 
construction phase and the need for a reduction in greenhouse gases. 
 

C/63 MINUTES OF MEETINGS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no comments or question shave been received in 
respect of the minutes of committee meetings held between 17 September and 
23 November 2018. 

Page 32



67 
18.12.2018 Council 
 

 

 

C/64 QUESTIONS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR CHAIRMAN OF ANY 
COMMITTEE OR SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions have been received under Rule 10.6 
of the Council’s Rules of Procedure. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 10.10 p.m. 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

POLITICAL BALANCE following Arnside and Milnthorpe By-Election on 20 December 2018 

 

Liberal Democrat (29) Conservative (19) Labour (3) 

 

 

2018/19 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS as at 15 January 2019 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE (7) (non Exec members) 

Matt Brereton Sheila Capstick Stephen Coleman (Chair) 

Tracy Coward Eamonn Hennessy Kevin Lancaster 

Matt Severn   

 

CABINET (7) 

Giles Archibald (Leader) Robin Ashcroft Jonathan Brook (Deputy Leader) 

Philip Dixon Andrew Jarvis Dyan Jones 

Graham Vincent   

 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE (9) (min 1 Exec member) 

Roger Bingham Andrew Butcher Philip Dixon (Vice-Chair) 

Rachael Hogg (Chair) Dave Khan Matt Severn 

Peter Thornton Graham Vincent Mark Wilson 

 

LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE (16)  

Robin Ashcroft Roger Bingham Matt Brereton (Vice-Chair) 

Andrew Butcher Gill Gardner Eamonn Hennessy 

John Holmes Kevin Holmes Vicky Hughes 

Andrew Jarvis Dyan Jones Eric Morrell 

Douglas Rathbone Vivienne Rees David Williams (Chair) 

Mark Wilson   

Lakes Parish Council Members (3) 

Brian Hewitt Leslie Johnson Philip Thompson 

Windermere Town Council Members (5) 

Kathleen Atkinson Jennifer Borer Leith Hallatsch 

Peter Hamilton Adrian Legge  

 

Page 35

Item No.6



 

LICENSING COMMITTEE/LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE (15) 

James Airey Rupert Audland Pat Bell 

Alvin Finch Tom Harvey Hazel Hodgson 

John Holmes Kevin Holmes Helen Irving 

Andrew Jarvis (Vice-Chairman) Dave Khan Helen Ladhams (Chair) 

Jon Owen Douglas Rathbone David Webster 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (12) 

Pat Bell Helen Chaffey Brian Cooper 

Anne Hall Hazel Hodgson Vicky Hughes (Chair) 

Anne Hutton Janette Jenkinson Ian Mitchell 

Douglas Rathbone (Vice-Chair) Vivienne Rees Mark Wilson 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE (18) 

Robin Ashcroft Rupert Audland Andrew Butcher 

Helen Chaffey Brian Cooper Michael Cornah 

Gill Gardner John Holmes Vicky Hughes 

Anne Hutton Janette Jenkinson Dave Khan 

Kevin Lancaster Pete McSweeney (Chair) Eric Morrell (Vice-Chair) 

Vivienne Rees David Webster David Williams 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE (7) (non Leader) 

Matt Brereton Sheila Capstick Chris Hogg 

John Holmes Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chair) Eric Morrell 

Matt Severn (Chair)   

Co-opted Members (2) 

David Peters Peter Smillie 

 

Page 36



South Lakeland District Council 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 01 February 2019 

Cabinet 6 February 2019 

Council 26 February 2019 

Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 3, 2018/19 

 

Portfolio:   Finance Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Lee Hurst – Chief Accountant 

Wards:  All 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 It is expected that Members note the projected year end position based on 
performance to the end of Quarter 3 2018/19 and that Council approve the changes 
to the 2018/19 revenue budget as outlined in the report. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:- 

 (1) Note the contents of the report 

2.2 It is recommended that Cabinet: 
(1) Note the contents of the report; 
(2) Request that Council approve the budget changes to increase the 

income and expenditure budgets by £140k as outlined in paragraph 
3.5.1. 

 
2.3 It is recommended that Council: 

(1) Note the contents of the report; and 
(2) Approve the budget changes to increase the income and expenditure 

budgets by £140k as outlined in paragraph 3.5.1. 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

 
3.0.1 Revenue – Appendix 1 sets out the revenue variances to date. Overall, at the end of 

Quarter 3, budget monitoring has identified a forecast year-end underspend of £260k. 
In addition, there are projected to be £273k of carry forward requests. Trends 
identified in these budget monitoring results have been fed into the 2019/20 budget 
setting process. 
 

3.0.2 Capital – Appendix 2 sets out the position on the capital programme. The capital 
budget at Quarter 2 2018/19 stood at £9.795m. Carry forwards to 2019/20 of 
£1.557m relating to the ERDF Flood Alleviation scheme and £300k relating to the 

Page 37

Item No.7



Cross-a-moor Affordable Housing scheme and an increase to the Millerground Play 
scheme of £12k due to additional funding were approved by Council on the 18th 
December as part of the updated Capital Programme submitted with the 2019/20 
Draft Budget. This results in a 2018/19 capital programme of £7.950m at the end of 
Quarter 3. Expenditure against this programme to the end of Quarter 3 was £3.205m. 
There is anticipated to be significant expenditure during Quarter 4 and £0.458m of 
further re-profiling has been identified. A revised programme is presented as part of 
the budget process, including any new schemes prioritised against the available 
funding. 
 

3.0.3 Treasury – Appendix 3 provides an update on Treasury management for the 
quarter. There is one issue to report in terms of compliance with the approved 
Treasury Management Strategy relating to counterparty limits. This is covered in 
paragraph 3.7.4. Investments have performed better than the relevant benchmarks 
except in relation to long-term core investments due to the change in interest rates. 
No repayment of existing borrowing or new borrowing is anticipated up to the end of 
the financial year. 

 

3.1 Revenue Variances by Assistant Director 

3.1.1 Appendix 1 provides the detail of the revenue variances for each Assistant Director’s 
service area. The projected out-turn is for a net underspend of £260k. Further detail 
is provided below in Table 1 and paragraphs a) to e) below. 
 

Table 1: Summary by Assistant Director Service Area 
 

AD area Expenditure 
Budget Full 

Year 
£000 

Income 
Budget 

Full Year 
£000 

Expenditure 
Variance 
to Date 

£000 

Income 
Variance 
to Date 

£000 

Overall 
Variance 
to Date 

£000 

Out-turn 
projection 

£000 

Year-
end 

Carry 
Forward 

£000 

Resources (a) 23,772 -20,170 -85 -73 -158 -140 0 

Performance and 
Innovation (b) 

2,056 -71 -61 4 -57 -53 -57 

Strategic Development (c) 8,533 -4,365 -192 22 -170 67 -216 

Neighbourhood Services 
(d) 

15,074 -8,506 -72 11 -61 -2 0 

Corporate (e) 244 -16,206 0 -53 -53 -132 0 

Total GF 49,679 -49,318 -410 -89 -499 -260 -273 

Net General Fund Before 
Corporate Savings 
Target 

361       

Corporate Savings 
Target (para. 3.3.1) 

(361)       

Net GF 0            

 
 
a Resources – The current projection is for a £140k underspend at year-end. This 

relates to a number of variances, as set out in Appendix 1.  The main reasons are: 

 £15k underspend in Legal Services relating to vacant posts. 

 A £39k overspend on salaries in Finance due to backfilling of a business critical 
post with agency staff which was required to meet the statutory accounts closure 
deadline. 

 The Revenues and Benefits service projects a £24k overspend due to additional 
costs of running the old system. 

 Additional Council Tax Support administration grant of £27k. 

Page 38



 A £105k underspend identified as a result of a corporate review of Pension and 
National Insurance rates. 

 £20k underspend due to unclaimed Members allowances. This is due to specific 
Members not claiming and so no recurring saving has been identified. 

 
 
b Performance and Innovation - The current projection is a £53k underspend with 

£57k of requested carry-forwards. The full list of variances is detailed in Appendix 1. 
The main reasons are: 

 A net £22k overspend on salaries due to part back-filled vacant posts in Customer 
Services resulting in a net underspend of £21k and a £43k overspend in Digital 
Innovations as a result of an extension to temporary posts critical to digital 
transformation. 

 A number of variances within Information Services leading to a £44k underspend, 
£32k of which is currently subject to a carry forward request to fund fixed-term posts 
in 2019/20. 

 An underspend of £8k in Policy and Performance relating to vacancies partially 
offset by payments for additional responsibilities and exceptional effort under the 
interim management arrangements. 

 An underspend of £80k on Community Grants and activities, £25k of which is 
subject to a potential carry forward request. The underspend relates to various 
unallocated grant pots. 
 
 

c Strategic Development - There is currently a £67k forecast overspend, with variances 
detailed in Appendix 1, and £216k of requested carry-forwards. The main reasons for 
the projected out-turn are: 

 A £74k underspend on the Grange Lido project which is the subject of a carry 
forward request to complete the project in the next financial year. This is due to the 
timing of the project, and preliminary work will not be completed this financial year 
due to a minor delay in the tender process. 

 Underspend of £16k due to £36k saving on vacant office cleaning posts offset by a 
£20k shortfall in rental income. Alternatives are currently being worked up with a 
consideration of the longer-term impact of the Customer Connect ‘Places’ (office 
accommodation) programme being taken into account. 

 A net underspend of £12k relating to salaries in Development Management and 
Development Implementation. 

 A demand led income shortfall of £29k relating to Building Control, this trend is to 
be expected in the context of reduced planning fee income due to fewer 
applications being processed. 

 A projected underspend of £38k in relation to the Community Housing Fund 
scheme due to delays in implementation. This underspend will be transferred back 
to the Community Housing Fund Reserve at the year end and therefore does not 
constitute an out-turn saving. 

 Development Control salary overspend of £24k and income shortfall of £128k 
relating to planning applications. This variance is considerably lower than that 
reported in Quarter 2 monitoring as the requested reductions in budget of £118k 
have now been actioned. Future year’s budgets have been reduced in line with 
expected volumes. 

 A potential underspend of £20k is reported in relation to general Economic 
Development support and funding initiatives. This could be required to complete 
work in the new year and may be required to be requested to be carried forward. 

 A forecast underspend of £24k of the self-build and custom-build register element of 
the Housing and Enabling service. 

Page 39



 Homelessness and the Hostel overall is projected to be £7k over budget. This is 
made up of a £37k income shortfall due to changes in the way Supporting People 
grant is allocated by the County Council, £10k salary overspend due to not meeting 
the corporate vacancy target, and a £40k surplus on the Social Lettings scheme. A 
further £70k surplus relating to the Social Letting scheme is likely to be requested to 
be carried forward for use in reviewing current service provision. The Social Lettings 
scheme is currently unbudgeted as budgets were approved to be removed by 
Council during the 2018/19 budget setting process. A reversal of Government policy 
has led to this service continuing and a request to establish interim budgets for 
2018/19 is outlined in section 3.5. 

 Local Plans is forecast to underspent on salaries by 26k due to vacant posts. There 
is also a £34k underspend on flood risk assessments due to delays in in 
Environment Agency Flood Modelling and this sum is subject to a potential carry-
forward request in order to complete the assessments in 2019/20. 

 £13k underspend on the Museum management fee. The method of provision of this 
service is currently under review and future budgets will be amended accordingly. 
This underspend may be required to fund any potential costs relating to the 
implementation of the new arrangements. 

 Higher than budgeted New Homes Bonus in year is expected to lead to a £14k 
income surplus. 

 Sundry (Investment) Properties has a forecast income shortfall on £14k due to un-
let units. 
 

 
d Neighbourhood Services - Overall the year end position is this is projected to be in 

line with the budget.  This is made up of a number of variances across the service as 
detailed in Appendix 1. The main reasons for the projected underspend are: 

 A £46k salary underspend in Community Services due to vacant posts. 

 Car parking income is projected to overachieve its budget by £117k. 

 Community Leisure is reporting a potential underspend of £25k due to the 
discontinuation of a number of County Council partnerships including British 
Cycling, Sports Development, and Active Travel. 

 A £20k income shortfall relating to Lake Windermere moorings due to a small 
number of jetty births not being let due to both the exceptionally dry weather and 
external market pressures. A capital scheme to dredge the births to improve access 
has been submitted. 

 A £25k underspend relating to Parks due to a Green Spaces Officer and apprentice 
vacancy.  

 A £52k overspend on Street Cleansing. The corporate vacancy saving will not be 
met leading to a salaries overspend of £28k. Furthermore, fuel costs are projected 
to be overspent by £24k due to the larger fleet.  

 The Transport service is forecasting a £11k overspend on vehicle repairs due to the 
additional number of vehicles in the fleet.  

 Kerbside Recycling is projected to overspend by £128k. This is due to a number of 
variances within the service. There is a £80k overspend forecast on salaries as the 
corporate vacancy savings target will not be met. This is a service where full staffing 
is essential to maintain the service. A £17k shortfall on recycling credits is expected 
due to the impact of the hot summer on green waste, but as a result tipping and 
disposal costs will be £20k lower than expected. Sale of recycling materials is 
expected to underachieve its income budget target by £86k due to low demand and 
low price for the materials but this is partially offset by a £35k underspend on 
advertising due to delays in projects. 

 
 

Page 40



e Corporate items – Corporate items, which include the Council’s funding through 
taxation and grants, investment interest income and expenditure, and movements to 
and from reserves are currently forecast to be in £132k underspent. 

 Investment interest income forecasts are for a surplus of £27k. Budgets do not 
include the recent interest rate rise and this surplus reflects the improved 
performance. Future year’s budgets have been updated as part of the budget 
setting process. 

 Retained Business Rates income is expected to be £62k lower than budgeted. This 
is explained in paragraph 3.8.3. 

 A review of the Minimum Revenue Provision, the charge to revenue for the 
unfinanced element of capital expenditure, has identified a probable underspend of 
£167k due to re-phasing of the capital programme. As capital schemes slip to later 
years the charge to revenue also moves. 

 
3.2 Analysis of employee budgets 

 
3.2.1 The position on employee costs at Quarter 3 is summarised in Table 2 below. The 

total variance against the Quarter 3 profiled budget is an underspend of £154k, 1.4% 
of the year to date budget. This saving is over and above the 4% vacancy saving 
built in to all direct employee cost budgets. 

 
Table 2: Employee costs 

 

Full year 

budget 

Profiled 

budget 

Actual to 

date 

Variance 

to date 
Variance 

£000 £000 £000 £000 % 

14,630 10,969 10,815 -154 1.4% 

 
3.2.2 To date, the profiled vacancy factor of £420k has been achieved as net vacancy 

savings after the vacancy factor stand at £741k, but also included in table 2. above is 
expenditure on contract and  agency staff. The total overspend to date on this 
element of employee costs was £484k (£638k expenditure against a profiled budget 
of £154k). This expenditure on contract and agency staff equates to 5.9% of the total 
spend on employee costs up to Quarter 3. The majority of this relates to the Waste 
and Recycling service (£160k), Development Control (£148k), and the hostel (£48k) 
where compensating savings on security will be used to cover some of the costs, 
Legal Service (£33k) and Revenues and Benefits (£33k). There is also a £132k 
overspend to date on allowances such as overtime, exceptional effort and merit 
payments. That said, along with a number of smaller savings, the cumulative effect of 
vacancy management is now taking effect and this results in an overall net 
underspend of £154k to date. 
 

3.3 Savings, deficit and 2019/20 budget setting cycle 
 

3.3.1 As part of the 2018/19 budget process, £361k of savings were built into the base 
budget to be delivered through vacancy management in the lead in to the Customer 
Connect programme. Since the Quarter 2 Corporate Financial Monitoring Report a 
great deal of work has been undertaken by Corporate and Operational managers and 
by the Finance Team to address the then reported deficit. As outlined in paragraph 
3.0.1, Corporate Financial Monitoring has now forecast an underspend of £260k by 
the financial year end. This leaves savings of around £101k to be found by 31st 
March 2019. Furthermore, there are currently £273k of further underspends subject 

Page 41



to potential carry-forward requests which could contribute to meeting the savings 
target if the requests are refused.  
 

3.3.2 Further Customer Connect savings of £740k for 2019/20 and £1.550m from 2020/21 
onwards have been identified as part of the updated Customer Connect business 
case and the updated Medium Term Financial Plan both approved by Council during 
July. Detailed profiling of the exact timings of when these further future savings will 
be delivered is currently being undertaken by the programme manager and 
information on performance against these targets and the interaction with other 
budget variances reported earlier in this report will be reviewed in future budget 
monitoring reports and through Customer Connect programme monitoring. 

 
3.3.3 An efficiency programme is also being developed to assess other areas that could 

deliver savings or additional income. This will ensure that robust proposals are in 
place to meet any savings targets over and above the £1.550m to be delivered from 
the Customer Connect programme. 
 

3.3.4 Over the coming weeks budget holders will be asked to formally submit their carry 
forward requests, in consultation with their Assistant Director, for consideration by 
Corporate Management Team and the relevant Portfolio Holder. These will then be 
submitted to Council at its meeting on the 26 February for formal approval and 
inclusion in the 2019/20 budget. 

 
3.4 Changes to Revenue budgets under delegation  
 
3.4.1 Certain budget changes, such as virements below set limits and the use of certain 

reserves, are delegated to officers of the Council. There have been a number of 
changes to budgets under these delegated powers since the Quarter 2 report, and 
these are as follows:  

 

 £40k has been transferred from the Statuary Duties Reserve to fund planning 
appeals. 

 £21k has been transferred from the Community Housing Fund Reserve to fund a 
rural housing needs study, and a feasibility study. 

 
3.5 Revenue budget change request 

 
3.5.1 As part of the 2018/19 Budget Setting process, Council agreed the removal of 

budgets in relation to the Social Lettings scheme as Government had announced an 
end to the initiative. Subsequently, a reversal of Government policy has led to the 
Council continuing to provide this service. No budgets exist for this service, but we 
continue to incur expenditure and receive income in the form of Housing Benefit to 
cover the costs of lettings. It is therefore necessary to establish interim budgets for 
the remainder of 2018/19 to ensure proper authority to incur expenditure is in place. 
Therefore Cabinet are asked to request that Council approve the creation of a £140k 
expenditure budget for the Social Lettings scheme along with a corresponding £140k 
income budget for only the 2018/19 financial year, with a commitment from 
management to review service provision in future years. 
 

3.6 Capital programme 
 

3.6.1 The capital programme reported at Quarter 2 totalled £9.795m which included 
£3.249m of carry forwards from 2017/18 and additional schemes totalling £1.686m 
approved by Council on the 24th July 2018 including the ERDF Flood Alleviation 
Scheme and the Customer Connect Business Case. The latest version of the capital 

Page 42



programme was presented to Council on the 18 December 2018. At that meeting, 
carry forwards to 2019/20 of £1.557m relating to the ERDF Flood Alleviation scheme 
and £300k relating to the Cross-a-moor Affordable Housing scheme, plus an increase 
to the Millerground Play scheme of £12k due to additional funding, were approved as 
part of the updated capital programme submitted with the 2019/20 Draft Budget. This 
results in a 2018/19 capital programme of £7.950m at the end of Quarter 3. 
 

3.6.2 Spend against the £7.950m programme to the end of Quarter 3 was £3.205m with a 
further £1.188m committed expenditure through purchase orders. There is 
anticipated to be significant expenditure during Quarter 4 and £0.458m of further re-
profiling has also been identified as part of the budget monitoring process. Council 
will be requested to approve the updated capital programme reflecting this re-profiling 
on the 26 February 2019 as part of the 2019/20 Budget Setting report. 

  
Table 3: Summary of capital programme and expenditure 
 

  
Full Year 
Budget 

Expenditure 
Budget 

Remaining 
Requires 

re-profiling  

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Performance and Innovation 765 133 632 0 

Strategic Development 3,317 1,208 2,109 126 

Neighbourhood Services 3,868 1,864 2,004 332 

Total 7,950 3,205 4,745 458 

 
 

3.6.3 Details of the re-profiling identified to date are provided below. Appendix 2 contains 
further comments and updates on all capital schemes. The  main schemes identified 
for re-profiling are: 

 

 Disabled Toilet Improvements: £40k to be re-profiled. A public consultation is yet to 
take place and therefore the expenditure will not be incurred until 2019/20. 

 Commuted Sums Affordable Housing: £86k re-profiling required. £30k of approved 
grants will not be paid out until next financial year and the remaining £56k requires 
suitable applications and so also needs carrying forward. 

 Play Areas: various schemes totalling £174k to be re-profiled. Schemes either still 
in the process of sourcing funding or are out to tender. All spend will fall in 2019/20. 

 Vehicle Purchase: £158k to be re-profiled. Additional recycling vehicle will not be 
delivered until the new financial year. 

 
 
3.7 Treasury Management 

 
3.7.1 Appendix 3 contains an overview of the Council’s position against the agreed 

indicators and limits. There is one issue to report in terms of compliance with the 
approved Treasury Management Strategy relating to counterparty limits. This is 
covered in paragraph 3.7.4. 
 

3.7.2 To date the Council’s investments have performed well against market expectations. 
Furthermore, the Bank of England base rate increased by a quarter per cent to 
0.75% on the 2 August but investment interest income and expenditure budgets have 
not been increased for this in the current financial year. Budget monitoring has 
therefore forecast a £27k income surplus on investment interest as a result of the 
rate rise. Future year’s budgets have been updated as part of the budget setting 
process. 

Page 43



 
3.7.3 Overall the Council’s investments are outperforming the average benchmark rate. 

However Core (Long-Term) investments are 0.05% below the benchmark rate of 
0.76%. This is as a result of the timing of investments maturing and the timing of the 
last rate rise. Borrowing is not expected to change and no repayment is planned at 
the current time, due to market conditions. 
 

3.7.4 During the quarter we exceeded the counterparty limit with one of our Money Market 
Funds by £1.2 million. This was identified and corrected the next day. The situation 
arose as a result of an administrative error with a deal being listed under the wrong 
fund on our internal investment record. Operational procedures have been amended 
in the short-term to avoid this happening again. In the long-term officers are looking 
at using an online Money Market Fund Portal for managing money market 
investments. Such a portal will display daily account balances and provide warning 
messages and prevent limits being exceeded. 
 

3.8 Collection Fund 
 

3.8.1 Table 4 below sets out the Quarter 3 performance on local tax collection. The 

Council Tax Collection figure at 31 December 2018 is 86.36%, this is 0.18% higher 

when compared to the same period last year. This is the first time this year that 

collection has been above target. Due to the system conversion at the beginning of 

2018, the direct debit tapes were run early and a larger than usual amount were 

returned unpaid. This has now been rectified and it is expected that collection will 

remain above target next month.  

 
3.8.2 The Non Domestic Rates (NDR) collection rate figure at the end of Quarter 3 is 

82.29% which is 0.06% lower than last year.  As reported last quarter, it was 

expected that NDR collection would continue to improve and this is proving to be the 

case. 

 

          Table 4: Local Taxation Collection Rate        
 

Percentage 
Collected 
Quarter 2 

2013/14 
% 

2014/15 
% 

2015/16 
% 

2016/17 
% 

2017/18 
% 

2018/19 
% 

 

 

 
 

Council Tax 87.07 86.71 86.54 86.14 86.18 86.36  
 

Business 
Rates 

87.90 84.33 84.22 82.55 82.35 82.29 
 
 

 

3.8.3 As previously reported at Quarter 2, monitoring of the business rate retention 

scheme has identified a reduction in business rates collectable for 2018/19 of 

£461k (1.1%), largely due to an increase in small business rate relief.  This is offset 

by a reduction in the provision for appeals of £306k mainly due to a number of large 

appeals being withdrawn.  Overall, after adjustments for levy and income from the 

pool, it is expected that the net income retained by the Council will be £62k lower 

than estimated. 

  

Page 44



3.9 Sundry Debts 
 

3.9.1 The aim of this section is to describe the current sundry debt position and to provide 
assurance over collection performance. Table 5 below summarises the current 
collection rate on sundry debts: 
 

          Table 5: Summary of collection 
 

 

An analysis of outstanding sundry debts reveals that over 99% of debts have been 
recovered in years up to 2016/17, and 99% of debts in 2017/18. In the current year 
to date, 89% of debt has been recovered. Of the current year’s outstanding debt of 
£488k, 60% of the debt is now 1 month overdue. The table below splits down in 
more detail the age profile of the current outstanding debts. 

 

Table 6: Age profile of 2018/19 invoices 

2018/19 Invoices £000 

Over 6 months overdue 23 

6 months overdue 24 

5 months overdue 4 

4 months overdue 3 

3 months overdue 28 

2 months overdue 69 

1 month overdue 294 

Not yet due 43 

Total end of Quarter 3 488 

 

3.9.2 Of the £294k of debt that is 1 month overdue, £250k is owed by reliable local 
authority partners and is expected to be paid in a matter of weeks. Outstanding 
encroachment invoices for all years have remained at a similar level to Quarter 2, at 
around £75k. £15k of the debt over 6 months old relates to invoices which have 
instalment payment plans arranged. 

 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Senior management, budget holders and the Finance Portfolio Holder have been 
consulted. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options. 

 

2013/14 
and 

earlier 
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

2018/19 
to date 

 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Debt outstanding 70 8 16 33 51 488 

Total value of invoices/credit 
notes raised 

19,206 4,808 4,606 5,028 5,087 4,690 

Collection Rate (%) 99.7% 99.8% 99.6% 99.4% 99.0% 89.6% 

Page 45



6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Regular budget monitoring forms part of the corporate governance arrangements that 
support all Council priorities. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Financial and resource information are contained within the report. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no direct Human Resources implications of the report. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no direct legal implications of the report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report is an historic review of financial performance to the end of Q3. The overall 
impact assessment of the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is 
undertaken at budget setting time. 

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: There are no 
additional Health, Social, Economic or Environmental impacts as a result of the 
report. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report is an historic review of financial performance to the end of Q3. The overall 
impact assessment of the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is 
undertaken at budget setting time. 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: There are no additional Equality impacts 
as a result of the report. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Not effectively managing 
budgets could lead to 
overspending. 

Possible legal challenge, 
audit qualification and ultra 
vires expenditure. 

Scrutiny of budgets 
through review of 
monitoring reports. 

Recurring pressures or savings 
are not identified 

Medium Term Financial 
Planning may not reflect 
the future impact of current 
issues. 

Regular monitoring of 
budgets in year to inform 
the MTFP and annual 
budget setting process. 

Contact Officers 

Lee Hurst, Chief Accountant, lee.hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793599 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793147 

Page 46



 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

Appendix 1 Detailed Revenue Budget Monitoring  

Appendix 2 Detailed Capital Budget Monitoring 

Appendix 3 Treasury Management  Review 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

2018/19 Budget Book including 
MTFP projections 

https://tinyurl.com/ybarr92t   

2017/18 Budget Setting Report https://tinyurl.com/y7h7ehne  

Medium Term Financial Plan 
2019/20-2023/24 

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 17/01/2019 

Monitoring Officer N/A 

SMT 17/01/2019 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 17/01/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 17/01/2019 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) 06/02/2019 

Council 26/02/2019 

 

Page 47

https://tinyurl.com/ybarr92t
https://tinyurl.com/y7h7ehne
https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Appendix 1

Service Portfolio

Expenditure 

Budget Full 

Year

£

Income Budget 

Full Year

£

Expenditure

Variance

to Date

£

Income

Variance

to Date

£

Overall

Variance

to Date

£

Out-turn 

projection

>£10k

Carry 

Forward 

Requests 

>£10k

Commentary 

ECL Legal
Housing People 

and Innovation
55,014 -30,250 -34,317 12,070 -22,248 -15,000 0 Underspend from salaries, not used for Legal and counsel fees.

EFS Financial Services Finance 29,577 -4,000 18,837 2,921 21,758 39,000 0
Vacancy savings target will not be met and overspend is due to 

additional cost of interim cover identified as service critical

ERB Revenues and Benefits Finance 88,489 -103,676 95,910 -73,218 22,691 24,000 0

Additional costs of £30k to retain access to Civica Open revenues 

for Housing Benefit Subsidy purposes. In addition the council is 

owed £10k by Civica. Remaining variances relating to additional 

agency costs to cover staff vacancies, long term sickness, 

additional system conversion work and reduced effectiveness of 

staff gaining confidence in the new system. Additional workload 

due to shortfalls in other departments e.g. Customer Services and 

delays in digital implementation.

ERE Asst Dir Resources Finance 0 0 7,726 0 7,726 10,000 0
Vacancy saving will not be met as there has been no vacancy and 

additional trainings costs

GBN Council Tax Benefits Finance 341,310 -65,826 3,187 -30,146 -26,959 -26,959 0
Localised Council Tax Support Admin Grant greater than 

anticipated.

GFS
Unapportionable 

PensionAdj
Finance 431,292 0 -5,466 0 -5,466 -115,000 0

Reduction in costs of £10k due to changes in the number of 

pensioners. £105k due to corporare review of pension and NI 

rates.

GMM Members
Health and 

Wellbeing
465,504 0 -33,380 0 -33,380 -20,000 0 Unclaimed Members' allowances.

GTH Other Items Finance 51,400 -5,000 -70,127 3,600 -66,527 -41,000 0 One off budget savings.

GTV Bank Charges Finance 94,051 0 -8,928 0 -8,928 5,000 0

Pattern of fees to date lower than budgeted,but an increase in 

fees and the number of transactions has reduced the projected 

underspend

Other Resources 22,215,070 -19,960,491 -59,176 12,128 -47,048 0 Individual variances <£10k

Total Resources 23,771,707 -20,169,243 -85,734 -72,645 -158,380 -139,959 0

Performance and Innovation

ECU Customer Services
Housing People 

and Innovation
218,302 0 7,550 0 7,550 22,000 0

Underspend on Customer Services vacant post, part back-filled 

by contractor and overtime £21k; net overspend on Digital 

Innovations £43k, mainly due to to extension of Digital Editor 

posts.

ERI Information Services
Housing People 

and Innovation
29,212 0 -30,176 0 -30,176 -12,000 -32,000

Net underspend on vacant posts (some now recruited to) £35k, 

part offset by corresponding shortfall on Eden shared service 

recharge £14k; underspend on Disaster Recovery £11k, due to 

enhancements not required (carry forward request to part fund 

two fixed term ICT Officers posts); underspend on NDL software 

£12k.

EXS Policy and Performance
Health and 

Wellbeing
-112,817 -17,400 -2,960 1,800 -1,160 -8,000 0

Vacant posts underspend £25k, part offset by Customer Connect 

related additional responsibilities and exceptional effort costs 

£17k.

The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue budget variance projections  based on data up to 31/12/2018 Period-9

Resources

P
age 49



Service Portfolio

Expenditure 

Budget Full 

Year

£

Income Budget 

Full Year

£

Expenditure

Variance

to Date

£

Income

Variance

to Date

£

Overall

Variance

to Date

£

Out-turn 

projection

>£10k

Carry 

Forward 

Requests 

>£10k

Commentary 

GCG Community Grants Finance 857,869 0 -39,393 0 -39,393 -55,000 -25,000

Underspend on Tour of Britain cycling event £25k due to not 

hosting a start or finish stage, may require carry forward to fund 

bid to host stage in next year's TOB; potential underspend on 

community projects fund £20k due to no project spend currently 

identified; underspend relating to unallocated projects £35k.

Other Performance and Innovation 1,063,808 -53,921 4,444 1,832 6,276 0 Individual variances <£10k

Total Performance and Innovation 2,056,374 -71,321 -60,536 3,632 -56,904 -53,000 -57,000

Strategic Development

ECC Strategic Planning Admin
Economy and 

Assets
7,200 0 -45,562 -1,335 -46,897 0 -74,000

Potential underspend on Grange Lido project £74k, may require 

carry forward to complete. 

EPX Offices
Economy and 

Assets
83,009 -21,842 -28,751 13,764 -14,987 -16,000 0

Underspend on South Lakeland House cleaners' vacant posts 

£36k, part offset by South Lakeland House rental income shortfall 

£20k due to rented space discontinued.

EUR
AD Community Inv and 

Dev

Economy and 

Assets
608 0 -16,448 -90 -16,538 -12,000 0

Net underspend on Development Management vacant posts £7k: 

overspend on legal costs relating to agency staff issue £23k;  net 

underspend on Development Implementation vacant posts £28k.

GBC Building Control
Housing People 

and Innovation
570,568 -329,661 6,101 20,870 26,972 29,000 0 Potential demand led income shortfall £29k. 

GCH Community Housing Fund Finance 41,770 0 -31,029 0 -31,029 0 -38,000

Net underspend on vacant post £38k due to delay in scheme 

implementation (any underspend to be transferred back to 

Community Housing Fund reserve at year-end).

GDC Development Control
Housing People 

and Innovation
1,245,333 -637,256 21,172 74,014 95,185 152,000 0

Potential salary overspend £24k relating to back-filling with 

agency staff, mainly due to corporate vacancy saving budget; 

potential demand led income shortfall relating to planning 

applications of £128k based on comparison to previous year. 

GED Economic Development
Economy and 

Assets
689,302 -51,337 -27,445 1,500 -25,945 -20,000 0 Potential underspend on minor Econ Dev support £20k.

GEN Housing Enabling Role
Housing People 

and Innovation
994,883 0 -24,523 0 -24,523 -24,000 0

Potential underspend £24k self build and custom build housing 

register grant.

GHL Town View Fields Hostel
Housing People 

and Innovation
395,925 -268,273 10,094 18,136 28,230 47,000 0

Net salary overspend £10k mainly due to corporate vacancy 

saving budget; Supporting People income shortfall £37k due to 

Cumbria County Council changing to block grant basis (budget 

Pressure to be revised as part of 2019/20 budget setting).

P
age 50



Service Portfolio

Expenditure 

Budget Full 

Year

£

Income Budget 

Full Year

£

Expenditure

Variance

to Date

£

Income

Variance

to Date

£

Overall

Variance

to Date

£

Out-turn 

projection

>£10k

Carry 

Forward 

Requests 

>£10k

Commentary 

GHM Homelessness
Housing People 

and Innovation
487,602 -111,089 -2,871 -99,717 -102,588 -40,000 -70,000

Potential underspend on Flexible Homelessness grant £70k, carry 

forward may be required to fund implimentation of service 

provision review; Social Lettings scheme was approved to be 

discontinued by Council, but is still being operated due to residual 

demand and a reversal of Government funding policy. The Social 

Lettings scheme is currently un-budgeted, and consequently will 

generate an in-year net surplus circa £40k (request for 2018/19 

budgets circa gross £140k will need to be approved by Council in 

the quarter-3 budget monitoring report). Homelessness service 

will require a complete review to determine future service 

provision, and any budget requirements will need to be approved 

by Council.     

GLP Local Plans
Housing People 

and Innovation
559,215 -112 -56,618 -1,934 -58,552 -26,000 -34,000

Net underspend vacant posts £26k; underspend on flood risk 

assessments £34k due to delays in Environment Agency Flood 

modelling, may require carry forward to complete.

GMK Markets
Economy and 

Assets
204,738 -201,202 -10,202 1,823 -8,379 -10,000 0 Vacant post underspend £10k

GMU Museum
Culture and 

Leisure
297,898 0 -12,903 0 -12,903 -13,000 0

Underspend on management fee £13k due to base budget set 

higher than actuals, Budget to be revised in future years to 

recognise expected savings.

GNH New Homes
Housing People 

and Innovation
0 -860,500 0 -10,910 -10,910 -14,000 0

Grant surplus expected £14k due to budget set lower than 

actuals.

GSY Sundry Properties
Economy and 

Assets
544,290 -151,085 11,119 -2,589 8,530 14,000 0

Potential shortfall on investment property rents due to un-let units 

£14k

Other Strategic Development 2,410,897 -1,732,745 16,305 8,696 25,002 0 Individual variances <£10k

Total Strategic Development 8,533,238 -4,365,102 -191,560 22,228 -169,332 67,000 -216,000

EUN Community Services
Health and 

Wellbeing
-108,616 -195 -40,547 -211 -40,759 -46,000 0

Potential net salary underspend (including Street Scene 

redundancy costs) £46k due to vacant posts and secondment to 

Customer Connect roles.

GCK Car Parks
Economy and 

Assets
2,707,869 -4,369,983 -30,963 -120,000 -150,963 -117,000 0

Potential demand led surplus on car parking income £117k, 

(impact of three re-surfacing's expected to be minimal). 

GCL Community Leisure
Culture and 

Leisure
46,633 -1,824 -11,607 -595 -12,202 -25,000 0

Underspend £25k due to County Council partnership projects 

discontinued (British Cycling, sports development, and active 

travel). 

GLW Lake Windermere
Culture and 

Leisure
815,045 -1,425,493 4,370 20,003 24,373 20,000 0

Potential shortfall jetty berths £20k due to low water levels during 

summer (propose dredging of lake bed to resolve).

GPK Parks Environment 1,347,418 -80,548 -25,268 -2,341 -27,609 -25,000 0
Potential £25k net underspend on vacant Green Spaces Officer, 

and apprentice post.

GTG Street Cleansing Client Environment 1,240,389 -6,575 33,840 3,556 37,396 52,000 0

Net overspend on salaries circa £28k, due to corporate vacancy 

budget will not be met; potential overspend on fuel £24k due to 

more vehicles on fleet, higher mileage, and fuel increases.

Neighbourhood Services

P
age 51



Service Portfolio

Expenditure 

Budget Full 

Year

£

Income Budget 

Full Year

£

Expenditure

Variance

to Date

£

Income

Variance

to Date

£

Overall

Variance

to Date

£

Out-turn 

projection

>£10k

Carry 

Forward 

Requests 

>£10k

Commentary 

GTS Transport Environment 99,633 -83,781 13,619 2,061 15,679 11,000 0

Potential overspend on repairs £11k, due to more vehicles on 

fleet, further investigation to be carried out for 2019/20 budget 

setting.

GWK Kerbside Recycling Client Environment 5,157,718 -1,538,454 19,377 100,491 119,868 128,000 0

Net overspend on salaries £80k due to corporate vacancy budget 

will not be met; potential demand led shortfall £17k on recycling 

credits due to hot summer impact on green waste; offset by 

potential corresponding underspend on tipping and disposal costs 

£20k; potential demand led shortfall £86k on sale of materials due 

to reduced market prices; part offset by potential underspend 

£35k due to delayed advertising projects. 

Other Neighbourhood services 3,767,676 -999,342 -34,962 7,766 -27,196 0 Individual variances <£10k

Total Neighbourhood Services 15,073,765 -8,506,195 -72,140 10,727 -61,413 -2,000 0

Corporate items

VGR26 Investment Interest 0 -175,500 0 -53,310 -53,310 -27,000 0 Reflects increase in bank base rate

VGR44 Retained business rates 0 -3,440,500 0 0 -1 62,000 0

A reduction in business rates collectable for 2018/19 of £461k 

(1.1%), largely due to an increase in small business rate relief.  

This is offset by a reduction in the provision for appeals of £306k 

mainly due to a number of large appeals being withdrawn.  

Overall, after adjustments for levy and income from the pool, it is 

expected that the net income retained by the Council will be £62k 

lower than estimated.

VGS58
Statutory adj.  Capital 

Charges
-3,779,373 0 0 0 0 -166,660 0 MRP recalculation due to rephasing of capital programme

Other Corporate items 4,023,288 -12,590,138 0 0 0 0 Individual variances <£10k

Total Corporate items 243,915 -16,206,138 0 -53,311 -53,311 -131,660 0 Individual variances <£10k

Total GF 49,678,999 -49,317,999 -409,970 -89,369 -499,339 -259,619 -273,000 0

Net GF 361,000

P
age 52



Appendix 2

AD/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

re-profiling

£
Commentary 

KIP01

Locally Important Projects 

(previoulsy presented within 

revenue)

Culture and 

Leisure
275,367 68,250 -207,117 0 Budget allocated to schemes except for circa £30k

KIT27 Mobile Working
Housing, People  

and Innovation
120,000 0 -120,000 0

Specification and integration with new digital platform to be 

assessed before project can begin.

KIT30 Digital Innovation Project
Housing, People 

and Innovation 
290,000 26,179 -263,821 0 Current budget committed.

KIT90 IT Replacement Fund
Housing, People 

and Innovation 
80,000 38,383 -41,617 0  

765,367 132,812 -632,555 0

KDE04
Former Knitwear Factory 

Ulverston

Economy and 

Assets
89,154 95,955 6,801 0

Scheme complete, final account outstanding. Coverage of 

overspend to be arranged by virement from other scheme with 

savings.

KCD01 Castle Dairy
Economy and 

Assets
19,932 0 -19,932 0

Work complete and now in defects liability period. Retention to 

pay. Contractor has gone into administration so necessity of 

making final payment and timing uncertain.

KEP52 Disabled Toilet Improvements 50,000 0 -50,000 40,000

Work yet to be agreed. Public consultation to take place. 

Expected spend of c. £10k in year, remaining expenditure will 

take the form of grant payments to applicants who wish to carry 

out improvements and will take place in 2019/20, so £40k 

requires re-profiling. 

KIL01
Community Infrastructure 

Levy

Economy and 

Assets
0 37,267 37,267 0  

KLH02
Ulverston Asset Transfer 

programme

Economy and 

Assets
79,767 0 -79,767 0

Funds to be transferred to UCE. Business case from UCE has 

been received and payment pending assessment of case and 

final funding agreement being drawn up.

KLH03 Kendal Town Hall stonework
Economy and 

Assets
32,866 25,724 -7,142 0

Completed and now in defects liability period. Retention left to 

pay.

KMR01 Grange Footbridges
Economy and 

Assets
0 -5,262 -5,262 0

Network Rail - credit note against invoice for installation of 

refurbished footbridge no.19 Clare House Lane

KMR32
Wordsworth Trust 

Contribution
42,000 0 -42,000 0

Contract drawn up by legal. Payment imminent, will be made in 

January 2019.

SLDC 2018/19 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 9

Performance and Innovation

Total Performance and Innovation

Strategic Development

P
age 53



Appendix 2

AD/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

re-profiling

£
Commentary 

SLDC 2018/19 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 9

KMR34 Kendal Castle 42,000 0 -42,000 0

Work to paths to be arranged this year. Quotation received and 

final meeting to confirm details taking place this month before 

order is placed.

KMR21 Kendal Museum alterations
Economy and 

Assets
85,000 0 -85,000 0 Cabinet report to include approval of payment to Kendal College.

KPE18
Towpath Trail Kendal-

Lancaster
Environment 140,000 20,000 -120,000 0

Remaining £120k payment to CCC to be made soon once grant 

agreement has been finalised.

KRE53 Kendal Public Realm Environment 22,600 6,865 -15,735 0

Work complete and now in defects liability period. Retention to 

pay. Underspend earmarked for experimental traffic order for 

Market Place.

KRE55 New Road Common Environment 231,023 219,243 -11,780 0
Completed and now in defects liability period. Retention 

outstanding.

KRE66
Grange Promenade structural 

works
Environment 100,000 0 -100,000 0

Work has started with consultants re drainage repairs by United 

Utilities. Meeting held with Natural England, assessment taken 

place and awaiting response. Uncertainty on future plans for Lido - 

clarity required on Lido from council before work can go ahead.

KAH10
Affordable Homes TC Prop 

Empty

Housing, People 

and Innovation
168,000 2,000 -166,000 0

£99,000 housing association grant to be paid Q4 (legal delay). 

Further 3 empty homes grants totalling £68,190 to be paid in Q4.

KAH12 Town View Fields works
Housing, People 

and Innovation
0 -927 -927 0 Complete

KAH13
Commuted Sums Affordable 

Housing

Housing, People 

and Innovation
146,000 0 -146,000 86,000

Grant applications totalling £90,000 approved but only £60,000 

will be paid by year-end. Balance of £86,000 will require re-

profiling to 2019/20.

KGD21 Mand Disabled Fac Grants
Housing, People 

and Innovation
934,400 781,386 -153,014 0

Demand for DFGs continues to be high, with adaptions in the first 

half of the current year exceeding adaptions in the whole of last 

year. 

KRT10 Right To Buy Replacement
Housing, People 

and Innovation
495,000 0 -495,000 0

Awaiting signing of legal agreement with SLH before £495k grant 

can be provided. To be paid Q4 due to legal delay.

P
age 54



Appendix 2

AD/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

re-profiling

£
Commentary 

SLDC 2018/19 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 9

KCH01 Community Housing Fund
Housing, People 

and Innovation
490,000 16,022 -473,978 0

£16k spent in Q1 and a further £90k (Windermere) to be spent in 

Q4. Remainder is allocated for full spend by year-end but will 

depend on progress made by individual community land trusts. 

Application for £350,000 (Levens) now approved but will be paid 

in instalments so will require some re-profiling into 2019/20 - 

unable to determine level of re-profiling at this stage. 

KXB27
Energy Saving Building 

Enhancement

Economy and 

Assets
149,200 10,000 -139,200 0

LSH review to be undertaken in year, remainder of works will be 

in 2019/20. More certainty of cost profile will be available by the 

end of next month.

3,316,942 1,208,273 -2,108,669 126,000

0

KEG35
Flood Impact Works Rothay 

Park
Environment 207,200 82,869 -124,331 0 Work now complete. Underspend on scheme.

KRE61 Waterhead Public Jetty Environment 31,431 33,350 1,919 0
Works completed and within defects liability period. Overspend to 

be covered by virement from other underspent scheme.

KLC01
Leisure Centres inc KLC 

changing room refurbishment

Culture and 

Leisure
159,567 153,090 -6,477 0 Completed and now in defects liability period. Retention to pay.

KLL17 Ferry Nab redevelopment Lake Admin 42,644 -5,000 -47,644 0
Work complete. Retention to pay soon of £6k,  underspend of 

balance expected.

KLL18
Cockshott Point entrance 

improvements
Lake Admin 1,750 280 -1,470 0 Work underway.

KMR33
Braithwaite Fold Caravan 

Park
Lake Admin 214,300 14,881 -199,419 0

Work to start in January and will complete in year. Additional 

income from improvements not expected until 2019/20.

KMR31 Festival Infrastructure
Culture and 

Leisure
64,800 0 -64,800 0

£24k scheme for lamp post banners in Kendal being developed, 

to be spent in year. Remainder of budget to be given up - £20k 

vired to Nobles Rest in January.

KNM51 Play Areas Environment 0 0 0 0
Budget re-allocated to be used for work at Maryfell (£10k), 

Rayrigg Meadow (£27.7k), Broadgate Meadow (£5k). 

KNM54 Rinkfield Playground Environment 3,447 0 -3,447 0 Project complete.

KNM55 Hallgarth Phase 2 Environment 80,000 0 -80,000 0
Scheme cost now to be £20k. Work to take place in this financial 

year.

KNM56 Millerground Play Project Environment 109,502 6,603 -102,899 0
Path works (£80k) started in November, completion expected mid-

January. 

Total Strategic Development

Neighbourhood Services

P
age 55



Appendix 2

AD/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

re-profiling

£
Commentary 

SLDC 2018/19 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 9

KNM57
Play Space Audit 

Implementation
Environment 0 0 0 0

£60k budget has been re-allocated to Lightburn Park (£10k), 

Maryfell (£10k), Greenbank (£10k), Rayrigg Meadow (£10k), 

Broadgate Meadow (£10k), Abbot Hall (£10k).

KNM58 Kendal Parks playground Environment 78,410 122,176 43,766 0
Work at Howe Bank (£45k) complete. Work at Hayclose Road 

(£80k) nearly complete.

KNM59
Lightburn Park MUGA & 

playground
Environment 115,852 79,500 -36,352 36,000

MUGA compete. Total cost of scheme will be within current 

budget, for completion summer 2019/20, so re-profiling of 

remaining budget may be required.

KNM60 Abbot Hall Playground Environment 58,000 0 -58,000 58,000
Total scheme cost will be £125k. Out to tender end of Jan, order 

for works to be raised this financial year, spend will be in 2019/20.

KNM61 Yew Tree Playground Grange Environment 5,000 0 -5,000 5,000
Total scheme cost will be £74k. Evaluation to take place Jan and 

order to be raised in Feb, spend will be in 2019/20.

KNM62
Greenbank & Castlefield Play 

Area
Environment 30,000 0 -30,000 30,000

Total scheme cost will be £75k. Awaiting further funding, will be 

out to tender in March, spend will be in 2019/20.

KNM63 Queens Park play area Environment 10,000 0 -10,000 10,000

Total scheme cost will be £200k. Major fundraising to take place 

next summer so work 12 months away. Will require re-profiling to 

2019/20.

KNM64
Broadgate Meadow 

Grasmere
Environment 35,000 0 -35,000 35,000

Total scheme cost will be £85k. Awaiting further funding. 

Procurement to take place in new year if funding in place. Spend 

will be in 2019/20.

KNM65 Maryfell Sedbergh Play Area Environment 40,000 0 -40,000 0

Total scheme cost will be £66k. Order to be raised in January. 

Work will be weather-dependant, start on site 4 March and will 

take 4 weeks so spend may just fall into new year.

KNM66 Rayrigg Meadow Play Area Environment 100,500 479 -100,021 0

Awaiting planning permission from National Park, aiming to have 

Easter opening. Spend will be very end of March or early 

2019/20.

KPY38
Westmorland Shopping 

Centre car park

Economy and 

Assets
0 218 218 0  

KPY42 Car Park machines update
Economy and 

assets
140,000 2,605 -137,395 0 Work done, payment pending resolution of outstanding issues.

KPY44
Town and Car Park/public 

information Signs

Economy and 

assets
16,200 4,494 -11,706 0

Procurement for PSPO signage and work will be re-done due to 

large discrepancies in bids. Plan to get signs in place by Easter.

P
age 56



Appendix 2

AD/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

re-profiling

£
Commentary 

SLDC 2018/19 Capital Programme Monitoring Period 9

KPY45
SLH Car Park - structural 

repair and re-surfacing works

Economy and 

assets
377,541 6,875 -370,666 0

Work to start in Feb and expect to complete in year, though 

weather dependent. 

KPY46 Car Park Resurfacing
Economy and 

assets
339,730 240,542 -99,188 0

Buxton Place will be completed this month. 2 No. car parks will 

start in January. Further design work needed on the last of 4 car 

parks because of insufficient soakaway properties, so likely to be 

some re-profiling into 2019/20. 

KPY48 Parkside Rd Car Park
Economy and 

assets
160,400 6,574 -153,826 0

Planning approved. Parking study appraisal confirmed need for 

car park. Awaiting council approval to progress. 

KRE65 The Glebe Planting Environment 50,000 49,500 -500 0 Work complete.  

KLR31
Nobles Rest park 

improvements
Environment 178,100 188,051 9,951 0

Expected £20k overspend on this scheme, due to weather 

conditions over winter delaying scheme and subsequent extra 

costs. Virement actioned in January to cover this.

KFL01 Footway Lighting Environment 49,400 1,200 -48,200 0

Lights at Low Biggins to go ahead in year. Other spend 

dependant on Electricity North West and Cumbria CC 

programming works.

KSC91
Refurb Replace Recycled 

Bins
Environment 150,000 69,292 -80,708 0

Demand is high from customers to replace damaged bins and 

provide additional bins to properties. Furthermore new build 

developments of approximately 800 homes in year each require 

servicing. Will be significant further spend in year.

KSC91 Vehicle Purchase Environment 1,019,002 806,276 -212,726 158,000

Recycling vehicle (£158k), tractor (£25k) and boat engine (£30k) 

still to be purchased in year. Delay in delivery of recycliing vehicle 

until May/June 2019, will require carry forward.

3,867,776 1,863,855 -2,003,921 332,000

7,950,085 3,204,940 -4,745,145 458,000

Total Neighbourhood Services

GRAND TOTAL

P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 58



Appendix 3 

2018/19 Quarter 3 Treasury Management Update 

This appendix reviews treasury performance for the period 01/04/2018 – 31/12/2018 against 

the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, which was approved by Council on  

27th February 2018. 

The Councils Treasury Management operation ensures cash flows are adequately planned, 

with surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity 

initially before considering optimising investment return. 

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s 
capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, this 
is the element of the capital programme that is not financed from external grants, capital 
receipts or other contributions. Which when added to the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) shows the underlying borrowing need of the Council. This underlying 
borrowing need is managed by the treasury team through short and long term borrowing 
arrangements and the use of longer term cash flow surpluses. 

 
Borrowing  

No new borrowing has been undertaken in the year to date, therefore the Council has maintained 
external borrowing at £12.8 million. As a result, gross and net borrowing are below the capital 
financing requirement (CFR). This is a key indicator as it shows that the Council is not borrowing 
to fund revenue activities or borrowing to lend-on. 
 
Table 1: Borrowing Limits 
 

 £m 

Actual borrowing 12.800 

Authorised limit 24.600 

Operational boundary 18.600 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 18.558 

 
Table 1 also shows that the Council hasn’t breached its operational boundary and authorised limit 
(which must not be breached) on external debt.   
 
The current premium on the Councils borrowing is circa 76% (i.e. £760k per £1m repaid), which 
would take over 20 years to repay. This is not low enough to consider making an early repayment, 
however we will keep this under review. 
 
It is anticipated that the Council will not need to undertake any additional borrowing in 2018/19, with 
the increase in the CFR being met through the use of cash balances, increasing our internal 
borrowing position. Our internal borrowing position is estimated to be £5.758 million or 31% of the 
CFR at year end. This position will be carefully monitored against changes to reserves to ensure 
that the position is sustainable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



Appendix 3 

Investments 
 
Graph 1 below shows the movement on the Councils investment portfolio between 01/04/18 
and 31/12/18. 
 

 
 
 
The Council held £34.2m of investments as at 31 December 2018. Table 2 shows the outstanding 
investments by type. 
 
Table 2 Investment Summary 
 

Counterparty Value (£m) 

Call Operational  

 Blackrock 1.400 

 CCLA 4.800 

Fixed Operational  

 Bank of Scotland 2.000 

 Cheltenham Borough Council 1.000 

 Coventry Building Society 1.000 

 Highland Council 2.000 

 Leeds Building Society 2.000 

 Nottingham Building Society 1.000 

 Principality Building Society 1.000 

 Suffolk County Council 3.000 

 Yorkshire Building Society 3.000 

Fixed Core  

 Goldman Sachs 2.000 

 City of Kingston upon Hull 5.000 

 Nationwide Building Society 1.000 

 Newcastle Building Society 1.000 

 NatWest (Ring Fenced Bank) 1.000 

 Sumitomo Mitsui Bank 2.000 

   

 34.200 

 
 
 
 

0
5,000,000

10,000,000
15,000,000
20,000,000
25,000,000
30,000,000
35,000,000
40,000,000
45,000,000

O
p

en
in

g 
B

al
an

ce
0

8
/0

4
/2

0
1

8
1

6
/0

4
/2

0
1

8
2

4
/0

4
/2

0
1

8
0

2
/0

5
/2

0
1

8
1

0
/0

5
/2

0
1

8
1

8
/0

5
/2

0
1

8
2

6
/0

5
/2

0
1

8
0

3
/0

6
/2

0
1

8
1

1
/0

6
/2

0
1

8
1

9
/0

6
/2

0
1

8
2

7
/0

6
/2

0
1

8
0

5
/0

7
/2

0
1

8
1

3
/0

7
/2

0
1

8
2

1
/0

7
/2

0
1

8
2

9
/0

7
/2

0
1

8
0

6
/0

8
/2

0
1

8
1

4
/0

8
/2

0
1

8
2

2
/0

8
/2

0
1

8
3

0
/0

8
/2

0
1

8
0

7
/0

9
/2

0
1

8
1

5
/0

9
/2

0
1

8
2

3
/0

9
/2

0
1

8
0

1
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
0

9
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
1

7
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
2

5
/1

0
/2

0
1

8
0

2
/1

1
/2

0
1

8
1

0
/1

1
/2

0
1

8
1

8
/1

1
/2

0
1

8
2

6
/1

1
/2

0
1

8
0

4
/1

2
/2

0
1

8
1

2
/1

2
/2

0
1

8
2

0
/1

2
/2

0
1

8
2

8
/1

2
/2

0
1

8

Core Investments Fixed Operational Call Operational

Page 60



Appendix 3 

Graph 2 below shows the maturity profile of the Councils investment portfolio split between 
operational and core investment types 
 

 
 
 
Table 3 below summarised the performance to date, benchmarked against the London 
Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) that best matches the duration of the investments. For example, 
Call investments can be called back the same day and so the overnight LIBID rate is the bench 
mark. 
 

Table 3 Performance 

 Average 
Return 

Benchmark 
Rate 

Variance 

Call Operational 0.61% 0.47% 0.14% 

Fixed Operational 0.68% 0.65% 0.03% 

Fixed Core (Long Term) 0.71% 0.76% -0.05% 

Overall Average 0.67% 0.63% 0.05% 
 

Overall the Council’s investments are outperforming the average benchmark rate. However Core 
(Long-Term) investments are 0.05% below the benchmark rate of 0.76%. This is as a result of the 
timing of investments maturing and the timing of the last rate rise.  
 
Other Considerations 

During the quarter we exceeded the counterparty limit with one of our Money Market Funds by £1.2 
million. This was identified and corrected the next day. The situation arose as a result of an 
administrative error with a deal being listed under the wrong fund on our internal investment record. 
Operational procedures have been amended in the short-term to avoid this happening again. In the 
long-term officers are looking at using an online Money Market Fund Portal for managing money 
market investments. Such a portal will display daily account balances and provide warning 
messages and prevent limits being exceeded.  
  

0

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

18,000,000

Call 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-6 Months 6-12 Months 1-2 Years

Operational Core

Page 61



Appendix 3 

Looking Forward 

After weak economic growth of only 0.1% in quarter one, growth picked up to 0.4% in quarter 2 and 
to 0.6% in quarter 3.  However, uncertainties over Brexit look likely to cause growth to have 
weakened again in quarter four.   
 
There has been no further movement in the Bank Rate since August’s increase to 0.75% and it is 
unlikely that we will see any further action from the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) until the 
uncertainties over Brexit clear.  In the event of a disorderly exit, the MPC have said that rates could 
go up or down, though it is probably much more likely to be down so as to support growth.   
 
CPI inflation has been on a falling trend, reaching 2.3% in November. However, in the November 
Bank of England Inflation Report, the latest forecast for inflation over the two year time horizon was 
raised to being marginally above the MPC’s target of 2%, indicating a slight build up in inflationary 
pressures.  
 
Wage inflation peaked at a new post financial crisis high of 3.3%, (excluding bonuses), in the three 
months to October, mainly due to a lack of suitably skilled people due to the continuing increase in 
total employment and unemployment being near to 43 year lows.  
 
The rise in wage inflation and fall in CPI inflation is good news for consumers as their spending 
power is improving in this scenario as the difference between to two figures in now around 1%, i.e. 
a real terms increase. Given the UK economy is very much services sector driven, an increase in 
household spending power is likely to feed through into providing some support to the overall rate 
of economic growth in the coming months.  
 

Conclusion 

The Council Investments continue to perform well against benchmarks, with all activity within 
approved limits and Borrowing has been maintained at £12.8 million within the debt indicators. 

Page 62



South Lakeland District Council 

Council 

Tuesday, 26 February 2019 

Council Plan 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Jonathan Brook - Deputy Leader of the Council 

Report from:  Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author: Paul Mountford - Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer 

   Laura Chapman - Corporate Support Officer 

Wards:  Not Applicable 

Forward Plan: Forward Plan as published on 2 October 2018 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 The Council Plan sets out a vision, underpinned by three priorities that will guide how 
we work together with partners to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work 
and explore. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Council approve the Council Plan. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council Plan sets out the council’s vision and priorities.  It is part of a suite of 
corporate documents and links closely with the Medium Term Financial Plan.  These 
documents form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and underpin the council’s 
approach to governance and community leadership. 

3.2 The current Council Plan was for the period 2014 to 2019, updated annually.  This 
new Plan is intended to run from 2019 to 2024.  In developing the plan the vision has 
been revised to add the words “working together” to reflect that we cannot achieve 
our ambition alone, and that we work with partners to deliver on our vision and 
ambitions. 

3.3 The vision, as stated in the revised Council Plan is “Working together to make South 
Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore.”  To achieve the vision the 
Council’s areas of focus are: 

 Creating an environment for people to thrive 

 Delivering excellent value-for-money, services 

 Playing a leading role and influencing others 

 Empowering customers and communities 

 Forward thinking, innovative Council 

  

Page 63

Item No.8



3.4 As with the previous versions, the Council Plan retains the values: 

 Empowering People 
By listening to our customers and our employees their ideas and comments 
will help us make improvements to customer service and workforce 
development. 

 Excellence 
Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that our actions 
address the needs of South Lakeland. 

 Open and Transparent 
Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public. 

3.5 The Council Plan sets out the challenges and opportunities that the district faces in 
the short, medium and long term.  These are described in detail in Appendix 3.  In 
brief the challenges and opportunities are: 

 South Lakeland’s demography 

 Financial resilience 

 Affordable housing 

 Sustainability 

 Rise in obesity levels and inactivity 

 Access to better training and development, and 

 Education and skills. 

3.6 In order to meet the challenges and maximise opportunities the Council Plan sets out 
the delivery of the vision by: 

 Working across boundaries to deliver to communities 

 Creating the right balance across different age groups 

 Reducing inequalities so that no one is left behind, and 

 Creating a sustainable and inclusive economy. 

3.7 In addition to the Council Plan, an Executive Summary (as detailed in Appendix 4) 
has been developed.  This document states the high level priorities across the cross-
cutting themes to deliver the overall strategic aims of the Council. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The plan has been developed following meetings held with Cabinet Members and 
Officers.  Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the plan on 
the 11 January 2019.  The views and identified improvements from Committee 
members further informed the development of the Council Plan.   

4.2 The plan was approved by Cabinet on 6 February 2019. 

4.3 In development of the Council Plan the Council’s existing priorities and activities have 
been reviewed.  An assessment of the challenges facing the South Lakeland and the 
views of residents, councillors, staff and other interested parties have been taken into 
account. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The alternative option is not to approve the Council Plan.  This is not recommended 
as the strategy sets the visions, values and delivery as the key strategy of the 
Council.  Not recommending the approval of the plan would reduce the likelihood of 
the council’s ambitions being delivered. 

Page 64



6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The Council Plan is the key strategic document for the organisation.  It sets out the 
council priorities and is linked to all key strategies, including the Medium Term 
Financial Plan, Workforce Plan and Performance and Service Plans. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 The budget process has been running alongside the development of the Council Plan 
and while the plan represents the key strategic vision taken by the council, the 
Medium Term Financial Plan details the council’s financial position. 

7.2 The two plans are linked and the resources will be allocated to service areas and 
capital projects that will enable the council priorities to be delivered. 

Human Resources 

7.3 The Customer Connect Programme sets out the skills, knowledge and support that is 
needed to deliver the ambitions and priorities set out in the Council Plan. 

Legal 

7.4 There are no legal implications to raise at this stage. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.5 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? Yes (attached at Appendix 1). 

7.6 Assessments will be carried out of the health, social, economic and environmental 
impact of individual projects linked to the Council Plan. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 2). 

7.8 Assessments will be carried out of the impact of individual projects linked to the 
Council Plan in respect of equality, diversity and inclusion. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council Plan is not adopted 
by the council. 

Compromise the delivery 
of the priorities, service 
planning and performance 
monitoring. 

The Council does not have 
an up to date basis for 
prioritisation and 
performance management. 

Ensure significant 
engagement and 
consultation has been 
achieved. 

Actions by partner 
organisations, necessary to 
deliver the plan are not 
forthcoming. 

Delivery will not match 
expectation. 

Close engagement and 
joint working with critical 
delivery partners. 

There are insufficient resources 
to enable delivery of the Council 
Plan. 

Priorities and objectives 
are not met. 

Ensure appropriate 
resources are available 
and account had of the 
Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan. 

  

Page 65



Contact Officers 

Paul Mountford, Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer, 01539 793271, 
p.mountford@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Laura Chapman, Corporate Support Officer, 01539 793440, l.chapman@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Council Plan - Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment 

2 Council Plan - Equality Impact Assessment 

3 Council Plan  

4 Council Plan – Executive Summary  

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Agenda Item 14 - Council Plan (6 
February 2019) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=121&MId=4467&Ver=4  

O&S/46 Draft Council Plan and 
Draft Council Policy on Climate 
Change 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=364&MId=4505&Ver=4  

C/61 2014-2019 Council Plan 
(2018 Update) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=4276&Ver=4  

C/79 2014-2019 Council Plan 
(2017 Update) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=4058&Ver=4  

C/79 2014-2019 Council Plan 
(2016 Update) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=3771&Ver=4  

C/82 2014-2019 Council Plan 
(2015 Update) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=3566&Ver=4  

C/78 - Council Plan 2014-2019 http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=120&MId=3460&Ver=4  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 13 December 2018 

Section 151 Officer 13 December 2018 

Monitoring Officer 13 December 2018 

SMT 20 December 2018 
 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 13 December 2018 

Human Resources Manager 13 December 2018 

Communications Team 13 December 2018 

Leader 20 December 2018 

Committee Chairman 24 December 2018 

Portfolio Holder 20 December 2018 

Committee 11 January 2019 

Executive (Cabinet) 6 February 2019 

Council 26 February 2019 

 

Page 66

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=4276&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=4276&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=4058&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=4058&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3771&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3771&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3566&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3566&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3460&Ver=4
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=120&MId=3460&Ver=4


 
 

Appendix 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Aims of the Health, Social, Economic & 
Environmental Impact Assessment 

 

The aims of conducting the Impact Assessment are: 
 

• To improve population health 
 

• To reduce health inequalities 
 

• To maximise any health benefits 
 

• To minimise any health risks 
 

• To inform decision making of any health impacts 
and to ensure that they are given consideration 

 

When should an Impact Assessment be 
completed? 

 

The Impact Assessment should be carried out at the 
beginning of a new project or programme, when 
conducting a service review and when developing a 
new policy. This enables consideration to be given 
to any potential health impacts at the very beginning 
of the process. 

 

It is recommended that officers complete the Impact 
Assessment form even if initially they do not 
anticipate any health impacts to ensure that the 
proposal has been thoroughly considered. 

How do I complete the Impact Assessment? 
 

You will need to consider your proposal against four 
different categories, these include: 
 

• Environmental conditions 
 

• Social and economic factors 
 

• Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve 
their own health and wellbeing 

 

• Access to services, spaces or social 
opportunities that improve health and wellbeing 

 

When undertaking this piece of work it is likely that 
you will need to carry out some desk based 
research as a minimum to help you assess the 
impacts. There are some examples overleaf which 
demonstrate how different proposals can impact 
health and wellbeing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For further information please contact: 

Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer: r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk Page 67

mailto:r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk


 
 

Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Examples of how proposals can affect health 
 

Will the policy have an impact 
on environmental conditions 
that would affect health? 

A policy on active travel would positively affect health through reducing 
motorised forms of transport and increasing more sustainable forms of 
transport. 

 

Building a new housing development without footpaths would discourage 
people from walking to local shops and services. 

Will the policy have an impact 
on social and economic 
factors that would affect 
health? 

Increasing access to advice on benefits in a deprived area could reduce 
poverty, and increase access to goods, services and activities. 

 

Assisting businesses who wish to expand who offer good employment 
will improve the health of the local population. 

Will the proposal affect an 
individual’s ability to improve 
their own health and 
wellbeing? 

Upgrading the equipment in a playground would encourage usage and 
active lifestyles for children. 

 

Installing benches on walking routes will encourage older adults to take 
walks. 

Will the proposal have an 
impact on access to 
information or access to 
services, spaces or social 
opportunities that can impact 
on health? 

A proposal to build a take-away food outlet in an area where there are no 
healthy food stores and numerous existing take-away venues would 
increase access to unhealthy food types. This will have a further negative 
impact on diet, obesity and physical health in South Lakeland. 

 

 

Assistance 
 

For assistance in completing the Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Assessment Proforma 
please contact Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer: r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk 

  

Page 68

mailto:r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk


 
 

Appendix 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 
Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma 

 
 
Please complete this form and attach it to your report. 

 

Project, policy or programme: COUNCIL PLAN 

Health 
Impacts 

Potential Impacts 

Positive No impact Negative Not sure Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box 

Environmental Conditions 

Air quality     Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 

Health & Environment 

Water quality 
and pollution 

    Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 
Health & Environment 

Built 
environment 

    Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 
Housing & Communities 

Natural 
environment 
and biodiversity 

  
  Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 
Health & Environment 

Energy 
consumption/ 
efficiency 

  
  Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Health & Environment 

Noise     Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 
Health & Environment 

Transport     Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Health & Environment 

Recycling     Delivering excellent value-

for-money services 

Health & Environment 

Food 
production 

    Delivering excellent value-

for-money services 
Health & Environment 

Social and Economic Factors 

Employment     Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Economy & Culture 

Income     Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 
Economy & Culture 

Poverty     Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 
Economy & Culture 

Education, 
skills and 
training 

  
  Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Economy & Culture 

Housing     Creating the environment 

for people to thrive 
Housing & Communities 

Crime     Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Housing & Communities 

Work 
environment 

    Forward thinking innovative 

council 
Housing & Communities 

(continued overleaf) 
  

Page 69



 
 

Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Project, policy or programme: COUNCIL PLAN 

Health 
Impacts 

Potential  Impacts 

Positive No impact Negative Not sure Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box 

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve their own health and wellbeing 

Nutrition and 
diet 

    Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Health & Environment 

Physical 
activity 

    Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Health & Environment 

Alcohol     Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Housing & Communities 

Drugs     Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Housing & Communities 

Risk taking 
behaviour 

    Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Health & Environment 

Smoking     Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Health & Environment 

Loneliness and 
isolation 

    Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 
Housing & Communities 

Access to services, spaces or social opportunities that impact health 

Communication 
methods 

    Forward thinking innovative 

council 
Housing & Communities 

Active travel     Playing a leading role and 

influencing others 

Health & Environment 

Access to 
leisure 

    Delivering excellent value-

for-money services 
Housing & Communities 

Access to 
culture 

    Playing a leading role and 

influencing others Economy & Culture 

Access to 
green spaces 

    Delivering excellent value-

for-money services 
Housing & Communities 

 

February 2016 

Page 70



 1 

EIA Title:  
 
 
 
1.0 The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected 

characteristics: 
  

Age, disability, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.  
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the 
elimination of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0). 

 
1.1 SLDC includes “rurality” as an additional category in its equality impact 

assessments. 
 
2.0 The General Equality Duty.  

SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:  
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Act.  
b.  Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a  

protected characteristic and those who do not.  
c.  Foster good relations between people who share  

a protected characteristic and those who  
do not.  
 

Council Plan 

Appendix 2 

Page 71



 2 

Step 1 
 

Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA. 
The Council Plan aims to deliver the vision, “Working together to make South Lakeland the best place to 
live, work and explore” through the three priorities: 

- Economy and Culture 
- Housing and Community 
- Health and Environment 

 
The purpose of this EIA is to ensure that our strategic Council Plan does not prompt any disproportionate 
negative impact on people with any of the protected characteristics.  
 
The expected outcome of this EIA is the identification of any potential issues and a commitment to 
undertake the recommended mitigating actions to ensure our services are adequately accessible to the 
whole community. 
 
This EIA will be monitored and published onto our website for public accessibility.  

 
Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken (include 

surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.) 
 
The data provided is the most up-to-date available at District level.  Data is not available to breakdown 
population statistics for all Protected Characteristics.  
Population - In mid-2017 South Lakeland’s resident population was estimated to be 104,321. In 2016 18 
million visitors came to South Lakeland, of which 85% were day trippers and 15% were staying visitors.  
Over the last ten years the population of the district has increased by 355 residents.  
Age  
In mid-2017 it was estimated that 13.8% of the population of South Lakeland are aged 0-14 years of age, 
58.5% are 15-64 years of age, and 27.7% are aged over 65.  
Children and young people  
It is projected that numbers of 0-14 year olds in South Lakeland will decrease from 2017 onwards to 2041. 
Between 2017 and 2041, the number of young people aged 0-14 is forecast to fall by 12.0%. 
Working age  
In South Lakeland the number of 15-64 year olds are projected to decrease by 8,400 (-14%) to 2041.  
South Lakeland has the lowest proportion of young and working age people in the county and both are in 
decline.  Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage decrease occurred in the 30-44 age groups (-23.9%). 
Older people  
In South Lakeland numbers of residents aged 65+ are projected to increase by 8,300 persons (+28.4%) to 
2041. Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage increase occurred in the 90+ age group (+140%). 
Disability  
18.8% of the population have a long-term health problem or disability, while 4.6% describe their general 
health as bad or very bad.  
Race 
95.6% of South Lakeland residents are White British, 2.8% are White Other, 0.6% are mixed race, 0.8% 
are Asian, 0.2% are Black, and 0.1% are from other ethnic groups.  Of Cumbria’s six districts, South 
Lakeland has the second highest proportion of residents from BAME groups (4.4%). 
Religion and Belief  
68% of residents are Christian, 23% have no religion. 0.4% are Buddhist, 0.2% are Muslim, 0.1% are 
Hindu, 0.1% are Jewish and 0.4% are members of other religions. 
Gender 
49% of residents are male, 51% are female.  There is a gender pay imbalance in South Lakeland, the 
median gross weekly earnings of a male in full time employment is £579, whereas for a female in full time 
employment the figure is £479.  
SLDC Employee and Member information  
As of 1 April 2017, SLDC employs 422 staff and has 51 councillors. 

 

Page 72



 3 

 

Step 2 
 

Equality Action Plan 
 

In providing this service are there any negative 
impacts on the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. People in rural areas 

 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Mitigating actions (to avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

The Council Plan and how we produce it 

Consultation 
 
The Council Plan was produced primarily by South 
Lakeland District Council’s Cabinet and senior officers. 
All 

The draft Council Plan is available for public viewing on the 
committee section of the website 
 
Any issues arising from the website consultation will be 
collated and reported to Cabinet. 

Assistant Directors  
 
 

Format of the document  
 
Disabled  
Age 
BAME 
 

An accessible version of the Council Plan will be made 
available via the website and also our newspaper ‘South 
Lakeland News’.  Alternative formats will also be offered with 
a contact number.   
 
Design of 2019 Council Plan in line with corporate style 
guidelines. There will also be a one page summary.  The new 
Council Plan will have an accessible text version available to 
view.  The Council Plan will be in Plain English. 
 
There will be a glossary of terms.  
 

Communications 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 73



 4 

Navigation of the document 
Disabled 
Age 
 

Council Plan website allows people to easily navigate the 
document.  

Web Development 
Team 

 

Contacting South Lakeland District Council 
 
All 

The website page which contains the Council Plan and has 
an email address which people can use to contact us. 
 
Contact details are provided on the back of the document. 
 

Web Development 
Team 

 
 
 
 

The draft Council Plan does not contain enough detail to 
effectively assess the impact of individual projects 
 

Agreement made with Assistant Directors that service plans 
will be shared with the Equality Officer once produced.  The 
Equality Officer will highlight any projects that would need to 
be impact assessed before implementation.  

Assistant Directors  
 

 
Priority areas to be impact assessed once more detail is available  

Economy 
 

- Housing and employment sites – accessibility to 
be considered. 

- ‘Encourage provision of skills training to meet 
the future needs of the economy.’ Need to 
consider the provision of training for protected 
groups. E.g. access to English language 
training, training needs of disabled people to 
help access employment. 

- Parish and Town plans need to consider 
Equality and Diversity. 

- When improving access to town centres, 
accessibility for disabled people needs to be a 
primary consideration. Facilities for older and 
younger people and religion/faith groups also 
need to be considered. 

- Ensure the information about devolution/asset 
transfer opportunities is accessible to all.  

 

Areas to be highlighted to assistant director and 
recommendation made that further assessment be 
undertaken when more detail of the project is available. 
 
Consultation with AWAZ resulted in the following 
suggestions: 
 

- Include links to the Localism page of the website in 
the Council Plan so it is easy for people to access 
both SLDC’s asset register and the community asset 
register. 

 
- LEP – AWAZ suggest the district council is well 

placed to influence the social inclusion aspect of the 
LEP. 

 
- BIDs – AWAZ suggested need to identify community 

development/ social inclusion needs. 
 
Progress: Links are included from the Council Plan 2019 to 
SLDC’s asset register. 
 
The Economic Development Team will raise the subject of 
social inclusion and community development at Kendal and 
Ulverston BID meetings. 

Assistant Directors 
 
 

 
 

P
age 74



 5 

 

Housing 
 

- Advice about energy saving initiatives needs to 
be accessible to all.  

Areas to be highlighted to assistant director and 
recommendation made that further assessment be 
undertaken when more detail of the project is available. 
 
Consultation with AWAZ resulted in the following 
suggestions: 
 

- Include links in the Council Plan to the 2013 Gypsy 
and Traveller needs assessment and SLDC’s Land 
Allocations DPD and Core Strategy. This will enable 
people to see that SLDC have considered the issue 
of gypsy/traveller site provision and have plans in 
place. 

 
Progress: There is now a dedicated webpage to the council’s 
Gypsy and Travellers Policies.  
 

Assistant Directors  
 

Environment 
 

- When working with local communities to 
manage the public realm and make the best use 
of and care for our parks and open spaces, the 
opportunity to be involved in this needs to be 
accessible to all members of the community.  

Areas to be highlighted to assistant director and 
recommendation made that further assessment be 
undertaken when more detail of the project is available. 
 
Consultation with AWAZ resulted in the following 
suggestions: 
 

Assistant Directors  
 

P
age 75



 6 

- EIA produced for kerbside recycling roll out, we must 
ensure the new equipment is suitable for all – or offer 
assisted collection to those negatively affected by the 
changes 

 
Progress: An EIA for kerbside recycling was produced. Sight 
advice was consulted regarding the colour and design of the 
recycling bins and bags. The council also offers a popular 
assisted collection scheme. 
 

Culture and well-being 
 

- Improvements to infrastructure and facilities 
need to take into account the needs of protected 
groups, in particular disabled and BAME. 

Areas highlighted to assistant director and recommendation 
made that further assessment be undertaken when more 
detail of the project is available. 
 
Consultation with AWAZ resulted in the following 
suggestions: 
 

- Discussions will take place at the next health forum 
meet about the need to consider BAME health 
needs. Possibility of AWAZ attending the task group 
to provide advice about these issues.  

 

Assistant Directors  
 

Delivering services 
 

- Customer Connect Programme. Equality needs 
to be considered to enable all our customers to 
access services in the best way for them. 

A high level EIA for the Customer Connect Programme is 
complete, there will be further and more detailed EIAs of 
each project associated with the Customer Connect 
Programme. 
 
Key considerations: 
 

- Communication plan needed to ensure those most 
affected are aware of the changes. 

 
- We need to ensure access to services will be 

available to those who are unable to access them 
online.  
 

- We need to ensure proposed staff numbers is 
relative to the level of need of face to face and 
telephone service.  

 

Assistant Directors  
 

 

P
age 76



 7 

Step 3 
 
Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues 

used are accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments) 
- The council plan is available in multiple formats, is easily navigable and is in Plain English  
- A hard copy of the council plan is available at South Lakeland House which is full accessible 
- The council plan is available to members of the public for comment 
- Further assessment to be made once service plans are available  
- Equality impact assessment timetable to be made in consultation with assistant directors and in 

conjunction with the consultation timetable. 
 

The Council’s commitment to engaging with the diverse South Lakeland community on key projects and 
important local priorities will continue for the life of this Council Plan.  
 
Through research and analysis of reports such as those produced by ACT, we have identified a number of 
key issues that affect our residents. The Council Plan aims to reduce these issues. 
 
Key Issues: 
• Older housing stock with poor insulation  
• Lack of rural affordable homes - housing is a key priority for us and we have the target to build 1000 
affordable homes to rent by 2025. 
• Providing effective development support to rural businesses – one of our key priorities is economic growth. 
The Local Plan provides hectares of new employment land. The Invest in South Lakeland project continues 
to promote South Lakeland as a great place to do business and has recently attended the biggest property 
expo in London. 
 

Date: 05/12/2018 

EIA Author(s): Paul Mountford 

Assistant Director: Simon McVey 

Document version number: v.1 

Date for Review: December 2019 

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer Y 

 

Glossary 
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 year-
olds).  

Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples on 
a range of legal matters.  

Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect 
on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning disability. 

Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is 
undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological 
or other attributes of sex. 

Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection 
against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.  

Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, Asian, 
Black and White minority ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.  

Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and philosophical 
beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes, Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, and 
non religious beliefs such as Humanism. 

Rurality: South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and 
larger market towns. 

Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.  

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



South Lakeland District Council 
Working together to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore 

Council Plan 

Live Work Explore 

Appendix 3

Page 79



Council Plan 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

flo 
expe 

work wit 

Working together to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction 
This Council Plan is the council’s 
strategic document. It sets out 
South Lakeland District Councils 
vision and strategy to improve 
prosperity ensuring a positive 
benefit for every part of our 
community. 

The council will continue to use 
its leadership and influence in the 
places that matter, to focus 
resource where it is most effective. 

Our ambition is to have a varied 
economy with a skilled workforce, a 
balanced housing market to meet needs, great 
leisure services to encourage healthy lifestyles and  a 
cultural offer that appeals to residents and visitors alike 
as well as delivering excellent regulatory services. 

By 2040, if current trends continue, South Lakeland’s 
population will be smaller (2,200 fewer people overall), 
older (9,900 more people over 65) and less active with 
8,800 fewer people of working age. South Lakeland is 
ageing significantly faster than UK, regional or County 
averages. We need to encourage young people to stay 
and attract new people in to rebalance the population 
whilst ensuring that our housing, services and 
infrastructure meet the needs of older people. 

In most measures of poverty South Lakeland fares 
better than nationally, but a selection of wards can be 
identified which have quite extreme levels of low 
incomes and poverty even by national standards. By 
working together with local partners, for example, 
Citizen’s Advice, South Lakes Housing, Age UK and 
Kendal College the council is strengthening local 
collaboration on projects, resources and strategies 
aimed at tackling poverty. This makes it easier for 
people to take advantage of the opportunities available 
locally and to take action to help themselves. 

Housing in South Lakeland is amongst the least 
affordable in the north of England. Median house prices 
are 9.7 times median earnings. The District needs to 
deliver 320 new homes every year including 153   new 

 
 

affordable homes between 2016 and 
2036. The council has a target of 
delivering 1000 affordable  homes 

for rent between 2014 and 2025 
and is on track to meet this 
target. 

Climate change is both a 
challenge and an opportunity for 
South Lakeland. Extreme weather 
events are becoming more 

frequent and the December 2015 
ods were the worst ever 
rienced in the District. We need to 
h the Environment Agency to 

ensure that we are resilient with effective flood 
management including defences, upstream storage and 
sustainable land management and development. At the 
same time we need to reduce our carbon footprint and 
develop low carbon and environmental technologies in 
our local economy. 

Health and wellbeing statistics nationally are showing 
an increased trend in obesity levels in both children and 
adults as well as a reduction in physical activity. By 
utilising our assets to enable physical activity such as 
parks, footpaths and the healthy weight declaration we 
can support the reduction of these rising levels. 

The allocation of public health monies in Cumbria is 
low, therefore the council will be adopting the Cumbria 
Public Health Strategy and working with different 
disciplines and organisations to implement this. 

The organisation has been awarded the Bronze Better 
Health at Work Award and will be working towards a 
Silver award to encourage a healthier workforce. 

page 2  Page 80



 

 

Our vision 
“Working together to make South Lakeland the best 
place to live, work and explore” 

Our areas of focus to achieve this are: 

• Creating an environment for people to thrive 

• Delivering excellent value-for-money, services 

• Playing a leadership role and influencing others 

• Empowering customers and communities 

• Forward thinking, innovative council 

Our values 
Our Council Plan is influenced by our key three values. 

 
Empowering people 

By listening to our customers and our employees their 
ideas and comments will help us make improvements 
to customer service and workforce development. 

 
Excellence 

Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, 
ensuring that our actions address the needs of South 
Lakeland. 

 
Open and transparent 
Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our 
dealings with the public. 

Our delivery 
We will deliver our Council Plan: 

• Working across boundaries to deliver sustainable 
communities 

• Creating balanced communities 

• Reducing inequalities so no one is left behind 

• Encouraging a sustainable environment and an 
inclusive economy 

 

Key performance 
indicators 
Key performance indicators can be found on our 
website at: 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk/content- 
searcher?q=performance 

All the supporting documents highlighted in the report 
can be found on our website. 

page 3  Page 81

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/content-


Council Plan 
 

Working together to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Work across boundaries 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These are supported by the following documents and measures of success within: 
• Local Plan 
• Economic Growth Strategy 
• Public Health Strategy 

We will improve wellbeing by: 
• Strengthening relationships with public health providers and partners and achieve  joined up 

outcomes addressing the key determinants of health and wellbeing 
• Implementing the Cumbria Public Health Strategy 
• Implementing the Healthy Weight declaration 

We will work with our partners to deliver regional growth by: 
• Working across Morecambe Bay and the North West to secure inward investment 
• Attracting external funding and deliver critical infrastructure 
• Participating in the Northern Powerhouse and contributing to the preparation and implementation of the local 

industry strategy  
• Promoting unique selling points such as marine and cultural and creative industries 

We will meet the needs of the communities by: 
• Preparing a new Local Plan and supporting plans in the National Parks 
• Intervening to deliver major sites and critical infrastructure and remove barriers 
• Supporting delivery in neighbouring authorities 
• Attracting new delivery partners 

page 4  Page 82



 

 
 
 

Creating balanced communities 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These are supported by the following documents and measures of success within: 
• Housing Strategy 
• Older Persons Housing Strategy 
• Affordable Housing Policy 
• Economic Growth Strategy 
• Children and Young Peoples Action plan 
• Customer Connect Programme 

Improve quality of life by: 
• Supporting young people to have a greater voice 
• Using our distinctive environment to create opportunities for all 
• Working with communities to reduce isolation and loneliness 
• Improving access to citizen driven technology 
• Helping people to be independent 

Create opportunities for young people by: 
• Unlocking development sites and enabling local businesses to grow 
• Understanding the needs of local businesses 
• Encouraging graduate retention 
• Using culture and built heritage to support our unique offer 

Deliver affordable homes to meet need with: 
• New affordable homes to rent 
• New elderly care provision 
• A range of housing to attract and retain young people 
• New delivery models including a Loans scheme 
• Support for Community Housing and self-build 

page 5  Page 83



Council Plan 
 

Working together to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reducing inequalities 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is supported by the following documents and measures of success within: 
• Homelessness Strategy 
• Local Plan 
• Empty Homes Strategy 
• Digital Declaration 
• Tackling Poverty Together Position Statement 
• Community Safety Partnership 
• Air Quality Action Plan 
• Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 

Reduce disadvantages by: 
• Working with partners to reduce domestic violence, alcohol related crime, substance misuse, 

child sexual exploitation and antisocial behaviour 
• Commissioning  services through the third sector 
• Improving air quality and reducing pollution 
• Working with partners to widen access to low cost energy 

Deliver inclusive growth so everyone can achieve their potential by: 
• Supporting people to adapt to changes in technology 
• Encouraging links between further and higher education, apprentices and businesses 
• Providing support, advice and affordable premises for new business start-ups 
• Protecting the vulnerable and mitigating the effects of poverty 

Improve existing housing and reduce homelessness through: 
• Homelessness prevention and support for vulnerable people 
• Working with landlords to improve standards 
• Working to reduce the number of second homes 
• Bringing empty homes back into use 
• Maximising access to Disabled Facilities Grants 

page 6  Page 84



 

 
 
 

Sustainable environment and inclusive economy 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

These are supported by the following documents and measures of success within: 
• Housing Strategy 
• Older Persons Housing Strategy 
• Affordable Housing Policy 
• Economic Growth Strategy 
• Customer Connect Programme 
• Climate Change Policy  

Ready for the challenge of climate change: 
• Phasing out single-use plastics 
• Minimising our carbon footprint 
• Encouraging cycling and walking 
• Work with partners to prepare for major flood incidents 

Grow a green economy: 
• Developing town centres which are attractive and accessible for living, working, culture 

and leisure 
• Ensuring that business areas are protected from flooding 
• Promoting environmental technologies and the green economy 
• Working with local communities to improve, manage and promote accessible public realm 
• Making the best use of our parks, open spaces and lakes 

Build resilience: 
• Ensuring that new development is sustainable, energy efficient and flood resilient 
• Working with partners to develop energy saving and energy efficiency initiatives 
• Providing energy advice and additional support to households at risk of falling into fuel 

poverty 

page 7  Page 85



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact us 
We welcome all feedback. 
If you have any comments or questions, or would like further information, please contact us. 

Website:  www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

Email: customer.services@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Tel:  01539 733333 

South Lakeland District Council 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street 
Kendal 
Cumbria LA9 4DQ 

You can view this plan online at: www.southlakeland.gov.uk 
 
 
 

2019 version 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 86

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


Working together to make
South Lakeland the best place to live, work 
and explore 

A council which: 
• Creates the environment for

people to thrive

• Delivers excellent,
value-for-money services

• Plays a leadership role
and influences others

• Empowers customers and
communities

• Is a forward-thinking
innovative council

Work across 

Live Work Explore 
boundaries to 
deliver sustainable 
communities by: 

Delivering 320 homes 
a year 

Delivering regional 
growth 

Improving 
wellbeing 

Creating 
balanced 
communities that: 

Reduce 
inequalities so 
no-one is left behind 
by: 

Encourage a 
sustainable 
environment and 
inclusive  economy that: 

Deliver affordable 
homes to meet needs 

Improving existing stock 
and reduce 

homelessness 

Builds 
resilience 

Create opportunities for 
young people 

Delivering inclusive 
growth so all can 

achieve their potential 

Grows a green 
economy 

Enhance our 
distinctive character 

Reducing 
disadvantages 

Is ready for the 
challenge of climate 

change 

Appendix 4

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



South Lakeland District Council 

Council 

Tuesday, 26 February 2019 

Council Policy on Climate Change 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Jonathan Brook - Deputy Leader and Housing, People 

and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Debbie Storr - Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

Report Author: Dan Hudson - Development Strategy and Housing Manager 

Wards:  Not Applicable 

Forward Plan: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 The corporate Council Policy on Climate Change is adopted to form part of the 
Council’s Policy Framework. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Council: 

(1) Approve the corporate Council Policy on Climate Change and its 
adoption as part of the Council’s Policy Framework. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 As part of the work of the Green Team, a corporate Council policy (as detailed in 
Appendix 3) on climate change has been drafted. 

3.2 The policy represents a public recognition of the importance of Climate Change, an 

awareness of the opportunities offered by both tackling and adapting to meet the 

challenge of climate change and a series of ways in which the Council could reflect 

the importance of climate change both in how it manages itself and how it works with 

partners at the local, regional and national level. 

3.3 The policy sets out the following Council commitments: 

 Work with central government and neighbouring Councils to contribute, at a local 

level, to the delivery of the target for carbon dioxide reduction set out in the UK 

Carbon budget by 2022. 

 Participate in local and regional networks for support. 

 Develop plans and support projects with our partners and local communities to 

progressively address the causes and the impacts of climate change, according 

to our local priorities, securing maximum benefit for our communities. 

 Publicly declare, within appropriate plans and strategies, the commitment to 

achieve a reduction of greenhouse gas emissions from our own authority's 

operations, especially energy sourcing and use, travel and transport, waste 

production and disposal and the purchasing of goods and services. 

Page 89

Item No.9



 Assess the risk associated with climate change and the implications for our 

services and our communities of climate change impacts and adapt accordingly. 

 Encourage all sectors in our local community to take the opportunity to adapt to 

the impacts of climate change, to reduce their own greenhouse gas emissions 

and to make public their commitment to action. 

 Monitor the progress of our plans against the actions needed and publish the 

result. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The policy has been developed following meetings held with Cabinet Members and 
Officers.  Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the draft 
policy on the 11 January 2019 and recommended it for approval.  Cabinet, on 6 
February 2019, approved the policy and recommended its approval as part of the 
Council’s Policy Framework by Full Council on 26 February 2019. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The alternative option is not to approve the Council policy on Climate Change as part 
of the Council’s Policy Framework.  This is not recommended as the policy 
acknowledges that climate change is occurring, and seeks to maximise the social, 
economic and environmental benefits which come from combating, and developing 
resilience to, climate change and developing a sustainable economy. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The Council policy on Climate Change is the key strategic document for the 
organisation.  The policy will form part of the overall Policy Framework. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial, resource or procurement implications to raise at this stage. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no human resource implications to raise at this stage. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications to raise at this stage. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? Yes (attached at Appendix 1). 

7.5 Assessments will be carried out of the health, social, economic and environmental 
impact of individual projects linked to the Council policy on Climate Change. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.6 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 2). 

7.7 Assessments will be carried out of the impact of individual projects linked to the 
Council policy on Climate Change in respect of equality, diversity and inclusion. 

Page 90



Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Climate Change Policy are 
not adopted by the council 

Compromise the delivery 
of the priorities, service 
planning and performance 
monitoring. 

Ensure significant 
engagement and 
consultation has been 
achieved 

Contact Officers 

Dan Hudson, Development Strategy and Housing Manager, 01539 793378, 
d.hudson@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Council policy on Climate Change - Health, Social, Economic and 
Environmental Impact Assessment 

2 Council policy on Climate Change - Equality Impact Assessment 

3 Council Policy on Climate Change 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Draft Council Plan and Draft 
Council Policy on Climate Change 
– Overview and Scrutiny (11 
January 2019) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=364&MId=4505&Ver=4 

Draft Council Policy on Climate 
Change – Cabinet (6 February 
2019) 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocument
s.aspx?CId=121&MId=4467&Ver=4  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 15 January 2019 

Section 151 Officer 15 January 2019 

Monitoring Officer 15 January 2019 

SMT 17 January 2019 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 15 January 2019 

Human Resources Manager 15 January 2019 

Communications Team 15 January 2019 

Leader 17 January 2019 

Committee Chairman 11 January 2019 

Portfolio Holder 17 January 2019 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 11 January 2019 

Executive (Cabinet) 6 February 2019 

Council 26 February 2019 

 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



 
 

Appendix 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Aims of the Health, Social, Economic & 
Environmental Impact Assessment 

 

The aims of conducting the Impact Assessment are: 
 

• To improve population health 
 

• To reduce health inequalities 
 

• To maximise any health benefits 
 

• To minimise any health risks 
 

• To inform decision making of any health impacts 
and to ensure that they are given consideration 

 

When should an Impact Assessment be 
completed? 

 

The Impact Assessment should be carried out at the 
beginning of a new project or programme, when 
conducting a service review and when developing a 
new policy. This enables consideration to be given 
to any potential health impacts at the very beginning 
of the process. 

 

It is recommended that officers complete the Impact 
Assessment form even if initially they do not 
anticipate any health impacts to ensure that the 
proposal has been thoroughly considered. 

How do I complete the Impact Assessment? 
 

You will need to consider your proposal against four 
different categories, these include: 
 

• Environmental conditions 
 

• Social and economic factors 
 

• Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve 
their own health and wellbeing 

 

• Access to services, spaces or social 
opportunities that improve health and wellbeing 

 

When undertaking this piece of work it is likely that 
you will need to carry out some desk based 
research as a minimum to help you assess the 
impacts. There are some examples overleaf which 
demonstrate how different proposals can impact 
health and wellbeing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For further information please contact: 

Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer: r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk Page 93

mailto:r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk


 
 

Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Examples of how proposals can affect health 
 

Will the policy have an impact 
on environmental conditions 
that would affect health? 

A policy on active travel would positively affect health through reducing 
motorised forms of transport and increasing more sustainable forms of 
transport. 

 

Building a new housing development without footpaths would discourage 
people from walking to local shops and services. 

Will the policy have an impact 
on social and economic 
factors that would affect 
health? 

Increasing access to advice on benefits in a deprived area could reduce 
poverty, and increase access to goods, services and activities. 

 

Assisting businesses who wish to expand who offer good employment 
will improve the health of the local population. 

Will the proposal affect an 
individual’s ability to improve 
their own health and 
wellbeing? 

Upgrading the equipment in a playground would encourage usage and 
active lifestyles for children. 

 

Installing benches on walking routes will encourage older adults to take 
walks. 

Will the proposal have an 
impact on access to 
information or access to 
services, spaces or social 
opportunities that can impact 
on health? 

A proposal to build a take-away food outlet in an area where there are no 
healthy food stores and numerous existing take-away venues would 
increase access to unhealthy food types. This will have a further negative 
impact on diet, obesity and physical health in South Lakeland. 

 

 

Assistance 
 

For assistance in completing the Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Assessment Proforma 
please contact Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer: r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk 

  

Page 94

mailto:r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk


 
 

Appendix 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 
Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma 

 
 
Please complete this form and attach it to your report. 

 

Project, policy or programme: COUNCIL POLICY ON CLIMATE CHANGE 

Health 
Impacts 

Potential Impacts 

Positive No impact Negative Not sure Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box 

Environmental Conditions 

Air quality       

Water quality 
and pollution 

      

Built 
environment 

      

Natural 
environment 
and biodiversity 

  
  

  

Energy 
consumption/ 
efficiency 

  
  

  

Noise       

Transport       

Recycling       

Food 
production 

      

Social and Economic Factors 

Employment       

Income       

Poverty       

Education, 
skills and 
training 

  
  

  

Housing       

Crime       

Work 
environment 

      

(continued overleaf) 
  

Page 95



 
 

Appendix 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Project, policy or programme: COUNCIL POLICY ON CLIMATE CHANGE 

Health 
Impacts 

Potential  Impacts 

Positive No impact Negative Not sure Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box 

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve their own health and wellbeing 

Nutrition and 
diet 

      

Physical 
activity 

      

Alcohol       

Drugs       

Risk taking 
behaviour 

      

Smoking       

Loneliness and 
isolation 

      

Access to services, spaces or social opportunities that impact health 

Communication 
methods 

      

Active travel       

Access to 
leisure 

      

Access to 
culture 

      

Access to 
green spaces 

      

 

February 2016 

Page 96



 1

EIA Title:  
 
 
 
1.0 The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected 

characteristics: 
  

Age, disability, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.  
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the 
elimination of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0). 

 
1.1 SLDC includes “rurality” as an additional category in its equality impact 

assessments. 
 
2.0 The General Equality Duty.  

SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:  
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Act.  
b.  Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a  

protected characteristic and those who do not.  
c.  Foster good relations between people who share  

a protected characteristic and those who  
do not.  
 

Council Policy on Climate Change 

Appendix 2 

Page 97



 2

Step 1 
 

Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA. 
 

The purpose of this EIA is to ensure that our strategic Council Policy on Climate Change does not prompt 
any disproportionate negative impact on people with any of the protected characteristics.  
 
The expected outcome of this EIA is the identification of any potential issues and a commitment to 
undertake the recommended mitigating actions to ensure our services are adequately accessible to the 
whole community. 
 
This EIA will be monitored and published onto our website for public accessibility.  

 
Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken (include 

surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.) 
 
The below data is the most up-to-date available at District level. Data is not available to breakdown 
population statistics for all Protected Characteristics.  
Population - In mid-2017 South Lakeland’s resident population was estimated to be 104,321. In 2016 18 
million visitors came to South Lakeland, of which 85% were day trippers and 15% were staying visitors 
Over the last ten years the population of the district has increased by 355 residents1.  
Age  
In mid-2017 it was estimated that 13.8% of the population of South Lakeland are aged 0-14 years of age, 
58.5% are 15-64 years of age, and 27.7% are aged over 651.  
Children and young people  
It is projected that numbers of 0-14 year olds in South Lakeland will decrease from 2017 onwards to 
20411. Between 2017 and 2041, the number of young people aged 0-14 is forecast to fall by 12.0% 
Working age  
In South Lakeland the number of 15-64 year olds are projected to decrease by 8,400 (-14%) to 2041 
South Lakeland has the lowest proportion of young and working age people in the county and both are in 
decline. Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage decrease occurred in the 30-44 age groups (-23.9%) 
Older people  
In South Lakeland numbers of residents aged 65+ are projected to increase by 8,300 persons (+28.4%) to 
2041.  
Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage increase occurred in the 90+ age group (+140%) 
Disability  
18.8% of the population have a long-term health problem or disability, while 4.6% describe their general 
health as bad or very bad3.  
Race  
95.6% of South Lakeland residents are White British, 2.8% are White Other, 0.6% are mixed race, 0.8% 
are Asian, 0.2% are Black, and 0.1% are from other ethnic groups4.  
Of Cumbria’s six districts, South Lakeland has the second highest proportion of residents from BAME 
groups (4.4%). 
Religion and Belief  
68% of residents are Christian, 23% have no religion. 0.4% are Buddhist, 0.2% are Muslim, 0.1% are 
Hindu, 0.1% are Jewish and 0.4% are members of other religions. 
Gender  
49% of residents are male, 51% are female1.  
There is a gender pay imbalance in South Lakeland, the median gross weekly earnings of a male in full 
time employment is £579, whereas for a female in full time employment the figure is £4792.  
SLDC Employee and Member information  
As of 1 April 2017, SLDC employs 422 staff and has 51 councillors. 

 

Page 98



 3

 

Step 2 
 

Equality Action Plan 
 

In providing this service are there any negative 
impacts on the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. People in rural areas 

 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Mitigating actions (to avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

The Policy acknowledges that climate change is 
occurring, that man-made greenhouse gas emissions 
are a primary cause and that climate change will 
continue to have far reaching effects on people and 
places, the economy, society and environment in the 
District, across the UK and across the world. 

The Council Policy sets out the following commitments: 
 Work with central government to the delivery of the target 

for carbon dioxide reduction set out in the UK Carbon 
budget by 2022. 

 Participate in local and regional networks for support. 
 Develop plans and support projects to progressively 

address the causes and the impacts of climate change 
 Publicly declare, within appropriate plans and strategies, 

the commitment to achieve a reduction of greenhouse gas 
emissions  

 Assess the risk associated with climate change and the 
implications for our services and our communities of 
climate change impacts and adapt accordingly. 

 Encourage all sectors in our local community to take the 
opportunity to adapt to the impacts of climate change, 

 Monitor the progress of our plans against the actions 
needed and publish the result. 

  

 
 
 

P
age 99



 4

Step 3 
 
Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues 

used are accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments) 
South Lakeland District Council seeks to maximise the social, economic and environmental benefits which 
come from combating, and developing resilience to, climate change and developing a sustainable economy. 
South Lakeland District commits to playing its part in meeting emissions targets set internationally and 
through UK Carbon budgets.  
 
South Lakeland District Council will work in partnership to respond at a local level, encouraging and helping 
local residents, local businesses and other organisations to reduce their energy costs, to reduce congestion, 
to adapt to the impacts of climate change, to improve the local environment and to deal with fuel poverty in 
our communities 

Date: 15 January 2019 

EIA Author(s): Dan Hudson 

Assistant Director: Ian Hassall 

Document version number: v.1 

Date for Review: January 2020 

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer Y 

 
Glossary 

Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 year-
olds).  

Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples on 
a range of legal matters.  

Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse effect 
on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, 

mental health or learning disability. 

Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is 
undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological 
or other attributes of sex. 

Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection 
against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.  

Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, Asian, 
Black and White minority ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.  

Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and philosophical 
beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes, Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, Buddhism, and 
non religious beliefs such as Humanism. 

Rurality: South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and 
larger market towns. 

Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.  

Page 100



Appendix 3 
 

Council Policy on Climate Change 

South Lakeland District Council acknowledges that climate change is occurring, that man-made 

greenhouse gas emissions are a primary cause and that climate change will continue to have far 

reaching effects on people and places, the economy, society and environment in the District, across 

the UK and across the world.  

South Lakeland District Council seeks to maximise the social, economic and environmental benefits 

which come from combating, and developing resilience to, climate change and developing a 

sustainable economy. South Lakeland District commits to playing its part in meeting emissions 

targets set internationally and through UK Carbon budgets.  

South Lakeland District Council will work in partnership to respond at a local level, encouraging and 

helping local residents, local businesses and other organisations to reduce their energy costs, to 

reduce congestion, to adapt to the impacts of climate change, to improve the local environment and 

to deal with fuel poverty in our communities.  

We commit our Council to  

 Work with central government and neighbouring Councils to contribute, at a local level, to the 

delivery of the target for carbon dioxide reduction set out in the UK Carbon budget by 2022. 

 Participate in local and regional networks for support. 

 Develop plans and support projects with our partners and local communities to progressively 

address the causes and the impacts of climate change, according to our local priorities, securing 

maximum benefit for our communities. 

 Publicly declare, within appropriate plans and strategies, the commitment to achieve a reduction 

of greenhouse gas emissions from our own authority's operations, especially energy sourcing 

and use, travel and transport, waste production and disposal and the purchasing of goods and 

services. 

 Assess the risk associated with climate change and the implications for our services and our 

communities of climate change impacts and adapt accordingly. 

 Encourage all sectors in our local community to take the opportunity to adapt to the impacts of 

climate change, to reduce their own greenhouse gas emissions and to make public their 

commitment to action.  

 Monitor the progress of our plans against the actions needed and publish the result. 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



South Lakeland District Council 

Council 

Tuesday, 26 February 2019 

REVIEW OF THE LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION 
SCHEME 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Andrew Jarvis - Finance Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Michael Fisher – Revenues and Benefits Services Manager 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Key Decision included in the Forward Plan as published on 8th 
January 2019  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 On 1st April 2013 the national Council Tax Benefit Scheme was abolished and replaced 
with a locally determined scheme known as the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 
This Council introduced a scheme that mirrored the previous national scheme which 
meant that nobody was worse off under the Local Scheme and the most vulnerable 
people in our district were protected from any reductions in support. 

1.2 After considering options for change including the additional income, costs and risks 
associated with any changes it is expected that the current scheme will continue 
unchanged for the financial year 2019/2020. This is with the exception of applying the 
annual upratings aligned to other means tested benefit schemes as detailed in the 
recommendations in this report and reflect the issues included in Section 3.6.  

1.3 The retention of the existing scheme offering support up to a maximum of 100% of the 
Council Tax plays a key role in supporting the Council’s objective of helping to alleviate 
poverty.   

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended by Cabinet:- 

(1) that the current Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme is the most appropriate 
scheme for this Council for the financial year commencing 1st April 2019 subject 
to the Assistant Director (Resources) and Section 151 Officer in consultation 
with the Finance Portfolio Holder being authorised to : 

(a)  make all necessary updates to this Council’s Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme to comply with any statutory requirements that 
may be issued by central government.  

 

(b)  make all necessary amendments to the Council’s Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme to uprate the allowances and premiums in 
accordance with Revised HB Circular issued in December 2018 by 
the Department of Work and Pensions.  

Page 103

Item No.10



 
(c) publish the updated scheme in accordance with the Local 

Government Finance Act 2012. 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 (as amended) now requires Local Authorities 
to approve their Council Tax Reduction Scheme on an Annual Basis by the 11th March 
for the following financial year (was previously 31st January). The Council’s current 
scheme can be found by accessing the link under background documents below.  

3.2 On the 18th December 2012 (Minute C/70) Full Council resolved to adopt the Default 
Scheme as prescribed by the Secretary of State as the Council’s Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme to replace Council Tax Benefit from 1st April 2013 and the costs of 
the scheme to be funded by reducing Council Tax discount on second homes from 
10% to 0%. The local arrangements for fully disregarding War widow’s pensions, war 
disablement pensions and Armed Forces Compensation payments were to remain in 
the calculation of income for the scheme.  

3.3 Central Government had previously paid 100% grant to Local authorities under the 
national scheme but on the transfer of responsibility the grant was reduced to 90%. 
This Council, with the support of Cumbria County Council and the Cumbria Police 
Authority met the cost of the 10% grant reduction, about £560,000 by making technical 
changes to Council Tax. This included removing the discount on second homes, 
introducing a 100% Council Tax on properties unoccupied over 6 months and a 50% 
premium on properties empty for over 2 years. 

3.4 On the 17th December 2013 (Minute C/65) Full Council resolved that the Local Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme for 2014/2015 would  remain unchanged subject to the annual 
uprating of applicable amounts, premiums etc. in accordance with either the Housing 
Benefit Scheme Regulations or the Local Council Tax Reduction Prescribed Scheme 
for pensioners. 

3.5 Minute C/65 of Full Council on the 17th December 2013 resolved that the next review 
of the scheme be undertaken in July 2014. A review was undertaken on the 15th July 
2014 by Overview and Scrutiny Committee who recommended that the existing 
scheme which mirrors the previous Council Tax Benefit Scheme is the most 
appropriate for this Council. Overview and Scrutiny Committee examined some of the 
changes made by other local authorities and assessed the impact of those changes 
both on applicants and on Council Tax collection levels. 

3.6 On the 19th December 2017 (Minute C/64) Full Council resolved to maintain the 
existing scheme for 2018/19 after undertaking a comprehensive review of the scheme 
during 2014/15. 

3.7 The Council’s scheme will still not reflect the changes announced in the Budgets of 
July 2015 or March 2016 which would adversely affected some of our residents 
entitlements to support. 

Namely:-  

o Removal of Family Premium for new claims 

o Reduction of backdating period from 6 months to 1 month 

o Freezing of Applicable amounts within Housing Benefit until 2020/21 

o Withdrawal of Council Tax Reduction where a person leaves the Great Britain 
for 4 weeks or more 

o Limiting the number of dependants additions to a maximum of 2 (This will apply 
to all Housing Benefit cases with effect from 1st April 2017)  

Page 104



o Removal of the Employment & Support Allowance Work Related Activity 
Component 

o Phasing in of European migrants access to benefits 

As it stands the implications and the impact of these changes continue to be limited in 
regard the overall cost of the Council’s scheme, however they will be monitored going 
forward. Implementation of these national welfare proposals would result in a 
requirement to undertake a full consultation process as they would be classed as 
significant changes to the Council’s existing scheme. This will be considered again as 
part of the review process for the 2020/21 scheme. 

3.8 In the current financial year 2018/2019 awards under the Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme currently total £4,979,481 (£4,941,253 in 2018/19). Although only part way 
through the current year the current level of Council Tax Reduction remains broadly 
similar despite the significant increases in council tax in April 2018. Providing the 
economic circumstances remain broadly similar there is no reason not to expect the 
level of support to increase greatly, however further council tax increases will increase 
the upward pressure of the scheme. The shortfall in government grant at the 
introduction of Council Tax Support has been met by a reduction of over 10% in 
expenditure since the grant level was frozen at 90% of 2012/13 Council Tax Benefit 
expenditure (£5.7M). 

3.9 The table below gives a breakdown of the caseload and awards in respect of each 
group at the end of December 2018 (March 2014 figures in brackets). 

  

Group Number of Claimants Amount of Reduction awarded 

Pension Age 2,392 (3,146) £2,600,557 (£3,071,000) 

Working Age 2,342 (2,684) £2,370,924 (£2,293,000) 

TOTAL 4,734 (5,830) £4,979,481 (5,364,000) 

 
 Should any changes be considered to the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme these 

could only apply to Working Age applicants. Only 49% of applicants fall into this 
category. This would also trigger the legal requirement to undertake a formal 
consultation process to amend the council’s scheme. 

 
3.10 The current scheme in its present state continues to provide those residents in South 

Lakeland on the lowest income the maximum amount of support with their council tax 
liabilities. In common with all other Cumbrian LA’s maintaining our current scheme for 
April 2019 keeps South Lakelands position as one of only 37 councils (April 2017) 
offering a fully funded council tax reduction scheme for working age claimants.  

 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviewed the current scheme at a meeting on 15th 
July 2014 and this formed part of the consultation process. A representative from the 
Cumbria Rural Citizens advice Bureau addressed the meeting. The Committee 
resolved (O & S /9) that: 

(1)  it is recommended to Cabinet that the current Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme is the most appropriate scheme for this Council for the financial year 
commencing 1st April 2015. 

 
4.2 There has been no change in circumstances and therefore it is suggested that there is 

no reason for Overview and Scrutiny Committee to re-consider the matter in relation 
to the scheme commencing on the 1st April 2019. 

 

Page 105



4.3  Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner have been 
consulted on the proposal to retain our existing scheme. The council has not received 
a response to the consultation letter issued on 22nd October 2018 from Cumbria County 
Council. The Police and Crime Commissioner has responded positively to the 
proposals contained in the consultation letter. This consultation letter stated that no 
major changes have been examined with regard to the Council’s existing scheme apart 
from a brief exploration of the likely income which could be generated if a minimum 
charge was introduced. Any major changes would mean a full consultation exercise 
would have to be undertaken. 

 
4.4 Should any significant changes be made to the current scheme then a public 

consultation exercise would have to be undertaken 

 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The Council is under no legal obligation to offer a Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 
Working Age residents. Therefore in theory it could reduce the amount of support 
offered this group from 100% to any figure it chose including having a full charge 
irrespective of income. The vast majority of councils reduce the amount of Council Tax 
Reduction for Working Age claimants between 8.5% and 25% resulting in annual 
charges between £ 100 and £ 300 per annum for those on the lowest income in this 
group. All Cumbrian Local Authorities continue have a zero charge for this group. 

 

5.2 There are numerous ways in which the current Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
could be changed: These were fully examined as part of the Overview and Scrutiny 
review and were considered as part of the decision making process in approving the 
scheme for 2015/16. No further examination has taken place since this review apart 
from a brief indication of the likely income that could be generated if a minimum charge 
was to be introduced for Working Age Recipients of Council Tax Reduction. This was 
included within the consultation letters issued to the major preceptors in September 
2018. 

5.3 It is likely that a review of South Lakelands Council Tax Reduction Scheme will be 
undertaken in 2019, to assess the impacts on the scheme of the full rollout of Universal 
Credit in South Lakeland. It is likely this review will be undertaken as part of a wider 
Cumbria review. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 “Our Vision” – Several Welfare Reform changes have already been implemented, 
including the abolition of the Council Tax Benefit Scheme and introduction of its 
replacement, the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. The Council has provided a 
large amount of information about the ways the changes will affect individuals and 
worked closely with our social landlords to try as far as possible to reduce the impact 
on vulnerable people. We will continue to monitor the impact of these changes. 

7.0 Implications 

7.1 Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1.1 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan assumes that the current scheme will 
continue with no savings planned to be met from scheme changes. 

7.1.2 It is important to note that any additional income raised through reducing the amount 
of benefit awarded results in an increase in the Council Tax Base. However this 
Council would only benefit from around 11% of any additional income generated, net 
of irrecoverable debts, but would need to meet the full costs of any additional staffing 

Page 106



resources and the costs of publicising changes and providing what could amount to a 
debt counselling service. 

7.1.3 There would no significant financial advantage to this Council of making changes to 
the scheme. 

7.1.4 In theory the County Council and Police and Crime Commissioner should benefit 
financially from a change which reduced the amount of awards however this change 
may have wider reaching implication in terms of service demands on these authorities, 
such as social services or police services.  

7.1.5 The Council’s Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme replicated the previous scheme 
and  ensured the most vulnerable people in the District were protected. This has 
proved a major factor in the council maintaining its high level of collection. 

 Making the scheme less generous would be likely to result in more debts being written 
off and with these factors in mind the collection level of 99.0% currently used in the 
Council Tax Base calculation for this Council would need to be reviewed and reduced. 

7.1.6 Local Authorities are expected to have an additional policy for providing additional 
financial assistance in cases of hardship and this policy should be properly managed 
with working guidelines and an appeals process built into it. This policy places a limited 
financial burden on the authority as the cost of any reduction would be offset against 
the collection fund. 

7.1.7 The National Audit Office review of the DCLG’s approach to Localising Support for 
Council Tax makes suggestions as to how local authorities can meet the costs of the 
10% reduction in grant for Council Tax Reductions: 

o Make wider use of flexibilities within the Council Tax system (changing 
discounts). 

o Reduce entitlement to Council Tax Reductions (discussed in this report) 

o Making efficiency savings  

o Absorb within budgets 

o Utilise reserves 

o Manage fraud and error 

7.1.8 The reduction in caseload and resultant expenditure of the current scheme has now 
fallen below the original grant figure including the 10% reduction 

7.1.9 The Default Scheme is no longer supported by Central Government therefore the 
Council must document the Local Scheme and have it available to the public. This is 
particularly important for documenting the annual uprating’s and a consultant has 
been employed to maintain the scheme at minimal cost. The full draft scheme 
proposed for the financial year 2019/2020 including the recommended uprating’s in 
this report will be available on the Council’s website once information has been 
received from Central Government. 

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 If the recommendation not to amend the current scheme is accepted then there will be 
no Human Resources implications. 

7.2.2 If the current scheme is amended and the Council is required to collect what in some 
cases could be relatively small amounts this could impact on Council Tax collection 
work and additional resources may need to be employed to maintain current 
collection levels. It is likely that resources would need to be employed to offer advice 
on debt, deal with complaints and ensure adequate publicity and contact points are 
available as many recipients may not have recently paid Council Tax. 

Page 107



7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 substitutes Section 13A of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 and makes provision for Local Council Tax Reduction 
Schemes. Schedule 1A (4) requires the Secretary of State to prescribe a Default 
Scheme. This is the Council’s current scheme subject to the annual uprating changes 
from 1st April 2014 agreed by Full Council on 17th December 2013 and disregarded 
income from war disablement and war widows pensions and Armed Forces 
Compensation Payment Schemes.  

7.3.2 If any changes are made to the current scheme it is important that these are effectively 
drafted and a specialist consultant has been appointed to assist the Council. Such 
changes could be subject to legal challenge. 

7.3.3 Under Section 9 of the Local Government Finance Act 2012, the Secretary of State 
shall make provision for an independent review of all council tax reduction schemes 
made under the provisions of the Act; 

 a) to consider their effectiveness, efficiency, fairness and transparency and their 
impact on the Localism agenda, and 

 b) to make recommendations as to whether such schemes be brought within Universal 
Credit. 

 This review called “Three Years On” was conducted by Eric Ollerenshaw was 
published in March 2016. The review only had three recommendations for councils. 
One for councils to consider joint schemes and procurement, the other two 
recommendations related to councils who had decided not to maintain a scheme 
offering up to 100% for working age claimants.  

 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/514767/Local_Council_Tax_support_schemes_-
_review_report.pdf  

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4.1 At this point a social, economic and environmental impact assessment has not been 
carried out. Should any changes to the current scheme be recommended to Full 
Council then a revised assessment will be undertaken. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 

7.5.1 An equality and diversity assessment was undertaken for the current scheme but if any 
changes are recommended then that assessment will be reviewed. 

7.5.2 If changes are made to the scheme it will be necessary to assess changes to evaluate 
the impact on people who are vulnerable. The DCLG have defined vulnerable 
households as those with a carer, children aged less than 5 years or those with a 
disability. Protections would need to be considered and a scheme with multiple 
protected groups also results in a scheme that is more complex to administer and for 
customers to understand. 

7.5.3 The DCLG issued a report in February 2014 reminding local authorities of their key 
duties when deciding on Local Council Tax Reduction Schemes: 

o Public Sector Equality Duty (The Equality Act 2010) 

o Duty to mitigate the effects of child poverty (The Child Poverty Act 2010) 

o The Armed Forces Covenant 

o Duty to prevent Homelessness (The Housing Act 1996) 

 

Page 108

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/514767/Local_Council_Tax_support_schemes_-_review_report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/514767/Local_Council_Tax_support_schemes_-_review_report.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/514767/Local_Council_Tax_support_schemes_-_review_report.pdf


Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Any changes to the current 
scheme are not correctly 
embedded in the scheme 
rules. 

The Council’s Local 
Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme will not stand up to 
legal challenges and the 
scheme will fall into 
disrepute and legal costs 
would be incurred. 

Seek appropriate advice to 
draft any changes 
effectively into the scheme. 

Difficulty in accurately 
predicting the net 
reductions in awards of the 
differing options. 

Any scheme changes may 
result in awards differing 
from those estimated which 
will impact on the County 
Council, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and 
this Council. 

The forecasting tool within 
current software should 
produce accurate figures. 

Reductions in awards may 
cause hardship to some 
applicants. 

Insufficient finances could 
put some family members 
at risk. 

It would be advisable to 
create a properly managed 
hardship fund to protect 
vulnerable people who can 
apply for monies from this 
fund in exceptional 
circumstances. 

Collection of small 
amounts may not be 
possible in some cases. 

An increase in the amount 
of debts being written off 
which may negate the 
changes made. 

Be prepared to employ 
additional resources to 
collect the Council Tax 
due. 

 

Contact Officers 

Report Author – Michael Fisher, Revenues & Benefits Services Manager 

Tel 01539 793257.  e-mail: michael.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

South Lakeland District Councils 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/3269/south-
lakeland-s13a-201718-scheme-v11.pdf 

 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 14 Jan 2019 

Section 151 Officer 14 Jan 2019 

Monitoring Officer 14 Jan 2019 

SMT 14 Jan 2019 

 

Page 109

mailto:michael.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/3269/south-lakeland-s13a-201718-scheme-v11.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/3269/south-lakeland-s13a-201718-scheme-v11.pdf


Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director n\a 

Human Resources Manager n\a 

Communications Team n\a 

Leader n\a 

Committee Chairman n\a 

Portfolio Holder 14 Jan 2019 

Ward Councillor(s) n\a 

Committee n\a 

Executive (Cabinet) n\a 

Council n\a 

 

Page 110



South Lakeland District Council 

Council 

Tuesday, 26 February 2019 

2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Andrew Jarvis - Finance Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) 

Report Author: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) 

Helen Smith - Financial Services Manager 

 Lee Hurst – Chief Accountant 

Wards:  (All Wards) 

Forward Plan: Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan 
as published on 2 October 2018 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report considers the recommendations from Cabinet to determine the Council’s 
budget for 2019/20 onwards, including fees and charges, the capital programme, the 
pay policy and the Chief Finance Officer’s Advice on the Robustness of Estimates 
and the Adequacy of Reserves. 

1.2 The expected outcome is that Council will be in a position to deliver the priorities set 
out in the Council Plan within its resources. This will enable the statutory requirement 
to agree a balanced budget and to set the appropriate Council Tax level for 2019/20.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Council:- 

(1) Adopts a Net Revenue Budget for 2019/20 of £14,005,200 as set out in 
Section 2 of the Draft Budget Book (Appendix 1);  

(2) Approve the £5 (2.6%) increase in the Band D Council tax to £195.63 for 
District Council Services for 2019/20 as part of a balanced revenue budget; 

(3) Approves the detailed service budgets as set out in Section 3 of the Draft 
Budget Book; 

(4) Notes the latest Collection Fund Estimates, Parish Council precepts and 
Parish Council taxes for 2019/20 as set out in Section 4 of the Draft Budget 
Book. The Cumbria County Council and Cumbria police element are 
currently included as proposed but not approved at the time of writing the 
report.  Any change will be updated and reported to Council on 26 February 
2019; 

(5) Approves the Capital Programme as set out in Section 5 of the Draft Budget 
Book; 

Page 111

Item No.11



(6) Approves the Reserves as set out in Section 6 of the Draft Budget Book; 

(7) Approves the Fees and Charges Book for 2019/20 as set out in Appendix 2; 

(8) Notes the Chief Finance Officer’s Statutory Report on setting the 2019/20 
Budget, as set out in Appendix 3; 

(9) Adopts and publishes the Statutory Pay Policy Statement as set out in 
Appendix 4; and 

(10) Notes that the proposals contained in this report have been incorporated 
into the Procurement Schedule, Prudential Indicators and Treasury 
Management Framework elsewhere on this agenda. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1. The Council, at its meeting on 24 July 2018 agreed to the proposed Budget Strategy 
for the current year’s budget process as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP). The Budget Strategy set out some broad principles which are being used in 
the preparation of the 2019/20 – 2023/24 Budget. 

3.2. Cabinet at its meeting on 31 October, 28 November and Council on 18 December 
2018 considered the first draft budget proposals. A further update was provided to 
the Cabinet meeting on the 6 February 2019.  This report updates that position with 
the final local government finance settlement figures, which were published on 29 
January 2019.  

3.3. The Council has a statutory duty to set a balanced budget for the coming financial 
year and the changes which are now incorporated to achieve this are shown. A 
Council tax increase of £5 for Band D for 2019/20 is proposed. This increase in the 
Council tax is consistent with expectations of Central Government set out in the 
multi-year settlement for 2016/17 onwards but are below the latest expectation of 
Central Government of an increase of below 3%. 

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET  

SUMMARY POSITION 

3.4. The Medium Term Financial Plan provides a summary five year annual position 
which includes a projection of the overall surplus or deficit on the General Fund 
Revenue Budget. The assumptions and financial implications are kept constantly 
under review as circumstances change. A summary of the known changes at this 
stage are provided in the table below, the more detailed analysis of expenditure and 
income is set out in Section 2 and 3 of the Draft Budget Book (Appendix 1).  

3.5. Table 1 sets out the summarised estimated annual General Fund Budget 
requirement across the review period, including the projected deficits.  It also shows 
the savings identified and where the budgets have been reduced. 

Table 1 Summary Medium Term Financial Plan 

  
2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

£000 
2021/22 

£000 
2022/23 

£000 
2023/24 

£000 

Service Expenditure 33,274.2 32,779.8 30,434.0 29,195.3 29,006.3 
Customer Connect 2,031.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Service income -12,640.5 -12,433.8 -12,655.6 -12,829.7 -12,629.7 

Net service expenditure 22,664.7 20,346.0 17,778.4 16,365.6 16,376.6 

Corporate items -21,924.7 -18,036.0 -14,940.5 -12,769.0 -12,123.6 
Savings from Customer Connect -740.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 

Savings from Capital Projects and Strategy changes 0.0 -140.0 -420.0 -694.0 -718.0 

Net draft budget (projected deficit) February 2019 0.0 620.0 867.9 1,352.6 1,985.0 

Page 112



3.6. The projected annual revenue deficit totals circa £600k in 2020/21 rising to circa 
£2.0m by 2023/24. This position is after the inclusion of Customer Connect savings 
of £740k in 2019/20 and £1.550m from 2020/21 onwards and savings arising from 
capital projects included in the capital programme (see paragraph 3.8 below). These 
annual projections are based on information available at the time of preparation 
along with the broad set of assumptions detailed in 3.10 below.  

3.7. Work is underway to resolve the projected deficits. Future year estimates will be 
kept under review as part of the MTFP process to ensure that savings plans are 
sufficient to set balanced budgets.  

3.8. The revenue budgets reflect additional costs of interest and debt repayment relating 
to items in the capital programme.  Table 1 has been updated for the following items 
of income identified in the relevant business plans/budget bids to offset the costs: 

Table 2: Future savings arising from new Capital Programme projects: 

Potential future year savings     

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 

Capital Programme     

Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations     

 Interest on balance outstanding -60 -120 -120 -120 

New Ulverston Leisure Centre     

 Reduction in running costs/management fee 0 -220 -220 -220 

Additional homeless accommodation to provide options for families     

 Income from residents (including housing benefit 
where eligible) -64 -64 -64 -64 

South Lakeland House/Kendal Town Hall     

 Cost avoidance/additional income 0 0 -274 -298 

Other Decisions 
    

Waste and Recycling Collection Policy     

 Delivery charges from developers -16 -16 -16 -16 

  -140 -420 -694 -718 

These potential savings will be included in future budget projections when the 
timing of schemes, and hence the timing of savings, are clearer.  These savings are 
part of the medium-term savings proposals being developed. 

3.9. The July Medium Term Financial Plan included £500k of unallocated growth which 
has now been removed.  The Council has a statutory duty to set a balanced budget. 
Any additional budget pressures or discretionary, fixed term growth items will need 
to be funded by savings in existing budgets. 

BUDGET STRATEGY ASSUMPTIONS 

3.10. The draft budget proposals for 2019/20 and onwards include: 

a) Inflation in the base budget in accordance with the Budget Strategy (only where 
contractually committed or unavoidable). 

b) Salary budgets have been prepared based on the current staffing structure 
including known incremental advances. From April 2019 onwards the detailed 
budgets include 2% for inflationary pay awards. The local government pay 
settlement for April 2018 covered 2 years and included a restructuring of the 
national pay scales.  Officers modelled various potential options to implement 
the pay settlement and new pay scales were approved by Council on 18 
December 2018.  Salary budgets will be recalculated during 2019/20 to reflect 
the new Customer Connect staffing structure from 1 April 2019.   

Page 113



c) The only major announcement in the Autumn Budget on 29 October 2018 for 
the Council concerned the level of the National Living Wage (NLW) for 2019/20.  
The local government pay settlement for 2019/20 has a minimum hourly rate 
(excluding apprentices) of £9.00 per hour which is higher than the new NLW 
levels and will be equal to the Real/Foundation Living Wage which was 
announced in November 2018.   

d) Capital charges have been updated to reflect the Capital Programme approved 
by Council in December 2018.  These have no impact on the MTFP projections 
as they are not charged against Council Tax. 

e) Interest payable and receivable has been updated to reflect the most up to date 
interest rate projections and capital programme funding assumptions and is 
consistent with the Council’s Treasury Management documents presented 
elsewhere on this agenda.  

f) Departmental recharges have been recalculated based on the draft base 
budgets. These have no impact on the surplus/deficit projections as the income 
and expenditure for internal recharges nets to £0. The total of recharges has 
reduced over the years reflecting the savings achieved in these areas.  It is 
expected that recharges will be fundamentally changed as a result of the 
Customer Connect restructure and changes to working practices. 

g) The draft budgets assume all budgets for 2018/19 will be spent in-year.  . The 
Q3 monitoring process has identified a number of areas where it is projected 
that underspends will occur.  Council is requested to approve the following 
carry-forwards as part of the final budget proposals: 

Table 3: Requested Carry-forwards from Q3 Corporate Financial Monitoring 

Requested carry-forwards £000   

GCG Community Grants 25.0 Underspend on Tour of Britain cycling event £25k due to not 
hosting a start or finish stage, requested to carry forward to 
fund a bid to host a stage in next year's Tour of Britain. 

GLP Local Plans 34.0 Underspend on flood risk assessments due to changes in 
timing of Environment Agency Flood modelling, carry forward 
requested to complete next financial year. 

 Total 59.0   

All other requests for re-profiling will be subject to approval by full Council in May 
2019. 

GOVERNMENT FUNDING AND OTHER REVENUE BUDGET UNCERTAINTIES 

3.11. The figures presented from April 2020 onwards include certain assumptions where 
work is on-going or where information is not yet available.   A key factor going 
forward will continue to be central government funding. The potential change to 75% 
business rates retention offers both opportunities and risks. This in addition to the 
proposed Fairer Funding Review may lead to both increased volatility and 
reductions in retained local taxation over the medium term. At this stage these are 
difficult to quantify.  

3.12. The Government published the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
on 13 December 2018 and the final settlement on 29 January 2019.  The majority of 
the settlement is in line with the 4-year settlement the Council accepted in 2016/17 
and which is already reflected in the draft 2019/20 – 2023/24 budgets attached to 
this report.  The main changes in the provisional settlement are set out below: 

a) The MTFP assumes support from general government grant, such as 
Revenue Support Grant, is in line with the multi-year settlement 
announced in December 2015.  The Government’s 2019/20 provisional 

Page 114



finance settlement confirmed the decision not to implement the £613k of 
negative Revenue Support Grant for 2019/20.   

b) The Council Tax referendum thresholds remain at the levels set for 
2018/19 for district councils with the maximum increase of the higher of 
below 3% or £5.  For this Council this could potentially raise the 
maximum increase in Band D Council Tax from the £5 that is included in 
the draft budget to £5.72, which would generate an additional £32.8k of 
income from Council Tax.  There are no limits on increases for parish 
councils but the Government expects parishes to take all available steps 
to mitigate the need for Council Tax increases. 

c) Rural Services Delivery Grant was due to be frozen nationally for 
2019/20 but the provisional settlement has increased the national 
funding from £65m to £81m.  This Council’s share of the grant will 
increase from £347.9k to £433.5k.  This is an extra £85.6k for 2019/20 
only. 

d) The Cumbrian authorities were not successful in the bid to become a 
business rate pool pilot.  The draft budgets for 2019/20 to 2023/24 did 
not anticipate any additional income from the potential pilot pool.  The 
existing Cumbrian pool is expected to continue for 2019/20.  Due to the 
level of uncertainty around these arrangements, the funding is built into 
budgets 1 year in arrears so this can be used to support financial years 
2020/21 onwards. Any unallocated balance remains within the NNDR 
pool reserve which is earmarked for economic development. 

e) Although not announced as part of the final settlement, the Government 
have increased the level of grant to Council’s to reimburse the additional 
cost of Small Business Rate Relief arising from the changes in the 2017 
rating list.  This change will result in £300k of additional business rate 
income for 2019/20: this is not expected to be recurring income due to 
the business rate reset from April 2020.  

f) The settlement also included some unexpected funding from the 
business rate levy account surplus.  The Government collects a levy of 
up to 50% from authorities who collect more business rates than their 
baseline.  This levy is used to fund a safety net for authorities who fall 
well below their baseline.  This is the first time the levy has exceeded the 
safety net and the Government has £180m to distribute nationally.  The 
Council’s share is £34k and will be received in 2018/19. 

g) In addition to the Finance Settlement the Government announced a 
grant of £35k for each district Council for the costs of Brexit, to be paid in 
2 equal instalments during 2018/19 and 2019/20.  An expenditure 
budget for the same amount has been added.   

h) Finally, the Government confirmed the threshold for payment of New 
Homes Bonus will remain at 0.4% of taxbase for 2019/20.  For this 
Council this requires a net increase in Band D equivalent properties on 
the council tax list of 211.  The actual increase was only 132 properties 
so the level of New Homes Bonus due to the Council will be £141k lower 
than budgeted at £516.7.   

  

Page 115



The table below shows the allocation of the New Homes Bonus for 
2019/20. 

Table 4: New Homes Bonus allocation 2019/20 

 £000 

Members Small Grants 51.0 

Burton Heritage Scheme 35.0 

Other LIPs grants 120.7 

Total Locally Important Project Share (40%) 206.7 

Use in Capital Programme (60%) 310.0 

Total New Homes Bonus 2019/20 516.7 

 

3.13 From 2020 the whole system of Government funding will change: the financial model 
assumes the overall funding from Government through general grants or retained 
business rates will continue to decline by the same rate as has been seen during the 
current multi-year settlement excluding one-off adjustments such as the negative 
Revenue Support Grant.  This reflects the current indications that funding of local 
government overall will stabilise at current levels but that funding will be targeted at 
social care.   

3.14 It is expected that New Homes Bonus will be discontinued from April 2020. SLDC 
does not use the NHB to balance its base budgets.  Funding of approved schemes in 
the capital programme has been reviewed to reflect expected funding but future 
projects will need  to be reviewed as clarity is provided 

3.15 The Council earns significant sums through recycling credits (£1.3m for 2017/18). 
The payments are made in accordance with legislation which clearly sets out the 
statutory basis and mechanism for calculating the recycling payments. Any change to 
the current system would need agreement from the County and all districts and would 
need to be considered alongside other countywide issues.  

3.16 Overall, although there are still uncertainties, the Council is able to set a balanced 
budget for 2019/20 and to address the additional level of deficit from 2020/21.  From 
2020 there are more challenges arising from the change in Government 
support through the Fair Funding Review and changes to business rate 
retention. Both of these could significantly affect the resources available to the 
Council. 

RECURRING REVENUE BUDGET PRESSURES  

3.17 There are a number of recurring budget pressures and adjustments that have been 
identified through the budget process. As identified in Table 1, these total £367k per 
annum in 2019/20 increasing to £511k by 2023/24. The details of these are contained 
within Section 3c of the Draft Budget Book.  

3.18 The largest single pressure relates to the implementation of the 2019/20 pay 
settlement, as set out in para 3.10.b above.  The other large budget pressures relate 
to planning application fees and supporting people grant at Town View Fields Hostel 
which have both been reported as part of the Corporate Financial Monitoring report 
for Quarter 2 2018/19.    

2019/20 GROWTH PROPOSALS  

3.19 The detail of revenue growth items is included at Section 3d of the Draft Budget 
Book. These have intentionally been kept to a minimum. The only recurring growth 
bid relates to the business support programme for economic development activities 
of £50k per year for three years.  It is proposed that this is funded through the use of 
the NDR Pool reserve, which is set aside specifically to support economic 

Page 116



development.  A further growth bid of £50k has been included to continue to support 
carbon reduction schemes at existing levels. This is an important element of 
delivering on the Council’s Policy on Climate Change. 

SAVINGS PROPOSALS 

3.20 A number of savings proposals have been brought forward as part of the budget 
exercise excluding any savings relating to Customer Connect which are being 
collected separately. These total £323k in 2019/20 rising to £334k by 2023/24.  
These are detailed in Section 3c of the Draft Budget Book.  The amount and nature 
of the savings identified are considered reasonable and deliverable from 2019/20.  

3.21 The main savings relate to decisions earlier this year regarding funding of community 
toilets and Kendal Museum.  Officers have also reviewed corporate budgets including 
insurance, business rates, energy and water charges and identified savings. 

SAVINGS AND EFFICIENCIES 

3.22 Significant savings targets of £740k rising to £1.550m have been agreed from the 
Customer Connect Programme. Further work will be carried out to identify proposals 
to meet the additional amounts required. This process needs to be flexible according 
to the challenges and opportunities that arise to meet the projected deficits, which are 
very likely in themselves to change, particularly given the large uncertainty over 
business rates retention.  

3.23 Changes to the staffing structures approved to date including initial appointments to 
the leadership team and agreed voluntary redundancy applications indicate that the 
£740k will be delivered for 2019/20.  A further update on appointments will be 
reported to Council in March 2019. 

FEES AND CHARGES 

3.24 The MTFP assumes that income to be generated from fees and charges will total 
£10.0m for 2019/20. This figure has been adjusted to reflect the budget pressures 
from Section 3e of the Draft Budget Book, where these relate to fees and charges. 

3.25 The 2019/20 car parking income budgets have been inflated by 2% in line with the 
MTFP. Monitoring for 2018/19 suggests that the current level of demand is 
generating £160k more against the annual base. The estimate for 2019/20 has 
therefore been increased by this amount. At this stage it is not proposed to adjust the 
charges. Hourly rates have been frozen on most car parks since April 2011.  This is 
subject to annual review.  

3.26 Lake Administration Committee considered fees and charges on 5 October 2018 and 
Licensing Committee considered its fees 6 November 2018. The full fees and 
charges listing is attached at Appendix 2. 

PARISH PRECEPTS AND COLLECTION FUND  

3.27 All parish precepts have been received in time for the production of this report and 
are presented at Section 4c of the Draft Budget Book.  The parish precepts for 
2019/20 total £1,692,890, which represents an increase of £80,625 (5.0%) compared 
to 2018/19.  The average band D Council tax for the parishes will rise by a lower 
percentage of 4.4% (from £35.62 to £37.20) due to the increase in the Council tax 
base. 

3.28 Collection Fund estimates are shown at Section 4a of the Draft Budget Book based 
on the latest information received, recording the collection and distribution of local 
taxation and non-domestic rates.  The Fund shows a projected deficit of £334.3k for 
Council tax for 2018/19 of which this Council’s share is £42.2k.  The surplus is 
shared with Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Police and the District Council in 
proportion to their individual Council tax levels.  

Page 117



3.29 Both Cumbria County Council and the Police and Crime Commissioner are expected 
to finalise their precept for 2019/20 after this report has been finalised (on 11 
February 2019), therefore the collection fund estimates include only provisional 
figures for both Cumbria County Council and Cumbria Police; any changes to these 
figures will be reported at the Council meeting. 

3.30 This report details the precepts requested by the precepting bodies.  Elsewhere on 
this agenda is the report to formally set the Council tax for the District and each 
Parish. 

COUNCIL TAX  

3.31 Central government’s policy around Council Tax changed during the 2016/17 finance 
settlement. It moved from incentivising Council Tax freezes to assuming increases in 
Council Tax as part of the overall financial resources Council’s would utilise. The 
MTFP assumes Council tax will continue to rise by £5 per annum to £195.63 at April 
2019 which equates to 2.62% per band D property for 2019/20 (the latest CPI 
inflation figure, for November 2018, is 2.2%). The power to charge the higher of £5 or 
up to 3% was included as part of the 2018/19 settlement and continues for 2019/20.  
A 3% increase would be equivalent to an increase of £5.72.   

3.32 Each 1% increase in Council Tax generates an additional £87k of income to the 
Council.  If the Council Tax were to be frozen in 2019/20 at existing levels an 
additional £228k of savings would be required to balance the General Fund  

3.33 The MTFP assumes an increase in the Council tax base of 250 band D properties for 
2019/20. At £195.63 per band D this is equivalent to an additional £49k of Council tax 
each year for this Council.  The Assistant Director (Resources) approved the Council 
tax base for 2019/20 under delegated powers on 2 January 2019.  The calculation of 
the taxbase includes projections of discounts, exemptions and an allowance for non-
collection.  The current taxbase assumes a collection rate of 99% which reflects not 
only bad-debts but also reductions in bandings or increases in discounts and 
exemptions. The taxbase calculation is shown at Section 4b of the Draft Budget 
Book.  

3.34 The budget projections assume an increase in the Council tax base, net of 
reductions, exemptions and discounts, of 250 band D properties.  This assumption 
reflects that many affordable homes will be at bands below band D or will be eligible 
for discounts.  This is consistent with the Council Plan aspiration of the creation of 
1,000 new affordable homes for rent from the period 2014-2025.  There has been an 
increase of 247.5 in the overall tax base for the South Lakeland district from 
45,265.99 band D equivalent properties to 45,513.49 band D equivalent properties.  
This will result in a slight fall in Council tax collectable of £0.5k to £8,903,800 based 
on the projected 2019/20 Council tax of £195.63.  

3.35 Legislation has now been passed to permit Councils to increase the premium on 
empty homes from 50% to, initially, 100%.  A report to consider this option will be 
brought to a future meeting of Council. 

4.0 CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

4.1 Proposals for new areas of capital expenditure were considered by Portfolio Holders 
on the 5 October 2018 and were prioritised with reference to the funding available.  

4.2 There were a number of capital bids prioritised and included in the Capital 
Programme approved in December 2018 where outline approval has already been 
given, where expenditure relates to health and safety issues or where works are 
unavoidable.  These bids were: 

Page 118



a) £6.0m in relation to loans to housing associations utilising the Right to Buy 
receipts accumulated to date; 

b) £9.2m in relation to Ulverston Leisure Centre, in line with the business case 
supporting the Cabinet decision to proceed with the next stage of work 
including design to RIBA stage 3; 

c) £461k in relation to developing additional homelessness accommodation for 
families 

d) £100k contribution to redevelopment at Abbot Hall; 

e) £1.9m in relation to Grange Lido based on the light-touch proposals.   

Two further schemes are included in the proposed Capital Programme included at 
Section 5 of the Draft Budget Book.  These are: 

f)  £4.74m relating to the refurbishment of South Lakeland House and Kendal 
Town Hal.   The revenue budget also includes £200k in 2019/20 to cover the 
non-capital costs of this scheme, including detailed design work. 

g)  £100k relating to potential works to Windermere Road car park, Grange as 
part of a wider response to flooding incidents. 

4.3 There are a number of significant potential additional service areas and schemes to 
be added to the capital programme that have yet to be prioritised and or allocated a 
capital and or revenue budget. These schemes would lead to additional capital 
budget costs on top of those presented in Section 5 of the Draft Budget Book. These 
include: 

a) Schemes arising from the Car Parking Strategy - including consideration of 
the potential for new sites (e.g. Arnside), reconfiguration of existing sites (e.g. 
Braithwaite Fold) and the siting of electric charging points.  Further reports will 
be provided during 2109/20 to Cabinet with regard to future capital 
programme requirements. 

b) The review of the Kendal depot location is also not included as yet. A report 
setting out the likely financial implications and benefits and timescales will be 
provided in due course. 

Proposals will be considered by the Strategic Property and Asset Management Board 
against the Property and Land Strategy and Capital Strategy. 

4.4 Once receipts earmarked for specific purposes are removed the programme has a 
modest element of unallocated resources, however, as noted at paragraph 4.3 
above, there are a number of potentially significant unavoidable schemes that might 
need to make a call on these.  

4.5 The regular capital monitoring has identified a number of schemes where expenditure 
is unlikely to occur during 2018/19 and where it is requested that the expenditure is 
re-profiled to 2019/20.  The Capital Programme included at Section 5 of the Draft 
Budget Book includes these changes for 2018/19 and corresponding re-profiling in 
2019/20.  Details of all the capital expenditure is included in the Corporate Financial 
Monitoring report elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting.  The Council has been 
allocated £132k of additional funding for disabled facilities grants for 2018/19 to fund 
adaptations to homes which has been incorporated into the Capital Programme 
funding.   

4.6 The resulting proposed capital programme is presented at Section 5 of the Draft 
Budget Book.  

  

Page 119



A summary of the proposed capital expenditure up to 2023/24 is shown below: 

Table 5: Summary Draft Capital Programme Expenditure 

2018/19 
Revised 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 
2018/19 to 

2023/24 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

7,502.0 12,338.7 20,566.6 3,406.7 1,928.0 2,828.0 48,570.0 

4.7 Although the capital programme contains estimates of expenditure for future years, 
these rely on the income budgets being met (e.g. Capital Receipts, Right to Buy and 
VAT shelter). All elements of the programme, and particularly those areas with 
recurring budgets, will be reviewed annually with reference to the actual resources 
available. 

4.8 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is not currently reflected in the capital 
programme or its funding. The Council has started to receive modest levels of 
income from CIL. The governance arrangements over when and how to allocate this 
and the Infrastructure Delivery Plan were approved by Cabinet on 13 September 
2017. 

4.9 Section 2b of the Draft Budget Book shows the current estimates in relation to New 
Homes Bonus income. 40% of this currently supports the Members small grants 
scheme and Locally Important Projects whilst 60% of this is earmarked to support 
other capital schemes. It is expected that no further income will be received beyond 
April 2020: funding has been reviewed for existing capital programme schemes but 
the capital budgets for LIPS have been removed from 2020/21. 

4.10 A summary of the draft capital programme funding is in the table below. This shows 
the proposed use of capital resources in support of the capital programme (see 
Section 5 of the Draft Budget Book). 

Table 6: Capital Funding 2018/19 to 2023/24 

  Balance April 
2018 
£000 

Estimated 
Income 
£000 

Use in capital 
programme 

£000 

Potential 
Balance March 

2024 
£000 

General         

Usable Capital Receipts 1,744 417 -1,953 209 

VAT Shelter receipt 831 1,200 -2,031 0 

New homes bonus (capital)**** 1,271 1,138 -2,145 264 

    
 

    

Earmarked or allocated   
 

    

Revenue (LIPS) 185 995 -995 185 

IT replacement reserve 74 480 -480 74 

Major Repairs Reserve 307 800 -868 239 

General Revenue contributions 587 1,574 -1,940 221 

Cap grants and contributions (inc S106) 593 8,594 -9,147 40 

Disabled Facilities Grants 360 3,752 -4,112 0 

Community Housing Fund* 2,309 0 -490 1,819 

Right to Buy receipt** 3,788 4,200 -6,495 1,493 

Borrowing   
 

    

Funding from borrowing***. 0 17,915 -17,915 0 

Total 12,049 41,065 -48,570 4,544 

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes, £2.36m less £235k funding revenue budgets 

**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable housing.     

Page 120



***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover the cost 

over the assets' life     

****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement     

4.11 Table 1 includes some amendments to the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) in 
the financial model. These changes reflect changes in the profiling of the rolling 
vehicle and plant programme and the additional costs if Ulverston Leisure Centre and 
South Lakeland House/Kendal Town Hall are to be funded from borrowing.  Revenue 
savings relating to these projects have been identified (see paragraph 3.8 above) and 
will be included in future updates of the Medium Term Financial Plan financial 
projections when the likely timing is resolved. 

5.0 RESERVES AND WORKING BALANCE  

WORKING BALANCE 

5.1 The Council’s working balance at 1 April 2018 was £1.5m.  Working balances are 
used to help cushion the organisation against uneven cash-flows and avoid 
unnecessary borrowing.  The balance on the working balance should be maintained 
at £1.5m. 

OTHER RESERVES 

5.2 The Council holds a General Reserve of monies set aside to form a buffer against 
future financial risks in the medium term and to enable the Council to progress major 
organisational and transformational changes by providing resources to fund the initial 
costs of these developments.   

5.3 Authorities in England and Wales are required to have regard to the level of 
reserves needed for meeting estimated future expenditure when calculating the 
budget requirement.  An annual review is carried out to assess risks including: 

 pay and pension costs 

 inflationary pressures 

 interest rates 

 Government grant 

 income from fees and charges 

The Council considers the impact of holding monies unnecessarily in reserves giving 
the ongoing impact on local residents and taxpayers.  The External Auditor considers 
the level of reserves each year to ensure the amounts held are sufficient but not 
excessive.  There is no theoretical “correct” level of reserves because the issues that 
affect an authority’s need for reserves will vary over time. 

5.4 Reserves are also available to support the strategically important projects listed in the 
capital programme that have yet to be allocated a budget including housing, depot 
options, leisure centres and multi-storey car parks. These are subject to further 
option appraisal and business case development. 

5.5 Section 6b of the Draft Budget Book shows the latest risk-based calculation of a 
minimum recommended working balance and General Reserve for 2019/20.  This 
suggests the overall projected balance is slightly higher than necessary.  The 
fundamental principle governing the use of reserves is that they should not be used 
to fund recurring expenditure.  

5.6 The Statutory Duties Reserve consists of an original sum of £150k set aside for legal 
and other statutory requirements with delegation to Senior Management Team to 
approve the use of the monies, topped back up at year end if necessary.  The use of 
these amounts is reported as part of the Corporate Financial Monitoring process. 

5.7 The Council holds a number of other reserves for various reasons.  Section 6a of the 
Draft Budget Book summarises the individual reserves, their purpose and their 

Page 121



expected balances and movements 2018/19 to 2023/24. The projected reserves 
reflect contributions in but do not anticipate the element of spend to cover 
contingencies which are not predictable when they will be spent.  A new reserve will 
be established at the end of 2019/20 for unclaimed members allowances which will 
be applied to grants to assist the personal financial resilience initiative. 

5.8 Table 7 summarises the projected balances on reserves and the working balance at 
the end of each financial year. 

Table 7: Reserves summary 

  31/03/2018 31/03/2019 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2024 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

General Reserves (8,600) (6,798) (4,948) (5,182) (5,382) (5,582) (5,782) 

Capital Reserves (2,434) (436) 160 29 (101) (231) (461) 

Earmarked Reserves (4,412) (3,830) (4,895) (4,495) (4,445) (4,445) (4,445) 

Total Reserves (15,447) (11,064) (9,683) (9,647) (9,927) (10,257) (10,687) 

Working Balance (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) 

Total Reserves and Working 
Balance 

(16,947) (12,564) (11,183) (11,147) (11,427) (11,757) (12,187) 

 

6.0 CONSULTATION 

6.1 Statutory consultation has been undertaken with large ratepayers, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and Cumbria County Council. 

6.2 The Lake Administration, Planning and Licensing Committees received and 
considered the elements of the draft Budget Report which are relevant to them. The 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee considered the 18 December Council first draft 
Budget Report at its January 2019 meeting. 

7 ROBUSTNESS OF ESTIMATES AND ADEQUACY OF RESERVES  

7.1 Legislation requires the Council to formally take account of the Chief Finance 
Officer’s advice on these matters when setting its budget.  This advice is given in 
Appendix 3. 

7.2 The proposed level of reserves and working balance place the Council in a sound 
financial position for 2019/20 and are adequate for the medium term.  There are 
significant risks in the current MTFP projections, including the impact of the current 
and future Government Spending Reviews, the current economic climate and low 
levels of investment returns.  It is important that reserves are maintained at robust 
levels in order to respond to these challenges and as a cushion against forecast risks 
and unforeseen events. Overall the Council can set a balanced budget for 2019/20 
and address the additional level of deficit from 2020/21 onwards. 

8 PAY POLICY  

8.1 The Localism Act 2011 brought in new provisions with regard to requirements for the 
Council to determine and publish an annual Pay Policy Statement.   The Pay Policy 
Statement requires annual review.  South Lakeland District Council is an employer in 
its own right and has the autonomy to make decisions on pay that are appropriate to 
local circumstances and which deliver value for money for local taxpayers. 

8.2 In accordance with Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 South Lakeland District 
Council is required to publish a statement on the Council’s approach to setting the 
pay of its employees, in particular the posts defined as ‘chief officer’ posts. 

8.3 The Statement for 2019 is attached as Appendix 4. This policy statement is due to 
be considered by Human Resources Committee on 12 February 2019 after this 

Page 122



report is finalised.   The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with 
regard to the Council’s approach to setting the pay and remuneration of its 
employees.  

8.4 There are a number of approved Human Resource policies and procedures that deal 
with pay and remuneration of all employees and this Pay Policy Statement draws the 
information together and has been prepared in accordance with the guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government. 

9 NEXT STEPS 

9.1 The Government has already announced changes to the business rates funding 
system for 2020.  Three major changes co-incide: 

a) An increase in local retention of business rates to 75% through the reduction of 
the 50% central share of business rates retained by the Government to 25% and 
replacement of certain grants  

b) the Government is reviewing the needs formula which will control how much 
business rates will be retained locally.  A national working group including the 
Department of Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), HM Treasury, the 
Local Government Association (LGA), professional organisation and 
representatives of interested groups such as the District Council’s Network (DCN) 
meets to discuss the proposals which are badged as the Fair Funding Review.  
These developments will be monitored and fed into the MTFP as the details are 
clarified. 

c) A reset of the business rates system so accumulated growth will be redistributed 
based on the needs formula.  For 2019/20 the accumulated growth above the 
Council’s business rate baseline is £3.2m of which 50% is retained by the Council 
and 50% is paid to the Cumbria business rate pool.   

9.2 Officers will continue to develop proposals for medium-term savings to offset the 
projected deficits from April 2020 onwards.  The Medium Term Financial Plan will be 
updated to reflect the 2018/19 final outturn during June 2019 and will be reported to 
Overview and Scrutiny, Cabinet and Council.  It will include a Commercial Strategy 
which will help address the Council’s approach to income generation and risk. 

10 Alternative Options 

10.1 This report presents alternative options in relation to potential budget pressures and 
savings, new capital programme bids, one off revenue growth bids and fees and 
charges. The proposals together aim to meet the Council’s statutory duty to set a 
balanced Budget for 2019/20. An alternative option would be to reject some of the 
proposals; this would then require further work to ensure a balanced budget was set. 

Links to Council Priorities 

10.2 This report sets out the draft Budget to enable the consideration of how the Council’s 
priorities will be delivered.  Setting a sound framework for budget preparation assists 
in the delivery of all corporate outcomes.  This strategy has been developed within 
the context of the MTFP. 

Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

11.1 The draft Budget aims to safeguard the Council’s financial position and ensure a 
balanced budget for 2019/20 and an improved position in the years that follow. 

Page 123



Human Resources 

11.2 This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council; individual savings and 
growth proposals may have direct staffing implications. 

Legal 

11.3 This report has no direct legal implications at this stage but individual proposals 
resulting from this report may have direct legal implications. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

11.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No  

11.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report contains proposals to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 which will be subject 
to further consultation. Specific issues that require HSEEIAs will be brought forward 
as specific initiatives commence. 

Equality and Diversity 

11.6 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 5)   

11.7 Assessments are carried out of the impact of individual projects linked to the Budget 
in respect of equality, diversity and inclusion. 

12. Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure to create a balanced 
and sustainable budget by 
February 2019 

Includes: inability to deliver 
corporate priorities, 
inappropriate spending, 
and inappropriate 
reductions in services. 

Identification of sound 
budget guidelines in an 
agreed strategy reduces the 
risk of an unaffordable 
budget and/or precipitate 
budget reductions. 

Monitoring of progress 
against the budget 
timetable reduces the need 
for last-minute budget 
adjustments. 

Insufficient staff capacity to 
deliver on growth items within 
capital and revenue budgets 

Inability to deliver services 
to expected levels or 
additional costs of 
temporary staff. Potential 
underspends and potential 
slippage in expenditure to 
subsequent years. 

Review resources required 
to ensure growth bids are 
realistic and deliverable, 
including other unavoidable 
staffing pressures 

Revenue budget and Capital 
Programme may not be 
integrated and aligned with 
Council Plan. 

Resources not directed to 
achieving corporate 
outcomes, leading to 
inappropriate spending. 

Both the revenue budget 
and the Capital Programme 
are now embedded in the 
corporate planning cycle.  
All revenue budgets and 
capital programme 
schemes are linked to 
Council plan priorities 

Page 124



Risk Consequence Controls required 

Reduction in funding from 
Government is greater than 
estimated or announced too 
late for adjustments to be 
made to budgets 

In-year budgetary 
pressure and potential 
overspending, jeopardising 
service delivery. 

Close monitoring of 
Government 
announcements, potential 
short-term use of revenue 
contingency provision and 
General Reserve followed 
by review for following year. 

Government proposals for 
piloting full localisation of 
business rates increase 
uncertainty of major income 
stream. 

Income streams will be 
insufficient to fund service 
delivery. 

Monitor Government 
proposals for changes in 
NNDR legislation.  
Maintenance of General 
Reserve as a buffer against 
unexpected changes in 
funding.  Monitor changes 
in rateable values & 
proposals for new 
development / closures/ 
other changes.   

The Pay Policy Statement 
does not contain the 
information required by 
legislation 

The Council will not 
adhere to legislation 

Ensure the Pay Policy 
contains the information 
required by legislation 

Further detail of risks and opportunities around items included in this report can be found at 
Section 6 of the Draft Budget Book which shows the Risk and Opportunity log from the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan approved in July 2018 (as updated). 

Contact Officers 

Shelagh McGregor, Chief Finance Officer, s.mcgregor@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 
793112  
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793147 
Lee Hurst, Chief Accountant, lee.hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793599  
 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 2019/20 – 2023/24 Draft Budget Book including: 

 General Fund Summary 

 MTFP projections February 2019 

 Service Budgets by Assistant Director 

 Detailed Service Budgets 

 Recurring Revenue Budget Pressures 

 Growth Proposals 

 Savings Proposals 

 Collection Fund 2019/20 

 Council Taxbase 2019/20 

Page 125

mailto:s.mcgregor@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:lee.hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk


Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

 Parish Expenses 2019/20 

 Draft Capital Programme 2018/19 to 2023/24  

 Reserves Summary 

 Risk Assessment of Reserves 

 MTFP Risks and Opportunities Log 

2 Fees and Charges Book for 2019/20 

3 Chief Finance Office Statutory Report on Robustness of the Budget 
and adequacy of the level of reserves  

4 Pay Policy  

5 Equality Impact Assessment 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Medium Term Financial Plan 
approved Council 24 July 2018 

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b 

 

2019/20 Budget Update Report to 
Cabinet 31 October 2018 

https://tinyurl.com/yaedogmo 

2019/20 Draft Budget Report to 
Council 18 December 2018 

https://tinyurl.com/y9uhd7j2 

 

Budget update report, Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee January 
2019 

https://tinyurl.com/y3kn93mh 

 

Draft Budget report, Cabinet, 6 
February 2019 

https://tinyurl.com/y3oxyxt8 

 

Pay Policy report, Human 
Resources Committee, 12 
February 2019 

https://tinyurl.com/y3fgozxl 

 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 07/02/2019 

Section 151 Officer 07/02/2019 

Monitoring Officer 07/02/2019 

SMT 07/02/2019 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 07/02/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader 07/02/2019 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 07/02/2019 

Page 126

https://tinyurl.com/ya988w5b
https://tinyurl.com/yaedogmo
https://tinyurl.com/y9uhd7j2
https://tinyurl.com/y3kn93mh
https://tinyurl.com/y3oxyxt8
https://tinyurl.com/y3fgozxl


Circulated to Date sent 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) 06/02/2019 

Council 26/02/2019 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 128



page 1

South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore

South Lakeland District Council 
2019/20

Budget Book

Appendix 1

Page 129



Appendix 1

Page 130



 

1 

 
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

2019/20 DRAFT BUDGET BOOK 
 

 

CONTENTS 
 

 

  Page: 
1. Introduction 3-5 
   
2. Medium Term Financial Plan overview:  
 a) General Fund Summary 6-7 
 b) MTFP Projections 8-10 
   
3. Revenue Budget Details:  
 a) Service Budgets by Assistant Director 11-12 
 b) Detailed Service Budgets 13-58 
 c) Recurring Revenue Budget Pressures 59 
 d) Growth Proposals 60 
 e) Savings Proposals 61 
   
4. Council Tax and Collection Fund  
 a) Collection Fund estimates 62 
 b) Council Taxbase 63 
 c) Parish expenses 64-65 
   
5. Capital Programme and Funding 66-69 
   
6. Reserves  
 a) Reserves Summary 70-72 
 b) Risk Assessment of Reserves 73 
 c) MTFP Risks and Opportunities Log 74-84 
   
7. Glossary and notes 85-86 

 

 

 
 
The 2019/20 Draft Budget will be considered by Council on 26 February 

2019. 
 

Appendix 1

Page 131



Appendix 1

Page 132



Introduction 
 
1. On 26 February 2019 South Lakeland District Council will be asked to approve a new 

Council Plan 2019-24 which sets out a vision, underpinned by three priorities that will 
guide how we will work together with partners to make South Lakeland the best place 
to live, work and explore.  Our areas of focus to achieve this vision are:: 

 Creating an environment for people to thrive 

 Delivering excellent, value-for-money, services 

 Playing a leading role and influencing others 

 Empowering customers and communities 

 Forward thinking, innovative Council. 

2. The delivery of this Council Plan is influenced by our three key values. These are: 

 Empowering People - By listening to our customers and our employees, their 
ideas and comments will help us make improvements to customer service and 
workforce development 

 Excellence - Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that 
our actions address the needs of South Lakeland 

 Open and Transparent - Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our 
dealings with the public. 

3. On 26 February 2019 Council will consider the 2019/20 revenue and capital budgets 
that support the council plan. These include a 2.6% increase in the 2019/20 SLDC 
council tax amount (£5 on a Band D property).  The approved District Council Tax 
demand will be set at £8.9m with a capital programme of £12.3m for 2019/20. 
Section 3b of this document contains the detailed service revenue budgets for 
reference by budget holders, Senior Management, Members and any other 
stakeholders.  

4. There are a number of other recurring budget pressures and adjustments that have 
been identified through the budget process. These total £145k for 2019/20 increasing 
to £317k by 2023/24; these are detailed in Section 3c. These pressures are largely a 
result of external changes and are unavoidable if current service levels are to be 
maintained. 

5. The detail of revenue growth items is included at Section 3d. These total £100k for 
2019/20 and £50k for each of 2020/21 and 2021/22. Until specific savings proposals 
to balance annual budgets have been identified, no further future growth is committed 
to, unless it relates to statutory or un-controllable pressures on current services which 
have no alternative sources of funding or delivery.  The single largest area of Growth 
bids relates to Economic Development Activities (£150k). These have been funded 
through the use of the NDR Pool reserve, which is set aside specifically to support 
economic development. 

6. The Medium Term Financial Plan projects future levels of both expenditure, income 
and the potential resources over the next four years. A detailed projection is provided 
in Sections 2a and 2b and is summarised in the table below: 

  

3

Appendix 1

Page 133



 

Table 1: Summary Medium Term Financial Plan 
     

  
2019/20 

£000 
2020/21 

£000 
2021/22 

£000 
2022/23 

£000 
2023/24 

£000 

Service Expenditure 33,274.2 32,779.8 30,434.0 29,195.3 29,006.3 
Customer Connect 2,031.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Service income -12,640.5 -12,433.8 -12,655.6 -12,829.7 -12,629.7 

Net service expenditure 22,664.7 20,346.0 17,778.4 16,365.6 16,376.6 

Corporate items -21,924.7 -18,036.0 -14,940.5 -12,769.0 -12,123.6 
Savings from Customer Connect -740.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 

Net draft budget (projected deficit) February 2019 0.0 760.0 1,287.9 2,046.6 2,703.0 

 

7. The projected deficits before future savings from the Customer Connect Programme 
and local government funding changes total £740k for 2019/20 rising to c£4.2m by 
2023/24. After Customer Connect savings of £740k in 2019/20 rising to £1.55m from 
2020/21, the projected deficits of c£0 to £2.7m remain. 

8. The draft budget has been updated to reflect the final finance settlement received on 
the 29 January 2019 where the Rural Services Delivery Grant and income from 
business rates increased.  Both changes are for 2019/20 only. 

9. The potential changes to the business rates retention system from April 2020 offers 
both opportunities and risks. This, in addition to the proposed Fairer Funding Review, 
may lead to both increased volatility and reductions in retained local taxation over the 
medium term. At this stage these are difficult to quantify but from 2020/21 a potential 
cumulative reduction in funding of circa £0.5m per year rising to circa £2.0m by the 
final year of the current MTFP model. This has the effect of increasing the potential 
future year deficits from c£760k in 2020/21 to c£2.7m by 2023/24. 

10. The Council has a statutory duty to set a balanced budget. It is the current practice 
that once this has been achieved before funds are applied to support discretionary, 
fixed term growth items. 

11. Proposals for new areas of capital expenditure were considered by Portfolio Holders 
on the 14 September 2018 and were prioritised with reference to the funding 
available. The resulting proposed capital programme is presented in Section 5 along 
with a summary of the financing. A summary of the expenditure by year is included in 
the table below: 

 

Table 2: Summary of capital programme 

2018/19 
Revised 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 
2018/19 to 

2023/24 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

7,502.0 12,338.7 20,566.6 3,406.7 1,928.0 2,828.0 48,570.0 

 

12. The proposed level of reserves and working balance place the Council in a sound 
financial position for 2019/20 and are adequate for the medium term.  There are 
significant risks in the current MTFP projections, including the impact of the current 
and future Government Spending Reviews, the current economic climate and low 
levels of investment returns.  It is important that reserves are maintained at robust 
levels in order to respond to these challenges and as a cushion against forecast risks 

4

Appendix 1

Page 134



and unforeseen events. The Council can set a balanced budget for 2019/20 and is well 
placed to address projected deficits in future years in a planned and strategic way. 
Details of the anticipated levels of reserves are presented in Section 6. A summary of 
the reserves projection is shown in the table below: 

 

Table 3: Reserves Summary 

  31/03/2018 31/03/2019 31/03/2020 31/03/2021 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2024 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

General Reserves (8,600) (6,798) (4,948) (5,182) (5,382) (5,582) (5,782) 

Capital Reserves (2,434) (436) 160 29 (101) (231) (461) 

Earmarked Reserves (4,412) (3,830) (4,895) (4,495) (4,445) (4,445) (4,445) 

Total Reserves (15,447) (11,064) (9,683) (9,647) (9,927) (10,257) (10,687) 

Working Balance (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) 

Total Reserves and 
Working Balance 

(16,947) (12,564) (11,183) (11,147) (11,427) (11,757) (12,187) 

 

13. Further details on the budget process and assumptions can be found in the report 
presented to Council 26 February 2019, and its supporting appendices. 

 

 

 

5

Appendix 1

Page 135



Section 2a

This table sets out detail of the MTFP financial model based on departments.

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Net Service Expenditure

Resources 3,750.4 3,779.7 3,869.2 3,949.2 3,944.2

Performance and Innovation 3,126.8 793.3 755.3 855.9 973.8

Strategic Development 9,130.1 9,292.0 6,368.8 4,682.9 4,484.5

Neighbourhood Services 6,657.5 6,480.7 6,785.2 6,877.4 6,974.2

Uncommitted Growth 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Further Savings from Customer Connect -740.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0 -1,550.0

Net Service Budget after Customer Connect 

Savings

21,924.8 18,795.7 16,228.5 14,815.4 14,826.7

Corporate items

Interest Receivable -223.1 -259.8 -327.3 -355.0 -393.2

Interest Payable 567.0 1,163.4 1,178.4 1,199.1 1,262.1

Parish Grant 92.0 92.0 92.0 92.0 92.0

Collection Fund surplus/deficit 42.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Contribution to pool Reserve 1,113.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Direct Revenue Financing 705.7 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0

Minimum Revenue Provision 751.7 982.7 1,021.3 1,226.0 1,338.1

Reversal of Capital Charges -9,085.1 -8,422.8 -5,617.5 -3,892.4 -3,495.0

Transfers to/from Reserves 147.3 305.7 374.4 390.1 390.1

Transfers from Reserves - Customer Connect -2,031.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Corporate Items -7,919.5 -6,098.8 -3,238.7 -1,300.2 -765.9

Net Revenue Budget 14,005.3 12,696.9 12,989.8 13,515.2 14,060.8

Retained Business Rates -4,650.4 -2,755.7 -2,240.0 -1,724.3 -1,328.0

Government Grant -451.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Council Tax Requirement 8,903.9 9,941.2 10,749.8 11,790.9 12,732.8

Taxbase (Band D equivalent) 45,513.49 45,763.49 46,013.49 46,263.49 46,513.49

Council Tax (Band D) £ £195.63 £200.63 £205.63 £210.63 £215.63

Council Tax Increase: £ (Band D) £5.00 £5.00 £5.00 £5.00 £5.00

Council Tax Increase: % 2.62% 2.56% 2.49% 2.43% 2.37%

Amount proposed to be rasied through Council 

Tax

-8,903.8 -9,181.5 -9,461.8 -9,744.5 -10,029.7

Deficit assuming £5 Band D Council Tax 

increase

0.1 759.7 1,288.0 2,046.4 2,703.1

6

Appendix 1

Page 136



2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Capital Programme

Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations -60 -120 -120 -120

New Ulverston Leisure Centre 0 -220 -220 -220

Additional homeless accomodation to provide options for families -64 -64 -64 -64

South Lakeland House/Kendal Town Hall 0 0 -274 -298

Other Decisions

Waste and Recycling Collection Policy -16 -16 -16 -16

0 -140 -420 -694 -718

Future financial projections will be updated for these changes when the timing is confirmed.

Deficit assuming £5 Band D Council Tax 

increase after savings related to Capital 

Programme

0.1 619.7 868.0 1,352.4 1,985.1

The revenue budgets reflect additional costs of interest and debt repayment relating to items in the capital 

programme.  The budgets have not been updated for the following items of income identified in the relevant 

business plans/budget bids to offset the costs:

7

Appendix 1

Page 137



Section 2b

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Expenditure

Employee Costs 14,623.8 14,833.6 15,251.7 15,609.2 15,943.0 

Running Costs 9,565.3 9,523.4 9,564.8 9,693.7 9,568.3 

Capital Charges 9,085.1 8,422.8 5,617.5 3,892.4 3,495.0 

Customer Connect 2,031.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Service Expenditure 35,305.2 32,779.8 30,434.0 29,195.3 29,006.3 

Income

Car Parking Income (4,553.4) (4,639.6) (4,727.5) (4,817.2) (4,817.2)

Contributions from other Local Authorities and Public 

Bodies

(67.5) (67.9) (68.2) (68.5) (68.5)

General Income (4,134.2) (4,204.9) (4,268.5) (4,251.6) (4,251.6)

Government Grants (483.9) (560.7) (560.7) (590.7) (390.7)

New Homes Bonus (516.7) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Lake Income (1,459.5) (1,492.6) (1,518.6) (1,544.2) (1,544.2)

Recycling Credits (1,425.3) (1,468.1) (1,512.1) (1,557.5) (1,557.5)

Total Service Income (12,640.5) (12,433.8) (12,655.6) (12,829.7) (12,629.7)

Net Service Budget 22,664.7 20,346.0 17,778.4 16,365.6 16,376.6 

Corporate items

Interest Receivable (223.1) (259.8) (327.3) (355.0) (393.2)

Interest Payable 567.0 1,163.4 1,178.4 1,199.1 1,262.1 

Other Government Grants (451.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Income from Council Tax (net of Parish Precept) (8,903.8) (9,181.5) (9,461.8) (9,744.5) (10,029.7)

Parish Grant 92.0 92.0 92.0 92.0 92.0 

Retained Business Rates (4,650.4) (2,755.7) (2,240.0) (1,724.3) (1,328.0)

Contribution to pool Reserve 1,113.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Programme 705.7 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 

Minimum Revenue Provision 751.7 982.7 1,021.3 1,226.0 1,338.1 

Reversal of Capital Charges (9,085.1) (8,422.8) (5,617.5) (3,892.4) (3,495.0)

Collection Fund surplus/deficit 42.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Transfers to/from Reserves 147.3 305.7 374.4 390.1 390.1 

Transfers from Reserves: Customer Connect (2,031.0) 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Corporate Items (21,924.7) (18,036.0) (14,940.5) (12,769.0) (12,123.6)

Projected Surplus/Deficit (-/+) 740.0 2,310.0 2,837.9 3,596.6 4,253.0 

Customer Connect savings (740.0) (1,550.0) (1,550.0) (1,550.0) (1,550.0)

Projected Surplus/Deficit (+/-) February 2019 0.0 760.0 1,287.9 2,046.6 2,703.0 

This table sets out detail of the Medium Term Financial Plan financial model.

8

Appendix 1

Page 138



CHANGES TO PROJECTED DEFICIT SINCE MTFP APPROVED JULY 2018:

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Net draft budget (projected deficit) July 2018 554.1 389.1 931.5 1,539.8 2,036.0

Council Tax second homes agreement income removal 693.6 693.6 693.6 665.0 665.0

Net draft budget (projected deficit) October 2018 1,247.7 1,082.7 1,625.1 2,204.8 2,701.0

Budget Pressures (App 3) 330.5 365.1 376.2 448.9 473.4

Growth Proposals (App 4) 50.0 50.0 50.0 0.0 0.0

General Savings (App 5) -323.3 -329.3 -334.3 -334.3 -334.3

Removal of uncommitted Pressure/Growth -500.0 -500.0 -500.0 -500.0 -500.0

Funding of Growth Proposals through Cumbria Business 

Rates Pool Income Reserve

-50.0 -50.0 -50.0 0.0 0.0

Recalculation of MRP as a result of updated capital 

programme

-21.5 -28.9 -28.8 107.1 219.2

Reversal of negative RSG by Government -613.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

One-off use of General Reserves -120.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Net draft budget (projected deficit) December 2018 0.0 589.6 1,138.2 1,926.5 2,559.3

Changes since December 18 Council:

Correction to Other Budget Pressures (App 3) -110.1 -120.1 -122.7 -125.0 -126.9

December Establishment Update 20.1 -39.1 9.7 7.4 16.4

Updated Interest Projections -204.4 353.2 286.3 267.0 283.5

Provisional Finance Settlement: Rural Services Delivery 

Grant

-85.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Provisional Finance Settlement: Business Rate Pool Levy 

Surplus

-34.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Provisional Finance Settlement: New Homes Bonus 112.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

New Homes Bonus to reserve -112.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Council Tax colleciton fund deficit 42.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Revenue costs of SLH/KTH refurbishment 200.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Reverse One-off use of General Reserves proposed at 

December Council

120.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

New Contribution to Reserves required 51.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Net budget (projected deficit) February 2018 Cabinet 0.0 783.6 1,311.5 2,075.9 2,732.3

Changes since February 18 Cabinet:

Additional Growth - contribution to carbon reduction 

schemes

50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Adjustment to Other Budget Pressures (App 3) -74.6 -23.6 -23.6 -29.3 -29.3

Final LG Finance Settlement - Brexit Funding -17.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Cost of Brexit 17.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Final LG Finance Settlement - Removal of Pool Levy 

Surplus as 2018/19

34.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Carry-forward requests 59.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Funding of carry-forward requests from carry-forward 

reserve

-59.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Business Rates including income from Cumbria pool -1,113.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Business Rates contribution to the Pool Reserve 1,113.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Reverse contribution to General Reserves proposed at 

February Cabinet

-51.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

New Contribution to Reserves required 42.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Net budget (projected deficit) February 2018 0.0 760.0 1,287.9 2,046.6 2,703.0

9

Appendix 1

Page 139



2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Capital Programme

Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations

Interest on balance outstanding -60 -120 -120 -120

New Ulverston Leisure Centre

Reduction in running costs/management fee 0 -220 -220 -220

Additional homeless accomodation to provide options for families

Income from residents (including housing benefit 

where eligible) -64 -64 -64 -64

South Lakeland House/Kendal Town Hall

Cost avoidance/additional income 0 0 -274 -298

Other Decisions

Waste and Recycling Collection Policy

Delivery charges from developers -16 -16 -16 -16

0 -140 -420 -694 -718

Future financial projections will be updated for these changes when the timing is confirmed.

Deficit assuming £5 Band D Council Tax increase 

after savings related to Capital Programme

0.0 620.0 867.9 1,352.6 1,985.0

The revenue budgets reflect additional costs of interest and debt repayment relating to items in the capital programme.  

The budgets have not been updated for the following items of income identified in the relevant business plans/budget 

bids to offset the costs:

10

Appendix 1

Page 140



Section 3a

2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Resources

0.0 24.8 ECL Legal and Democratic Services 0.0 -32.1 -22.1 -12.6 -4.1

0.0 25.6 EFS Financial Services 0.0 7.8 23.6 37.9 51.8

0.0 -2.0 ERA Internal Audit 0.0 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4

0.0 -15.2 ERB Revenues and Benefits 0.0 36.4 73.6 103.9 59.2

0.0 0.0 ERE Asst Dir Resources 0.0 1.6 3.3 5.0 6.7

0.0 107.6 ERS Employee Relations 0.0 13.6 26.5 35.1 42.2

0.0 0.0 EXC Management Team 0.0 7.1 14.4 21.8 29.3

275.5 275.5 GBN Council Tax Benefits 284.9 284.9 284.9 284.9 284.9

17.3 17.3 GBT Housing Bens Local Scheme 16.4 16.4 16.4 16.4 16.4

1,211.4 1,211.4 GCA Democratic Management 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6

54.4 54.4 GCX Corporate Management 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1

55.3 55.3 GFI Corporate Finance 82.3 82.3 82.3 82.3 82.3

37.7 37.7 GFN NNDR Cost of Collection 59.6 59.3 58.9 58.9 58.9

435.8 431.3 GFS Unapportionable PensionAdj 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1

500.3 500.3 GFT Council Tax Cost Collect 514.2 510.8 507.3 507.3 507.3

18.3 18.3 GGT Subscriptions Grants 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3

398.3 465.5 GMM Members 459.6 465.1 471.1 476.6 476.6

166.3 166.3 GRA Rent Allowances 204.5 204.5 204.4 204.4 204.4

1.9 1.9 GRB Discretionary Housing Bens 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

13.3 13.3 GRD Discretionary Rate Relief 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1

16.9 16.9 GSE District Lighting Expenses 16.2 18.8 21.4 24.1 25.1

5.0 63.9 GTH Other Items 22.5 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

94.1 94.1 GTV Bank Charges 90.7 97.3 97.3 97.3 97.3

59.9 55.1 GTW Audit and Inspection 100.3 100.3 100.3 100.3 100.3

5.6 5.6 GVR Chairmn Allow Civic Hosp 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

3,367.3 3,624.9 3,750.4 3,779.7 3,869.2 3,949.2 3,944.2

Performance and Innovation

0.0 0.0 ECF AD Policy and Performance 0.0 1.6 3.3 5.0 6.7

0.0 218.3 ECU Customer Services 0.0 12.3 24.4 34.6 42.5

0.0 29.2 ERI Information Services 0.0 11.5 19.4 17.4 29.7

0.0 3.5 ERP Printing and Graphic Design 0.0 7.9 10.0 11.4 13.0

0.0 -135.0 EXS Policy and Performance 1,518.3 -503.6 -494.2 -486.6 -477.5

0.0 0.0 EXT Transformation and Change 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

163.4 168.9 GCC Corporate Communications 182.0 184.5 187.1 189.1 191.2

133.2 128.2 GCD Partnerships and Communities 131.1 129.9 129.8 129.6 129.6

841.8 857.9 GCG Community Grants 631.5 409.7 404.7 404.7 404.7

300.8 320.4 GEL Elections 306.6 232.4 159.9 236.9 318.2

59.3 59.3 GEM Emergency Planning 54.1 54.1 54.1 54.1 54.1

194.9 213.7 GER Electoral Registration 199.5 199.3 203.1 206.0 207.9

28.5 28.5 GMY Safer Stronger 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6

35.6 35.6 GPR Consultation 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1

51.9 51.9 GXW Carbon Change Programme 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1,809.4 1,980.4 3,126.8 793.3 755.3 855.9 973.8

Strategic Development

0.0 7.2 ECC Strategic Planning Admin 0.0 -5.0 23.1 35.4 37.5

0.0 -18.0 EHS Health and Safety 0.0 1.0 2.1 3.1 4.2

0.0 67.7 EPX Offices 0.0 13.1 25.1 39.9 42.9

0.0 -0.3 ESE AD Strategic Development 0.0 1.6 3.3 5.0 6.7

0.0 0.6 EUR Community Inv and Dev 0.0 20.5 42.1 58.4 73.7

216.6 216.7 GBC Building Control: Non-Chargeable 201.1 203.0 204.8 206.7 208.6

24.3 24.2 GBC Building Control: Chargeable 34.3 32.8 31.4 28.6 32.8

41.8 63.2 GCH Community Housing Fund 14.4 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6

35.5 37.8 GCN Conveniences 25.3 25.3 25.3 25.3 25.3

-226.5 -226.5 GCS Caravan Site -301.8 -308.8 -315.8 -322.9 -322.9

65.0 110.0 GCV Conservation Environment 147.9 148.6 149.8 70.8 71.8

556.1 608.1 GDC Development Control 693.5 634.6 644.8 654.4 665.4

4.7 4.7 GDS Dangerous Structures 4.6 4.4 4.1 3.9 3.9

1.3 1.3 GEC ECO Scheme 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

The purpose of this table is to set out the net budget for each service. 

11

Appendix 1

Page 141



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

478.7 688.1 GED Economic Development 1,919.7 1,894.7 1,895.3 289.4 289.4

969.0 994.9 GEN Housing Enabling Role 3,813.9 3,528.2 531.3 534.2 277.3

96.4 141.6 GHL Town View Fields Hostel 138.8 142.6 146.8 148.5 152.4

359.4 363.5 GHM Homelessness 311.9 324.7 331.2 337.9 342.6

894.4 894.2 GHT Housing Standards 899.4 903.5 908.1 854.8 859.4

25.8 25.8 GIL Community Infrastructure Levy 32.7 33.3 31.2 31.9 32.7

1.6 1.6 GLC Local Land Charges 24.0 26.1 28.4 30.8 32.4

505.4 559.1 GLP Local Plans 569.1 541.7 548.5 554.3 560.1

-19.2 4.3 GMK Markets -34.0 -35.6 -37.3 -39.6 -38.2

227.7 298.0 GMU Museum 52.1 58.1 64.3 70.8 70.8

-860.5 -860.5 GNH New Homes -516.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

416.5 475.6 GPH Public Halls 336.5 324.5 285.0 265.5 259.3

599.5 -80.7 GPL Planned Maintenance 542.0 541.5 541.0 541.0 541.0

49.9 0.0 GRP Kendal Regeneration 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-603.9 -603.9 GSH Second Home Discounts 101.6 102.8 104.1 104.8 105.4

266.8 436.3 GSY Sundry Properties 188.3 203.3 220.8 221.1 221.1

-19.8 -19.8 GTC Tourist Info Centres -22.0 -22.6 -23.2 -23.2 -23.2

-37.1 -36.4 GUL Industrial Units Landlord -43.5 -44.4 -45.2 -46.2 -46.2

-3.7 -3.7 GUT Indust Units Tenants -3.4 -3.5 -3.6 -3.7 -3.7

4,065.7 4,174.7 9,130.1 9,292.0 6,368.8 4,682.9 4,484.5

Neighbourhood Services

0.0 -108.8 EUN Community Services 0.0 37.7 74.5 105.3 134.6

-1,617.0 -1,666.7 GCK Car Parks -1,936.9 -2,021.1 -2,093.8 -2,146.4 -2,173.1

4.8 44.8 GCL Community Leisure 13.0 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.9

74.9 95.1 GCM Cemeteries 80.9 81.5 82.5 80.8 81.7

10.0 10.0 GCP Coast Protection 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1

42.3 42.3 GCZ Contaminated Land 37.7 37.7 37.7 37.7 37.7

0.0 84.3 GDY SLDC Depots 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

66.4 66.4 GEV Events 68.2 69.0 69.9 70.8 71.7

212.6 212.6 GFD Food Safety 229.4 229.4 229.4 229.4 229.4

303.6 303.6 GFW Flood Warning 284.9 285.1 285.2 285.4 285.5

0.0 19.0 GGK Car Park Enforcement 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

8.9 8.9 GGR Glebe Road Recreation Ground 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

258.7 258.7 GHP Noise Air Water Pollution 277.1 277.1 277.1 277.1 277.1

152.0 152.0 GHS Health Safety 160.6 160.7 160.6 160.6 160.6

836.3 867.2 GLE Leisure Centres 1,018.6 849.4 1,032.9 1,032.5 1,032.5

-644.8 -609.2 GLW Lake Windermere -674.8 -701.3 -720.7 -758.4 -755.8

3.5 3.5 GMA Hackney Carriage Licences 10.4 8.6 6.8 6.8 6.8

26.8 27.8 GMC Miscellaneous Licences 31.0 30.7 30.3 30.3 30.3

-77.3 -77.3 GMD Licensing Act -75.7 -79.9 -84.3 -84.3 -84.3

3.0 3.0 GME Gambling Licensing 4.7 4.3 3.8 3.8 3.8

125.1 138.4 GOT Environmental Health Other 113.2 113.3 113.3 113.3 113.4

1,210.2 1,274.5 GPK Parks 1,149.2 1,089.6 1,101.6 1,123.7 1,120.5

0.0 0.0 GPO Promoting South Lakeland 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

259.0 274.3 GRG Recreation Grounds 280.2 130.6 134.1 136.5 138.7

35.5 35.5 GSN Street Furniture 10.3 10.3 10.3 10.3 10.3

1,365.8 1,233.8 GTG Street Cleansing 1,392.9 1,426.1 1,459.4 1,485.1 1,466.8

0.0 49.9 GTS Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

18.8 18.8 GWC Bulky Waste Collection 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9

43.2 43.2 GWF Dog Control 40.3 41.1 41.9 42.7 42.7

3,367.7 3,615.3 GWK Waste Collection 3,943.3 4,203.4 4,339.1 4,443.5 4,552.1

117.3 87.3 GWR Waste Recycling 123.6 120.7 119.8 118.8 118.8

65.8 65.5 GWS Water Supply and Pollution 53.3 52.0 48.7 47.4 47.4

6,273.1 6,573.7 6,657.4 6,481.0 6,785.1 6,877.6 6,974.1

Other GF Items

0.0 0.0 GZZ Other GF Items 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

15,515.5 16,353.7 Total Service Expenditure 22,664.7 20,346.0 17,778.4 16,365.6 16,376.6

12

Appendix 1

Page 142



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Resources

Direct Expenditure

408.0 432.7 Employees 463.1 431.0 441.6 451.0 459.5

2.3 2.4 Transport 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3

72.9 72.9 Supplies and Services 79.0 79.0 78.5 78.5 78.5

0.2 0.2 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

280.5 280.5 Central Support Services 322.0 322.0 322.0 322.0 322.0

763.9 788.7 866.4 834.3 844.4 853.8 862.3

Income

-30.3 -30.3 Customer Receipts -33.0 -33.0 -33.0 -33.0 -33.0

-733.6 -733.6 Internal recharges -833.4 -833.4 -833.4 -833.4 -833.4

-763.9 -763.9 -866.4 -866.4 -866.4 -866.4 -866.4

0.0 24.8 Net Expenditure 0.0 -32.1 -22.0 -12.6 -4.1

Direct Expenditure

679.5 704.7 Employees 657.3 664.7 679.8 693.3 707.1

1.8 2.1 Transport 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8

71.6 71.6 Supplies and Services 77.5 77.8 78.6 79.4 79.4

357.7 357.7 Central Support Services 402.4 402.4 402.4 402.4 402.4

1,110.6 1,136.1 1,139.0 1,146.7 1,162.6 1,176.9 1,190.7

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-4.0 -4.0 Customer Receipts -4.0 -4.0 -4.0 -4.0 -4.0

-1,106.6 -1,106.6 Internal recharges -1,135.0 -1,135.0 -1,135.0 -1,135.0 -1,135.0

-1,110.6 -1,110.6 -1,139.0 -1,139.0 -1,139.0 -1,139.0 -1,139.0

0.0 25.5 Net Expenditure 0.0 7.7 23.6 37.9 51.7

Section 3b

The purpose of this section is to set out the detailed service budgets

Ensures compliance with the necessary legal and administrative requirements regarding decision 

making processes, in particular, those governing the provision of committee services and support 

for members.

Financial Services

Portfolio: Finance

The provision of financial management support and advice to officers and members, budget 

preparation and monitoring, treasury management, procurement support and advice, payment of 

creditors, invoicing of the council's customers and debt recovery.

Legal and Democratic Services

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

This budget covers all legal and conveyancing work carried out by the Council’s Legal Services 

13

Appendix 1

Page 143



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

66.6 64.6 Bought-in Services 73.8 75.2 75.2 75.2 75.2

1.8 1.8 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

68.4 66.4 73.8 75.2 75.2 75.2 75.2

Income

-68.4 -68.4 Internal recharges -73.8 -73.8 -73.8 -73.8 -73.8

-68.4 -68.4 -73.8 -73.8 -73.8 -73.8 -73.8

0.0 -2.0 Net Expenditure 0.0 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4

Direct Expenditure

1,250.4 1,265.6 Employees 1,279.8 1,315.2 1,351.3 1,379.1 1,407.0

18.9 17.7 Transport 18.9 18.9 18.9 18.9 18.9

177.0 189.8 Supplies and Services 164.3 165.2 166.0 167.8 167.8

28.0 6.8 Bought-in Services 28.6 29.2 29.7 30.8 30.8

645.0 645.0 Central Support Services 715.1 715.1 715.1 715.1 715.1

2,119.3 2,124.9 2,206.7 2,243.6 2,281.0 2,311.7 2,339.6

Income

-82.9 -103.7 Grants & Contributions -84.3 -84.6 -85.0 -85.3 -85.3

-2,108.3 -2,108.3 Internal recharges -2,195.2 -2,195.2 -2,195.2 -2,195.2 -2,195.2

-2,191.2 -2,212.0 -2,279.5 -2,279.8 -2,280.2 -2,280.5 -2,280.5

Capital Charges

72.0 72.0 Capital Charges 72.6 72.6 72.6 72.6 0.0

72.0 72.0 72.6 72.6 72.6 72.6 0.0

0.1 -15.1 Net Expenditure -0.2 36.4 73.4 103.8 59.1

Portfolio: Finance

Revenues and Benefits

The setting, billing, collection and recovery of Council Tax, the assessment of claims for Housing 

Benefit, the collection of National Non-Domestic Rates and the processing of transactions through 

the council’s bank accounts are carried out by staff in the Revenues and Benefits department. The 

staffing and administration costs of these activities are recorded here.

An independent audit of the council's procedures and practices to ensure best practice is followed.

Internal Audit

14

Appendix 1

Page 144



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

94.6 94.6 Employees 96.8 98.4 100.1 101.8 103.5

1.8 1.8 Transport 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9 1.9

0.6 0.6 Supplies and Services 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

104.3 104.3 Central Support Services 253.2 253.2 253.2 253.2 253.2

201.3 201.3 352.6 354.2 355.9 357.6 359.3

Income

-201.3 -201.3 Internal recharges -352.5 -352.5 -352.5 -352.5 -352.5

-201.3 -201.3 -352.5 -352.5 -352.5 -352.5 -352.5

0.0 0.0 Net Expenditure 0.1 1.7 3.4 5.1 6.8

Direct Expenditure

229.8 387.7 Employees 494.6 508.2 521.2 529.8 537.0

2.4 2.1 Transport 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.4

52.1 52.1 Supplies and Services 52.2 52.2 52.2 52.2 52.2

117.2 201.6 Central Support Services 319.6 319.6 319.6 319.6 319.6

401.5 643.5 868.8 882.4 895.4 904.0 911.2

Income

-401.4 -532.6 Internal recharges -865.4 -865.4 -865.4 -865.4 -865.4

0.0 -3.3 Customer Receipts -3.4 -3.4 -3.5 -3.6 -3.6

-401.4 -535.9 -868.8 -868.8 -868.9 -869.0 -869.0

0.1 107.6 Net Expenditure 0.0 13.6 26.5 35.0 42.2

Direct Expenditure

353.5 353.5 Employees 360.5 367.6 374.8 382.2 389.7

5.5 5.5 Transport 5.5 5.5 5.5 5.5 5.5

8.2 8.2 Supplies and Services 8.4 8.4 8.4 8.4 8.4

40.8 40.8 Central Support Services 60.8 60.8 60.8 60.8 60.8

408.0 408.0 435.2 442.3 449.5 456.9 464.4

Income

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-408.1 -408.1 Internal recharges -435.2 -435.2 -435.2 -435.2 -435.2

-408.1 -408.1 -435.2 -435.2 -435.2 -435.2 -435.2

-0.1 -0.1 Net Expenditure 0.0 7.1 14.3 21.7 29.2

Portfolio: Leader

The chief officers of the council - Chief Executive and Directors.

Employee Relations

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Support services around recruitment, employment law and other employee relations activity.

Management Team

Assistant Dir Resources

Portfolio: Finance

Assistant Director function for Resources

15

Appendix 1

Page 145



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

341.3 341.3 Central Support Services 350.7 350.7 350.7 350.7 350.7

341.3 341.3 350.7 350.7 350.7 350.7 350.7

Income

-65.8 -65.8 Grants & Contributions -65.8 -65.8 -65.8 -65.8 -65.8

-65.8 -65.8 -65.8 -65.8 -65.8 -65.8 -65.8

275.5 275.5 Net Expenditure 284.9 284.9 284.9 284.9 284.9

Direct Expenditure

51.7 51.7 Bought-in Services 51.7 51.7 51.7 51.7 51.7

1.9 1.9 Central Support Services 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

53.6 53.6 52.7 52.7 52.7 52.7 52.7

Income

-36.3 -36.3 Grants & Contributions -36.3 -36.3 -36.3 -36.3 -36.3

-36.3 -36.3 -36.3 -36.3 -36.3 -36.3 -36.3

17.3 17.3 Net Expenditure 16.4 16.4 16.4 16.4 16.4

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1,211.4 1,211.4 Central Support Services 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6

1,211.4 1,211.4 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6

1,211.4 1,211.4 Net Expenditure 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6 1,478.6

Portfolio: Finance

Democratic Management

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Council Tax Benefits

Portfolio: Finance

Housing Bens Local Scheme

With effect from 1st April 2013, the Council Tax Benefit Scheme, a national benefit scheme, was 

replaced by a Council Tax Reduction Scheme determined locally by this Council. The Reduction 

Scheme reduces Council Tax liability for those on low incomes and aims to protect those who are 

vulnerable. The Local Scheme, agreed by full Council on the 18/12/2012 and reviewed annually 

since, mirrors the Council Tax Benefit Scheme and those on low incomes should receive similar 

reductions under the new local scheme.

The statutory benefit scheme(s) disregard part of a war pension or war widow's pension but allow 

Local Authorities the discretion to disregard the whole of the pension.  This Council has resolved to 

adopt that  discretion and has introduced a local scheme.   Expenditure on the Local Scheme is 

financed in its entirety by the Council.

A wide description covers the officer time associated with advice and support to members, 

including the provision of committee services to the Council, the preparation of reports for Members 

together with all officer time spent supporting and advising Councillors.  Also includes the costs of 

maintaining certain statutory registers and the provision of information to members of the public in 

the exercise of statutory rights.

16

Appendix 1

Page 146



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

54.4 54.4 Central Support Services 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1

54.4 54.4 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1

54.4 54.4 Net Expenditure 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1 58.1

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

2.0 2.0 Bought-in Services 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

53.3 53.3 Central Support Services 80.3 80.3 80.3 80.3 80.3

55.3 55.3 82.3 82.3 82.3 82.3 82.3

55.3 55.3 Net Expenditure 82.3 82.3 82.3 82.3 82.3

Direct Expenditure

2.8 2.8 Supplies and Services 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8

360.1 360.1 Central Support Services 382.4 382.4 382.4 382.4 382.4

362.9 362.9 385.2 385.2 385.2 385.2 385.2

Income

-303.7 -303.7 Grants & Contributions -303.7 -303.7 -303.7 -303.7 -303.7

-21.5 -21.5 Customer Receipts -21.9 -22.2 -22.6 -22.6 -22.6

-325.2 -325.2 -325.6 -325.9 -326.3 -326.3 -326.3

37.7 37.7 Net Expenditure 59.6 59.3 58.9 58.9 58.9

Portfolio: Finance

Non-Domestic Rates are collected by the Council and portions are paid over to Central Government (50%) and Cumbria 

County Council (10%).  The rate poundage is set by the Secretary of State and the Rateable Value fixed by the Valuation 

Officer, an executive agency of Central Government.  The Council issues bills, arranges collection and recovery of the 

amounts due.  In recognition of the costs incurred by the Council in fulfilling its statutory duty the Government makes an 

allowance to cover the cost of collection. 

Portfolio: Leader

Corporate Management records the Chief Executive's  time on Corporate matters.

Corporate Finance

Portfolio: Finance

The allocation of corporate resources and cost of  preparation of statutory accounts

NNDR Cost of Collection

Corporate Management

17

Appendix 1

Page 147



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

435.8 431.3 Employees 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

435.8 431.3 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1

435.8 431.3 Net Expenditure 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1 324.1

Direct Expenditure

29.7 29.7 Supplies and Services 30.2 30.2 30.2 30.2 30.2

3.2 3.2 Council Tax Benefits 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2

639.8 639.8 Central Support Services 656.7 656.7 656.7 656.7 656.7

672.7 672.7 690.1 690.1 690.1 690.1 690.1

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-172.5 -172.5 Customer Receipts -175.9 -179.4 -182.8 -182.8 -182.8

-172.5 -172.5 -175.9 -179.4 -182.8 -182.8 -182.8

500.2 500.2 Net Expenditure 514.2 510.7 507.3 507.3 507.3

Direct Expenditure

18.3 18.3 Supplies and Services 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3

0.0 0.0 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3

18.3 18.3 Net Expenditure 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3 18.3

Portfolio: Finance

Subscriptions 

Portfolio: Finance

 The Council is responsible for the setting, billing,  collection and recovery of Council Tax.  This 

includes  issuing bills, applying and ensuring discounts and  exemptions are granted correctly and 

recovering  outstanding debts, if necessary with the assistance of  the courts, bailiffs and 

attachment of earnings.

Corporate subscription to organisations such as Local Government Association and North West 

Employers.

Unapportionable Pension Adjustment

Portfolio: Finance

Council Tax Cost of Collection

Contribution to pension funds for staff who have left  the authority.  The majority is paid to the 

Cumbria  pension fund but small payments are made to Greater Manchester pension fund.

18

Appendix 1

Page 148



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

11.8 11.8 Employees 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9

33.9 35.6 Transport 29.7 29.7 29.7 29.7 29.7

288.7 339.7 Supplies and Services 346.6 352.1 358.1 363.5 363.5

1.0 1.0 Members Allowances 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

62.9 77.3 Central Support Services 70.2 70.2 70.2 70.2 70.2

398.3 465.4 459.6 465.1 471.1 476.5 476.5

398.3 465.4 Net Expenditure 459.6 465.1 471.1 476.5 476.5

Direct Expenditure

15.3 15.3 Supplies and Services 15.3 15.3 15.3 15.3 15.3

18,904.5 18,904.5 Rent Allowances 15,704.5 15,704.5 15,704.5 15,704.5 15,704.5

520.9 520.9 Central Support Services 559.2 559.2 559.2 559.2 559.2

19,440.7 19,440.7 16,279.0 16,279.0 16,279.0 16,279.0 16,279.0

Income

-19,274.4 -19,274.4 Grants & Contributions -16,074.4 -16,074.4 -16,074.4 -16,074.4 -16,074.4

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1

-19,274.4 -19,274.4 -16,074.4 -16,074.5 -16,074.5 -16,074.5 -16,074.5

166.3 166.3 Net Expenditure 204.6 204.5 204.5 204.5 204.5

Portfolio: Finance

Rent Allowances

 Housing Benefit is a means tested social security  benefit for tenants on low incomes and those 

paying  rent to private landlords. The  Council assesses claims based on income, capital  and 

household details and reduces rent accounts  accordingly. The majority of Rent Allowance  

expenditure is financed by Central Government  subsidy and the Government also make a 

contribution  towards the Council's administration costs. Many restrictions are placed on the 

amount of rent  which may qualify for the allowance and rent allowance administration is subject to 

regular legislative change.

Members

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

This budget covers the cost of allowances, training,  travelling and subsistence to the Members of 

the  Council for carrying out their duties.

19

Appendix 1

Page 149



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

107.0 107.0 Rent Allowances 107.0 107.0 107.0 107.0 107.0

1.9 1.9 Central Support Services 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

108.9 108.9 108.0 108.0 108.0 108.0 108.0

Income

-107.0 -107.0 Grants & Contributions -107.0 -107.0 -107.0 -107.0 -107.0

-107.0 -107.0 -107.0 -107.0 -107.0 -107.0 -107.0

1.9 1.9 Net Expenditure 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

Direct Expenditure

-0.2 -0.2 Discretionary Rate Relief 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

13.5 13.5 Central Support Services 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1

13.3 13.3 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1

13.3 13.3 Net Expenditure 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1

Direct Expenditure

55.7 55.7 Premises 54.4 56.0 57.6 59.3 59.3

1.0 1.0 Central Support Services 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

56.7 56.7 55.4 57.0 58.6 60.3 60.3

Income

-41.7 -41.7 Grants & Contributions -41.7 -41.7 -41.7 -41.7 -41.7

-41.7 -41.7 -41.7 -41.7 -41.7 -41.7 -41.7

Capital Charges

1.9 1.9 Capital Charges 2.5 3.5 4.5 5.5 6.5

1.9 1.9 2.5 3.5 4.5 5.5 6.5

16.9 16.9 Net Expenditure 16.2 18.8 21.4 24.1 25.1

Portfolio: Finance

 The Council operates various policies for granting rate  relief to certain businesses and 

organisations including  sporting clubs, village halls, community centres, rural  village shops and 

post offices.  

District Lighting Expenses

Portfolio: Finance

The provision of footway lighting where it is not provided by individual Parish Councils.  The costs 

are charged to the Council Taxpayers of the relevant Parishes.  These are all repaired and 

maintained by Cumbria County Council's contractor.

Discretionary Housing Benefits

Portfolio: Finance

Discretionary Rate Relief

 In many cases statutory housing benefit does not meet the full rent of a claimant and on occasions 

paying the  shortfall can cause a tenant exceptional hardship.   There is a discretionary scheme 

available to the  Council to award additional payments in such  circumstances providing the local 

awards per annum  do not exceed a figure set by Central Government.   The expenditure is offset 

by Government grant.   The cost of administering the scheme are met by the  Council.

20

Appendix 1

Page 150



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 41.4 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

5.0 27.5 Premises 22.5 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

0.0 0.0 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

5.0 68.9 22.5 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

Income

0.0 -5.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 -5.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

5.0 63.9 Net Expenditure 22.5 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

Portfolio: Finance

Direct Expenditure

91.2 91.2 Supplies and Services 88.6 95.3 95.3 95.3 95.3

2.9 2.9 Central Support Services 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

94.1 94.1 90.6 97.3 97.3 97.3 97.3

94.1 94.1 Net Expenditure 90.6 97.3 97.3 97.3 97.3

Direct Expenditure

50.0 45.2 Supplies and Services 87.0 87.0 87.0 87.0 87.0

9.9 9.9 Central Support Services 13.3 13.3 13.3 13.3 13.3

59.9 55.1 100.3 100.3 100.3 100.3 100.3

59.9 55.1 Net Expenditure 100.3 100.3 100.3 100.3 100.3

 Minor items that do not fall within other budgets  including: Rating and Valuation Surveys, long service awards 

for  staff & one off costs of  voluntary redundancies and  early retirements.  

Portfolio: Finance

 This budget covers  costs of Statutory inspection including the staff costs  of responding to 

requests for information.

Bank Charges

Portfolio: Finance

 This heading records fees and commission payable to the Council's bankers together with treasury  

management costs.

Audit and Inspection

Other Items

The provision of footway lighting where it is not provided by individual Parish Councils.  The costs 

are charged to the Council Taxpayers of the relevant Parishes.  These are all repaired and 

maintained by Cumbria County Council's contractor.

21

Appendix 1

Page 151



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

5.6 5.6 Supplies and Services 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

0.0 0.0 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

5.6 5.6 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

5.6 5.6 Net Expenditure 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

3,367.3 3,624.6 Total Resources 3,750.3 3,779.6 3,869.2 3,949.0 3,944.0

Chairman's Allowance Civic Hospitality

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

This budget covers the costs arising from the position of Chairman of the Council when acting as 

civic head, e.g. Christmas cards, contribution towards the annual partners' networking dinner, 

Councillors' wreaths for remembrance day, contribution towards the annual Torchlight procession,  

donations and subscriptions to charities, etc.

22

Appendix 1

Page 152



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Performance and Innovation

Direct Expenditure

79.2 79.2 Employees 80.8 82.4 84.0 85.7 87.4

1.8 1.8 Transport 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.8

0.8 0.8 Supplies and Services 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9

86.8 86.8 Central Support Services 221.5 221.5 221.5 221.5 221.5

168.6 168.6 305.0 306.6 308.2 309.9 311.6

Income

-168.6 -168.6 Internal recharges -304.9 -304.9 -304.9 -304.9 -304.9

-168.6 -168.6 -304.9 -304.9 -304.9 -304.9 -304.9

0.0 0.0 Net Expenditure 0.1 1.7 3.3 5.0 6.7

Direct Expenditure

319.7 359.5 Employees 328.9 341.2 353.3 363.5 371.4

0.7 0.7 Transport 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

28.3 251.4 Supplies and Services 23.5 23.5 23.5 23.5 23.5

0.2 0.2 Bought-in Services 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

176.6 176.6 Central Support Services 327.7 327.7 327.7 327.7 327.7

525.5 788.4 681.0 693.3 705.4 715.6 723.5

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-525.4 -570.0 Internal recharges -681.0 -681.0 -681.0 -681.0 -681.0

-525.4 -570.0 -681.0 -681.0 -681.0 -681.0 -681.0

Capital Charges

0.0 0.0 Capital Charges 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 218.4 Net Expenditure 0.0 12.3 24.4 34.6 42.5

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Assistant Director function for Performance and Innovation

Customer Services

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

AD Performance and Innovation

This covers the contact centre, customer service and reception areas all stationery purchasing and confidential shredding.

23

Appendix 1

Page 153



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

692.0 718.6 Employees 786.0 742.4 754.3 769.2 784.4

14.6 14.8 Transport 14.6 14.6 14.6 14.6 14.6

327.6 340.6 Supplies and Services 361.4 361.4 361.4 361.4 361.4

36.5 36.5 Bought-in Services 36.5 36.5 36.5 36.5 36.5

126.5 126.5 Central Support Services 144.7 144.7 144.7 144.7 144.7

1,197.2 1,237.0 1,343.2 1,299.6 1,311.5 1,326.4 1,341.6

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-1,303.4 -1,314.0 Internal recharges -1,534.6 -1,516.5 -1,521.5 -1,527.6 -1,534.0

-1,303.4 -1,314.0 -1,534.6 -1,516.5 -1,521.5 -1,527.6 -1,534.0

Capital Charges

106.2 106.2 Capital Charges 191.4 228.4 229.3 218.6 222.0

106.2 106.2 191.4 228.4 229.3 218.6 222.0

0.0 29.2 Net Expenditure 0.0 11.5 19.3 17.4 29.6

Direct Expenditure

68.5 68.5 Employees 71.1 73.1 75.2 76.7 78.3

0.2 0.2 Transport 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

65.0 68.5 Supplies and Services 80.0 86.0 86.1 86.1 86.1

25.9 25.9 Central Support Services 27.3 27.3 27.3 27.3 27.3

159.6 163.1 178.6 186.6 188.8 190.3 191.9

Income

-6.1 -6.1 Customer Receipts -6.3 -6.4 -6.5 -6.6 -6.6

-153.4 -153.4 Internal recharges -172.3 -172.3 -172.3 -172.3 -172.3

-159.5 -159.5 -178.6 -178.7 -178.8 -178.9 -178.9

0.1 3.6 Net Expenditure 0.0 7.9 10.0 11.4 13.0

This covers all internal printing. This can be jobs printed on printers throughout the organisation or 

large complex print jobs in the print room. Some external jobs are printed. This also covers a design 

service for all corporate documents.

Printing and Graphic Design

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Information Services

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Covering the areas of Corporate Information Communication Technology for South Lakeland and 

for the Shared ICT Service with Eden DC.

24

Appendix 1

Page 154



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

604.5 429.9 Employees 844.9 341.2 350.5 358.1 367.2

6.6 6.6 Transport 6.7 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8

13.8 11.2 Supplies and Services 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0

399.3 314.8 Central Support Services 197.7 197.7 197.7 197.7 197.7

0.0 0.0 Customer Connect Non-employee 

Costs

1,518.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1,024.2 762.5 2,581.6 559.7 569.0 576.6 585.7

Income

-7.0 -15.0 Grants & Contributions -7.0 -7.0 -7.0 -7.0 -7.0

-5.7 -2.4 Customer Receipts -2.4 -2.4 -2.4 -2.4 -2.4

-1,011.4 -880.2 Internal recharges -1,053.9 -1,053.9 -1,053.9 -1,053.9 -1,053.9

-1,024.1 -897.6 -1,063.3 -1,063.3 -1,063.3 -1,063.3 -1,063.3

0.1 -135.1 Net Expenditure 1,518.3 -503.6 -494.3 -486.7 -477.6

Direct Expenditure

91.8 91.8 Employees 96.4 99.0 101.7 103.7 105.8

0.7 0.7 Transport 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

29.1 34.6 Supplies and Services 32.2 32.2 32.2 32.2 32.2

45.2 45.2 Central Support Services 57.2 57.2 57.2 57.2 57.2

166.8 172.3 186.5 189.1 191.8 193.8 195.9

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-3.4 -3.4 Customer Receipts -4.5 -4.5 -4.6 -4.7 -4.7

-3.4 -3.4 -4.5 -4.5 -4.6 -4.7 -4.7

163.4 168.9 Net Expenditure 182.0 184.6 187.2 189.1 191.2

Policy and Performance

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Provides all Strategic Policy and Performance on behalf of the Council.

This service includes the revenue costs of Customer Connect for 2018/19 and the staffing costs 

associated with the Customer Connect programme for 2019/20.

Corporate Communications

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Provides an effective Communications Service that  promotes and explains the work of the Council.

25

Appendix 1

Page 155



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

7.8 2.8 Supplies and Services 6.7 5.4 5.3 5.1 5.1

125.4 125.4 Central Support Services 124.5 124.5 124.5 124.5 124.5

133.2 128.2 131.2 129.9 129.8 129.6 129.6

133.2 128.2 Net Expenditure 131.2 129.9 129.8 129.6 129.6

Direct Expenditure

59.5 11.5 Supplies and Services 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5

425.5 504.0 Bought-in Services 402.4 346.4 341.4 341.4 341.4

102.7 88.3 Central Support Services 54.8 54.8 54.8 54.8 54.8

587.7 603.8 465.7 409.7 404.7 404.7 404.7

Capital Charges

254.0 254.0 Capital Charges 165.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

254.0 254.0 165.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

841.7 857.8 Net Expenditure 631.5 409.7 404.7 404.7 404.7

Direct Expenditure

54.2 54.2 Employees 57.0 59.4 61.9 63.9 65.2

0.0 0.0 Premises 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 Transport 0.1 2.5 2.5 0.1 0.1

175.5 201.6 Supplies and Services 172.0 263.1 188.1 295.5 175.5

77.2 77.2 Central Support Services 83.7 83.7 83.7 83.7 83.7

307.0 333.1 312.8 408.7 336.2 443.2 324.5

Income

-6.2 -12.7 Grants & Contributions -6.2 -176.2 -176.2 -206.2 -6.2

-6.2 -12.7 -6.2 -176.2 -176.2 -206.2 -6.2

300.8 320.4 Net Expenditure 306.6 232.5 160.0 237.0 318.3

The conduct of all elections: Parliamentary, County, District, Parish, Police & Crime Commissioner, 

Referenda, all by-elections and casual vacancies.

To investigate and implement community development actions including work of the Council 

strategic partnerships with the community and key stakeholders so that local needs  and opinions 

can influence, and be reflected in,  Council policies and actions.

Community Grants

Portfolio: Finance

Grants to Strategic Cultural Partnerships, Community Partnerships, and Community Arts Events

Elections

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Partnerships and Communities

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

26

Appendix 1

Page 156



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

10.9 10.9 Supplies and Services 10.9 10.9 10.9 10.9 10.9

18.7 18.7 Bought-in Services 18.7 18.7 18.7 18.7 18.7

29.7 29.7 Central Support Services 24.5 24.5 24.5 24.5 24.5

59.3 59.3 54.1 54.1 54.1 54.1 54.1

59.3 59.3 Net Expenditure 54.1 54.1 54.1 54.1 54.1

Direct Expenditure

79.7 79.7 Employees 83.9 87.4 91.2 94.2 96.1

0.1 0.1 Transport 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

97.6 116.4 Supplies and Services 100.6 96.5 96.3 96.2 96.2

49.1 49.1 Central Support Services 46.0 46.0 46.0 46.0 46.0

226.5 245.3 230.6 230.0 233.6 236.5 238.4

Income

-30.0 -30.0 Grants & Contributions -30.0 -30.0 -30.0 -30.0 -30.0

-1.7 -1.7 Customer Receipts -1.1 -0.7 -0.4 -0.4 -0.4

-31.7 -31.7 -31.1 -30.7 -30.4 -30.4 -30.4

194.8 213.6 Net Expenditure 199.5 199.3 203.2 206.1 208.0

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

28.5 28.5 Central Support Services 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6

28.5 28.5 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

28.5 28.5 Net Expenditure 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6 25.6

Safer Stronger

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

To contribute to the delivery of the South Lakeland  Crime and Disorder Reduction Plan in 

partnership with others.

The annual compilation and publication of the Register of  Electors, conduct of the rolling 

registration process and subsequent production of monthly updates to the Register, maintenance of 

all absent voting lists, lists of special category electors, staff and property databases.

Emergency Planning

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

To fulfil the requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act and our duty as a Category 1 Responder in 

the event  of an emergency.

Electoral Registration

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

27

Appendix 1

Page 157



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

10.0 10.0 Supplies and Services 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

25.6 25.6 Central Support Services 18.1 18.1 18.1 18.1 18.1

35.6 35.6 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1

35.6 35.6 Net Expenditure 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1

Direct Expenditure

50.0 50.0 Supplies and Services 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1.9 1.9 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

51.9 51.9 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

51.9 51.9 Net Expenditure 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1,809.5 1,980.3 Total Performance and Innovation 3,127.0 793.6 755.4 856.0 973.8

Carbon Change Programme Savings

Portfolio: Environment

Savings generated from, and future initiatives in support of, carbon emissions reduction.

Consultation

Portfolio: Leader

Corporate consultation with stakeholders and communities.

28

Appendix 1

Page 158



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Strategic Development

Direct Expenditure

136.1 94.7 Employees 99.0 101.0 103.1 105.2 107.3

0.0 0.0 Premises 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1.2 1.5 Transport 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

13.4 64.9 Supplies and Services 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.5

715.8 712.6 Bought-in Services 502.8 495.8 521.8 532.0 532.0

245.6 245.6 Central Support Services 429.1 429.1 429.1 429.1 429.1

1,112.1 1,119.3 1,045.6 1,040.6 1,068.7 1,081.0 1,083.1

Income

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-1,112.1 -1,112.1 Internal recharges -1,045.6 -1,045.6 -1,045.6 -1,045.6 -1,045.6

-1,112.1 -1,112.1 -1,045.6 -1,045.6 -1,045.6 -1,045.6 -1,045.6

0.0 7.2 Net Expenditure 0.0 -5.0 23.1 35.4 37.5

Direct Expenditure

50.8 50.8 Employees 51.7 52.8 53.8 54.9 56.0

0.6 0.6 Transport 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

15.4 15.4 Supplies and Services 15.4 15.4 15.4 15.4 15.4

5.1 5.1 Central Support Services 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1 6.1

71.9 71.9 73.8 74.9 75.9 77.0 78.1

Income

-0.6 -18.6 Customer Receipts -0.6 -0.6 -0.6 -0.6 -0.6

-71.3 -71.3 Internal recharges -73.3 -73.3 -73.3 -73.3 -73.3

-71.9 -89.9 -73.9 -73.9 -73.9 -73.9 -73.9

0.0 -18.0 Net Expenditure -0.1 1.0 2.0 3.1 4.2

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Internal Health and Safety Activity

Strategic Planning Admin

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

Asset Manager, and Facilities Manager administration function, and Property Services Contract for 

Health and Safety

29

Appendix 1

Page 159



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

120.9 120.9 Employees 129.4 135.9 140.2 146.0 149.0

226.7 294.5 Premises 230.2 237.2 245.2 254.7 254.7

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

21.8 21.8 Supplies and Services 21.9 21.9 21.9 21.9 21.9

171.0 171.0 Central Support Services 142.7 142.7 142.7 142.7 142.7

540.4 608.2 524.2 537.7 550.0 565.3 568.3

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-21.8 -21.8 Customer Receipts -8.3 -8.7 -9.1 -9.6 -9.6

-635.9 -635.9 Internal recharges -628.0 -628.0 -628.0 -628.0 -628.0

-657.7 -657.7 -636.3 -636.7 -637.1 -637.6 -637.6

Capital Charges

117.3 117.3 Capital Charges 112.2 112.2 112.2 112.2 112.2

117.3 117.3 112.2 112.2 112.2 112.2 112.2

0.0 67.8 Net Expenditure 0.1 13.2 25.1 39.9 42.9

Direct Expenditure

79.0 79.0 Employees 80.6 82.2 83.8 85.5 87.2

2.8 2.6 Transport 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9

0.6 0.6 Supplies and Services 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

109.8 109.8 Central Support Services 260.8 260.8 260.8 260.8 260.8

192.2 192.0 345.0 346.6 348.2 349.9 351.6

Income

-192.2 -192.2 Internal recharges -344.9 -344.9 -344.9 -344.9 -344.9

-192.2 -192.2 -344.9 -344.9 -344.9 -344.9 -344.9

0.0 -0.2 Net Expenditure 0.1 1.7 3.3 5.0 6.7

Offices

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

Running costs and maintenance of the Public offices for South Lakeland House/Lowther Street.

AD Strategic Development

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Assistant Director function for Strategic Development

30

Appendix 1

Page 160



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

733.1 733.1 Employees 698.1 718.5 740.2 756.4 771.8

7.8 8.5 Transport 7.9 7.9 7.9 7.9 7.9

8.1 8.1 Supplies and Services 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5 8.5

408.7 408.7 Central Support Services 498.6 498.6 498.6 498.6 498.6

1,157.7 1,158.4 1,213.1 1,233.5 1,255.2 1,271.4 1,286.8

Income

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-1,157.7 -1,157.7 Internal recharges -1,213.0 -1,213.0 -1,213.0 -1,213.0 -1,213.0

-1,157.7 -1,157.7 -1,213.0 -1,213.0 -1,213.0 -1,213.0 -1,213.0

Capital Charges

0.0 0.0 Capital Charges 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.7 Net Expenditure 0.1 20.5 42.2 58.4 73.8

Direct Expenditure

87.7 87.7 Employees 89.5 91.3 93.1 95.0 96.9

6.7 6.8 Transport 6.7 6.8 6.8 6.8 6.8

2.9 2.9 Supplies and Services 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9

119.3 119.3 Central Support Services 102.0 102.0 102.0 102.0 102.0

216.6 216.7 201.1 203.0 204.8 206.7 208.6

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

216.6 216.7 Net Expenditure 201.1 203.0 204.8 206.7 208.6

Building Control - Non-Chargeable

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

 Street Naming & Numbering - advice to the public - Statutory function to initiate, consult and advise 

developers, key services and individual property owners. Assistance to Development Control 

Group - Unauthorised building operations.

Community Invest. and Development

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

Administration functions for Development Management, Development Strategy and Development 

31

Appendix 1

Page 161



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

190.6 190.6 Employees 194.5 199.7 205.0 209.1 213.3

14.4 14.3 Transport 14.4 14.4 14.4 14.4 14.4

18.7 18.7 Supplies and Services 18.8 18.8 18.8 18.8 18.8

130.3 130.3 Central Support Services 142.2 142.2 142.2 142.2 142.2

354.0 353.9 369.9 375.1 380.4 384.5 388.7

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-329.7 -329.7 Customer Receipts -335.6 -342.3 -349.0 -355.9 -355.9

-329.7 -329.7 -335.6 -342.3 -349.0 -355.9 -355.9

24.3 24.2 Net Expenditure 34.3 32.8 31.4 28.6 32.8

Direct Expenditure

38.6 38.6 Employees 12.5 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

3.0 3.0 Transport 1.5 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

0.2 21.6 Supplies and Services 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

41.8 63.2 14.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3

41.8 63.2 Net Expenditure 14.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3

Portfolio: Finance

Community Housing Fund grants to support local groups and help them deliver affordable housing aimed at first-time buyers 

in response to the problem second homes can cause in reducing supply.

Building Regulations -  Administration and enforcement function of building regulations in 

construction, alterations and changes  of use, including examination of plans and site  inspection of 

work.

Building Control - Chargeable

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Community Housing Fund

32

Appendix 1

Page 162



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

10.7 13.0 Premises 10.5 10.5 10.5 10.5 10.5

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

4.8 4.8 Central Support Services 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9

15.5 17.8 16.4 16.4 16.4 16.4 16.4

Income

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Charges

20.0 20.0 Capital Charges 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0

20.0 20.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0

35.5 37.8 Net Expenditure 25.4 25.4 25.4 25.4 25.4

Direct Expenditure

30.2 30.2 Premises 34.2 34.7 35.1 35.6 35.6

174.0 174.0 Bought-in Services 174.0 174.0 174.0 174.0 174.0

11.0 11.0 Central Support Services 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2 4.2

215.2 215.2 212.4 212.9 213.3 213.8 213.8

Income

-441.7 -441.7 Customer Receipts -514.2 -521.7 -529.1 -536.7 -536.7

-441.7 -441.7 -514.2 -521.7 -529.1 -536.7 -536.7

-226.5 -226.5 Net Expenditure -301.8 -308.8 -315.8 -322.9 -322.9

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

This shows the maintenance and running costs for operating Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park and 

the corresponding income, and is managed on the Council's behalf by The Camping and 

Caravanning Club.

Conveniences

Portfolio: Environment

Maintains facilities that SLDC are responsible for (grant funding for community toilet scheme and 

strategic toilets is included within Community Grants).

Caravan Site

33

Appendix 1

Page 163



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

46.4 50.4 Employees 47.3 48.2 49.2 50.2 51.2

3.4 3.4 Transport 3.4 3.2 3.4 3.4 3.4

0.7 70.7 Supplies and Services 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

14.7 14.7 Central Support Services 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5 16.5

65.2 139.2 67.9 68.6 69.8 70.8 71.8

Income

0.0 -29.0 Grants and Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 -29.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Charges

0.0 0.0 REFCUS 80.0 80.0 80.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 0.0 0.0

65.2 110.2 Net Expenditure 147.9 148.6 149.8 70.8 71.8

Direct Expenditure

574.9 574.9 Employees 569.5 527.4 538.7 549.5 560.6

23.3 23.3 Transport 23.3 23.3 23.3 23.3 23.3

62.0 126.0 Supplies and Services 61.1 60.0 59.5 58.9 58.9

118.0 0.0 General 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

521.1 521.1 Central Support Services 576.4 576.4 576.4 576.4 576.4

1,299.3 1,245.3 1,230.3 1,187.1 1,197.9 1,208.1 1,219.2

Income

-743.3 -637.3 Customer Receipts -536.9 -552.5 -553.2 -553.8 -553.8

-743.3 -637.3 -536.9 -552.5 -553.2 -553.8 -553.8

556.0 608.0 Net Expenditure 693.4 634.6 644.7 654.3 665.4

Conservation Environment

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

Consider proposals for the restoration/improvement of  historic buildings in South Lakeland outside the National Parks. 

Undertake Conservation Area Appraisals and prepare   Conservation Area Management Plans for each of the  existing 

conservation areas in South Lakeland. Consider the designation of new conservation areas in  South Lakeland. Provide 

conservation services to other authorities where compatible with SLDC priorities.

Development Control

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

This service is concerned with guiding development within the District and providing advice to the public and developers 

across a whole range of planning matters.  It is responsible for determining planning and related  applications, the majority 

under delegated powers. For  major or more controversial applications  recommendations are made to members at the 

monthly Planning Committee meetings. The service also  undertakes the investigation and enforcement of  breaches of 

planning control and administers and  processes applications for works to protected trees  and the High hedges legislation.

34

Appendix 1

Page 164



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

10.0 60.0 Supplies and Services 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

5.8 5.8 Central Support Services 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9

15.8 65.8 15.9 15.9 15.9 15.9 15.9

Income

-11.0 -61.0 Customer Receipts -11.3 -11.5 -11.7 -11.9 -11.9

-11.0 -61.0 -11.3 -11.5 -11.7 -11.9 -11.9

4.8 4.8 Net Expenditure 4.6 4.4 4.2 4.0 4.0

Direct Expenditure

0.1 0.1 Employees 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.1 0.1 Supplies and Services 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

1.1 1.1 Central Support Services 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

1.3 1.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

1.3 1.3 Net Expenditure 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4

Direct Expenditure

2.8 2.8 Employees 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8

25.4 39.6 Premises 25.1 26.1 27.3 28.6 28.6

294.3 439.7 Supplies and Services 159.3 134.3 134.3 84.3 84.3

159.3 209.2 Central Support Services 221.9 221.9 221.9 221.9 221.9

481.8 691.3 409.1 385.1 386.3 337.6 337.6

Income

-4.0 -4.0 Grants & Contributions -4.0 -4.0 -4.0 -4.0 -4.0

-47.3 -47.3 Customer Receipts -48.3 -49.3 -49.9 -50.4 -50.4

-51.3 -51.3 -52.3 -53.3 -53.9 -54.4 -54.4

Capital Charges

48.2 48.2 Capital Charges/REFCUS 1,562.9 1,562.9 1,562.9 6.2 6.2

48.2 48.2 1,562.9 1,562.9 1,562.9 6.2 6.2

478.7 688.2 Net Expenditure 1,919.7 1,894.7 1,895.3 289.4 289.4

Economic Development

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

The Economic Development Service includes  - Web based Land and Premises Register for South  Lakeland  - Support to 

key local development agencies to promote growth in local companies. - Working with partners to develop new employment 

sites - Supporting programmes which invest in and improve  the District's key service centres. This also includes the Kendal 

Enterprise Centre.

Dangerous Structures

Portfolio: Environment

Statutory function including assessment of building structures considered to be a danger to the public, including site visits to 

secure or demolish buildings and structures - a statutory function to initiate assessment and notification  procedures to 

secure safety and protection of  buildings and people.

ECO Scheme

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Costs to support fixed term environmental schemes.

35

Appendix 1

Page 165



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

134.3 134.3 Employees 140.4 143.2 146.1 149.1 152.1

7.6 7.5 Transport 7.6 7.6 7.6 7.6 7.6

5.2 31.2 Supplies and Services 6.4 6.6 6.8 6.8 6.8

115.9 115.9 Central Support Services 99.6 99.6 99.6 99.6 99.6

263.0 288.9 254.0 257.0 260.1 263.1 266.1

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Charges

706.0 706.0 REFCUS 3,560.0 3,271.2 271.2 271.2 11.2

706.0 706.0 3,560.0 3,271.2 271.2 271.2 11.2

969.0 994.9 Net Expenditure 3,814.0 3,528.2 531.3 534.3 277.3

Direct Expenditure

195.3 230.3 Employees 201.8 207.9 214.3 218.2 222.1

33.4 78.4 Premises 31.5 33.0 34.6 36.3 36.3

0.6 0.9 Transport 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

49.5 14.5 Supplies and Services 49.6 49.6 49.6 49.6 49.6

4.5 4.5 Bought-in Services 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5

66.9 66.9 Central Support Services 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0 68.0

350.2 395.5 356.0 363.6 371.6 377.2 381.1

Income

-74.0 -74.0 Grants & Contributions -35.0 -35.0 -35.0 -35.0 -35.0

-194.3 -194.3 Customer Receipts -198.1 -201.9 -205.7 -209.6 -209.6

-268.3 -268.3 -233.1 -236.9 -240.7 -244.6 -244.6

Capital Charges

14.4 14.4 Capital Charges 15.9 15.9 15.9 15.9 15.9

14.4 14.4 15.9 15.9 15.9 15.9 15.9

96.3 141.6 Net Expenditure 138.8 142.6 146.8 148.5 152.4

Housing Enabling Role

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Town View Fields Hostel

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Statutory requirement to address homelessness. Provision of temporary accommodation for the  

homeless.  18 rooms. Staffed 24/7.

To enable new affordable homes to be provided for local people, including assistance with finding sites and securing 

planning permission.  The homes are provided by housing associations or the private sector. DFG grant and affordable 

housing capital grants are presented in this cost centre.

36

Appendix 1

Page 166



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

308.2 226.2 Employees 194.4 196.0 202.5 209.2 213.9

9.4 9.5 Transport 5.4 5.4 5.4 5.4 5.4

48.2 143.8 Supplies and Services 130.3 48.3 48.3 48.3 48.3

95.1 95.1 Central Support Services 85.8 85.8 85.8 85.8 85.8

460.9 474.6 415.9 335.5 342.0 348.7 353.4

Income

-90.7 -100.3 Grants & Contributions -93.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-10.8 -10.8 Customer Receipts -10.8 -10.8 -10.8 -10.8 -10.8

-101.5 -111.1 -104.0 -10.8 -10.8 -10.8 -10.8

359.4 363.5 Net Expenditure 311.9 324.7 331.2 337.9 342.6

Direct Expenditure

220.1 258.1 Employees 204.5 189.1 193.8 198.6 203.2

8.7 8.5 Transport 10.6 10.6 10.6 10.6 10.6

32.5 32.5 Supplies and Services 7.7 7.7 7.7 7.7 7.7

19.6 19.6 Central Support Services 42.7 42.7 42.7 42.7 42.7

280.9 318.7 265.5 250.1 254.8 259.6 264.2

Income

-4.3 -4.3 Customer Receipts -12.0 -4.5 -4.5 -4.6 -4.6

-43.2 -81.2 Internal recharges -15.1 -3.1 -3.1 -3.2 -3.2

-47.5 -85.5 -27.1 -7.6 -7.6 -7.8 -7.8

Capital Charges

661.0 661.0 REFCUS 661.0 661.0 661.0 603.0 603.0

661.0 661.0 661.0 661.0 661.0 603.0 603.0

894.4 894.2 Net Expenditure 899.4 903.5 908.2 854.8 859.4

Homelessness

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Carrying out the Council's statutory obligations with regard to homelessness.

Housing Standards

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Enforcement of housing standards and decency standards in the private sector. The private sector housing section is 

responsible for  operational activities in the Districts housing stock,  these consist of three main areas of work,  enforcement 

of housing standards, administering grants to improve  the stock and provide affordable units to rent, and  energy efficiency 

issues, including fuel poverty.

37

Appendix 1

Page 167



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

32.9 32.9 Employees 34.0 34.7 35.4 36.1 36.9

1.2 1.2 Transport 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

8.3 8.3 Supplies and Services 8.3 8.3 8.3 8.3 8.3

2.0 2.0 Bought-in Services 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

20.6 20.6 Central Support Services 26.3 26.3 26.3 26.3 26.3

65.0 65.0 71.8 72.5 73.2 73.9 74.7

Income

-42.0 -42.0 Customer Receipts -42.0 -42.0 -42.0 -42.0 -42.0

-42.0 -42.0 -42.0 -42.0 -42.0 -42.0 -42.0

Capital Charges

2.9 2.9 Capital Charges 2.9 2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0

2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 0.0 0.0 0.0

25.9 25.9 Net Expenditure 32.7 33.4 31.2 31.9 32.7

Direct Expenditure

66.8 66.8 Employees 70.4 72.6 74.9 77.3 78.9

0.0 0.0 Premises 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

8.0 8.0 Supplies and Services 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0

86.0 86.0 Bought-in Services 83.6 83.6 83.6 83.6 83.6

90.8 90.8 Central Support Services 111.9 111.9 111.9 111.9 111.9

251.6 251.6 273.9 276.1 278.4 280.8 282.4

Income

-250.0 -250.0 Customer Receipts -250.0 -250.0 -250.0 -250.0 -250.0

-250.0 -250.0 -250.0 -250.0 -250.0 -250.0 -250.0

1.6 1.6 Net Expenditure 23.9 26.1 28.4 30.8 32.4

Community Infrastructure Levy

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Costs and income related to administering the Community Infrastructure Levy.

Local Land Charges

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Registration of different types of land charge created by various Acts in the Council's statutory Local Land Charge Register 

and the completion of the  statutory Requisition for Search. Certificate and Enquiries of Local Authority (Con 29) usually 

submitted by solicitors.

38

Appendix 1

Page 168



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

274.5 274.5 Employees 271.3 277.9 284.7 290.5 296.4

4.0 3.8 Transport 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

57.2 111.1 Supplies and Services 91.3 57.3 57.3 57.3 57.3

169.8 169.8 Central Support Services 202.6 202.6 202.6 202.6 202.6

505.5 559.2 569.2 541.8 548.6 554.4 560.3

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Customer Receipts 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1

505.5 559.2 Net Expenditure 569.1 541.7 548.5 554.3 560.2

Direct Expenditure

59.6 59.6 Employees 51.8 53.6 55.6 57.0 58.4

71.9 95.4 Premises 69.4 69.8 70.3 50.3 50.3

1.4 1.4 Transport 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9

4.8 4.8 Supplies and Services 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.6 4.6

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

34.7 34.7 Central Support Services 33.4 33.4 33.4 33.4 33.4

172.4 195.9 165.3 167.5 170.0 151.2 152.6

Income

-201.2 -201.2 Customer Receipts -205.1 -209.1 -213.2 -196.7 -196.7

-201.2 -201.2 -205.1 -209.1 -213.2 -196.7 -196.7

Capital Charges

9.6 9.6 Capital Charges 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9

9.6 9.6 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9

-19.2 4.3 Net Expenditure -33.9 -35.7 -37.3 -39.6 -38.2

Local Plans

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

Maintaining the Local Development Framework (local plan)  for South  Lakeland. Deliver sites for new housing and 

employment development, plan for new infrastructure including support for CIL. Assist communities preparing neighbourhood 

plans. Policy input into major development proposals.

Markets

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

The management and promotion of all the indoor and outdoor markets in the District under SLDC control currently, Kendal 

and Ambleside. Ulverston markets transferred to Ulverston Community Enterprise during 2016/17.

39

Appendix 1

Page 169



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

4.3 74.6 Premises 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8

124.3 124.3 Supplies and Services 29.9 35.8 42.0 48.5 48.5

14.1 14.1 Central Support Services 17.5 17.5 17.5 17.5 17.5

142.7 213.0 52.2 58.1 64.3 70.8 70.8

Capital Charges

85.0 85.0 REFCUS 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

85.0 85.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

227.7 298.0 Net Expenditure 52.2 58.1 64.3 70.8 70.8

Income

-860.5 -860.5 Grants & Contributions -516.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-860.5 -860.5 -516.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-860.5 -860.5 Net Expenditure -516.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Direct Expenditure

123.2 123.2 Employees 130.5 134.9 139.6 142.3 145.1

115.1 174.6 Premises 129.7 131.8 134.0 95.0 95.0

0.9 0.6 Transport 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9

123.3 123.3 Supplies and Services 84.0 69.0 33.4 13.2 13.2

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

177.8 177.8 Central Support Services 114.0 114.0 114.0 114.0 114.0

540.3 599.5 459.1 450.6 421.9 365.4 368.2

Income

-122.3 -122.3 Customer Receipts -125.6 -129.1 -132.7 -94.9 -94.9

-106.7 -106.7 Internal recharges -108.1 -108.1 -108.1 -108.1 -108.1

-229.0 -229.0 -233.7 -237.2 -240.8 -203.0 -203.0

Capital Charges

105.0 105.0 Capital Charges 110.9 110.9 103.9 103.0 94.0

105.0 105.0 110.9 110.9 103.9 103.0 94.0

416.3 475.5 Net Expenditure 336.3 324.3 285.0 265.4 259.2

Public Halls

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

This budget includes the Kendal Town Hall, and grant funding for Ulverston Coronation Hall (Ulverston Coronation Hall was 

transferred to Ulverston Community Enterprise during 2016/17; grant funding for Grange Victoria Hall is included within 

Community Grants).

Museum

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

The cost of the Kendal Natural History Museum

New Homes

Portfolio: Housing People and Innovation

New Homes Bonus funding to be directed to affordable housing enabling, supporting neighbourhood planning and local 

infrastructure provision

40

Appendix 1

Page 170



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

599.5 -80.7 Premises 542.0 541.5 541.0 541.0 541.0

599.5 -80.7 542.0 541.5 541.0 541.0 541.0

599.5 -80.7 Net Expenditure 542.0 541.5 541.0 541.0 541.0

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

49.9 0.0 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

49.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

49.9 0.0 Net Expenditure 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Direct Expenditure

28.8 28.8 Employees 29.5 30.7 32.0 32.6 33.3

1.6 1.6 Transport 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6

20.2 20.2 Supplies and Services 20.2 20.2 20.2 20.2 20.2

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

49.1 49.1 Central Support Services 50.3 50.3 50.3 50.3 50.3

99.7 99.7 101.6 102.8 104.1 104.7 105.4

Income

-703.6 -703.6 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-703.6 -703.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-603.9 -603.9 Net Expenditure 101.6 102.8 104.1 104.7 105.4

Second Home Discounts

Portfolio: Finance

The Council uses its discretionary income from council tax on second homes, with a share of similar income  from Cumbria 

County Council, towards its corporate priorities in affordable Housing.

Kendal Regeneration

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

Project costs relating to Kendal Regeneration activities, which are fully funded from external contributions.

Planned Maintenance

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

This is the planned maintenance budget holding code for all council owned assets.

41

Appendix 1

Page 171



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

36.1 205.6 Premises 40.7 41.0 41.5 42.2 42.2

1.0 1.0 Supplies and Services 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

312.7 312.7 Central Support Services 268.3 268.3 268.3 268.3 268.3

349.8 519.3 310.0 310.3 310.8 311.5 311.5

Income

-151.1 -151.1 Customer Receipts -154.0 -156.9 -159.8 -160.3 -160.3

-151.1 -151.1 -154.0 -156.9 -159.8 -160.3 -160.3

Capital Charges

68.1 68.1 Capital Charges 32.3 49.9 69.9 69.9 69.9

68.1 68.1 32.3 49.9 69.9 69.9 69.9

266.8 436.3 Net Expenditure 188.3 203.3 220.9 221.1 221.1

Direct Expenditure

0.6 0.6 Premises 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7

Income

-26.1 -26.1 Customer Receipts -26.6 -27.2 -27.8 -27.8 -27.8

-26.1 -26.1 -26.6 -27.2 -27.8 -27.8 -27.8

Capital Charges

5.6 5.6 Capital Charges 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9

5.6 5.6 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9

-19.9 -19.9 Net Expenditure -22.0 -22.6 -23.2 -23.2 -23.2

Tourist Info Centres

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

Income and expenditure linked to tourist information centres owned (not directly operated) by the Council.

Sundry Properties

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

This head includes expenditure/income in respect of various Sundry Properties owned by the Council, not  used in direct 

service provision. Properties include: Royalty Cinema, Bowness,  Castle Dairy, Kendal,  Old Pool, Grange over Sands. This 

also includes Investment Properties.

42

Appendix 1

Page 172



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.4 1.1 Premises 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

7.6 7.6 Central Support Services 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3 3.3

8.0 8.7 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6 3.6

Income

-45.0 -45.0 Customer Receipts -47.0 -47.9 -48.8 -49.8 -49.8

-45.0 -45.0 -47.0 -47.9 -48.8 -49.8 -49.8

-37.0 -36.3 Net Expenditure -43.4 -44.3 -45.2 -46.2 -46.2

Direct Expenditure

2.7 2.7 Premises 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2

0.6 0.6 Supplies and Services 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

3.3 3.3 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8

Income

-7.0 -7.0 Customer Receipts -7.2 -7.3 -7.5 -7.6 -7.6

-7.0 -7.0 -7.2 -7.3 -7.5 -7.6 -7.6

-3.7 -3.7 Net Expenditure -3.4 -3.5 -3.7 -3.8 -3.8

4,065.6 4,175.4 Total Strategic Development 9,130.2 9,291.9 6,368.7 4,682.5 4,484.4

Industrial Units Tenants

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

This code covers the service charge income and expenditure for the industrial units we own in Sedbergh, Broughton and a 

road access in Ulverston

Industrial Units Landlord

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

This code covers the rent and management fee collected, any capital charges or recharges for the industrial units we own in 

Sedbergh, Broughton and a road access in Ulverston

43

Appendix 1

Page 173



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Neighbourhood Services

Direct Expenditure

1,420.2 1,312.7 Employees 1,326.5 1,363.6 1,399.6 1,430.4 1,459.6

0.0 0.0 Premises 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

68.8 67.5 Transport 67.1 67.2 67.3 67.3 67.3

47.9 47.9 Supplies and Services 49.1 49.7 50.4 50.4 50.4

605.9 605.9 Central Support Services 880.9 880.9 880.9 880.9 880.9

2,142.8 2,034.0 2,323.6 2,361.4 2,398.2 2,429.0 2,458.2

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-0.2 -0.2 Customer Receipts -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2

-2,142.6 -2,142.6 Internal recharges -2,323.4 -2,323.4 -2,323.4 -2,323.4 -2,323.4

-2,142.8 -2,142.8 -2,323.6 -2,323.6 -2,323.6 -2,323.6 -2,323.6

0.0 -108.8 Net Expenditure 0.0 37.8 74.6 105.4 134.6

Direct Expenditure

341.3 341.3 Employees 359.9 373.1 384.4 395.2 403.6

1,109.1 1,164.0 Premises 1,097.0 1,117.7 1,140.0 1,169.2 1,169.2

16.6 16.7 Transport 17.4 17.7 17.9 17.9 17.9

192.0 181.5 Supplies and Services 97.1 97.1 97.1 97.1 97.1

63.9 66.1 Bought-in Services 63.9 63.9 63.9 63.9 63.9

5.9 5.9 Other 7.9 7.9 7.9 7.9 7.9

1,228.8 1,228.8 Central Support Services 1,045.5 1,060.9 1,067.7 1,083.4 1,093.6

2,957.6 3,004.3 2,688.7 2,738.3 2,778.9 2,834.6 2,853.2

Income

-4,285.2 -4,381.0 Customer Receipts -4,553.4 -4,639.6 -4,727.5 -4,817.2 -4,817.2

-743.1 -743.7 Internal recharges -557.4 -566.3 -571.0 -580.9 -585.7

-5,028.3 -5,124.7 -5,110.8 -5,205.9 -5,298.5 -5,398.1 -5,402.9

Capital Charges

453.7 453.7 Capital Charges 485.4 446.5 425.8 417.1 376.5

453.7 453.7 485.4 446.5 425.8 417.1 376.5

-1,617.0 -1,666.7 Net Expenditure -1,936.7 -2,021.1 -2,093.8 -2,146.4 -2,173.2

Car Parks

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

The provision of car parking throughout the district including maintenance, cash collection and day to day administration.

Community Services

Portfolio: Health and Wellbeing

Assistant Director function for Neighbourhood Services and admin functions for Community & Leisure, Streetscene and 

Public Protection

44

Appendix 1

Page 174



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

1.1 1.1 Premises 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

2.7 42.7 Supplies and Services 12.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7

2.9 2.9 Central Support Services 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

6.7 46.7 14.9 4.9 4.9 4.9 4.9

Income

-1.8 -1.8 Customer Receipts -1.8 -1.9 -1.9 -1.9 -1.9

-1.8 -1.8 -1.8 -1.9 -1.9 -1.9 -1.9

4.9 44.9 Net Expenditure 13.1 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

Direct Expenditure

41.0 41.0 Employees 40.7 41.1 41.9 42.8 43.7

204.6 225.0 Premises 207.5 212.0 216.5 218.2 218.2

2.2 2.2 Transport 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

15.1 15.1 Supplies and Services 15.1 15.1 15.1 15.1 15.1

26.8 26.8 Central Support Services 26.3 26.5 26.6 26.7 26.8

289.7 310.1 291.8 296.9 302.3 305.0 306.0

Income

-224.5 -224.7 Customer Receipts -228.9 -233.4 -237.8 -242.2 -242.2

-224.5 -224.7 -228.9 -233.4 -237.8 -242.2 -242.2

Capital Charges

9.7 9.7 Capital Charges 17.9 17.9 17.9 17.9 17.9

9.7 9.7 17.9 17.9 17.9 17.9 17.9

74.9 95.1 Net Expenditure 80.8 81.4 82.4 80.7 81.7

Cemeteries

Portfolio: Environment

This is the statutory function of providing and regulating cemeteries and burial services throughout the District. Also, 

maintaining those Churchyards which have  been closed for further burials, by Order in Council,  and subsequently passed to 

the District Council.

Community Leisure

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

This includes the Windermere Sports Centre, Community Leisure Services and Sports 

45

Appendix 1

Page 175



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

3.0 3.0 Premises 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.2

0.8 0.8 Supplies and Services 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6

6.2 6.2 Central Support Services 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3 6.3

10.0 10.0 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1

10.0 10.0 Net Expenditure 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1 10.1

Direct Expenditure

2.3 2.3 Supplies and Services 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3 2.3

40.1 40.1 Central Support Services 35.5 35.5 35.5 35.5 35.5

42.4 42.4 37.8 37.8 37.8 37.8 37.8

42.4 42.4 Net Expenditure 37.8 37.8 37.8 37.8 37.8

Direct Expenditure

0.2 0.2 Employees 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

117.8 202.1 Premises 116.9 120.6 124.4 128.4 128.4

0.2 0.2 Transport 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

9.2 9.2 Supplies and Services 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2

94.6 94.6 Central Support Services 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.4 91.4

222.0 306.3 217.9 221.6 225.4 229.4 229.4

Income

-2.2 -2.2 Customer Receipts -2.4 -2.5 -2.7 -2.9 -2.9

-236.5 -236.5 Internal recharges -230.6 -234.1 -237.8 -241.6 -241.6

-238.7 -238.7 -233.0 -236.6 -240.5 -244.5 -244.5

Capital Charges

16.8 16.8 Capital Charges 15.1 15.1 15.1 15.1 15.1

16.8 16.8 15.1 15.1 15.1 15.1 15.1

0.1 84.4 Net Expenditure 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

Contaminated Land

Portfolio: Environment

The identification and remediation of contaminated land, through inspection and enforcing roles.

SLDC Depots

Portfolio: Environment

There are three Depots.  They are Canal Head Kendal,  North Lonsdale Road, Ulverston and 

Ecclerigg depot  in Windermere.

Coast Protection

Portfolio: Environment

The protection of the coastline from erosion.  The provision of flood defence materials to the public and undertaking an 

assessment of the risk from  coastal flooding and erosion.

46

Appendix 1

Page 176



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

40.7 40.7 Employees 41.5 42.3 43.2 44.1 45.0

0.3 0.3 Supplies and Services 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

25.4 25.4 Central Support Services 26.4 26.4 26.4 26.4 26.4

66.4 66.4 68.2 69.0 69.9 70.8 71.7

66.4 66.4 Net Expenditure 68.2 69.0 69.9 70.8 71.7

Direct Expenditure

1.0 1.0 Employees 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

6.0 6.0 Supplies and Services 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0

205.8 205.8 Central Support Services 222.7 222.7 222.7 222.7 222.7

212.8 212.8 229.7 229.7 229.7 229.7 229.7

Income

-0.2 -0.2 Customer Receipts -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2

-0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2

212.6 212.6 Net Expenditure 229.5 229.5 229.5 229.5 229.5

Events

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

This account provides assistance to promote Arts & Events in the District. Officers also deliver 

actions  within the Arts Strategy Action Plan.

Food Safety

Portfolio: Environment

Regulation and improvement of food hygiene and food  safety in the District.  Responding to requests for service and 

investigation of food complaints. Investigation and control of infectious diseases, particularly food poisoning and viral 

outbreaks associated with food.

47

Appendix 1

Page 177



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

4.8 4.8 Employees 4.4 4.6 4.8 5.0 5.1

5.1 2.1 Premises 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 3.3 Supplies and Services 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

252.0 252.0 Central Support Services 237.1 237.1 237.1 237.1 237.1

262.2 262.2 246.9 247.1 247.3 247.5 247.6

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Charges

41.4 41.4 Capital Charges 37.9 37.9 37.9 37.9 37.9

41.4 41.4 37.9 37.9 37.9 37.9 37.9

303.6 303.6 Net Expenditure 284.8 285.0 285.2 285.4 285.5

Direct Expenditure

233.6 233.6 Employees 239.3 248.4 257.9 263.8 269.1

0.0 0.0 Premises 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

9.0 9.0 Transport 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0

22.6 21.6 Supplies and Services 22.7 22.7 22.7 22.7 22.7

66.1 66.1 Central Support Services 64.4 64.4 64.4 64.4 64.4

331.3 330.3 335.4 344.5 354.0 359.9 365.2

Income

-134.8 -114.8 Grants & Contributions -117.4 -120.1 -122.7 -122.7 -122.7

-201.4 -201.4 Internal Recharge -222.9 -229.3 -231.4 -237.2 -242.5

-336.2 -316.2 -340.3 -349.4 -354.1 -359.9 -365.2

Capital Charges

4.8 4.8 Capital Charges 4.8 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0

4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0

-0.1 18.9 Net Expenditure -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.0

Flood Warning

Portfolio: Environment

Car Park Enforcement

Portfolio: Economy and Assets

The management and enforcement of off-street car parks, and income received from parking penalties.  Net income from 

penalties is recharged internally to individual car parks.

The provision of life saving equipment, inland flood warning and relief coastal flood warning Also replace damaged or lost life 

belts as reported.  For 2017/18 includes the administration and payment of Property Resilience Grants following the 

December 2015 floods.

48

Appendix 1

Page 178



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

1.5 1.5 Employees 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

0.9 0.9 Premises 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9

14.9 14.9 Supplies and Services 14.9 14.9 14.9 14.9 14.9

256.1 256.1 Central Support Services 274.5 274.5 274.5 274.5 274.5

273.4 273.4 291.8 291.8 291.8 291.8 291.8

Income

-14.6 -14.6 Customer Receipts -14.6 -14.6 -14.6 -14.6 -14.6

-14.6 -14.6 -14.6 -14.6 -14.6 -14.6 -14.6

258.8 258.8 Net Expenditure 277.2 277.2 277.2 277.2 277.2

Direct Expenditure

0.5 0.5 Employees 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

151.5 151.5 Central Support Services 160.1 160.1 160.1 160.1 160.1

152.0 152.0 160.6 160.6 160.6 160.6 160.6

152.0 152.0 Net Expenditure 160.6 160.6 160.6 160.6 160.6

Health Safety

Portfolio: Environment

The enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relating to Health and Safety.

Noise Air Water Pollution

Portfolio: Environment

Executing statutory functions in respect of Environmental Protection, including Authorisation of Prescribed Processes under 

Local Authority Pollution prevention.  Control the Air Quality Strategy, investigation and abatement of nuisances such as  

noise.

49

Appendix 1

Page 179



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

26.0 66.4 Premises 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1 28.1

6.5 6.5 Supplies and Services 6.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5

239.1 239.1 Bought-in Services 238.4 238.4 238.4 238.4 238.4

113.5 113.5 Central Support Services 109.6 109.6 109.6 109.6 109.6

385.1 425.5 382.6 377.6 377.6 377.6 377.6

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-21.2 -30.8 Customer Receipts -21.1 -21.5 -21.9 -22.3 -22.3

-21.2 -30.8 -21.1 -21.5 -21.9 -22.3 -22.3

Capital Charges

472.5 472.5 Capital Charges 657.1 493.2 677.2 677.2 677.2

472.5 472.5 657.1 493.2 677.2 677.2 677.2

836.4 867.2 Net Expenditure 1,018.6 849.3 1,032.9 1,032.5 1,032.5

Direct Expenditure

223.6 223.6 Employees 248.8 254.2 259.6 265.2 270.9

96.8 132.5 Premises 97.1 98.3 99.5 100.7 100.7

21.1 21.1 Transport 21.6 21.6 21.7 21.7 21.7

22.5 22.5 Supplies and Services 22.6 22.6 22.6 22.6 22.6

1.3 1.3 Bought-in Services 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

328.0 328.0 Central Support Services 314.6 314.6 314.6 314.6 314.6

693.3 729.0 705.3 711.9 718.6 725.4 731.1

Income

-1,425.5 -1,425.5 Customer Receipts -1,459.5 -1,492.6 -1,518.6 -1,544.2 -1,544.2

-6.0 -6.0 Internal recharges -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2 -6.2

-1,431.5 -1,431.5 -1,465.7 -1,498.8 -1,524.8 -1,550.4 -1,550.4

Capital Charges

93.4 93.4 Capital Charges/REFCUS 85.5 85.5 85.5 66.5 63.4

93.4 93.4 85.5 85.5 85.5 66.5 63.4

-644.8 -609.1 Net Expenditure -674.9 -701.4 -720.7 -758.5 -755.9

Lake Windermere

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

Warden Service of Lake Windermere.  Management of Moorings and Encroachments.  Provision of Slipway and General 

Lake Service (Rescues etc.)

Leisure Centres

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

Kendal Leisure Centre: The Centre's facilities include:- Multi purpose sport hall/theatre, gymnasium, 25m x 6 lane swimming 

pool, bar, cafeteria, squash courts, sauna, solarium. Ulverston Leisure Centre: The Complex facilities include: All weather 

multi use sports pitch, swimming pool, fitness unit, indoor and outdoor tennis courts. Windermere Outdoor Adventure Centre: 

A water sports centre based at Bowness-on- Windermere providing tuition in a range of activities.

50

Appendix 1

Page 180



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

8.0 8.0 Supplies and Services 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0

98.5 98.5 Central Support Services 107.2 107.2 107.2 107.2 107.2

106.5 106.5 115.2 115.2 115.2 115.2 115.2

Income

-103.0 -103.0 Customer Receipts -104.7 -106.5 -108.4 -108.4 -108.4

-103.0 -103.0 -104.7 -106.5 -108.4 -108.4 -108.4

3.5 3.5 Net Expenditure 10.5 8.7 6.8 6.8 6.8

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

3.2 4.2 Supplies and Services 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2 3.2

41.8 41.8 Central Support Services 46.3 46.3 46.3 46.3 46.3

45.0 46.0 49.5 49.5 49.5 49.5 49.5

Income

-18.3 -18.3 Customer Receipts -18.6 -18.9 -19.2 -19.2 -19.2

-18.3 -18.3 -18.6 -18.9 -19.2 -19.2 -19.2

26.7 27.7 Net Expenditure 30.9 30.6 30.3 30.3 30.3

Miscellaneous Licences

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relating to Animal Boarding, Zoos, Riding Establishment, 

Street Trading, etc

Hackney Carriage Licences

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relating to hackney carriages, private hire vehicles, drivers 

and operators.

51

Appendix 1

Page 181



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.2 Supplies and Services 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2

116.6 116.6 Central Support Services 121.9 121.9 121.9 121.9 121.9

116.8 116.8 122.1 122.1 122.1 122.1 122.1

Income

-194.1 -194.1 Customer Receipts -197.9 -202.1 -206.5 -206.5 -206.5

-194.1 -194.1 -197.9 -202.1 -206.5 -206.5 -206.5

-77.3 -77.3 Net Expenditure -75.8 -80.0 -84.4 -84.4 -84.4

Direct Expenditure

0.6 0.6 Employees 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Supplies and Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

23.2 23.2 Central Support Services 25.3 25.3 25.3 25.3 25.3

23.8 23.8 25.9 25.9 25.9 25.9 25.9

Income

-20.8 -20.8 Customer Receipts -21.2 -21.7 -22.1 -22.1 -22.1

-20.8 -20.8 -21.2 -21.7 -22.1 -22.1 -22.1

3.0 3.0 Net Expenditure 4.7 4.2 3.8 3.8 3.8

Licensing Act

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council conditions relating to Liquor Licences.

Gambling Licensing

Portfolio: Culture and Leisure

Licensing and enforcement of legislation and Council  conditions relating to gambling.

52

Appendix 1

Page 182



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

1.6 1.6 Employees 1.7 1.7 1.8 1.8 1.8

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

13.1 26.4 Supplies and Services 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0

112.4 112.4 Central Support Services 100.5 100.5 100.5 100.5 100.5

127.1 140.4 115.2 115.2 115.3 115.3 115.3

Income

0.0 0.0 Grants & Contributions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

-2.0 -2.0 Customer Receipts -2.0 -2.0 -2.0 -2.0 -2.0

-2.0 -2.0 -2.0 -2.0 -2.0 -2.0 -2.0

125.1 138.4 Net Expenditure 113.2 113.2 113.3 113.3 113.3

Direct Expenditure

186.3 186.3 Employees 170.7 167.3 170.7 174.2 177.8

687.4 774.7 Premises 754.9 768.8 783.1 802.8 803.8

10.6 10.7 Transport 10.8 10.8 10.8 10.8 10.8

51.2 59.7 Supplies and Services 47.6 46.6 45.5 45.5 45.5

3.8 3.8 Bought-in Services 3.3 2.9 2.7 2.6 2.6

158.4 158.4 Central Support Services 108.1 108.1 108.1 108.1 108.1

1,097.7 1,193.6 1,095.4 1,104.5 1,120.9 1,144.0 1,148.6

Income

-6.6 -10.9 Grants & Contributions -6.6 -6.6 -6.6 -6.6 -6.6

-42.4 -69.7 Customer Receipts -67.2 -68.1 -68.9 -69.7 -69.7

-5.5 -5.5 Internal recharges -7.8 -8.1 -8.3 -8.4 -8.6

-54.5 -86.1 -81.6 -82.8 -83.8 -84.7 -84.9

Capital Charges

167.0 167.0 Capital Charges 135.4 68.0 64.5 64.5 56.9

167.0 167.0 135.4 68.0 64.5 64.5 56.9

1,210.2 1,274.5 Net Expenditure 1,149.2 1,089.7 1,101.6 1,123.8 1,120.6

Parks

Portfolio: Environment

Primarily the costs of parks and open spaces under the Council's control. 200 Hectares (495 acres)  Play area inspection, 

and maintenance and repair by a dedicated member of staff. Provision and letting of allotment site at Ulverston

Environmental Health Other

Portfolio: Environment

This budget includes staffing costs for Public Burials and Health Promotion

53

Appendix 1

Page 183



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

15.5 15.5 Employees 11.4 10.3 10.5 10.7 10.9

36.9 52.2 Premises 38.9 40.2 41.5 41.6 41.6

0.0 0.0 Transport 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.3 0.3 Supplies and Services 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3

12.9 12.9 Central Support Services 16.6 16.7 16.8 16.8 16.9

65.6 80.9 67.2 67.5 69.1 69.4 69.7

Income

-3.7 -3.7 Customer Receipts -3.7 -3.7 -3.7 -3.8 -3.8

-3.7 -3.7 -3.7 -3.7 -3.7 -3.8 -3.8

Capital Charges

197.0 197.0 Capital Charges 216.6 66.8 68.8 70.8 72.8

197.0 197.0 216.6 66.8 68.8 70.8 72.8

258.9 274.2 Net Expenditure 280.1 130.6 134.2 136.4 138.7

Direct Expenditure

9.2 9.2 Premises 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2

20.4 20.4 Central Support Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

29.6 29.6 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2

Capital Charges

5.8 5.8 Capital Charges 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

5.8 5.8 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1

35.4 35.4 Net Expenditure 10.3 10.3 10.3 10.3 10.3

Street Furniture

Portfolio: Environment

To supply and fix street nameplates.

Recreation Grounds

Portfolio: Environment

This includes all sports and general recreation ground maintenance and development, including 

Jubilee fields and Yewbarrow.

54

Appendix 1

Page 184



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

752.2 635.4 Employees 653.7 678.2 703.3 719.8 735.6

318.0 302.7 Transport 338.9 345.0 350.7 357.2 358.5

62.6 62.6 Supplies and Services 63.0 63.0 63.0 63.0 63.0

51.4 31.4 Bought-in Services 32.8 34.2 35.6 37.0 37.0

280.5 280.5 Central Support Services 289.1 290.2 291.3 292.5 292.5

1,464.7 1,312.6 1,377.5 1,410.6 1,443.9 1,469.5 1,486.6

Income

-26.6 -6.6 Customer Receipts -6.6 -6.6 -6.7 -6.7 -6.7

-111.5 -111.5 Internal recharges -118.3 -118.3 -118.3 -118.3 -118.3

-138.1 -118.1 -124.9 -124.9 -125.0 -125.0 -125.0

Capital Charges

39.3 39.3 Capital Charges 140.4 140.4 140.5 140.5 105.1

39.3 39.3 140.4 140.4 140.5 140.5 105.1

1,365.9 1,233.8 Net Expenditure 1,393.0 1,426.1 1,459.4 1,485.0 1,466.7

Direct Expenditure

40.0 55.0 Supplies and Services 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0 40.0

18.8 18.8 Central Support Services 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9

58.8 73.8 51.9 51.9 51.9 51.9 51.9

Income

-40.0 -55.0 Customer Receipts -40.0 -40.0 -40.0 -40.0 -40.0

-40.0 -55.0 -40.0 -40.0 -40.0 -40.0 -40.0

Capital Charges

0.0 0.0 Capital Charges 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

18.8 18.8 Net Expenditure 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9 11.9

Street Cleansing

Portfolio: Environment

Maintaining clean streets.  The provision, maintenance and emptying of litter  bins (approximately 945) throughout the 

District. Emptying frequency depends on location & season. Street sweeping and litter picking.  The service provides for the 

collection and disposal of abandoned vehicles.

Bulky Waste Collection

Portfolio: Environment

The Council arranges for the collection of bulky household waste, for 2017/18 the costs and income relating to this service 

are included in the main waste collection service

55

Appendix 1

Page 185



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

35.2 35.2 Supplies and Services 35.9 36.7 37.6 38.4 38.4

8.8 8.8 Central Support Services 5.3 5.3 5.3 5.3 5.3

44.0 44.0 41.2 42.0 42.9 43.7 43.7

Income

-2.2 -2.2 Customer Receipts -1.0 -1.0 -1.0 -1.0 -1.0

-2.2 -2.2 -1.0 -1.0 -1.0 -1.0 -1.0

Capital Charges

1.4 1.4 Capital Charges 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

1.4 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

43.2 43.2 Net Expenditure 40.2 41.0 41.9 42.7 42.7

Kerbside Waste Collection, Recycling and Disposal

Direct Expenditure

1,884.4 2,237.8 Employees 2,449.8 2,547.8 2,649.8 2,738.6 2,818.7

1,007.4 1,007.7 Transport 1,001.5 1,024.0 1,045.4 1,070.9 1,074.6

620.7 644.4 Supplies and Services 643.1 665.2 688.3 712.2 712.2

0.0 0.0 Bought-in Services 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

115.9 -13.2 Other 22.8 23.3 23.7 24.4 24.4

581.2 581.2 Central Support Services 743.8 746.0 748.2 750.5 750.5

4,209.6 4,457.9 4,861.0 5,006.3 5,155.4 5,296.6 5,380.4

Income

-1,239.0 -1,239.0 Grants & Contributions -1,276.2 -1,314.5 -1,353.9 -1,394.5 -1,394.5

-299.5 -300.1 Customer Receipts -304.5 -309.5 -314.6 -316.3 -316.3

-10.8 -10.8 Internal Recharges -13.0 -13.0 -13.0 -13.0 -13.0

-1,549.3 -1,549.9 -1,593.7 -1,637.0 -1,681.5 -1,723.8 -1,723.8

Capital Charges

707.3 707.3 Capital Charges 675.7 834.4 865.0 870.8 895.3

707.3 707.3 675.7 834.4 865.0 870.8 895.3

3,367.6 3,615.3 Net Expenditure 3,943.0 4,203.7 4,338.9 4,443.6 4,551.9

The collection of domestic waste on an alternate week basis from 52,000 properties throughout South Lakeland. Fortnightly 

collection from the kerbside of waste for recycling. This includes paper, cardboard, glass, cans, plastic and green waste.  As 

part of its domestic service the Council arranges for collection of clinical waste.

Dog Control

Portfolio: Environment

The statutory service relates to the collection of stray dogs.

Portfolio: Environment

56

Appendix 1

Page 186



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

182.4 152.4 Supplies and Services 185.9 189.5 193.2 197.0 197.0

60.7 60.7 Central Support Services 70.7 70.7 70.7 70.7 70.7

243.1 213.1 256.6 260.2 263.9 267.7 267.7

Income

-144.8 -144.8 Grants & Contributions -149.2 -153.7 -158.3 -163.0 -163.0

-144.8 -144.8 -149.2 -153.7 -158.3 -163.0 -163.0

Capital Charges

19.0 19.0 Capital Charges 16.1 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1

19.0 19.0 16.1 14.1 14.1 14.1 14.1

117.3 87.3 Net Expenditure 123.5 120.6 119.7 118.8 118.8

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Employees 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

2.8 5.4 Transport 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9 2.9

18.6 28.6 Supplies and Services 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6 18.6

112.8 112.8 Central Support Services 101.5 101.5 101.5 101.5 101.5

134.2 146.8 123.0 123.0 123.0 123.0 123.0

Income

-70.4 -83.2 Customer Receipts -71.7 -73.0 -74.3 -75.6 -75.6

-70.4 -83.2 -71.7 -73.0 -74.3 -75.6 -75.6

Capital Charges

2.0 2.0 Capital Charges 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

65.8 65.6 Net Expenditure 53.3 52.0 48.7 47.4 47.4

Waste Recycling

Portfolio: Environment

This service utilises a well established network Bring Sites, collecting a variety of materials: glass, 

paper, drinks cans, plastic and cardboard  etc.

Water Supply and Pollution

Portfolio: Environment

Sampling at commercial and domestic premises of private water supplies. Organising the analysis 

of the water and acting upon those that fail.  Advice on water safety and quality. Charges are made 

for sampling and analysis.

57

Appendix 1

Page 187



2018/19

Approved

£000

2018/19

Current

£000

2019/20

£000

2020/21

£000

2021/22

£000

2022/23

£000

2023/24

£000

Direct Expenditure

251.9 252.7 Employees 243.5 248.8 254.2 259.8 264.7

301.4 355.2 Transport 321.1 326.7 332.6 338.9 338.9

53.6 57.6 Supplies and Services 53.7 53.7 53.7 53.7 53.7

112.9 112.9 Central Support Services 110.8 111.0 111.3 111.6 111.6

719.8 778.4 729.1 740.2 751.8 764.0 768.9

Income

-74.9 -83.8 Customer Receipts -80.5 -86.1 -91.9 -98.1 -98.1

-659.1 -659.1 Internal recharges -657.8 -663.4 -666.4 -672.4 -677.3

-734.0 -742.9 -738.3 -749.5 -758.3 -770.5 -775.4

Capital Charges

14.3 14.3 Capital Charges 9.2 9.2 6.4 6.4 6.4

14.3 14.3 9.2 9.2 6.4 6.4 6.4

0.1 49.8 Net Expenditure 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1

6,264.4 6,564.9 Total Neighbourhood Services 6,657.0 6,480.7 6,784.9 6,877.7 6,973.8

Other GF Items

Direct Expenditure

0.0 0.0 Unallocated growth 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Net Expenditure 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 Total Other GF Items 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

15,507.0 16,345.2 Total Service Expenditure 22,664.5 20,345.8 17,778.2 16,365.2 16,376.0

Maintains SLDC's vehicle fleet, carrying out safety inspections and ensuring they are available in 

delivering services.

Transport

Portfolio: Environment

58

Appendix 1

Page 188



Section 3c

Revenue Pressures

Scheme Portfolio AD area Description 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Microsoft 

Licenses

Housing, 

People and 

Innovation

Performance 

and Innovation

Enterprise Microsoft licence fee 

increase.
20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

Supporting 

people grant

Housing, 

People and 

Innovation

Strategic 

Development

Change to block funding for supporting 

people from the county council - 

previously was spot funding, resulting 

in a reduction in income.

39,000 39,000 39,000 39,000 39,000

Telephony

Housing, 

People and 

Innovation

Performance 

and Innovation

Previous year's telephony budget 

reductions not achievable. Increase in 

expeniture budget required.

13,500 13,500 13,500 13,500 13,500

Grounds 

maintenance
Environment

Neighbourhood 

Services

External contractor Living Wage cost 

pressure.
30,000 30,900 31,827 32,781 33,765

New pay 

scales
N/A Corporate item

Impact of 2017/18 2 year pay 

settlement. Second year changes to 

pay scales.

147,961 230,047 254,918 324,374 346,028

Planning 

applications

Housing, 

People and 

Innovation

Strategic 

Development

Due to the changing nature/volume of 

planning applications SLDC has 

received during 2018/19 it has become 

apparent that the current income 

budget for planning fee's is not 

consistent with the fee's being received 

to date. Future years income budgets 

already reduced.

75,000

Rental income
Economy and 

Assets

Strategic 

Development

South Lakeland House rental income 

reduction due to surplus space not 

being let

14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000

Other base 

budget 

adjustments

-193,640 -126,021 -143,338 -149,097 -149,097

145,821 221,426 229,907 294,558 317,196

1,208,908

59

Appendix 1

P
age 189



Growth Proposals Section 3d

Name Portfolio AD area Description 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Business 

Support 

Programme

Economy and 

Assets

Strategic 

Development

Provision of Business Support 

programme available to South Lakeland 

businesses of all sizes and sectors. 

Including specialist training, advice and 

mentoring for existing businesses and 

those looking to start up. This is a further 

phase of an ongoing successful initiative 

to aid business performance and growth, 

and its continuation will help create and 

sustain jobs in the district

50,000 50,000 50,000

50,000 50,000 50,000 0 0

Carbon 

Reduction

Performance and 

Innovation
Support to carbon reduction schemes 50,000

A further growth proposal has been incorporated since the December 2018 budget report but is not included in the Growth sub-total in Section 2:

60

Appendix 1

P
age 190



Section 3e

Revenue Savings

Name Portfolio AD area Description 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Corporate Budget 

Review
N/A Corporate item

Review of corporate 

budgets including 

insurances, energy 

and business rates

-43,800 -43,800 -43,800 -43,800 -43,800

Community Toilet 

Scheme
Finance

Performance 

and Innovation

Changes to the 

Community Toilet 

Scheme as per 

Cabinet decision 

CEX/87

-19,500 -25,500 -30,500 -30,500 -30,500

Kendal Museum
Economy and 

Assets

Strategic 

Development

Revenue savings as a 

result of transfer of 

Kendal Museum to 

third party

-100,000 -100,000 -100,000 -100,000 -100,000

Car Parks
Economy and 

Assets

Neighbourhood 

Services

Increase in base 

budget for volume 

changes as identified 

in 2018/19 monitoring

-160,000 -160,000 -160,000 -160,000 -160,000

-323,300 -329,300 -334,300 -334,300 -334,300

-1,655,500

61

Appendix 1

P
age 191



Section 4a

ESTIMATED COLLECTION FUND INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20

£000 £000 £000 £000

INCOME

93,755 Council Tax (Gross) 98,632

171 Add Council Tax Premiums 178

-5,083 Less Council Tax Benefits/ Reduction -5,218

-6,952 Less Council Tax Discounts -7,406

81,891 Net Income from Council Tax 86,186

57,587 Non Domestic Rates (Gross) 59,558

-1,312 less Estimated Appeals -1,312

-12,781 less Mandatory and Discretionary Reliefs -14,897

43,494 Net Income from Non-Domestic Rates 43,349

4 Transfers from General Fund: Local Council Tax Discounts 4

125,389 TOTAL INCOME 129,539

EXPENDITURE

Precepts & Demands :

60,300 Cumbria County Council 63,049

10,535 Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner 11,682

8,629 South Lakeland District Council 8,904

1,612 Parish Councils 1,693

81,076 85,328

Non-Domestic Rates :

21,378 Payment to Central Government 21,304

4,276 Payment to Cumbria County Council 4,261

17,102 Payment to South Lakeland District Council (before levy and tariff) 17,043

300 Cost of Collection Allowance 301

43,056 42,909

Increase/(Reduction) in Bad Debt provision

819 Council Tax Bad Debt Provision 862

438 Non-Domestic Rates Bad Debt Provision 440

1,257 1,302

125,389 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 129,539

Surplus/(Deficit) For Year

192 Surplus/(Deficit)  at 1st April: Council Tax -334

-2,177 Surplus/(Deficit)  at 1st April: Non-Domestic Rates 895

-1,985 561

Add Council Tax Deficit for previous years transferred to:

-24 South Lakeland District Council 42

-25 Cumbria Police Authority 43

-143 -192 Cumbria County Council 249 334

Less NNDR Surplus/deficit for previous years transferred to:

871 South Lakeland District Council -358

1,088 Central Government -448

218 2,177 Cumbria County Council -89 -895

0 SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) AT 31ST MARCH 0

45,265.99  45,513.49

£ Band D Council Taxes £

190.63 South Lakeland District Council 195.63

35.62 Average Parish Council 37.20

1,332.13 Cumbria County Council 1,385.28

232.74 Cumbria Police & Crime Commissioner 256.68

1,791.12 Total Average Council Tax 1,874.79

62

Appendix 1

Page 192



Taxbase 2019/20 for South Lakeland District 0 Section 4b

Band: A B C D E F G H Total

Number of properties 4,922.0 11,020.0 12,258.0 10,030.0 7,396.0 4,738.0 2,846.0 276.0 53,486.0

Exempt properties less 173.0 195.0 188.0 133.0 118.0 73.0 36.0 5.0 921.0

100% discount less 109.0 168.0 168.0 136.0 71.0 42.0 24.0 3.0 721.0

4,640.0 10,657.0 11,902.0 9,761.0 7,207.0 4,623.0 2,786.0 268.0 51,844.0

Disabled relief (move down one band) 32.0 50.0 54.0 41.0 31.0 29.0 20.0 0.0 257.0

4,672.0 10,675.0 11,906.0 9,748.0 7,197.0 4,621.0 2,777.0 248.0 51,844.0

Adjustments additions add 25.8 32.8 66.0 68.3 88.0 46.5 4.8 0.8 332.8

Adjustments deletions less 11.6 0.0 8.6 13.3 18.3 15.5 0.0 0.0 67.3

Adjustments discounts less 0.0 8.7 15.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 24.2

4,686.2 10,699.1 11,947.9 9,802.9 7,266.7 4,652.0 2,781.8 248.8 52,085.2

Council Tax Reduction Scheme discounts less 938.9 1,241.0 755.5 284.3 119.2 45.1 15.2 0.0 3,399.1

3,747.3 9,458.1 11,192.3 9,518.7 7,147.5 4,606.9 2,766.6 248.8 48,686.1

50% discount disregards ignore 4.0 15.0 8.0 19.0 3.0 9.0 27.0 7.0 92.0

50% discount special 2nd homes ignore 17.0 6.0 39.0 8.0 5.0 4.0 0.0 0.0 79.0

50% discounts adj for disabled less 50% 21.0 21.0 47.0 27.0 8.0 13.0 34.0 0.0 171.0

Single person occupancy less 25% 2,619.0 4,480.0 3,924.0 2,613.0 1,611.0 893.0 466.0 33.0 16,639.0

Empty dwellings ignore 156.0 207.0 177.0 133.0 111.0 53.0 45.0 10.0 892.0

Class G exemption add 25% 12.0 3.0 23.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 38.0

Second homes ignore 662.3 1,129.8 998.8 666.8 406.8 229.8 133.5 8.3 4,235.8

Discounted dwellings 3,085.0 8,328.3 10,193.6 8,851.9 6,740.8 4,377.1 2,633.1 240.5 44,450.4

Long term empty with premium add 50% x 75% 58.0 57.0 56.0 46.0 23.0 14.0 10.0 5.0 269.0

Total before adj for band D equiv 3,106.8 8,349.7 10,214.6 8,869.2 6,749.4 4,382.4 2,636.9 242.4 44,551.2

Weighting
Divide by 9 and 

multiply by:
6.0 7.0 8.0 9.0 11.0 13.0 15.0 18.0

Relevant Amount 2,071.2 6,494.2 9,079.6 8,869.2 8,249.3 6,330.1 4,394.8 484.8 45,973.2

From sum of individual parishs check 2,071.2 6,494.2 9,079.7 8,869.3 8,249.3 6,330.1 4,394.8 484.8 45,973.2

Difference (sum of roundings) check 0.0 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0

Collection rate multiply by: 99.0%

Scaled taxbase 45,513.5

63

Appendix 1

P
age 193



Section 4c

The purpose of this appendix is to set out the parish precepts included in the Collection Fund

Parish Tax District Parish Total Band D

Base Lighting Expenses Precept Council

Tax

£ £ £

Aldingham 548.25       0.00 10,816.09 10,816.09 19.73

Allithwaite Upper 435.88       370.58 16,745.72 17,116.30 39.27

Arnside 1,173.32    4,870.07 41,616.00 46,486.07 39.62

Barbon 133.33       453.11 6,145.88 6,598.99 49.49

Beetham 881.64       2,887.56 17,069.18 19,956.74 22.64

Blawith & Subberthwaite 132.47       0.00 3,555.79 3,555.79 26.84

Broughton East 153.06       0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 19.60

Burneside 653.99       604.15 26,072.70 26,676.85 40.79

Burton in Kendal 629.80       1,387.49 17,294.51 18,682.00 29.66

Cartmel Fell 254.13       0.00 6,258.79 6,258.79 24.63

Casterton 169.36       0.00 8,643.97 8,643.97 51.04

Claife 231.48       0.00 7,000.00 7,000.00 30.24

Colton 497.52       0.00 13,154.00 13,154.00 26.44

Coniston 460.66       0.00 19,586.23 19,586.23 42.52

Crook 224.26       0.00 6,706.76 6,706.76 29.91

Crosthwaite & Lyth 374.62       0.00 4,991.07 4,991.07 13.32

Dent 352.31       0.00 16,514.43 16,514.43 46.87

Docker 26.81          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Duddon 536.50       0.00 23,300.30 23,300.30 43.43

Egton with Newland, Mansriggs & Osmotherley532.11       0.00 7,741.28 7,741.28 14.55

* Fawcett Forest 14.75          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

* Firbank 60.93          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Garsdale 127.23       0.00 2,526.85 2,526.85 19.86

Grange-over-Sands 2,137.41    10,713.11 169,665.81 180,378.92 84.39

Grayrigg 103.32       302.08 392.69 694.77 6.72

Haverthwaite 389.68       0.00 11,489.84 11,489.84 29.49

Hawkshead 339.06       0.00 11,190.09 11,190.09 33.00

Helsington 169.33       0.00 7,568.62 7,568.62 44.70

Heversham 354.77       81.79 10,994.58 11,076.37 31.22

Hincaster 109.10       0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Holme 584.21       226.56 22,848.87 23,075.43 39.50

Hutton Roof 110.95       0.00 3,821.36 3,821.36 34.44

Kendal 10,475.52  0.00 409,627.94 409,627.94 39.10

Kentmere 64.15          0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 23.38

* Killington 77.57          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Kirkby Ireleth 512.13       0.00 7,190.60 7,190.60 14.04

Kirkby Lonsdale 893.37       695.17 51,180.62 51,875.79 58.07

Lakes 2,462.72    9,994.30 96,000.00 105,994.30 43.04

Lambrigg 45.63          0.00 100.00 100.00 2.19

Levens 542.50       1,619.15 13,291.42 14,910.57 27.48

64

Appendix 1

Page 194



Section 4c

Parish Tax District Parish Total Band D

Base Lighting Expenses Precept Council

Tax

£ £ £

Longsleddale 42.87          0.00 428.70 428.70 10.00

Lower Allithwaite 886.07       0.00 36,917.54 36,917.54 41.66

Lower Holker 710.09       830.71 15,449.82 16,280.53 22.93

Lowick 130.48       0.00 2,889.47 2,889.47 22.14

Lupton 88.69          0.00 2,964.40 2,964.40 33.42

Mansergh 75.17          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Middleton 50.34          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Milnthorpe 727.35       1,314.54 27,000.18 28,314.72 38.93

Natland 510.72       680.61 9,771.03 10,451.64 20.46

New Hutton 174.83       0.00 1,189.92 1,189.92 6.81

Old Hutton & Holmescales 179.65       288.34 2,443.62 2,731.96 15.21

Pennington 753.54       377.60 4,869.77 5,247.37 6.96

Preston Patrick 175.46       0.00 3,980.68 3,980.68 22.69

Preston Richard 504.31       474.62 23,718.20 24,192.82 47.97

Satterthwaite 132.50       0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 37.74

Sedbergh 1,066.95    0.00 37,629.32 37,629.32 35.27

Sedgwick 185.89       0.00 10,336.23 10,336.23 55.60

Skelsmergh & Scalthwaiterigg 203.98       377.60 4,661.52 5,039.12 24.70

Skelwith 118.00       0.00 4,128.00 4,128.00 34.98

Stainton 150.51       0.00 4,641.11 4,641.11 30.84

Staveley in Cartmel 284.61       0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 17.57

Staveley with Ings 774.72       1,000.58 14,576.00 15,576.58 20.11

Torver 79.13          0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 37.91

Ulverston 4,063.85    0.00 199,372.00 199,372.00 49.06

Underbarrow & Bradleyfield 213.05       0.00 8,159.88 8,159.88 38.30

Urswick 624.40       0.00 8,218.56 8,218.56 13.16

* Whinfell 79.69          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Whitwell & Selside 99.78          0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Windermere 4,132.40    6,760.37 125,000.00 131,760.37 31.88

Witherslack & Meathop 318.63       0.00 9,632.37 9,632.37 30.23

45,513.49 46,310.09 1,646,580.31 1,692,890.40 37.20

* No return received from parish, assumed precept is £0, in line with prior years.

65

Appendix 1

Page 195



Section 5

Programme Spending by Project
2018/19 

Approved July 

2018

Re-profiling 

and adj

2018/19 

Revised
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Total 2018/19 

to 2023/24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Play Areas (including community funded schemes and 

schemes arising from the Play Space Audit)
341.0 51.2 392.2 204.3 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 676.5

Millerground Public Open Space, Access and Play Project 138.3 -28.9 109.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 109.5

Grange Promenade 0.0 0.0 0.0 147.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 147.0

Nobles Rest 193.4 -15.3 178.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 178.1

Ferry Nab Redevelopment Phase 1 42.6 0.0 42.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 42.6

Cockshott Point Entrance Improvements 0.0 1.8 1.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8

Waterhead Public Jetty 27.0 4.4 31.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 31.4

Public Realm - The Glebe phase I and II 50.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0

Kendal Town Centre Public Realm 19.5 3.1 22.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 22.6

New Road Common (approved Council 12 Oct 2017) 231.0 0.0 231.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 231.0

Kendal Leisure Centre (including changing rooms) 159.6 0.0 159.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 159.6

Wordsworth Trust contribution 42.0 0.0 42.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 42.0

Festival Infrastructure 64.8 0.0 64.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 64.8

Flood impact works Rothay Park 207.2 0.0 207.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 207.2

Footway Lighting 49.4 0.0 49.4 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 174.4

IT Replacements 80.0 0.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 480.0

Customer Connect 290.0 0.0 290.0 300.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 590.0

Mobile Working 120.0 0.0 120.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 120.0

Town and Car Park signing 16.2 0.0 16.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 16.2

South Lakeland House carpark works 377.5 0.0 377.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 377.5

Car park re-surfacing 339.7 0.0 339.7 25.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 364.7

Vehicle & Plant Programme (inc bins and boxes) 1,169.0 -158.0 1,011.0 1,869.0 594.0 499.0 690.0 2,100.0 6,763.0

Disabled Facilities Grants 743.4 191.0 934.4 661.0 661.0 661.0 603.0 603.0 4,123.4

Right to buy replacement scheme 495.0 0.0 495.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 495.0

Affordable & Empty Homes, Town Centre Properties. 359.0 -191.0 168.0 260.0 260.0 260.0 260.0 0.0 1,208.0

S106 funded affordable homes purchase 146.0 -86.0 60.0 86.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 146.0

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24

66

Appendix 1

P
age 196



Section 5

Programme Spending by Project
2018/19 

Approved July 

2018

Re-profiling 

and adj

2018/19 

Revised
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Total 2018/19 

to 2023/24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24

Cross-a-Moor junction improvement 300.0 -300.0 0.0 300.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 300.0

Community Housing Fund 490.0 0.0 490.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 490.0

Kendal Museum contribution 85.0 0.0 85.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 85.0

Coronation Hall alterations 79.8 0.0 79.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 79.8

Energy-saving building enhancements 149.2 0.0 149.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 149.2

Former Knitware Factory (Ulverston) site clearance 89.1 0.0 89.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 89.1

Kendal Town Hall stone work 3.2 29.7 32.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 32.9

Castle Dairy flood damage reinstatement 19.9 0.0 19.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 19.9

Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail 140.0 0.0 140.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 140.0

LIPS (excluding contributions to SLDC property included under 

individual properties) 439.1 -163.7 275.4 165.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 441.2

Grange Promenade Structural works 100.0 0.0 100.0 300.0 300.0 225.0 250.0 0.0 1,175.0

Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extention 214.3 0.0 214.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 214.3

Burton Hertiage Grant Scheme (funded from LIPS) 0.0 0.0 0.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 0.0 0.0 240.0

Kendal Castle (funded from LIPS) 42.0 0.0 42.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 42.0

Car Parking Machines 140.0 0.0 140.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 140.0

Parkside Road, Kendal car park 160.4 0.0 160.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 160.4

Disabled Toilet improvements 50.0 -40.0 10.0 40.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0

ERDF funded flood defence works 1,556.7 -1,556.7 0.0 2,226.7 1,556.7 1,556.7 0.0 0.0 5,340.1

New Bids

Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations 0.0 0.0 0.0 3,000.0 3,000.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6,000.0

New Ulverston Leisure Centre 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 9,200.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 9,200.0

Homeless Accommodation for Families 0.0 0.0 0.0 461.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 461.4

Abbot Hall redevelopment 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0

Grange Lido 0.0 0.0 0.0 960.0 1,000.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1,960.0

Windermere Road car park, Grange 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0

South Lakeland House/Kendal Town Hall Reconfiguration 0.0 0.0 0.0 947.5 3,789.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 4,737.4

67

Appendix 1

P
age 197



Section 5

Programme Spending by Project
2018/19 

Approved July 

2018

Re-profiling 

and adj

2018/19 

Revised
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Total 2018/19 

to 2023/24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24

Bids subject to further assessment:

Car park investments*

Employment site land acquisition

Depot review 

Total 9,760.3 -2,258.4 7,502.0 12,338.7 20,566.6 3,406.7 1,928.0 2,828.0 48,570.0

*subject to detailed review of car parking strategy including potential new car parks (e.g. Arnside), reconfiguration options on existing car parks (e.g. Braithwaite Fold) and electric charging 

points

68

Appendix 1

P
age 198



Section 5

Capital Funding 2018/19 - 2023/24

Balance April 

2018

£000

Estimated 

Income

£000

Use in capital 

programme

£000

Potential Balance 

March 2024

£000

General

Usable Capital Receipts 1,744 417 -1,953 209

VAT Shelter receipt 831 1,200 -2,031 0

New homes bonus (capital)**** 1,271 1,138 -2,145 264

Earmarked or allocated

Revenue (LIPS) 185 995 -995 185

IT replacement reserve 74 480 -480 74

Major Repairs Reserve 307 800 -868 239

General Revenue contributions 587 1,574 -1,940 221

Cap grants and contributions (inc S106) 593 8,594 -9,147 40

Disabled Facilities Grants 360 3,752 -4,112 0

Community Housing Fund* 2,309 0 -490 1,819

Right to Buy receipt** 3,788 4,200 -6,495 1,493

Borrowing

Funding from borrowing***. 0 17,915 -17,915 0

Total 12,049 41,065 -48,570 4,544

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes, £2.36m less £235k funding revenue budgets

**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable housing.

****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement

***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover the 

cost over the assets' life

69

Appendix 1

P
age 199



Reserves Summary Section 6a

The purpose of this table is to set out the projected balance on the Council's usable reserves over the MTPF period.

Reserve Balance 

31/3/2018

Balance 

31/3/2019

Balance 

31/3/2020

Balance 

31/3/2021

Balance 

31/3/2022

Balance 

31/3/2023

Balance 

31/3/2024

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

General Reserve (6,024) (4,338) (4,538) (4,772) (4,972) (5,172) (5,372) The main use of this reserve in recent years 

has been to fund the one-off costs of flooding, 

staff redundancy and early retirements to 

enable organisational reorganisation and the 

discontinuation of direct provision of services.  

Unless allocated for a particular purpose, 

revenue budget under-spending and windfalls 

are added to the General Reserve.  (For more 

details of the risk and an assessment of the 

potential financial exposure please see the 

Risk Assessment of Level of Reserves).

The Medium Term Financial Plan provisionally 

assumes a £200,000 annual contribution to 

the Reserve, depending on quantification of 

the potential impact of these factors.  Any 

balance on the General Fund working balance 

above £1.5m is transferred to this reserve as 

part of the closure of accounts.

Statutory Duties Reserve (150) (138) (138) (138) (138) (138) (138) Part of General Reserve earmarked for 

certain purposes: use delegated to SMT & 

reported as part of Corporate Financial 

Monitoring.  Includes £50k legal costs/by-

election contingency, £40k planning legal 

costs contingency, £60k enforcement legal 

costs contingency

Flooding Costs Reserve (14) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Part of General Reserve earmarked for the 

costs of remediation of December 2015 

floods, use delegated to Chief Finance Officer 

by Council February 2016

Carry-forward Reserve (438) (69) 0 0 0 0 0 Part of General Reserve earmarked for 

revenue budgets carried forward from 2017/18 

to future years.

Building Control Fee Income 

Reserve

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record 

surpluses and losses on building control.

Local Land Charges Reserve (95) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record 

surpluses and losses on local land charges.

Hackney Carriage Licensing 

Reserve

12 12 12 12 12 12 12 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record 

surpluses and losses on licensing.

Licensing Act Reserve (76) (76) (76) (76) (76) (76) (76) Statutory ring fenced reserve to record 

surpluses and losses on licensing.

Misc Licensing Reserve 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record 

surpluses and losses on licensing.

Gambling Licensing Reserve 13 13 13 13 13 13 13 Statutory ring fenced reserve to record 

surpluses and losses on licensing. 

Community Housing Fund (2,309) (1,819) (1,819) (1,819) (1,819) (1,819) (1,819) income received from Government for 

Community Housing Fund not spent in year.

Commuted Sums Reserve (153) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) (3) Income received under various s106 

agreements not spent in year

Cumbria NDR Pool Income 

Reserve

(1,169) (1,554) (2,179) (1,779) (1,729) (1,729) (1,729) Income from Cumbria NNDR pool, earmarked 

for economic development

Cumbria NDR Pool volatility 

Reserve

(299) 0 (168) (168) (168) (168) (168) Share of NNDR pool income retained by pool 

to offset potential future deficits

70

Appendix 1

Page 200



Reserve Balance 

31/3/2018

Balance 

31/3/2019

Balance 

31/3/2020

Balance 

31/3/2021

Balance 

31/3/2022

Balance 

31/3/2023

Balance 

31/3/2024

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Customer Connect Reserve (1,301) (1,981) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) To fund the implementation of the Customer 

Connect Project, initially using the Customer 

Connect budgets from 2016/17 revenue 

budgets not spent during 2016/17.

Debt Redemption Reserve (455) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Underspend on budget for interest payment 

and MRP due to changes in capital 

programme, originally set aside for future 

costs of debt repayment, proposed transfer to 

Customer Connect Reserve

Economic Development Fund (167) (220) (220) (220) (220) (220) (220) To encourage economic development in the 

District and to ensure that unused funds in a 

particular year can be carried forward.

General Fund Major Repairs 

Reserve

(307) (177) (207) (237) (267) (297) (347) To fund major repairs and maintenance to 

General Fund properties that are not 

capitalisable and would be difficult to 

accommodate in the annual planned 

maintenance programme.  The Reserve: 

• acts as a backstop for emergency major 

repairs 

• accumulates funds as necessary to meet an 

abnormal year in maintenance terms, 

• is able to assist in meeting regular 

maintenance costs. 

IT Replacement Reserve (74) (74) (74) (74) (74) (74) (154) To fund the replacement of hardware and 

software with a preference for the updating of 

the corporate and networking infrastructure.

Kendal Employment Dev. Fund (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) (0) Assistance to eligible developing firms in the 

Kendal area

LABGI (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) To fund non-recurring initiatives that 

contribute directly to one or more of the 

Council’s priority initiatives, with a preference 

for economic development. This fund is now 

practically fully committed and should be 

closed once the committed spend is achieved.

Local Arts Strategic Partnership (30) (30) (30) (30) (30) (30) (30) Monies provided towards Arts Strategy and 

related activities carried forward for use in 

subsequent years.

LSVT Environmental Warranties (282) (282) (282) (282) (282) (282) (282) To pay for environmental insurance until 2032 

relating to warranties given as part of the 

housing transfer.

Marshall Hooper Reserve (37) (37) (37) (37) (37) (37) (37) Monies left to the Council as a bequest to be 

used for housing for the elderly in Grange

New Homes Bonus Reserve (1,457) (178) 0 0 0 0 0 New reserve to enable forward funding of 

eligible schemes through the Council's New 

Homes Bonus protocol

NNDR Surplus Reserve (1) (85) (356) (356) (356) (356) (356) Timing gap between recognising s31 grant 

and recognising offsetting NDR collection fund 

deficits.

Planning Delivery Grant Fund (18) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Monies provided by Planning Delivery Grant in 

2009/10 carried forward for use in a 

subsequent years.  This source of grant 

funding has now been discontinued and the 

fund will be closed when the current balance 

is spent.  

71

Appendix 1

Page 201



Reserve Balance 

31/3/2018

Balance 

31/3/2019

Balance 

31/3/2020

Balance 

31/3/2021

Balance 

31/3/2022

Balance 

31/3/2023

Balance 

31/3/2024

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revs and Bens Replacement 

Reserve

(10) 0 0 0 0 0 0 Transferred to Customer Connect Reserve 

following replacement of Revs & Bens system 

in 2017/18

Revenue Funds for Capital (587) (7) 440 340 240 140 40 Monies provided from revenue to support the 

Capital Programme & fund expenditure that 

may not be capitalisable: annual contribution 

£100k

Second Homes Income Reserve (46) (46) (46) (46) (46) (46) (46) Initiatives to enable the provision of affordable 

housing: transfer of unspent balance at end of 

year

Social Lettings Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 income from the social lettings scheme set 

aside for potential losses or repair bills

Total Reserves excluding 

working balance

(15,447) (11,064) (9,683) (9,647) (9,927) (10,257) (10,687)

GF Working balance (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) (1,500) Buffer against unforeseen & emergency 

expenditure in-year, inflationary demands, 

adverse cash flow, inability to use capital 

resources. 

Total Usable Reserves (16,947) (12,564) (11,183) (11,147) (11,427) (11,757) (12,187)

72

Appendix 1

Page 202



RISK ASSESSEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES: 31/3/19 Section 6b

Potential Risk

Risk 

Score Weighting

Financial 

Exposure 

(£000)

Balance 

Required 

(£000) Comment (Basis of Financial Exposure)

Base Budget Contingency for inflation or other 

unanticipated rise.
4 50% 301 151 Assumed at 1% of Gross Revenue Budget for 2019/20

Underachievement of Charges Income targets and 

spending exceeds budgets
4 50% 511 255 Estimate of 5% Customer Receipts Income forecasts for 2019/20

Underachievement of Investment Income 4 50% 130 65 1% of exposure of average balance of £13m

Insurance Excesses 5 50% 47 24 Based on 10% of insurance premia payments

Potential costs of legal challenges 2 25% 700 175 Based on estimated cost of a public enquiry or legal challenge

Savings not achieved 2 25% 3,927 982 Savings target at 31/3/23 including customer connect

Vacancy target not delivered 2 25% 556 139 Staff vacancy target topsliced from salary budgets

Pay increase 3 50% 146 73 2% allowance made in budget for pay increase from April 2020.  Impact of additional 1% pay award

Increase in pension contributions 4 50% 360 180 Allowance for 1.5% increase in pension fund contributions at next triennial revaluation

Changes to existing government funding regimes 6 75% 1,942 1,457
50% of Total of RSG/transitional grant/Rural Services grant/NNDR retained funding, based on 2019/20 estimated 

settlement

Changes to existing external grants and contributions 4 50% 974 487
50% of total revenue grants and contributions received, excluding benefit subsidy and formula grant (based on 

2019/20 excluding New Homes Bonus)

Impact of introduction of Universal Credit 2 25% 200 50 Increase in homelessness, changes in administration arrangements, reduction in collection rate etc

Changes to Homelessness requirements 2 25% 200 50 Changes in requirements for homelessness

Localisation of business rates 4 50% 227 114 Assume 5% reduction in rateable values based on 2017/18 estimate

Council tax reduction scheme 4 25% 64 16 SLDC share, based on 10% increase in claims based on 2018/19 estimate

Risk Management 9 100% 500 500 Monies set aside to meet the one-off costs of risk management

Emergency Contingency 9 100% 1,000 1,000
Emergency contingency fund - Council practice to allocate £1m for any unforeseen emergencies.  Bellwin scheme 

cuts in at 0.2% of net budget and provides for up to 85% of eligible costs.  

11,785 5,718

11,785 Total Financial Exposure

Recommended Risk Base Reserve Balances 5,718 from above

2,946 25% of Total Financial Exposure

1,500 Estimated balance 31/3/19

4,338 Estimated balance 31/3/19

5,838

120 assumes use the recommended risk based balance

TOTALS

Maximum Risk Based Reserve Balances

 - General Reserve

 - General Fund Working Balance

Projected Level of Reserves

Minimum Risk Based Reserve Balances

Projected Level of Reserves (General Fund )

Projected (Shortfall)/Excess of Current Reserve Balance over Risk Based Reserves

73

Appendix 1

P
age 203



Medium Term Financial Plan Risks and Opportunities Log 

Ref Vulnerability / Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to control this risk 

1. Revenue budget and Capital 
Programme may not be integrated 
and aligned with Council Plan. 

Resources not directed to 
achieving corporate 
outcomes, leading to 
inappropriate spending. 

Low Marginal Both the revenue budget and the 
Capital Programme are now 
embedded in the corporate planning 
cycle.  All revenue budgets and capital 
programme schemes are linked to 
Council plan priorities 

2. The programme of budget 
reductions does not deliver the 
required level of savings to correct 
the forecast inherent budget 
deficit. 

Council will be forced to cut 
services and/or make knee-
jerk and potentially irrational 
spending reductions. 

Low Critical Universal acceptance of the problem 
by heightened awareness.  Clear 
direction and identification of 
measures by Members and Officers.  
Strict project management to ensure 
that proposals are implemented. 

3. The Customer Connect 
Programme does not deliver the 
organisational changes and 
efficiency savings included in 
budget forecasts. 

Council will be forced to cut 
services and/or make knee-
jerk and potentially irrational 
spending reductions. 

Medium Critical Clear direction and identification of 
measures by Members and Officers.  
Strict project management to ensure 
that proposals are implemented. 

4. Result of Brexit may potentially 
change estimated levels of 
growth, inflation, interest etc. 

The Council may have to 
amend the capital and 
revenue spending plans to 
react to changes in funding 
and potential increased 
levels of expenditure 

High Serious Monitor impact of decision 

5. Resources cannot be identified to 
fund new service development. 

Corporate outcomes may not 
be delivered. 

Low Marginal Accurate assessments of spending 
needs to be built into the budget 
forecast.  Project management of 
reduction programme. 

74

Appendix 1

P
age 204



Ref Vulnerability / Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to control this risk 

6. Further loss of income from 
investments as interest rates 
reduce. 

Revenue budget unable to 
cope with reduced income 

Low Marginal Close monitoring of returns, already 
minimal levels of projected interest 
receipts. 

7.  Provisions for pay, price 
inflation are inadequate e.g. 
fuel 

 Income falls below targets 

 Government grant is withdrawn 
suddenly 

In-year budgetary pressure 
and potential overspending, 
jeopardising service delivery. 

Low Marginal Close monitoring and short-term use 
of revenue contingency provision and 
General Reserve followed by review 
for following year. 

8. Government  devolution approach 
diverts funding to other areas 

Reduction in funding for 
other services 

Medium Marginal Monitor proposals for extension of 
devolution 

9. The resilience of the budget is not 
re-enforced by the strengthening 
of reserves and balances. 

Budget may not be able to 
cope with unexpected events 
and spending plans may 
have to be curtailed. 

Low Marginal Close adherence to the Plan’s 
proposals for the maintenance of 
reserves and balances. 

10. Government introduction of  more 
stringent capping system through 
the specification of levels above 
which a referendum will be 
triggered 

Revenue budget unable to 
cope with basic inflationary 
increases, further pressure 
on resources and service 
delivery. 

Low Marginal Maintenance of General Reserve as a 
buffer against unexpected restriction 
on council tax increases.  The Plan 
uses realistic assumptions for forward 
planning.   

11. Government proposals for 
localisation of business rates, 
including baseline reset increase 
uncertainty of major income 
stream. 

Income streams will be 
insufficient to fund service 
delivery. 

High Critical Monitor changes in rateable values & 
proposals for new development / 
closures/ other changes.  Monitor 
Government proposals for changes in 
NNDR legislation.  Maintenance of 
General Reserve as a buffer against 
unexpected changes in funding. 

11a. 
 

Government proposals for 
additional reliefs for business 
rates will not be fully funded 

As above As above As above As above 

75

Appendix 1

P
age 205



Ref Vulnerability / Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to control this risk 

12. Council is reluctant to take the 
required challenging decisions in 
a number of service areas e.g. 
fees & charges or grants payable 

Income streams may not be 
optimised leading to reduced 
resources available for 
spending on priority services 
or projected savings may not 
be generated 

Low Serious Financial decisions in non-priority 
areas should be made on commercial 
principles backed by sound business 
cases. 

13. Budgetary control procedures are 
not understood and followed. 

Variances from budgets are 
not identified and acted 
upon, leading to 
inappropriate/unauthorised 
spending. 

Low Marginal Ongoing review of procedures to 
ensure that budget monitoring 
information is appropriate and 
meaningful.  Greater emphasis on 
trend analysis and the use of customer 
data.  Closer liaison between Finance 
staff and budget holders.   

14. Reduction in economic 
development funding if Cumbria 
LEP is unable to attract significant 
funding. 

Inability to improve 
employment prospects within 
the district 

Low Serious If LEP is unable to invest in economic 
development there will be increased 
pressure on the Council’s capital 
programme to invest significant funds. 

15. The Council is unable to meet 
future demand for services 

Service falls below all 
acceptable standards. 

Medium Critical Close monitoring of the changing 
needs and levels of demand and 
review of resource allocation. 

16. Pension funding  Budget may not be able to 
cope with additional costs 
and spending plans may 
have to be curtailed. 

Low 
 

Marginal Movement to alternative method of 
contribution based on set percentage 
for current service accrual and fixed 
contribution for past service costs 
should reduce inherent problem of 
declining staff base for contributions. 
Government reform of pension 
scheme should alleviate impact of 
declining investment returns.   

76

Appendix 1

P
age 206



Ref Vulnerability / Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to control this risk 

17. Costs of asset maintenance, as 
identified in the Land and 
Property Strategy, exceed 
resources available. 

Budgetary pressures force 
cuts in standards of 
maintenance.   

Medium Critical A quinquennial review of maintenance 
requirements is prepared.  The 
General Fund Planned Maintenance 
fund exists to meet abnormal spending 
needs. 

18. Future demographic and other 
changes demand additional 
expenditure 

Budget inadequate for 
additional spending 
demands/potential loss of 
income due to declining 
population 

Medium Marginal Monitor impact of demographic 
changes 

19. Potential creation of Internal 
Drainage Board 

Unavoidable Levy payable to 
Internal Drainage Board; 
under capping rules, levies 
would count against the 
Council’s Council Tax 
capping limit. 

Low Marginal Monitor proposals, review treatment 
as special expense.  Under new 
proposals for calculating council tax 
increases a new levy would count 
towards triggering a referendum. 

20. Potential loss of surplus-
generating assets through the 
proposed Community right to bid 
and/or failure of assets 
transferred 

Budget may not be able to 
cope with loss of 
income/sudden increase in 
budgets required for 
remedial costs 

Low Marginal Review all requests against the Asset 
Transfer Policy 

21. Higher that estimated increase in 
costs due to international political 
uncertainty e.g. fuel 

Budget may not be able to 
cope with additional costs 
and spending plans may 
have to be curtailed. 

Low Marginal Frequent budget monitoring 

77

Appendix 1

P
age 207



Ref Vulnerability / Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to control this risk 

22. Reduced ability to attract and 
retain suitably qualified staff due 
to Government announcements 
on pay restraint, pay progression, 
Local Government pension reform 
and increased NI contributions for 
national Single Tier pensions from 
April 2016. 

Inability to deliver services to 
current levels or additional 
costs of temporary staff 

Low Marginal Monitor recruitment activity 

23. Welfare reform: additional costs of 
implementation of Universal 
Credit due to need to support 
digital by default application 
process and payment to claimants 
rather than landlords. 

Potential increase in support 
costs and potential increase 
in homelessness cases due 
to rent arrears. 
Loss of administration grant 
towards continuing costs 

High Marginal Monitor proposals and respond to 
consultation 

24. Procurement projects: projected 
savings not generated 

Unable to deliver estimated 
savings, inability to balance 
budget 

Medium Marginal Review all savings proposals for 
deliverability, ensure specification of 
proposed contract is realistic. 

25. Procurement projects: challenge 
to process 

Potential legal costs and 
additional costs of service 
delivery until challenge 
resolved 

Low Marginal All procurement exercises to follow 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, 
which are updated for changes in 
legislation. 
Additional legal advice is procured for 
major or unusual procurement projects 

26. Closure of major employer Reduction in income from 
business rates but increase 
in demand for affordable 
housing and council tax 
reduction scheme. 

Medium Marginal Monitoring of significant employers 

27. Legal challenge, particularly of 
charging regimes 

Potential need to refund 
income received and 
contribute to legal costs 

Low Marginal Potential claims for significant refunds 
of charges e.g. land charges 

78

Appendix 1

P
age 208



Ref Vulnerability / Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to control this risk 

28. 
 

Increased tax avoidance, 
particularly of business rates 

Reductions in income from 
business rates 

Medium Marginal Monitor claims for reliefs, particularly 
empty properties 

29. 
 

Further changes to New Homes 
Bonus e.g. increase in threshold 

Reduction in income from 
government  

High Marginal Currently income from New Homes 
Bonus is not included as a recurring 
item in the Council’s base budget due 
to uncertainty about future income 
streams.  Any reduction would reduce 
the funding available to local projects 
and may require funding from other 
Council income streams. 

30. Changes in shopping habits and 
other behavioural changes 
reduces income from Council 
operations 

Reduction in income from 
markets, car parking, public 
halls etc 

Medium Serious Will be incremental impact initially: 
monitor income and usage as part of 
corporate monitoring process and 
budgeting process 

31. Increased applications for rate 
reliefs and/or appeals 

Reduction in income from 
business rates 

Medium Critical Monitor applications for relief and 
appeals 

32. Community Housing Fund is not 
recurring 

Reduction in income from 
government for housing 

High Marginal Currently income from Community 
Housing Fund is not included as a 
recurring item in the Council’s budgets 
due to uncertainty about how and 
when monies will be awarded. 

33. Cumbria Business Rate pool 
income lower than expected 

Reduction in income from 
pool potentially below single-
authority safety-net 

Low Serious Regular monitoring of business rate 
income and appeals through Cumbria 
pool, particularly relating to Sellafield 
due to abnormally large rateable 
value. 

79

Appendix 1

P
age 209



Ref Vulnerability / Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to control this risk 

34.  Cumbria Business Rate Pool 
expanded to pilot 

Reduction in income, 
potential impact will be 
higher than existing pool as 
Rural Services Delivery 
Grant would be included in 
arrangements. 

Low Critical If Cumbria were to bid for pilot and 
were to be accepted then the 
arrangements for regular monitoring of 
business rate income and appeals 
through Cumbria pooling 
arrangements would become critical, 
particularly relating to Sellafield due to 
abnormally large rateable value. 
Impact beyond April 2020 is 
impossible to predict due to 
uncertainties around Government 
proposals for business rates. 

 

  

80

Appendix 1

P
age 210



Risk Prioritisation Matrix       
L

ik
e

lih
o

o
d
 

A 
High 

 29,32 4 11, 11a 

B 
Medium 

 
8, 18, 24, 

26, 28 
30 

3, 15, 
31 

C 
Low 

 

1, 5, 6, 7, 
9, 10, 13, 

16, 19, 20, 
21, 22, 25, 

27 

12, 14, 
33 

2,34 

D 
Very Low 

    

  
4 

Negligible 

3 
Marginal 

2 
Serious 

1 
Critical 

  Impact 
  

Colour key:  

 Low priority risks which require annual review 

 Priority risks which require mitigating controls and quarterly review  

Ref Vulnerability / Trigger

1 Revenue budget and Capital Programme may not be integrated and aligned with Council Plan.

2
The programme of budget reductions does not deliver the required level of savings to correct the forecast 

inherent budget deficit.

3
The Customer Connect Programme does not deliver the organisational changes and efficiency savings 

included in budget forecasts.

4 Result of Brexit may potentially change estimated levels of growth, inflation, interest etc.

5 Resources cannot be identified to fund new service development.

6 Further loss of income from investments as interest rates reduce.

       Provisions for pay, price inflation are inadequate e.g. fuel

       Income falls below targets

      Government grant is withdrawn suddenly

8 Government  devolution approach diverts funding to other areas

9 The resilience of the budget is not re-enforced by the strengthening of reserves and balances.

10
Government introduction of  more stringent capping system through the specification of levels above which a 

referendum will be triggered

11
Government proposals for localisation of business rates, including baseline reset increase uncertainty of 

major income stream.

12
Council is reluctant to take the required challenging decisions in a number of service areas e.g. fees & 

charges or grants payable

13 Budgetary control procedures are not understood and followed.

14 Reduction in economic development funding if Cumbria LEP is unable to attract significant funding.

15 The Council is unable to meet future demand for services

17 Costs of asset maintenance, as identified in the Land and Property Strategy, exceed resources available.

18 Future demographic and other changes demand additional expenditure

19 Potential creation of Internal Drainage Board

20
Potential loss of surplus-generating assets through the proposed Community right to bid and/or failure of 

assets transferred

21 Higher that estimated increase in costs due to international political uncertainty e.g. fuel

22

Reduced ability to attract and retain suitably qualified staff due to Government announcements on pay 

restraint, pay progression, Local Government pension reform and increased NI contributions for national 

Single Tier pensions from April 2016.

24 Procurement projects: projected savings not generated

25 Procurement projects: challenge to process

26 Closure of major employer

27 Legal challenge, particularly of charging regimes

30 Changes in shopping habits and other behavioural changes reduces income from Council operations

31 Increased applications for rate reliefs and/or appeals

32 Community Housing Fund is not recurring

33 Cumbria Business Rate pool income lower than expected

34 Cumbria Business Rate Pool expanded to pilot

28 Increased tax avoidance, particularly of business rates

29 Further changes to New Homes Bonus e.g. increase in threshold

16 Pension funding 

23
Welfare reform: additional costs of implementation of Universal Credit due to need to support digital by 

default application process and payment to claimants rather than landlords.

7

11a. Government proposals for additional reliefs for business rates will not be fully funded

81

Appendix 1

P
age 211



  

Opportunities 

Ref Opportunity/Trigger Consequence Likelihood Impact Actions to achieve this 
opportunity 

A. Regional Devolution Removal of government restrictions and 
barriers between organisations enabling 
more localised decision making, for 
example variation in Council Tax discounts 
and premiums 

Medium Significant Discussions with other public 
sector organisations and HM 
Treasury 

B. Significant increase in 
net dwellings 
increases New Homes 
bonus.   

Additional funding to support either 
expansion of existing services, provision of 
new services or prevents reduction in 
existing services 

High Marginal Maximise addition of properties (& 
minimise removal of properties) on 
valuation list by end of September 
annually; maximise increase in 
number of affordable homes 
through planning requirements or 
provision of support, financial or 
otherwise.  Likely to be abolished 
from March 2020. 

Although may be significant 
increase in income, the Council 
has commitment for use on 
affordable housing and locally 
important projects. 

C. Localisation of 
business rates 

Potentially could provide funding to support 
either expansion of existing services, 

High Marginal The Government scheme of tariffs 
limits the potential for significant 
gains from increased business 

82

Appendix 1

P
age 212



provision of new services or prevent 
reduction in existing services 

rates.  Monitor planning 
applications, Local Plan proposals 
etc. 

D. Business rate pilot Potentially could increase proportion of 
business rate income retained locally, 
either by Council or by Cumbria County 
Council 

Medium Serious Cumbria Pilot bid was 
unsuccessful for 2018/19 and 
2019/20. 
Impact beyond April 2020 is 
impossible to predict due to 
uncertainties around Government 
proposals for business rates. 

E. Shared services Potentially could provide additional funding 
to support either the existing level of 
service or enhanced service levels 

High Marginal Review existing services, work 
with other public services in the 
area to review service provision 
and potential sharing of services: 
depends on finding a partner. 

F. New advances in 
technologies 

Potentially could reduce staffing 
requirements or existing non-staffing costs; 
could permit new or enhanced services 

Low Marginal Monitor developments in 
technology 

G. Community Groups 
wishing to take over 
services 

Potential transfer of costs to alternative 
provider who may be able to provide 
existing services at lower cost or enhanced 
services at existing cost 

Low Significant Monitor requests, including those 
under the Community Right to 
Challenge.  Currently there 
appears little appetite or capacity 
for further transfers. 

H. Opportunities for 
generating additional 
income for services – 
relaxation of national 
controls e.g. planning 
fees 

Potential increase in income High Marginal Monitor proposals, respond to 
consultation 

I. Significant increase in 
economic development 
funding if Cumbria LEP 

Ability to improve employment prospects 
within the district 

Medium Significant Funding is allocated directly to 
schemes so the Council is not 
involved as accountable body but 

83

Appendix 1

P
age 213



is able to attract 
significant funding 
through bidding for 
Regional Growth Fund 
or Single Local Growth 
Fund monies. 

funding would reduce pressure on 
the Council’s capital programme to 
support economic development 
schemes. 

J. Cost of debt 
repayment lower than 
expected due to higher 
long-term interest rates 
and therefore PWLB 
premiums reducing 

Need to commit less capital receipts to 
repayment of debt in order to deliver 
interest payment reductions 

High Marginal Monitor interest rates and repay 
debt when premiums are 
minimised if appropriate and in line 
with treasury management 
strategy. 
 

K. Increased income from 
investments as interest 
rates improve. 

Additional revenue income offsets need to 
find savings to balance budget deficit. 

Low Marginal Close monitoring of returns, 
minimal levels of projected interest 
receipts in MTFP financial model. 

L. Identification and 
delivery of savings 
enable funding of 
programme of growth 
and service 
development 

Additional revenue savings beyond those 
needed to offset budget deficit 

Low Marginal Close monitoring of deliverability 
of proposed savings 

M. Corporate assets 
generate new income 
streams, either 
revenue or capital 

Additional income to offset budget deficit or 
to supplement capital programme. 

High Marginal Review each asset for alternative 
use or sale in accordance with the 
Corporate Asset Strategy 

N. Result of Brexit may 
potentially change 
estimated levels of 
growth, inflation, 
interest etc. 

The Council may have opportunity to 
amend the capital and revenue spending 
plans to react to changes in funding and 
potential lower levels of expenditure 

High Serious Monitor impact of decision 

 

84

Appendix 1

P
age 214



 
Explanation of terms used: 
 

Expenditure  

Employees: Staff employed directly on services, including National 
Insurance and Pension Contributions, Allowances, 
Training, Employee Related Insurances, etc. 

Premises: Repairs, Maintenance, Alterations  
Internal and External Decoration of Buildings 
Grounds Maintenance 
Energy Costs 
Rents, Rates, Water and Sewerage Charges 
Fixtures and Fittings 
Building Cleaning 
Premises Insurance 

Transport: Car Allowances 
Public Transport 
Fuel, Tyres and Batteries 
Licences, Tests and Insurances 
Vehicle Repairs and Maintenance 
Hire Charges 

Supplies & Services: Equipment, Tools and Furniture 
Materials and Provisions 
Clothing, Uniforms and Laundry 
Printing and Stationery 
Books and Publications 
Information Technology 
Postages and Telephones 
Subsistence Allowances 
Contributions and Grants 
Advertising 
Miscellaneous Insurances 

Bought-in Services: Contracted Services provided by external suppliers e.g. 
Leisure Management, Specialist Services, Internal Audit 

Central Support and other 
recharges in: 

– See below 
 

Income  

Government Grants:  

Contributions from other 
Local Authorities and Public 
Bodies: 

Mainly agency arrangements for the provision of 
services  

Central Support and other 
recharges out: 

See below 

Charges to External 
Customers: 

Sales, Fees and Charges 

Other Income: Rents and Interest 

Indirect Expenditure 

Capital Charges: Depreciation charges made to services to reflect the use 
of the Council’s assets. (see also below) 
 

REFCUS Charges: The full cost of capital expenditure on grants and 
software charged to individual services in the year 
incurred. 

85

Appendix 1

Page 215



In both cases, expenditure on services is matched by income of a similar amount on the 
General Fund Summary Revenue Account so that there is no cost to the Council 
Taxpayer. 
 

Approved Budget The 2018/19 Budget and MTFP figures approved by 
Council in February 2018 

Current Budget These are the latest estimates, taking account of any 
authorised changes to the approved budget including 
carry forwards from the previous year and budget 
virements (transfers). 

2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget These Budgets include assumptions about inflation, 
unavoidable growth in base budgets, changes to income 
from fees and charges, savings agreed as part of the 
corporate savings exercise and specific one off growth 
items.  Expected inflation has been added to detailed 
estimates where unavoidable.   
 
The savings agreed for 2019/20 have been built into base 
budgets. Future years assume further savings and these 
will require more detailed proposals to be developed 
during the year for incorporation into 2020/21 and future 
years’ budgets. 
 

 
Central Support and Other Recharges  
 
The Internal Recharges system is used to allocate and apportion an appropriate share 
of all Management and Support Services and other overheads. The general principle 
is that all overheads, support services and management costs should be fully 100% 
recharged to the appropriate Service expenditure headings.  
 
In addition, there are other recharged amounts that represent services performed for 
one department by another, the main example being the transport services. As these 
are all Council departments, using a recharge mechanism ensures that the 
expenditure is only presented once in the accounts with the inter-department 
transactions effectively taken out of the Council’s overall income and expenditure. 

 
All recharges to and from services are included in the figures within Section 3(b). 
 
Capital Charges  
 
Capital and REFCUS (Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute) 
Charges are shown after the direct expenditure and income on individual services.  
This reflects the accounting treatment of these charges, which are credited in total in 
the General Fund Summary and so have a neutral effect overall.   

86

Appendix 1

Page 216



Appendix 1

Page 217



page 2

If you would like a copy of this 
document in another format such 
as large print, Braille, audio or in 
a different language, please call 
01539 733333 or email customer 
services@southlakeland.gov.uk

Appendix 1

Page 218



NET CHARGE VAT

GROSS 

CHARGE

VAT 

CODE

% Increase 

Net Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

RESOURCES £ £ £

COURT COSTS FOR NNDR AND COUNCIL TAX SUMMONSES

Council Tax Summonses (Liability Order)
South Lakeland Court 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0.00%

Furness & District Court 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0.00%

Committal Warrants
Application for issue of a warrant 240.00 0.00 240.00 X 0.00%

Application for an arrest warrant - with bail 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0.00%

Application for an arrest warrant - without bail 105.00 0.00 105.00 X 0.00%

NNDR Summonses (Liability Order)
South Lakeland  Court 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0.00%

Furness & District Court 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0.00%

LEGAL SERVICE FEES

Road Closure Orders
Inc Advertising 115.00 0.00 115.00 X 15.00%

Excl Advertiing 58.00 0.00 58.00 X 16.00%

Property Connsents
Standard 30.00 0.00 30.00 X 20.00%

retrospective 55.00 0.00 55.00 X 10.00%

Encroachments
Private - Agreement preperation 180.00 0.00 180.00 X 2.86%

Private - agreement renewal 180.00 0.00 180.00 X 2.86%

Private - assignment of agreement 180.00 0.00 180.00 X 2.86%

Other encroachment admin costs

  - Letters/email in and out 5.00 0.00 5.00 X 0.00%

  - Phone Calls in and out 5.00 0.00 5.00 X 0.00%

  - Resurvey 60.00 0.00 60.00 X 20.00%

  - Instructing Legal Services 60.00 0.00 60.00 X 20.00%

Other encroachment legal costs

  - Letters/email in and out 15.00 0.00 15.00 X 0.00%

  - Phone Calls in and out 15.00 0.00 15.00 X 0.00%

  - Fixed fee for commencment of legal action 265.00 0.00 265.00 X 6.00%

  - Other legal fees (per hour) N/A 0.00 X
Fees chargable will be set by court as cases 

submitted.

Section 106 agreements
Flat Fee 1200.00 0.00 1,200.00 X 20.00%

Per Obligation 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0.00%

Legal Fees for Property Transactions
Per Transaction value 0.00 0.00 0.00 #DIV/0!

£0-£2,000 200.00 0.00 200.00 X #DIV/0!

£2,001-£5,000 500.00 0.00 500.00 X #DIV/0!

£5,001-£10,000 750.00 0.00 750.00 X #DIV/0!

£10,001-£25,000 100.00 0.00 100.00 X #DIV/0!

£25,001 + 1500.00 0.00 1,500.00 X #DIV/0!

Appendix 2

P
age 219



NET CHARGE VAT

GROSS 

CHARGE

VAT 

CODE

% Increase 

Net Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

PERFORMANCE & INNOVATION £ £ £

PARTNERSHIPS & ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

INFORMATION REQUESTS

Envrionmental Information Regulations (2004) SLDC Charging Policy (charge per hour) 25.00 0.00 25.00 X 0.00% Discretionary Charge 

Section 2 Part 1 (5)(3) Data Protection Act 2018 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0.00% Discretionary Charge

ELECTORAL REGISTRATION

REGISTER OF ELECTORS

Full and Open Registers

In data form - initial fee 20.00 0.00 20.00 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

per 1000 entries (or part thereof) 1.50 0.00 1.50 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

In printed form - initial fee 10.00 0.00 10.00 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

per 1000 entries (or part thereof) 5.00 0.00 5.00 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

Monthly Updates to the Register

In data form - initial fee 20.00 0.00 20.00 x 0.00% Statutory charge 

per 1000 entries (or part thereof) 1.50 0.00 1.50 x 0.00% Statutory charge 

In printed form - initial fee 10.00 0.00 10.00 x 0.00% Statutory charge 

per 1000 entries (or part thereof) 5.00 0.00 5.00 x 0.00% Statutory charge 

Marked Register from Elections

In data form - initial fee 10.00 0.00 10.00 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

per 1000 entries (or part thereof) 1.00 0.00 1.00 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

In printed form - initial fee 10.00 0.00 10.00 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

per 1000 entries (or part thereof) 2.00 0.00 2.00 X 0.00% Statutory charge 

Appendix 2

P
age 220



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

PLANNING APPLICATION FEES

OPERATIONS

The erection of dwelling houses 
(other than development within category 6)

Where the application is for outline planning permission

Each 0.1 hectare of site area subject to a maximum fee of £11,432 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

If site area is greater than 2.5 hectares;
for first 2.5 hectares 11,432.00 0.00 11,432.00 X 0%

for each additional 0.1 hectare subject to a maximum fee of £150,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

Where the application is for permission in Principle from 1 June 2018

Each 0.1 hectare or part thereof of site area 402.00 0.00 402.00 X 0%

Full planning permission

For each dwelling house to be created by the development subject to a maximum fee of £22,859 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

If more than 50 dwellings;
for first 50 dwellings 22,859.00 0.00 22,859.00 X 0%
each additional dwelling subject to a maximum fee of £300,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

The erection of buildings (other than dwelling houses and buildings coming within categories 1,3,4,5 or 

7 of the fee regulation for further information see link below )
www.planningportal.gov.uk/uploads/english_application_fees.pdf

Where the application is for outline planning permission.

Each 0.1 hectare of site area subject to a maximum fee of £11,432 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

If site area is greater than 2.5 hectares;
for first 2.5 hectares 11,432.00 0.00 11,432.00 X 0%
for each additional 0.1 hectare subject to a maximum fee of £150,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

Full planning permission

Where no floor space is to be created by the development 234.00 0.00 234.00 X 0%

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development does not exceed 40 sq. metres. 234.00 0.00 234.00 X 0%

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development exceeds 40sq metres but does 

not exceed 75 sq metres
462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development exceeds 75 sq. metres, but does 

not exceed 3750 sq metres (charge is per 75 sq metres, subject to a maximum fee of £22,859)
462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

Floor area over 3750 sq metres;
for first 3750 sq metres 22,859.00 0.00 22,859.00 X 0%

for each additional 75 sq metres subject to a maximum fee of £300,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 221

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/uploads/english_application_fees.pdf


NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

The erection on land used for the purposes of agriculture, of buildings (other than glass houses 

to be used for agricultural purposes)

Where the application is for outline planning permission

Each 0.1 hectare of site area subject to a maximum fee £11,432 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

If site area is greater than 2.5 hectares;
for first 2.5 hectares 11,432.00 0.00 11,432.00 X 0%
for each additional 0.1 hectare subject to a maximum fee of £150,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

Full planning permission

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development does not exceed 465 sq. metres. 96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development does exceed 465sq. metres but 

does not exceed 540 sq metres.
462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development exceeds 540 sq. metres but does 

not exceed 4,215 sq. metres;
For the first 540sq. Metres 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%
each additional 75 sq metres subject to a maximum fee £22,859 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

Floor area over 4,215 sq metres;
first 4,215 sq metres 22,859.00 0.00 22,859.00 X 0%
each additional 75 sq metres subject to a maximum fee £300,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

The erection of glasshouses on land used for purposes of agriculture

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development does not exceed 465 sq. metres. 96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Where the area of gross floor space to be created by the development does exceed 465 sq. metres. 2,580.00 0.00 2,580.00 X 0%

The erection, alteration or replacement of plant or machinery

Each 0.1 hectare of site area 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%
if the site area is more than 5 hectares;
for the first 5 hectares 22,859.00 0.00 22,859.00 X 0%
each additional 0.1 hectares subject to a maximum fee £300,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

The enlargement, improvement or other alteration of existing dwelling houses

Where the application relates to one dwelling house 206.00 0.00 206.00 X 0%

Where the application relates to two or more dwelling houses 407.00 0.00 407.00 X 0%

The carrying out of operations (including the erection of a building) within the curtilage of an 

existing dwelling house for purposes ancillary to the enjoyment of the dwelling house as such, or 

the erection or construction of gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure along a boundary 

of the curtilage of an existing dwelling house.

206.00 0.00 206.00 X 0%

Installation of Satellite Dishes 206.00 0.00 206.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 222



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

OPERATIONS

The construction of car parks, service roads and other means of access on land used for the purposes of 

a single undertaking where the development is required for a purpose incidental to the existing use of the 

land.

234.00 0.00 234.00 X 0%

The carrying out of operations not coming within any of the above categories.

Each 0.1 hectare of site area subject to a maximum fee of £2,028 234.00 0.00 234.00 X 0%

Engineering Operations (excavations, earth movements and mineral operations, disposal of 

refuse or waste minerals and open storage)

Each 0.1 hectare of site area. Maximum fee £34,934 234.00 0.00 234.00 X 0%

If the site is greater than 15 hectares;
for the first 15 hectares 34,934.00 0.00 34,934.00 X 0%
each additional 0.1 hectare subject to a maximum fee of £78,000 138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

The change of use of a building to use as one or more separate dwelling houses.

Where the change is from a previous use to not more than 50 dwelling houses for each dwelling house 

subject to a maximum fee of £22,895.
462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

If creating more than 50 dwellings;
for first 50 dwellings 22,859.00 0.00 22,859.00 X 0%
For each additional dwelling house to be created by the development subject to a maximum fee of 

£300,000
138.00 0.00 138.00 X 0%

The making of a material change in the use of a building or land (other than a material change of 

use coming within any of the above categories).
462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

Demolition 96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Prior Approval
 
Agricultural and Forestry buildings and operations or demolition of buildings 96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Proposed Change of Use to State funded School or Registered Nursery 96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Proposed Change of Use of Agricultural Building  to State funded School or Registered Nursery 96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Proposed Change of use of Agricultural Building to a flexible use within Shops, Financial and 

Professional services, resaurants and cafes, business, storeage or Distribution, Hotels, or Assembly or 

Leisure

96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Proposed Change of use of a Building from Office (Use Class B1) to a use within Class C3 

(Dwellinghouse)
96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Change of Use of Agricultural Building to a Dwellinghouse (Use Class C3), where there are no 

Associated Building Operations
96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 223



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

Change of Use of Agricultural Building to a Dwellinghouse (Use Class C3), and Associated Building 

Operations
206.00 0.00 206.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Storage or Distribution Buildings (Class B8) and 

any land within its curtilage to Dwelling House (Class C3)
96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Change of Use of a building from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2)Use or a Mixed Retail and Residential 

Use to a use falling within Use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse),where there are no Associated Building 

Operations

96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Amusement arcades/centres and Casinos (Sui 

Generis) and any land within its curtilage to Dwelling House (Class C3)
96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for a Change of Use from Amusement arcades/centres and Casinos (Sui 

Generis) and any land within its curtilage to Dwelling House (Class C3) and Associated Building 

Operations

206.00 0.00 206.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for a change of Use from shops (Class A1), Financial and Professional 

Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay day Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui Generis) to Restaurants and 

Cafes (Class A3)

96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for a change of Use from shops (Class A1), Financial and Professional 

Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay day Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui Generis) to Restaurants and 

Cafes (Class A3) and associated building works

206.00 0.00 206.00 X 0%

Change of Use of a building from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2)Use or a Mixed Retail and Residential 

Use to a use falling within Use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse), where there are no Associated Building 

Operations

96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Change of Use of a building from a Retail (Use Class A1 or A2)Use or a Mixed Retail and Residential 

Use to a use falling within Use Class C3 (Dwellinghouse), and Associated Building Operations
206.00 0.00 206.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for a change of Use from shops (Class A1), Financial and Professional 

Services (Class A2), Betting Offices, Pay day Loan Shops and Casinos (Sui Generis) to Assembly and 

Leisure Uses (Class D2)

96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Communications 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for a Development consisting of the erection or construction of a collection 

facility within the Curtilage of a shop
96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for the temporary use of Buildings or land for the purpose of Commercial 

Fil-making and the associated temporary structures, Works, Plant or Machinery required in connection 

with that use

96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Notification for Prior Approval for the installation, alteration or replacement of other Solar Photovoltaics 

(PV) equipment on roofs of non-domestic buildings up to a capacity of 1MW
96.00 0.00 96.00 X 0%

Certificate of existing use or operation
As for planning 

application
- - - 0%

Certificate of existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with any condition or limitation 234.00 0%

Certificate of proposed use of development
50% of planning 

application
- - - 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 224



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

ADVERTISEMENTS

Advertisements displayed on business premises on the forecourt of business premises, or on 

other land within the curtilage of business premises, wholly with reference to all or any of the 

following matters;

The nature of the business or other activity carried on, on the premises.

The goods sold or the services provided on the premises.

The name and qualification of the person carrying on such business or activity or supplying such goods 

or services.

132.00 0.00 132.00 X 0%

Advertisements for the purpose of directing members of the public to, or otherwise drawing 

attention to the existence of business premises which are in the same locality as the site on 

which the advertisement is to be displayed but which are not visible from that site.

132.00 0.00 132.00 X 0%

All other advertisements. 462.00 0.00 462.00 X 0%

CONDITIONS

Variation or removal of a planning condition 234.00 0.00 234.00 X 0%

Request for confirmation that one or more conditions have been complied with - Householder 34.00 0.00 34.00 X 0%

Request for confirmation that one or more conditions have been complied with - All other 116.00 0.00 116.00 X 0%

Non-Material Amendment

Householder 34.00 0.00 34.00 X 0%

All Other Cases 234.00 0.00 234.00 X 0%

High Hedge Complaints 600.00 0.00 600.00 E 0%
GDC0152847 / 52886 0%

MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES
Copies of listed building entries No charge - - - 0%

Copy of scanned file sent electronically No charge - - - 0%

Copies of plans (A2 and larger, per plan) 10.00 2.00 12.00 V 0%

Viability Audit Fee

Full cost of audit 

to be recovered 

from applicant

- - V - recovery of full cost of service 

0%

Research of Planning Data for a single domestic dwelling. (Includes research Listed Building and 

Ancient Monuments)
0.00 0.00 0.00 V -100%

Research of Planning Data for a single commercial property.  (Includes research Listed Building 

and Ancient Monuments)
0.00 0.00 0.00 V -100%

Appendix 2

P
age 225



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

Pre Application Advice

Heritage Asset only pre-application advice (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas not 

involving planning Permission)
Advice regarding trees if a site visit or meeting is required 0.00 0.00 0.00 V -100%
Householder development (to enlarge, improve or alter an existing dwelling, carry out operations 

in its curtilage that are ancillary to the dwelling)
Minor Development - max 2 dwellings, non-residential schemes with max 499m2 floorspace or 

max 0.49ha, adverts, change of use of buildings max 499m2 floorspace or max 0.49ha and single 

wind turbine/telecomm mast max 17m high
Intermediate Development - 3 to 9 dwellings, non-residential schemes with 500 - 999m2 

floorspace or 0.5 - 0.99ha, change of use of buildings 500-999m2 floorspace or 0.5 - 0.99ha and 

single wind turbine/telecomm mast exceeding 17m high
Major Development - 10 to 49 dwellings, non-residential schemes with 1000 - 1999m2 floorspace 

or 1 - 1.99ha change of use of buildings 1000 - 1999m2 floorspace or 1 - 1.99ha and 2 9 wind 

turbines
Significant Development - 50 dwellings or more, non-residential schemes over 2000m2 

floorspace or 2ha, change of use of buildings over 2000m2 floorspace or 2ha, more than 10 wind 

turbines and any scheme requiring EIA
Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) 0.00 - - V -

PLANNING APPLICATION FEES EXEMPTIONS - CONCESSIONARY FEES

Applications for alterations to a dwelling house for the benefit of a disabled person and alterations 

to a public building for the sole purpose of providing means of access for disabled persons
No charge - - - 0%

Applications for Listed Building consent or applications for Conservation Area Consent No charge - - - 0%

Planning permission for relevant demolition in a conservation area No charge - - - 0%

Works to tress subject to TPO or in a Conservation Area Hedgerow removal No charge - - - 0%

Some submissions and modified re-submissions from the same applicant within 12 months of 

the previous approval, for the same site.
No charge - - - 0%

The first revised application for development on the same site by the same applicant submitted 

within 12 months of the receipt of an application that is later withdrawn.
No charge - - - 0%

Application for a lawful development certificate for an existing use, where an application for 

planning permission for the same development would be exempt from the need to pay a planning 

fee under any other planning fee regulation

No charge - - - 0%

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement following either a withdrawl of an 

earlier application (before notice of decision was issued) or where the application is made 

following refusal of consent for display of an advertisement, and where the application is made 

by or on behalf of the same person

No charge - - - 0%

If the application is for consent to display an advertisement which results from a direction under 

Regulation 7 of the 2007 Regulations, dis-applying deemed consent Regulation 6 to the 

advertisement in question.

No charge - - - 0%

If the application is for alternative proposals for the same site by the same applicant, in order to 

benefit from permitted development right in Schedule 2 Part 3 Class V of GDPO 2015 (as 

amended)

No charge - - - 0%

£50 for letter

Additional £50 if site visit or meeting required, plus VAT

£100 for one site visit and one letter

Additional £50 if meeting or follow on advice is requested plus VAT

£200 for one site visit and one letter

Additional £50 if meeting is requested and each and every letter and meeting thereafter plus VAT

£50 for one site visit and one letter

Additional £50 if meeting requested plus VAT

£500 for one site visit, meeting and letter

Additional £50 if meeting is requested and each and every letter and meeting thereafter plus VAT

£1000 for two site visits and two meetings

Additional £50 for each and every meeting thereafter plus VAT

Appendix 2

P
age 226



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

If the application relates to a condition or conditions on an application for Listed Building 

Consent or a planning permission for relevant demolition in a Conservation Area
No charge - - - 0%

If the application is for a cetificate of lawfulness of proposed works to a listed building No charge - - - 0%

Prior approval for a proposed larger home extension No charge - - - 0%

If the application is for an alternative proposal being submitted on the same site by the same 

applicant on the same day where the application is of lesser cost then the fee is 50%
No charge - - - 0%

In respect of Reserved Matters you must pay a sum equal to or greater than what would be 

payable at current rates for approval of all reserved matters.  If that amount has been paid then 

the fee is £462

No charge - - - 0%

Where a planning application crosses one or more local or district planning authorities, the fee is 

150% and is paid to the authority with the larger part of the site.
No charge - - - 0%

Applications required because of the removal of permitted development rights by a condition 

attached to a planning permission
0.00 - - - -100%

Applications relating to a change of use from a purpose of one of the classes specified in the Use 

Classes Order to another purpose in the same class because the change is prohibited by a 

condition imposed on a previous planning permission.

0.00 - - - -100%

Applications by Parish Councils 0.00 - - X 0%

Playing Fields (Sports Clubs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 X -100%

-26%

Community Infrastructure Levy - please use this link;

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning/community-infrastructure-levy-

cil-for-planning-applications/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-charges-exemptions-penalties-and-

appeals/

Appendix 2

P
age 227

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-for-planning-applications/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-charges-exemptions-penalties-and-appeals/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-for-planning-applications/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-charges-exemptions-penalties-and-appeals/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-for-planning-applications/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-charges-exemptions-penalties-and-appeals/


NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

LOCAL LAND CHARGES

    

Con29 Part 1 2016 Edition including highways 69.17 13.83 83.00 V 6%
£4.17 increase to reflect additional burden of 

providing service 
Con29 Part 1 2016 Edition excluding highways 0.00 0.00 0.00 V -100% NO demand for this service   volume <5 pa
Refresh Con29 Part 1 2016 Edition submitted by original Solicitor (within 6 months of issue date - 1 re-

run only)
0.00 0.00 0.00 V -100%

NO demand for this service  volume <3 over 8 

year period
Con29 Part 1 2016 Edition Parcel Fee 10.00 2.00 12.00 V

LLC1 20.00 0.00 20.00 X -20%
efficencies in process allow for reduction in fee 

- based on time and motion studies

Part 1 Enquiries

One parcel of land - included above Included above - - - -
Each additional 10.00 2.00 12.00 V 0%
LLC1 additional Parcel Fee 2.00 0.00 2.00 X 0%

Part 11 Enquires

Each printed enquiry;
For enquiries 4 - 21 11.00 2.20 13.20 V 0%
For Enquiry No. 22 25.00 5.00 30.00 V 0%
Con29 Part II submission only (Admin fee when submitted without Con29 Part 1) 10.00 2.00 12.00 V 0%

Personal Search (Land Charge only) No charge - - - -
-24%

Amended 1st April 2010.

These fees are for the Council to provide compiled property search reports for properties throughout the District.

In order to comply with Government guidance from 1st April 2009, SLDC introduced a new charging structure for property search services

a) A charging structure for unrefined property data held by the council and

b) A charging structure for the Council's services in providing compiled refined search reports

Statutory regulations on charging for property search services now require that in respect of a) that the council sets charges on a cost recovery 

basis only and in respect of b) that the Council has regard to the costs it incurs in providing the service.

Appendix 2

P
age 228



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

BUILDING CONTROL FEES

For further information on Building Control Fees and Charges please go to;
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/planning-and-development/building-control/building-control-

applications/
and see schedules 1, 2 and 3

Houses up to 300 square metres & Flats up to 3 storeys

Charges for New Dwellings
Plan Charge
1 Dwelling type 225.00 45.00 270.00 V 0%
2 Dwelling types 300.00 60.00 360.00 V 0%
3 Dwelling types 375.00 75.00 450.00 V 0%
4 Dwelling types 475.00 95.00 570.00 V 0%
6 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
7 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
8 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
9 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
10 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
11 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
12 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
13 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
14 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
15 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
16 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
17 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
18 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
19 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
Inspection Charge
1 Dwelling type 475.00 95.00 570.00 V 6%
2 Dwelling types 625.00 125.00 750.00 V 9%
3 Dwelling types 825.00 165.00 990.00 V 6%
4 Dwelling types 950.00 190.00 1,140.00 V 6%
6 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
7 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
8 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
9 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
10 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
11 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
12 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
13 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
14 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
15 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -

The Building Regulation Charges are divided into a Plan and Inspection charge, or Building Notice charge.

The basis of these charges are derived from Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 2010, valid from 1st April 2013.

Full Plans - The Plan Charge must be paid at the time plans are deposited with the Council. An invoice for the inspection charge will be issued 

after the first inspection has been carried out.

Building Notices - The charges must be paid at the time this notice is submitted to the Council. The Building Notice Charge is the combined 

Plan and Inspection Charge total inclusive of VAT. A Building Notice cannot be used for new houses where new roads or streets are to be 

constructed.

Notes:

1. The amount of the plan charge is based on the number of dwelling types contained in the application; the inspection charge is based on the 

total units in the project.

2. For 5 or more dwellings or if the floor area of the dwelling exceeds 300m
2 

or flats over 3 storeys, the charge will be individually determined.

3. For electrical work not covered under a Competent Persons Scheme, the basic inspection charge per dwelling will be £270.00 including VAT 

(account will be given to repetitive work and a discount may be applied).

4. Unless otherwise agreed, schemes exceeding one year in duration may be subject to an additional charge.

Appendix 2

P
age 229

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/planning-and-development/building-control/building-control-applications/
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/planning-and-development/building-control/building-control-applications/


NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

16 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
17 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
18 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
19 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
Building Notice Charge
1 Dwelling type 700.00 140.00 840.00 V 4%
2 Dwelling types 925.00 185.00 1,110.00 V 6%
3 Dwelling types 1200.00 240.00 1,440.00 V 4%
4 Dwelling types 1425.00 285.00 1,710.00 V 4%
6 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
7 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
8 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
9 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
10 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
11 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
12 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
13 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
14 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
15 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
16 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
17 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
18 Dwelling types Contact for price - - V -
19 Dwelling types - - V -

Certain Small Domestic Buildings & Extensions and Other Work

Applying for Building Regulations Approval
Full Plans - Deposit Charge

Attached or Detached garage over 30m
2
 but under 60m

2
150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions up to 10m
2

150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions over 10m
2
 but under 20m

2
150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions over 20m
2
 but under 40m

2
150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions over 40m
2
 but under 60m

2
150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions over 60m
2
 but under 100m

2
150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions over 100m
2

Contact for Price - - V -
A loft conversion 150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%

The Building Regulation Charges are divided into a Plan and Inspection charge, Building Notice charge and Regularisation charge.

The basis of these charges are derived from Building (Local Authority Charges) Regulations 2010, valid from 1st April 2013.

Full Plans - The Plan Charge must be paid at the time plans are deposited with the Council. Where an inspection charge applies, an invoice will 

be issued after the first inspection has been carried out.

Building Notices - The charges must be paid at the time this notice is submitted to the Council. 

Regularisation Charge - This type of application is solely for use where work undertaken on or after 11 November 1985 and is already 

completed without prior knowledge / notification to the Council and house owners seek retrospective certification. However these charges are 

150% of the net charge.

Exemption - Where work is to provide access and facilities for disabled people in an existing building, or is an extension of a room in a dwelling, 

where sole use will be for the carrying out of medical treatment or storage facilities for a disabled person, adaptation or replacement of 

accommodation, no charge is payable.

Total Estimated Cost for Works Under Schedule 3 - Charges for all commercial / industrial / other residential and domestic alterations are 

taken from Schedule 3. These are based on an estimated cost that would be charged by a professional contractor, excluding professional fees 

and VAT.

Small Buildings and Extensions  (Schedule 2) - Where the work in question includes the erection of more than one extension to a building, 

the total floor area of all such extensions should be combined to determine the charge payable in accordance with Schedule 2.

Stage Payments - In certain cases charges may be paid by instalments, by prior agreement with the Building Control Team Leader.

Please note : Unless otherwise agreed, schemes exceeding one year duration may be subject to an additional charge.

Appendix 2

P
age 230



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

Full Plans - Inspection Charge

Detached or attached garage over 30m
2
 but under 60m

2
175.00 35.00 210.00 V 17%

Domestic extensions 4 - 10m
2

175.00 35.00 210.00 V 17%

Domestic extensions over 10m
2
 but under 20m

2
0.00 0.00 0.00 V -100%

Domestic extensions over 20m
2
 but under 40m

2
300.00 60.00 360.00 V 9%

Domestic extensions over 40m
2
 but under 60m

2
375.00 75.00 450.00 V 7%

Domestic extensions over 60m
2
 but under 100m

2
475.00 95.00 570.00 V 6%

Domestic extensions over 100m
2

Contact for Price - - V -
A loft conversion 250.00 50.00 300.00 V 0%
Building Notice

Detached or attached garage over 30m
2
 but under 60m

2
325.00 65.00 390.00 V 8%

Domestic extensions up to 10m
2

325.00 65.00 390.00 V 8%

Domestic extensions over 10m
2
 but under 20m

2
400.00 80.00 480.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions over 20m
2
 but under 40m

2
425.00 85.00 510.00 V 0%

Domestic extensions over 40m
2
 but under 60m

2
525.00 105.00 630.00 V 5%

Domestic extensions over 60m
2
 but under 100m

2
625.00 125.00 750.00 V 4%

Domestic extensions over 100m
2

Contact for Price V -
A loft conversion 400.00 80.00 480.00 V 0%
Regularisation

Detached or attached garage over 30m
2
 but under 60m

2
487.50 0.00 487.50 X 8%

Domestic extensions 4 - 10m
2

487.50 0.00 487.50 X 8%

Domestic extensions over 10m
2
 but under 20m

2
600.00 0.00 600.00 X 0%

Domestic extensions over 20m
2
 but under 40m

2
675.00 0.00 675.00 X 6%

Domestic extensions over 40m
2
 but under 60m

2
787.50 0.00 787.50 X 5%

Domestic extensions over 60m
2
 but under 100m

2
937.50 0.00 937.50 X 4%

Domestic extensions over 100m
2

Contact for Price - - X -
A loft conversion 600.00 0.00 600.00 X 0%

Electrical Installation
Electrical Installation - Re-wiring not included in the Competent Persons Scheme 225.00 45.00 270.00 V 13%
Electrical Installation - New circuits 150.00 30.00 180.00 V 20%
Electrical Installation - Single socket / light point 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 25%

Minimum Charges
Total Charge

Replacement of 1 - 6 windows or doors in dwellings, not part of a FENSA scheme (or equivalent) 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 25%
Replacement of 7 - 12 windows or doors in dwellings, not part of a FENSA scheme (or equivalent) 150.00 30.00 180.00 V 20%
Replacement of 13 or more windows or doors in dwellings, not part of a FENSA scheme (or equivalent) 225.00 45.00 270.00 V 13%
Sewage treatment plant 225.00 45.00 270.00 V 13%
Chimney lining / Insulation of stove 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 33%
A revised scheme considered not to be the same as originally deposited 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 25%
Material alteration to thermal element requiring upgrading of insulation, greater than 25% of roof, walls or 

floors.
100.00 20.00 120.00 V 25%

Conversion of single garage to habitable room 225.00 45.00 270.00 V 13%
Demolition Notices (if done within the six week period of submission) 125.00 0.00 125.00 E 0%
Regularisation
Replacement of 1 - 6 windows or doors in dwellings, not part of a FENSA scheme (or equivalent) 150.00 0.00 150.00 X 25%
Replacement of 7 - 12 windows or doors in dwellings, not part of a FENSA scheme (or equivalent) 225.00 0.00 225.00 X 20%
Replacement of 13 or more windows or doors in dwellings, not part of a FENSA scheme (or equivalent) 337.50 0.00 337.50 X 13%
Sewage treatment plant 337.50 0.00 337.50 X 13%
Chimney lining / insulation of stove 337.50 0.00 337.50 X 13%
Material alteration to thermal element requiring upgrading of insulation, greater than 25% of roof, walls or 

floors.
150.00 0.00 150.00 X 25%

Conversion of single garage to habitable room 337.50 0.00 337.50 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 231



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

All Other Work
Plan Charge
£0 - £1,000 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 25%
£1,001 - £2,000 150.00 30.00 180.00 V 20%
£2,001 - £5,000 225.00 45.00 270.00 V 13%
£5,001 - £10,000 75.00 15.00 90.00 V 0%
£10,001 - £20,000 75.00 15.00 90.00 V 0%
£20,001 - £30,000 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 0%
£30,001 - £40,000 125.00 25.00 150.00 V 0%
£40,001 - £50,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£50,001 - £60,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£60,001 - £70,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£70,001 - £80,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£80,001 - £90,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£90,001 - £100,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£100,001 - £125,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£125,001 - £150,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£150,001 - £175,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£175,001 - £200,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£200,001 - £225,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£225,001 - £250,000 Contact for Price - - V -
Inspection Charge
£0 - £1,000 - - - V -
£1,001 - £2,000 - - - V -
£2,001 - £5,000 - - - V -
£5,001 - £10,000 200.00 40.00 240.00 V 14%
£10,001 - £20,000 250.00 50.00 300.00 V 11%
£20,001 - £30,000 325.00 65.00 390.00 V 8%
£30,001 - £40,000 400.00 80.00 480.00 V 7%
£40,001 - £50,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£50,001 - £60,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£60,001 - £70,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£70,001 - £80,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£80,001 - £90,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£90,001 - £100,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£100,001 - £125,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£125,001 - £150,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£150,001 - £175,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£175,001 - £200,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£200,001 - £225,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£225,001 - £250,000 Contact for Price - - V -
Building Notice Charge
£0 - £1,000 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 33%
£1,001 - £2,000 150.00 30.00 180.00 V 20%
£2,001 - £5,000 225.00 45.00 270.00 V 13%
£5,001 - £10,000 275.00 55.00 330.00 V 10%
£10,001 - £20,000 325.00 65.00 390.00 V 8%
£20,001 - £30,000 425.00 85.00 510.00 V 6%
£30,001 - £40,000 525.00 105.00 630.00 V 5%
£40,001 - £50,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£50,001 - £60,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£60,001 - £70,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£70,001 - £80,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£80,001 - £90,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£90,001 - £100,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£100,001 - £125,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£125,001 - £150,000 Contact for Price - - V -

Appendix 2

P
age 232



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

£150,001 - £175,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£175,001 - £200,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£200,001 - £225,000 Contact for Price - - V -
£225,001 - £250,000 Contact for Price - - V -
Regularisation Charge
£0 - £1,000 150.00 0.00 150.00 X 25%
£1,001 - £2,000 225.00 0.00 225.00 X 20%
£2,001 - £5,000 337.50 0.00 337.50 X 13%
£5,001 - £10,000 412.50 0.00 412.50 X 10%
£10,001 - £20,000 487.50 0.00 487.50 X 8%
£20,001 - £30,000 637.50 0.00 637.50 X 6%
£30,001 - £40,000 787.50 0.00 787.50 X 5%
£40,001 - £50,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£50,001 - £60,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£60,001 - £70,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£70,001 - £80,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£80,001 - £90,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£90,001 - £100,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£100,001 - £125,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£125,001 - £150,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£150,001 - £175,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£175,001 - £200,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£200,001 - £225,000 Contact for Price - - X -
£225,001 - £250,000 Contact for Price - - X -

GBC1152848/9 8%

Please note : Unless otherwise agreed, schemes exceeding one year in duration may be subject to an additional charge.

In the case of charges for contracts which exceed £50,000 

or 

where contracts below this level are likely to be repeated ,

Please contact the Building Control Team Leader, to establish the appropriate charges.

Appendix 2

P
age 233



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

Homelessness
Town View Fields Hostel, Kendal 
Accommodation Charge 259.79 0.00 259.79 X 0% No change to fees
Service Charge 24.10 0.00 24.10 X 0% No change to fees
Laundry Tokens 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0% No change to fees

Houses in Multiple Occupation - Initial Application Fee

Minimum charge / 10% discount for membership of the Cumbria Landlord Accreditation Scheme
35.00 0.00 35.00 X 0% Reflects hourly rates (New Fee)

Houses in Multiple Occupation - Initial Licence

Minimum charge / 10% discount for membership of the Cumbria Landlord Accreditation Scheme
415.00 0.00 415.00 X 8% Reflects hourly rates

each additional letting room above 5 rooms (max £600)

If a landlord applies for a licence / 10% discount for membership of the Cumbria Landlord Accreditation 

Scheme

30.00 0.00 30.00 X 15% Reflects hourly rates

Houses in Multiple Occupation - Renewal of Licence

10% discount for membership of the Cumbria Landlord Accreditation Scheme
250.00 0.00 250.00 X 14%

each additional letting room above 5 rooms (max £600)

10% discount for membership of the Cumbria Landlord Accreditation Scheme
0.00 0.00 0.00 X -100%

-15%

Immigration Inspections 108.22 0.00 108.22 X 2%
Contributions from those in Bed and Breakfast accommodation

Contribution equals non-accommodation charge
Various 0.00 Various E - No change to fees

Disabled Facilities Grants
Level Access Showers 577.11 115.42 692.53 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Overbath Showers 577.11 115.42 692.53 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Ramps 577.11 115.42 692.53 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Stairlifts 447.21 89.44 536.65 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Door Widening 577.11 115.42 692.53 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Other major works 1,016.50 203.30 1,219.80 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Other minor works 577.11 115.42 692.53 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Flat rate additions for additional lots 299.50 59.90 359.40 V 28% Reflects hourly rates
Architectural Design Service - Per Hour 21.22 4.24 25.46 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Aborted Works 288.60 57.72 346.32 V 2% Reflects hourly rates
Architectural services 567.20 113.44 680.64 V 2% Reflects hourly rates

CARAVAN SITE - Charges set by Camping and Caravanning Club. 

Contact Number 024 7647 5426. www.campingandcaravanningclub.co.uk

Appendix 2

P
age 234



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

MARKETS

Charges for all street markets are higher in high season (Apr-Oct) than low season (Nov-Mar)

Kendal Market Hall Various 0.00 Various E No change to fees
Tables weekday 6.00 0.00 6.00 E 0% No change to fees
Tables Saturday 4.20 0.00 4.20 E 0% No change to fees

Kendal Street Market
i. Market Place
Charge per 0.305 metre frontage (ft)
April - 20th October 1.70 0.00 1.70 X 0% No change to fees
21st October - March 1.20 0.00 1.20 X 0% No change to fees
Commercial hire on non market days - Cumbria County Council Fee X CCC Fee
per additional day - Cumbria County Council Fee X CCC Fee
General hire on non market days - Cumbria County Council Fee X CCC Fee
per additional day - Cumbria County Council Fee X CCC Fee

ii. Stramongate and New Road
Charge per 0.305 metre frontage (ft)
April - 20th October 1.20 0.00 1.20 X 0% No change to fees
21st October - March 1.00 0.00 1.00 X 0% No change to fees

0%
Ambleside Market 
Charge per 0.305 metre frontage (ft)
April - 20th October 0.70 0.00 0.70 X 0% No change to fees
21st October - March 0.58 0.00 0.58 X 0% No change to fees

0%
Bird Cage Finkle Street
Admin charge per day (0900 to 1700) 
Charity use 16.66 3.33 19.99 V 0% No change to fees
Commercial use 33.33 6.67 40.00 V 0% No change to fees

Appendix 2

P
age 235



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

PUBLIC HALLS

Kendal Town Hall

Hourly rate available for rooms at the discretion of the Manager
Assembly Room
Morning or Afternoon session 60.83 12.17 73.00 V 0%
Concert rate 93.33 18.67 112.00 V 0%
Evening session    (18.00-22.00) 76.67 15.33 92.00 V 0%
Evening session    (22.00-23.00) 34.17 6.83 41.00 V 1%
Concert rate 97.50 19.50 117.00 V 0%
Concert rate (22.00-23.00) 280.83 56.17 337.00 V -6%
Coffee Morning       (8.30-12.30) 49.17 9.83 59.00 V 0%
Wedding Ceremony 141.67 28.33 170.00 V -17%
Bindloss Room  
Morning or Afternoon session 27.50 5.50 33.00 V 1%
Evening session    (18.00-22.00) 31.67 6.33 38.00 V 1%
Evening session    (22.00-23.00) 20.83 4.17 25.00 V 2%
Coffee Morning       (8.30-12.30) 25.83 5.17 31.00 V -2%
Wedding Ceremony 85.21 17.04 102.25 V -17%
Town Council Chamber
Morning or Afternoon session 27.50 5.50 33.00 V 1%
Evening session    (18.00-22.00) 31.67 6.33 38.00 V 1%
Evening session    (22.00-23.00) 25.83 5.17 31.00 V 27%
Wedding Ceremony 85.21 17.04 102.25 V -17%
Georgian Room   
Morning or Afternoon session 27.50 5.50 33.00 V 1%
Evening session    (18.00-22.00) 31.67 6.33 38.00 V 1%
Evening session    (22.00-23.00) 25.83 5.17 31.00 V 27%
Wedding Ceremony 85.21 17.04 102.25 V -17%
Romney Room
Morning or Afternoon session 25.83 5.17 31.00 V 1%
Evening session    (18.00-22.00) 25.83 5.17 31.00 V 1%
Evening session    (22.00-23.00) 25.83 5.17 31.00 V 1%
Kent Room  
Morning or Afternoon session 20.83 4.17 25.00 V 2%
Evening session    (18.00-22.00) 24.58 4.92 29.50 V 0%
Evening session    (22.00-23.00) 14.58 2.92 17.50 V 1%
Additional Charges  
Sunday/Bank Holidays 30% Additional 30% Additional V

Business Rate Same % incr as 

general

Same % incr as 

general
Charity Rate Same % incr as 

general

Same % incr as 

general
Public Liability Insurance 16% additional 

charge

of room hire

16% additional 

charge

of room hire

E

Appendix 2

P
age 236



NET CHARGE VAT GROSS CHARGE  VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee REASON FOR FEE CHANGE
2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT £ £ £

Equipment hire outside the hall
Go-pak table 2'x3' (each) 1.67 0.33 2.00 V -2%
Go-pak table 2'x6' (each) 3.33 0.67 4.00 V -2%
Plastic 'Samsung' stacking chairs (each) 1.04 0.21 1.25 V -2%

0%
Refreshments
Fair trade tea & coffee, biscuits 
per 10 cup flask 8.33 1.67 10.00 V -18% No biscuits being served 
Orange/Apple juice per jug 7.29 1.46 8.75 V 2%
Hot water and sachets 3.75 0.75 4.50 V -12% No biscuits being served 

-9%
Equipment hire
Upright Piano 12.29 2.46 14.75 V 0%

Tuning/Re-positioning Actual cost plus 

20%

Actual cost plus 

20%

E
No change to fees

Lighting 38.33 7.67 46.00 V 0%
P.A. system (Assembly room only) 42.50 8.50 51.00 V 0%
Portable P A system 14.58 2.92 17.50 V 1%
CD sound system (Assembly room only) 25.83 5.17 31.00 V 1%
Stage Extension use 18.33 3.67 22.00 V 0%
TV/Video Player 0.00 0.00 0.00 V -100% no longer available n/a 
Overhead projector & screen 12.08 2.42 14.50 V 2%
Flip chart stand 8.75 1.75 10.50 V 3%
Additional use of kitchen 25.83 5.17 31.00 V 1%
Bar 51.25 10.25 61.50 V 0%
Tablecloths 3.33 0.67 4.00 V -2%
Crockery with room hire 9.79 1.96 11.75 V 0%

Banner -Erection & Dismantling by caretakers ( Advertising in prime location) 148.75 29.75 178.50 V 0%
-93%

PERFORMING RIGHTS SOCIETY CHARGES
Kendal Town Hall
Assembly Room
Concerts 
At Managers discretion or as levied to SLDC by PRS
Profit making  organisations

    - Popular music 3% on gross 

ticket sales

3% on gross 

ticket sales

V -

    - Variety shows 2% on gross

ticket sales 

2% on gross

ticket sales 

V -

    - Classical music 4.8% on gross 

ticket sales

4.8% on gross 

ticket sales

V -

Other activities -
Non-profit making organ 8.33 1.67 10.00 V 0%

Profit making  organisations As levied to SLDC 

by PRS

As levied to SLDC 

by PRS

V -

0%

Appendix 2

P
age 237



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

CEMETERY CHARGES
     The fees, payments and sums set out below apply
    where the person to be interred or in respect of whom
    a right is to be granted, is, or immediately before his/
    her death or application for the right, was an inhabitant
    of the area administered by South Lakeland District
    Council or, in the case of a still born child, where
    the parents (or one of them) are, or at the time were,
    such inhabitants.

    In all other cases the fees, payments and sums 
    shall be doubled.

    Interment
    The fees indicated below apply only where the interment
    is made between the hours of 9.30 and 15.00 on
    Monday to Friday. In any other cases an additional
    fee  will be payable and such cases will 313.00 0.00 313.00 X 2%
    include any days which are or may in future be
    classed as public holidays.

    Funerals on a Saturday are at the discretion of the  
    Council and can only be considered when staff
    are available to carry out the necessary works.
    An additional fee will be payable:
    Full grave interment 313.00 0.00 313.00 X 2%
    Ashes interment or scattering 110.00 0.00 110.00 X 3%

    Interments will not be permitted on Sundays,
    Good Friday or Christmas Day.

    For the interment in a grave in respect of which
    no exclusive right of burial has been granted:

    Of the body of a still-born child, or of a child whose                                 Single Depth No Fee
    age at the time of death did not exceed one month.

    Of the body of a person whose age at the time of                                     Single Depth 86.00 0.00 86.00 X 132% This fee gives the option not to 
    death exceeded one month but did not exceed purchase rights over a grave space

    12 years. but should be the same fee as below. It
is unlikely to be chosen these days.

    Of the body of a person whose age at the time of 470.00 0.00 470.00 X 2%
    death exceeded 12 years.

    For the interment in an earthen grave, walled
    grave or vault in respect of which an exclusive right
    of burial has been granted:

Appendix 2

P
age 238



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

    Interment
    Of the body of a still-born child, or of a child whose No Fee
    age at the time of death did not exceed one month.

    Of the body of a person whose age at the time of 86.00 0.00 86.00 X 2%
    death exceeded one month but did not exceed 
    12 years. (Including dressing of the grave)

    Of the body of a person whose age at the time of
    death exceeded 12 years (Including dressing of the 
    grave) at

up to Double depth (Includes grave lining) 665.00 0.00 665.00 X 6% To recover costs of service that rise
Treble depth** (Includes grave lining) 695.00 0.00 695.00 X 3% annually by RPI. Benchmarked against 
** applies only to graves purchased with an Cumbrian Burial Authorities
option to bury at this depth, if possible.

    The internment or scattering of cremated remains 195.00 0.00 195.00 X 5% Benchmarked as average cost.

    For a search of an entry in any of the
    Cemetery Registers maintained by the Council 24.00 0.00 24.00 X 2%

    For a search and a certified copy of an entry in any 24.00 0.00 24.00 X 2%
    of the Cemetery Registers maintained by the Council

    Exclusive Rights of Burial

    For the exclusive right of burial for a period not
    exceeding 100 years from the date of grant in:

    A standard size earthen grave 665.00 0.00 665.00 X 6% As note above
    A small grave specifically allocated for the burial 64.00 0.00 64.00 X 2%
    of a child whose age at the time of death did not 
    exceed 12 years
    A space not exceeding 1.8m by 1.2m in such 265.00 0.00 265.00 X 4%
    parts of the burial grounds as may have been set
    aside for the burial of cremated remains.

    b. For the right to construct a walled grave or vault in 295.00 0.00 295.00 X 2%
    grave spaces in respect of which an exclusive right 
    of burial has been granted, there shall be payable 
    (in addition to the appropriate fee for such a grant)
    in respect of each grave space for which the right is
    acquired.

    Transfer of Exclusive Right of Burial
    Registers maintained by the Council. 49.00 0.00 49.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 239



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

    Monuments, Gravestones, Tablets and
    Monumental Inscriptions

    For the right to erect or place on a grave or vault
    in respect of which the exclusive right of burial has
    been granted:

    A flat tablet occupying a superficial area not 99.00 0.00 99.00 X 2%
    exceeding 450mm by 520mm.

    A flat tablet occupying a greater area of the 210.00 0.00 210.00 X 3%
    grave space.

    A headstone, scroll or similar monument 
Not exceeding 1 metre in height 179.00 0.00 179.00 X 3%
Exceeding 1 metre, for each 0.3 metres
or part thereof, where permitted 79.00 0.00 79.00 X 3%

    A vase in lieu of a headstone 99.00 0.00 99.00 X 2%

    For the right to place an additional inscription on 65.00 0.00 65.00 X 3%
    an existing monument. (or inscription in Book of
    Remembrance (Ulverston)

    For an entry in the Book of Remembrance 

Depends on 

length of entry V
    maintained at Ulverston Cemetery (in addition to the

    fee for Right to insert inscription)

    For installation of a bronze memorial plaque 91.67 18.33 110.00 V 0%
    (in addition to appropriate fee as set out above)

    Annual registration fee for Memorial Mason 46.67 9.33 56.00 V 2%
    Registration Scheme

    Miscellaneous Fees

    Not subject to the residential qualifications details
    in the preamble.

    Use of Chapel of Rest for funeral purposes 65.00 0.00 65.00 X 8% Benchmarked  to average fee.

Appendix 2

P
age 240



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

2. CONTROL OF DOGS
The reduction in the number of dogs 

    1st Kennelling collected as strays also means that the 
Government Prescribed Fee 25.00 0.00 25.00 X 0% income budget needs reducing to £1000
Basic Fee including 1 days kennelling 47.00 0.00 47.00 X 0% Compulsory microchipping of dogs has

resulted in a significant reduction in the
Total Minimum Charge 72.00 0.00 72.00 X 0% number of dogs kennelled as strays and

it is very rare that the same dog is picked 
Total Maximum Charge - (7 Days) 144.00 0.00 144.00 X 0% up twice in the same year so have 

reviewed and revised the fees for 2nd
    2nd & Subsequent Kennelling and subsequent kennelling accordingly.

Additional charge to be added to kennelling fees above 50.00 0.00 50.00 X -65%

ENVIRONMENTAL SEARCH
Charge per hour  (minimum charge of 1 hour) 25.00 5.00 30.00 V 0%

STREET SWEEPING

    Charge per hour (Includes driver & machine, minimum charge 2 hours) 91.67 18.33 110.00 V 3%

LITTER BIN EMPTYING

    a. Supply litter bin                                                                                                price on request Price On Request V
    b. Installation of litter bin depending on 100.00 20.00 120.00 V 0%
        location, minimum charge
    per empty & disposal 3.65 0.73 4.38 V 0%

Bulky Waste Collection
Single collection of up to 3 items 30.00 0.00 30.00 X 0%
Each additional item over 3                                                                                Maximum of 10 items per 

collection 8.00 0.00 8.00 X
0%

Appendix 2

P
age 241



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

THE PRIVATE WATER SUPPLIES REGS 2009

    Private Water Supplies
    Copy of Register Entry supplied to person with a No Charge No Charge
    direct interest in the registered property

    Copy of Registered Entry supplied to EA No Charge No Charge
    or Drinking Water Inspectorate

Analysing a sample
Small shared domestic supplies (Regulation 10)

Conductivity, Entrococci, Ecoli, pH, and Turbidity. 19.44 0.00 19.44 -22%
Commercial or large supplies (Group A parameters)

E.Coli, Total Coliforms 5.37 0.00 5.37 34%
Colony Count (22°c) 5.37 0.00 5.37 5%
Taste & Odour 6.83 0.00 -7%
Aluminium, Iron, and Manganese (& Sodium) 4.45 0.00 4.45 55%
Colour, Conductivity, and Turbidity 4.75 0.00 4.75 71%
pH 3.95 0.00 3.95 -21%
Ammonia, Nitrite, and Nitrate (& Chloride) 5.13 0.00 43%

Commercial or large supplies (Group B parameters)
Enterococci 5.37 0.00 5.37 22%
Clostridium Perfringens 5.37 0.00 5.37 -29%
Trichloroethene, Tetrachloroethene, and Tetrachloromethane 19.67 0.00 19.67 -30%
Copper, Lead, and Nickel (& Zinc) 5.03 0.00 5.03 -12%
Mercury 10.85 0.00 10.85 6%
Antimony, Arsenic,Cadmium, Cromium, and Selenium 5.03 0.00 5.03 29%
Boron 4.45 0.00 4.45 -37%
Gross Alpha and Gross Beta radiation 23.31 0.00 23.31 18%
Total Cyanide 8.83 0.00 8.83 -11%
Benzo (a) Pyrene, Benzo (b) fluoranthene, Benzo (k) fluoranthene, Benzo (ghi) perylene, and 

Indeno (123 - cd) pyrene 28.41 0.00 28.41
-10%

Fluide and Sulphate 6.05 0.00 6.05 0%
Bromate 7.06 0.00 7.06 -6%
Benzene and 12-Dichlororethane 32.14 0.00 32.14 9%
Aldrin, Dieldrin, Heptachlor Epoxide, Heptachlor, Lindane 28.88 0.00 28.88 New parameters
Pestisides 67.02 0.00 67.02 New parameters
Herbiside 67.02 0.00 67.02 New parameters
Radon 101.14 0.00 101.14 11%
Acrylamide, 39.38 0.00 39.38 New parameters
Vinyal Chloride 6.62 0.00 6.62 New parameters
Epichlorohydrin 34.30 0.00 34.30 New parameters
Tritium 37.80 0.00 37.80 8%
Total Organic Carbon 5.75 0.00 5.75 New parameters
Chloride 5.13 0.00 5.13 X 43%

    Risk assessment
    Domestic/Commercial                                                                                   per hour 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%

    Sampling per visit 90.00 0.00 90.00 X 0%

    Investigation (per hour) up to £100 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%

Total number of private water supplies in 

South Lakeland is 1715. These charges 

do not apply to single domestic supplies 

which total 1055 supplies within district. 

The total number of supplies covered by 

the Private Water Regulations is 660 

supplies. Approximately 440 of the 

supplies are commercial, and 220 are 

small shared domestic.These charges 

are a direct result of the amended 

legislative requirements of the The 

Private Water Supplies (England) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2018 which 

has required monitoring of additional 

parameters, and are matched to 

analytical costs charged to the authority 

by our contractor.  

Appendix 2

P
age 242



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

LICENCES IN RESPECT OF ANIMALS

    Selling of animals for pets (Grant) 216.75 0.00 216.75 X 0%
    Selling of animals for pets (Renewal) 200.52 0.00 200.52 X 0%
    Animal Boarding (including kennels and cattery) (Grant) plus cost of veterinary advice and any other 

cost 
229.65 0.00 229.65

X
6%

    Animal Boarding (including kennels and cattery) (renewal) plus cost of veterinary advice and any other 

cost 
197.39 0.00 197.39

X
0%

    Home Boarding and dog day care (Grant) 184.75 0.00 184.75 X 0%
    Home Boarding and dog day care (Renewal) 174.17 0.00 174.17 X -2%
    Hiring of horses (Grant) plus cost of veterinary advice and any other costs 275.36 0.00 275.36 X 0%
    Hiring of horses  (Renewal) plus cost of veterinary advice and any other costs 248.12 0.00 248.12 X 0%
    Dangerous Wild Animals Act 1976 per application plus cost of veterinary advice and any other costs 232.20 0.00 232.20 X 0%
    Dog Breeding  (Grant) plus cost of veterinary advice and any other costs 232.20 0.00 232.20 X -7%
    Dog Breeding  (Renewal) plus cost of veterinary advice and any other costs 221.35 0.00 221.35 X 0%
    Zoo Licence (every four or six years) plus cost of veterinary advice and any other costs 517.08 0.00 517.08 X 0%
    Informal Zoo Inspections 219.60 0.00 219.60 X 0%
    Administation fee for transfer of licence to another name 110.00 0.00 110.00 X 0%
    Late admin charge 22.50 4.50 27.00 V 0%

Keeping of animals for training or exhibition (Grant) 229.13 0.00 229.13 X
Keeping of animals for training or exhibition (Renewal) 197.39 0.00 197.39 X
Variation of licence/re-evaluating of rating of Animal boarding/Selling of animals for Pets/Keeping of 

Animals for Training or Exhibition/
120.06

0.00 120.06 X
Home Boarding/Dog Day Care 
Variation of licence/re-evaluating of rating of Breeding or Hiring of Horses  plus cost of veterinary 

advice and any other costs 33.60 0.00 33.60 X
Variation to reduce the licensable activity or number of animals 33.60 0.00 33.60 X
Combination of activities  - equal to the highest activity fee and vets fees where required as above 

STREET TRADING LICENCES

Application Fee 255.00 0.00 255.00 X 0%
per week 57.00 0.00 57.00 X 0%

MISCELLANEOUS LICENCES

       Sex Establishments (SEV Grant) 3,235.97 0.00 3,235.97 X 0%

       Sex Establishments (SEV Renewal) 723.37 0.00 723.37 X 0%

       Sex Establishments (Sex Shop Grant) 740.97 0.00 740.97 X 0%
       Sex Establishments (Sex Shop renewal) 351.47 0.00 351.47 X 0%
       Skin Piercing & misc (premises) Acupuncture, Tattooing and Electrolysis Licence 147.66 0.00 147.66 X 0%
       Skin Piercing & misc (personal) Acupuncture, Tattooing and Electrolysis Licence 154.88 0.00 154.88 X 0%

       Scrap Metal
       Site -               Grant 391.04 0.00 391.04 X 0%
                                Renewal 283.64 0.00 283.64 X 0%

                                Variation 124.37 0.00 124.37 X 0%

       Collector -      Grant 265.18 0.00 265.18 X 0%
                                Renewal 160.88 0.00 160.88 X 0%
                                Variation 128.58 0.00 128.58 X 0%

New Fees come from new legislation 

Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities 

Involving Animals)(England) Regulations 

2018 which comes into effect 1st 

October 2018. 

Appendix 2

P
age 243



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

LICENCES IN RESPECT OF FOOD
    Condemned Food Certificate 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%

    Export Food Certificates  - Initial visit charge 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%
    Export Food Certificates - Subsequent admin charge 25.00 0.00 25.00 X 0%
   Non-statutory sampling
   Officer time non-statutory

FOOD PREMISES REGISTRATION REGULATIONS
    Registration
    Inspection of Register
    Copy of Single entry to owner of business

    Copy of Documents where applicable 10.00 2.00 12.00 V 0%
    Copy of full Register 20.00 4.00 24.00 V 0%

PREMISES & CLUB CERTIFICATES

Premises and club application- each premise that is licensable will be allocated to a fee band according 

to the non domestic rateable value.  Evidence of premises band will be required.

New Application and Variation fee
Rateable Band
A (nil-£4,300) 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%
B (£4,301-£33,000) 190.00 0.00 190.00 X 0%
C (£33,001-£87,000) 315.00 0.00 315.00 X 0%
D (£87,001-£125,000) 450.00 0.00 450.00 X 0%
E (£125,001 plus) 635.00 0.00 635.00 X 0%

Annual Fee - payable 1 year after grant of licence
Rateable Band
A (nil-£4,300) 70.00 0.00 70.00 X 0%
B (£4,301-£33,000) 180.00 0.00 180.00 X 0%
C (£33,001-£87,000) 295.00 0.00 295.00 X 0%
D (£87,001-£125,000) 320.00 0.00 320.00 X 0%
E (£125,001 plus) 350.00 0.00 350.00 X 0%

Multiplier applied to premises in bands D & E 
where the premises are exclusively or primarily in the business of selling alcohol

D (x2)
Application fee 900.00 0.00 900.00 X 0%
Annual Charge 640.00 0.00 640.00 X 0%

E (x3)
Application fee 1,905.00 0.00 1,905.00 X 0%
Annual Charge 1,050.00 0.00 1,050.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 244



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

Exceptionally Large Events
     (an additional premises fee for large events)

No's in attendance
5,000-9,999 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 X 0%
10,000-14,999 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 X 0%
15,000- 19,999 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 X 0%
20,000- 29,999 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 X 0%
30,000- 39,999 16,000.00 0.00 16,000.00 X 0%
40,000- 49,999 24,000.00 0.00 24,000.00 X 0%
50,000- 59,999 32,000.00 0.00 32,000.00 X 0%
60,000- 69,999 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 X 0%
70,000- 79,999 48,000.00 0.00 48,000.00 X 0%
80,000- 89,999 56,000.00 0.00 56,000.00 X 0%
90,000 plus 64,000.00 0.00 64,000.00 X 0%

Personal Licences, Temporary Events & other
    fees

    a) Application for grant of personal licence 37.00 0.00 37.00 X 0%
    b)Temporary event notice 21.00 0.00 21.00 X 0%
    c) Replacement of premises licence(loss) 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%

    d) Application for provisional statement where premises being built 315.00 0.00 315.00 X 0%
    e) Notification of change name or address 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%

     f) Application to vary licence to specify    individual as premises supervisor 23.00 0.00 23.00 X 0%
    g) Application for transfer of premises licence 23.00 0.00 23.00 X 0%
    h) Interim authority notice following death, etc of licence holder 23.00 0.00 23.00 X 0%

    i) Theft, loss, etc of certificate or summary 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%

     j) Notification of change of name or alteration of rules of club 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%
    k) Change of relevant registered address of club 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%
    l) Theft, loss, etc of temporary event notice 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%
    m) Theft, loss, etc of personal licence 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%
    n) Duty to notify change of name or address 10.50 0.00 10.50 X 0%

    o) Right of freeholder etc. to be notified of licensing matters 21.00 0.00 21.00 X 0%

Exemptions from payment of Premises Licence fee
  Applications covering the provision of regulated 
  entertainment only (excluding the sale of alcohol)

       Application by a proprietor of an educational
       institution(school or college) in respect of No Charge No Charge
       premises that are, or form part of, the
       educational institution and the provision of 
       regulated entertainment on the premises 
       is carried on by the educational institution
       for and on behalf of the purposes of the
       establishment.

Appendix 2

P
age 245



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

      Application is in respect of premises that No Charge No Charge
      are or form part of a church or chapel hall
      or other similar building or village, parish or
      community hall or similar building

GAMBLING ACT 2005
Schedule of fees as per Government guidelines.
Regulation of 

Application
Bingo 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 X 0%
Adult Gaming Centre 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 X 0%
Betting (track) 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 X 0%
Family entertainment centre 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 X 0%
Betting (Other) 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 X 0%

Annual fee 
Bingo 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 X 0%
Adult gaming centre 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 X 0%
Betting (Track) 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 X 0%
Family entertainment centre 750.00 0.00 750.00 X 0%
Betting (Other) 600.00 0.00 600.00 X 0%

Variation application
Regional casino 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 X 0%
Large casino 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 X 0%
Small casino 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 X 0%
Converted casino 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 X 0%
Bingo 1,750.00 0.00 1,750.00 X 0%
Adult gaming centre 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 X 0%
Betting (track) 1,250.00 0.00 1,250.00 X 0%
Family entertainment centre 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 X 0%
Betting (Other) 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 X 0%

Provisional statement application
Regional casino 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 X 0%
Large casino 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 X 0%
Small casino 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 X 0%
Bingo 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 X 0%
Adult gaming centre 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 X 0%
Betting (track) 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 X 0%
Family entertainment centre 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 X 0%
Betting (Other) 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 246



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

Transfer
Regional casino 6,500.00 0.00 6,500.00 X 0%
Large casino 2,150.00 0.00 2,150.00 X 0%
Small casino 1,800.00 0.00 1,800.00 X 0%
Converted casino 1,350.00 0.00 1,350.00 X 0%
Bingo 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 X 0%
Adult gaming centre 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 X 0%
Betting (track) 950.00 0.00 950.00 X 0%
Family entertainment centre 950.00 0.00 950.00 X 0%
Betting (Other) 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 X 0%

Re-instatement
Regional casino 6,500.00 0.00 6,500.00 X 0%
Large casino 2,150.00 0.00 2,150.00 X 0%
Small casino 1,800.00 0.00 1,800.00 X 0%
Converted casino 1,350.00 0.00 1,350.00 X 0%
Bingo 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 X 0%
Adult gaming centre 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 X 0%
Betting (track) 950.00 0.00 950.00 X 0%
Family entertainment centre 950.00 0.00 950.00 X 0%
Betting (Other) 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 X 0%

Fee for copy of licence - All premises 16.20 0.00 16.20 X 0%
Fee to accompany notification of change of circumstances - All premises 40.20 0.00 40.20 X 0%

GAMING LICENCES
          Small Lotteries 
          Registration Fee 40.00 0.00 40.00 X 0%
          Renewal 20.00 0.00 20.00 X 0%

 

Permit/Registration New Grant - Exisitng Operator 
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine (3 or more machines) 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%
Club Gaming Machine Permit 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%
Club Gaming Machine Permit (fast track i.e. CPC holder) 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%

Permit/Registration - New Grant 
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine (1 or 2 machines) 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine (3 or more machines) 150.00 0.00 150.00 X 0%
Prize gaming permit 300.00 0.00 300.00 X 0%
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre 300.00 0.00 300.00 X 0%
Club gaming permit 200.00 0.00 200.00 X 0%
Club gaming machine permit 200.00 0.00 200.00 X 0%
Club gaming machine permit (fast track i.e. CPC holder) 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%

Permit/Registration - Renewal 

Prize gaming permit (every 10 years) 300.00 0.00 300.00 X 0%

Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre (every 10 years) 300.00 0.00 300.00 X 0%

Club gaming permit (every 10 years) 200.00 0.00 200.00 X 0%
Club gaming machine permit (every 10 years) 200.00 0.00 200.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 247



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

Permit/Registration - Annual fee 
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine (3 or more machines) 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%
Club gaming permit 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%
Club gaming machine permit 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%
Club gaming machine permit (fast track i.e. CPC holder) 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%

Permit/Registration - Variation fee 
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine (3 or more machines) 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%
Club gaming permit 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%
Club gaming machine permit 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%
Club gaming machine permit (fast track i.e. CPC holder) 100.00 0.00 100.00 X 0%

Permit/Registration - Transfer 
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine (3 or more machines) 25.00 0.00 25.00 X 0%

Permit/Registration - Change of name 
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine (3 or more machines) 25.00 0.00 25.00 X 0%
Prize gaming permit 25.00 0.00 25.00 X 0%
Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre 25.00 0.00 25.00 X 0%

Copy of permits/registrations 15.00 0.00 15.00 X 0%

 
PRIVATE HIRE/HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENSING

           Private Hire Operators Licence  Grant  -  5 Year 360.63 0.00 360.63 X 0%

           Private Hire Operators Licence  renewal  -  5 Year 220.74 0.00 220.74 X 0%

           Drivers Licence Grant  -  1 Year 98.06 0.00 98.06 X 0%

           Drivers Licence Renewal   -  1 Year 64.74 0.00 64.74 X 0%

           Drivers Licence Grant  -  3 Year 208.93 0.00 208.93 X 0%
           Drivers Licence Renewal  -  3 Year 151.87 0.00 151.87 X 0%
           DBS Application 54.00 0.00 54.00 X 0%

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over 8 years old) (Grant)  -  1 Year 247.86 0.00 247.86 X 0%
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over 8 years old) (Renewal)  -  1 Year 209.47 0.00 209.47 X 0%
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over 3 years old) (Grant)  -  1 Year 185.77 0.00 185.77 X 0%
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle over 3 years old) (Renewal)   - 1 Year 162.84 0.00 162.84 X 0%
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle up to 3 years old) (Grant)  -  1 Year 155.08 0.00 155.08 X 0%
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire (Vehicle up to 3 years old) (Renewal)  -  1 Year 131.65 0.00 131.65 X 0%
Trailer grant and renewal  -  Annual 108.40 0.00 108.40 X 0%

Transfer of Hackney/Private hire Vehicle 65.63 0.00 65.63 X 0%
Transfer of Hackney/Private hire Vehicle Ownership 65.63 0.00 65.63 X 0%

Late administration fee 22.50 4.50 27.00 V 0%
Change of details on licence 15.05 0.00 15.05 X

Appendix 2

P
age 248



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

PLATES AND SIGNS (for display on vehicles)

New or replacement door sign 34.08 6.82 40.90 V 0%

New or replacement back plate 40.71 8.14 48.85 V 0%

New or replacement interior disc 41.26 8.25 49.51 V 0%

Replacement Drivers Badge 44.76 8.95 53.71 V 0%

Bracket (optional) 10.83 2.17 13.00 V 0%

ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITTING REGULATIONS 2010
All 19/20 fees pending DEFRA confirmation

        Application Fee
        Standard Process 1,650.00 0.00 1,650.00 X 0%

        Additional fee for operating without a permit 1,188.00 0.00 1,188.00 X 0%

        Reduced fee activities 155.00 0.00 155.00 X 0%

        PVR I & II 257.00 0.00 257.00 X 0%

        Vehicle finishers 362.00 0.00 362.00 X 0%
        Additional fee for operating without permit 71.00 0.00 71.00 X 0%
        Mobile Screening and Crushing plant 1,650.00 0.00 1,650.00 X 0%
            for the 3rd to 7th applications 985.00 0.00 985.00 X 0%
            for the 8th and subsequent applications 498.00 0.00 498.00 X 0%
        Additional fee for combined Part B & waste application 310.00 0.00 310.00 X 0%

    Annual Subsistence Fee

        Low -        Standard Process 772.00 0.00 772.00 X 0%
                                 Additional fee for combined Part B & waste site 104.00 0.00 104.00 X 0%
   Medium - Standard Process 1,161.00 0.00 1,161.00 X 0%
                                 Additional fee for combined Part B & waste site 156.00 0.00 156.00 X 0%
        High -      Standard Process 1,747.00 0.00 1,747.00 X 0%
                                Additional fee for combined Part B & waste site 207.00 0.00 207.00 X 0%

      Low
       PVR I & II 113.00 0.00 113.00 X 0%
       Reduced fee activities 79.00 0.00 79.00 X 0%
       Vehicle refinishers 228.00 0.00 228.00 X 0%
       Mobile Screening and Crushing plant (1st and 2nd permits) 626.00 0.00 626.00 X 0%
           for the 3rd to 7th applications 385.00 0.00 385.00 X 0%
           for the 8th and subsequent applications 198.00 0.00 198.00 X 0%

      Med
       PVR I & II 226.00 0.00 226.00 X 0%
       Reduced fee activities 158.00 0.00 158.00 X 0%
       Vehicle refinishers 365.00 0.00 365.00 X 0%
       Mobile Screening and Crushing plant (1st and 2nd permits) 1,034.00 0.00 1,034.00 X 0%
           for the 3rd to 7th applications 617.00 0.00 617.00 X 0%
           for the 8th and subsequent applications 316.00 0.00 316.00 X 0%

Fees set by DEFRA Jan/Feb

Appendix 2

P
age 249



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

      High
       PVR I & II 341.00 0.00 341.00 X 0%
       Reduced fee activities 237.00 0.00 237.00 X 0%
       Vehicle refinishers 548.00 0.00 548.00 X 0%
       Mobile Screening and Crushing plant (1st and 2nd permits) 1,551.00 0.00 1,551.00 X 0%
           for the 3rd to 7th applications 924.00 0.00 924.00 X 0%
           for the 8th and subsequent applications 473.00 0.00 473.00 X 0%

      Process subject to E-PRTR Regs (Extra Chg) 104.00 0.00 104.00 X 0%
      Option to pay by quarterly instalments (Extra charge) 38.00 0.00 38.00 X 0%
      Late payment 52.00 0.00 52.00 X 0%

   Transfer and surrender
       Transfer 169.00 0.00 169.00 X 0%
       Partial Transfer 497.00 0.00 497.00 X 0%
       New operator at low risk reduced fee 78.00 0.00 78.00 X 0%
           activity 
       Surrender all part B Activities no charge
       Reduced fee activities- transfer no charge
       Reduced fee activities: partial transfer 47.00 0.00 47.00 X 0%
       Temporary transfer for mobile plant - first transfer 53.00 0.00 53.00 X 0%
           Repeat following enforcement/warning 53.00 0.00 53.00 X 0%

   Substantial Change s10 & s11
       Standard Process 1,050.00 0.00 1,050.00 X 0%
       Standard process where the substantive 1,650.00 0.00 1,650.00 X 0%
          change results in a new PPC activity
       Reduced fee activities- transfer 102.00 0.00 102.00 X 0%

LA-IPPC
    Application Fee 3,363.00 0.00 3,363.00 X 0%
    Additional fee for operating without permit 1,188.00 0.00 1,188.00 X 0%
    Annual Subsistence -   Low 1,446.00 0.00 1,446.00 X 0%
Med 1,610.00 0.00 1,610.00 X 0%
High 2,333.00 0.00 2,333.00 X 0%
    Substantial Variation 1,368.00 0.00 1,368.00 X 0%
    If s.9(2) of Fees & Charges Scheme  re. variation applies 3,363.00 0.00 3,363.00 X
    Transfer 235.00 0.00 235.00 X 0%
    Partial Transfer or Surrender 698.00 0.00 698.00 X 0%
                    Late payment 52.00 0.00 52.00 X 0%

Fees set by DEFRA Jan/Feb

Appendix 2

P
age 250



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

RECREATION GROUNDS

The Glebe- Bowness 

Charges for The Glebe Pitch and Putt and Tennis set by Better. See website 

www.better.org.uk

 Football pitches

per season
Senior team     Pitch Only 325.00 0.00 325.00 E 2%
Pitch & Pavilion 480.00 0.00 480.00 E 2%
Junior team      Pitch Only 165.00 0.00 165.00 E 4%
Pitch & Pavilion 300.00 0.00 300.00 E 1%

PARKS AND PLAY AREAS

Use of Council owned land
Business users

Administration and Booking Fee 41.67 8.33 50.00 V 9%

Maximum charge                             Day By Commercial Negotiation

By Commercial 

Negotiation E

Week By Commercial Negotiation

By Commercial 

Negotiation E

Fairs, fun events                               Day By Commercial Negotiation

By Commercial 

Negotiation E

Week By Commercial Negotiation

By Commercial 

Negotiation E

Amateur Band Concerts By Commercial Negotiation

By Commercial 

Negotiation E

Damage re-instatement bond     Day Based upon user numbers and surface

Based upon user 

numbers and 

surface X

Week Based upon user numbers and surface

Based upon user 

numbers and 

surface X

Charitable institutions                     By Commercial Negotiation

By Commercial 

Negotiation

Play Area inspections
12 x monthly inspections and report (price per annum) 354.17 70.83 425.00 V 3%
One off inspections 141.67 28.33 170.00 V 4%

Appendix 2

P
age 251

http://www.better.org.uk/
http://www.better.org.uk/


NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

ALLOTMENTS
Per square metre - Subject to 3 months notice 0.45 0.00 0.45 E 13%

SCAVENGING

Collection of litter on council owned Actual cost of Actual cost of V
land following an official event collection collection
dependent upon manpower required,
hours and location.

LAKE WINDERMERE

Permanent Mooring
Charges per annum (Inclusive of VAT)

All non-commercial mooring licensee entitled to limited free use of slipway tractor, mast hoist and 

showers.

(3rd Party insurance compulsory)
Open deck yachts moored annually 633.33 126.67 760.00 V 3%
All other crafts, overall length up to max of 14m (per 1.0m) 113.33 22.67 136.00 V 3%
Minimum charge for all other crafts as above 487.50 97.50 585.00 V 3%

Mooring with no boat attached 487.50 97.50 585.00 V 3%
Commercial all sizes 1,250.00 250.00 1,500.00 V 2%
up to max of 11m (36ft)
Commercial service moorings (all sizes) 1,087.50 217.50 1305.00 V 2%

Local resident discount 162.50 32.50 195.00 V 3%
applicable to mooring holders who pay Council Tax
at the full rate, are not in arrears and declare that their
sole or main residence is in South Lakeland

Jetty Berths
Berth for vessels 13 metres to 14 metres 5,250.00 1,050.00 6300.00 V 2%
Local residents discount does not apply to Jetty Berths 
Berh for vessels 12 metres to 13 metres 4,875.00 975.00 5850.00 V 2%
To include free parking permit for 1 car (excluding winter)
Berth for vessels up to 12 metres 4,500.00 900.00 5400.00 V 2%
Winter Jetty Berth 854.17 170.83 1025.00 V 3%
Local residents discount does not apply to Jetty Berths
To include free parking permit for 1 car
Electricity Card At cost plus 10% At cost plus 10% L

Appendix 2

P
age 252



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

Holiday Moorings and Berths (April- October)
(3rd Party insurance compulsory)
Per night mooring excluding launch 11.67 2.33 14.00 V 0%
Off season block bookings 229.17 45.83 275.00 V 0%
(1st November -31st March)  
Jetty berth per night  -mooring holder 11.67 2.33 14.00 V 0%

 
Jetty berth per night - non mooring holder 30.00 6.00 36.00 V 0%

Daily Slipway Charges
Does not include car & trailer parking.

Motorised craft 10.83 2.17 13.00 V 0%

All craft up to 11m (36ft) Local discount 25%

Local discount 

25% V

Sale of block of 10 launching tickets Non-local discount 10%

Non-local discount 

10% V
 

Non-motorised craft
Windsurfers, canoes and untrailered                                                                       Ferry Nab only No charge No charge V
dinghies

Waterhead Slipway
All craft up to 6m with max 5hp 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
Watehead- up to 6m overall length of craft and max 5 hp

Encroachments
The VAT treatment of the encroachment depends on whether the Council has exrecised its option to tax 

the individual encroachment site. 
 If the option has been exercised for the site, then the supply is vatable at the standard rate.

Private
Jetties, piers, quays, wharfs, catwalks, 27.95 0.00 27.95 E 3%
boathouses and wet docks
Chargeable per square metre

Commercial
Jetties, piers, quays, wharfs, catwalks, 51.00 0.00 51.00 E 3%
boathouses and wet docks
Chargeable per square metre

Slipways
Private per linear Metre 21.00 0.00 21.00 E 3%
Commercial per linear metre 38.15 0.00 38.15 E 3%

Mooring Posts
Private 7.00 0.00 7.00 E 3%
Commercial 12.71 0.00 12.71 E 3%

Appendix 2

P
age 253



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

Fences and walls
Per Linear metre in length Private 21.00 0.00 21.00 E 3%
Per Linear metre in length Commercial 38.15 0.00 38.15 E 3%
Railway lines - per pair Private 74.00 0.00 74.00 E 3%
Railway lines - per pair Commercial 135.00 0.00 135.00 E 3%

Cables - each Private 74.00 0.00 74.00 E 3%
Cables - each Commercial 135.00 0.00 135.00 E 3%

Trot mooring chain- per 0.304m 5.00 0.00 5.00 E 1%
Trot mooring 630.00 0.00 630.00 E 3%
Administration charge 185.00 0.00 185.00 X 4%

Storage of Boats
Annual Storage of Boats
Mooring licences (tenders)                                                       Excludes launching fee 95.83 19.17 115.00 V 0%
per annum (in racks)

Trailered sailing dinghy                                                                Slipping and tractor not included 263.33 52.67 316.00 V 0%
per max 5.5m (18ft) per year

Catamarans 350.00 70.00 420.00 V 0%

Holiday Boat Storage (Apr-Oct)

Trailered sailing dinghy 8.33 1.67 10.00 V 0%
per max 5.5m (18ft) per night

Powered Craft and Catamarans 20.83 4.17 25.00 V 0%
(Max L.O.A. 5.5m- Min 3rd Party Ins)  

Ferry Nab Winter Storage (Nov-March) 31.92 6.38 38.30 V 0%
per metre
Trailer parking per month 27.83 5.57 33.40 V 0%

Licence Fee
Row boats/windsurfers and sailing

dinghies 23.00 0.00 23.00 X 0%
All other craft:
Up to 6.09 metres 42.00 0.00 42.00 X 0%
Over 6.09 mtrs & up to 9.14 metres 63.00 0.00 63.00 X 0%
Over 9.14 metres 95.00 0.00 95.00 X 0%
Boatmen/Shoremen - 6 years 200.00 0.00 200.00 X 0%
Boatmen/Shoremen - 1 year 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0%
Retest fee 75.00 0.00 75.00 X 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 254



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

Other
Tractor per half hour 22.92 4.58 27.50 V 0%
Mast Hoist per use 22.92 4.58 27.50 V 0%
Warden Boat hire -  none Emergency 195.00 39.00 234.00 V 0%
per hour

Towing per half hour 195.00 39.00 234.00 V 0%
Pressure washer 22.92 4.58 27.50 V 0%

Maps - Laminated 5.00 0.00 5.00 Z 0%
Registration number boards 12.50 2.50 15.00 V 0%

Mooring holder & storage client 

Car parking       first 24hrs As per Ferry Nab Multi Tariff

As per Ferry Nab 

Multi Tariff V

concurrent 24 hrs As per Ferry Nab Multi Tariff

As per Ferry Nab 

Multi Tariff V

Parking Permit 150.00 30.00 180.00 V 0%
Car & trailer parking all day when launching 10.83 2.17 13.00 V 0%

Sewage Pump out
SLDC Mooring Holders
1 Credit 2.00 0.00 2.00 Z 0%
10 Credits 15.00 0.00 15.00 Z 0%
Non SLDC Mooring Holders
1 Credit 4.50 0.00 4.50 Z 0%
10 Credits 40.00 0.00 40.00 Z 0%

Appendix 2

P
age 255



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

CAR PARK FEES & CHARGES 

AMBLESIDE 

King St
Short Stay  up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Low Fold; Lake Rd; Miller Bridge; Rydal Rd
Low Fold, Rydal Rd and Lake Rd applies 0800 to 2000, Millerbridge applies 0800 to 2100.

Multi-Tariff
up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
all day 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
Lake Road only Early Bird - Arrive before 9am park all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
Low Fold only Park and Explore 15.00 3.00 18.00 V Subject to Stagecoach agreement

2000-0800  Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Appendix 2

P
age 256



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

BOWNESS
Quarry Mount
Short Stay  up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Rayrigg Rd  

Long Stay   up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
all day 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
2000-0800  Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Braithwaite Fold
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
all day 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
Park and Explore 15.00 3.00 18.00 V Subject to Stagecoach agreement

2000 -0800 Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Glebe Rd
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
all day 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
2000 -0800 Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Ferry Nab
up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
up to 10 hours 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
all day 6.67 1.33 8.00 V 0%
with trailer         all day 8.33 1.67 10.00 V 0%
2100-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Appendix 2

P
age 257



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

GRANGE
Multi-Tariff
Main St; Windermere Rd; 
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Hampsfell Rd
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
Early Bird - Arrive before 9am park all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Berners Close
0800-1800   all day up to 1800 1.00 0.20 1.20 V
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Kents Bank Rd
up to 1/2 hr 0.17 0.03 0.20 V 2%
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

GRASMERE
Red Bank Rd
Multi-Tariff
up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
all day 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V

Appendix 2

P
age 258



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

KENDAL
Dowker Lane; Peppercorn Lane; Booths
Short Stay

up to 1/2 hr - Peppercorn Lane Only 0.42 0.08 0.50 V 0%
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

Highgate (Bowman)

Long Stay 
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

Westmorland Shopping Centre
Multi-Tariff
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
Early Bird - Arrive between 0700 and 0900 park all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
1900-0700    Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

Kendal Parish Church; South Lakeland House (Monday to Saturday only); Library Rd

up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%

up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

Blackhall Rd
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
Early Bird - Arrive between 1800 and 0700 park all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

Appendix 2

P
age 259



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

Sandes Avenue
up to 1  hour 0.17 0.03 0.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 0.33 0.07 0.40 V 0%
up to 3 hours 0.50 0.10 0.60 V 0%
up to 4 hours 0.67 0.13 0.80 V 0%
all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

South Lakeland House (Sundays only)
up to 1 hour 0.17 0.03 0.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 0.33 0.07 0.40 V 0%
up to 3 hours 0.50 0.10 0.60 V 0%
up to 4 hours 0.67 0.13 0.80 V 0%
all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

KIRKBY LONSDALE
Market Square; Booths Supermarket
Short Stay
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

Multi-Tariff
New Rd. No.2: New Rd No.1.

up to 1/2 hour - New Rd No 1 only 0.17 0.03 0.20 V 0%
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!
 
MILNTHORPE

Beetham Rd; Park Rd
Multi-Tariff
up to 1 hour 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.67 0.33 2.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

SEDBERGH
Joss Lane
Multi-Tariff
Now run by Sedbergh Parish Council

Appendix 2

P
age 260



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

ULVERSTON
Stockbridge Lane
up to 1 hour 0.17 0.03 0.20 V 2%
up to 2 hours 0.33 0.07 0.40 V -1%
up to 3 hours 0.50 0.10 0.60 V 0%
up to 4 hours 0.67 0.13 0.80 V 0%
all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%

Brewery St; Daltongate; Theatre St; The Gill
Multi-Tariff
up to 1 hour 1.00 0.20 1.20 V 0%
up to 2 hours 1.83 0.37 2.20 V 0%
up to 3 hours 2.67 0.53 3.20 V 0%
up to 4 hours 3.25 0.65 3.90 V 0%
up to 6 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
all day 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
1800-0800   Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

WINDERMERE
Rayrigg Meadow
Multi-Tariff
up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
all day 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
2000-0800  Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

WINDERMERE
Broad St
Multi-Tariff
up to 1 hour 1.25 0.25 1.50 V 0%
up to 2 hours 2.50 0.50 3.00 V 0%
up to 3 hours 3.33 0.67 4.00 V 0%
up to 4 hours 4.17 0.83 5.00 V 0%
up to 6 hours 5.00 1.00 6.00 V 0%
all day 5.83 1.17 7.00 V 0%
Early Bird - Arrive between 2000 and 0900 park all day 0.83 0.17 1.00 V 0%
2000-0800  Overnight 0.00 0.00 0.00 V #DIV/0!

BLUE BADGE HOLDERS Receive 1 extra hour free of charge on top of parking period paid,
including addition of 1 hour to the 3 day and 7 day permit.

Appendix 2

P
age 261



NET CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT

GROSS CHARGE 

2019/20 VAT CODE

% Increase Net 

Fee 2019/20 REASON FOR FEE CHANGE

NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES £ £ £

PERMITS
New 7 day Tourist Permit (exc WSC) 25.00 5.00 30.00 V 0%
New 3 day Tourist Permit (exc WSC) 12.50 2.50 15.00 V 0%
Annual Permits (exc WSC) 358.33 71.67 430.00 V 4%
Annual Permits (inc WSC) 383.33 76.67 460.00 V 3%
Transferable (exc WSC) 416.67 83.33 500.00 V 4%
Transferable (inc WSC) 441.67 88.33 530.00 V 4%
Business (exc WSC) 483.33 96.67 580.00 V 4%
DISCOUNT for A rated vehicles -83.33 -16.67 -100.00 V 0%
Beetham Road and Park Road Milnthorpe 183.33 36.67 220.00 V 5%

Contract Spaces (single) 583.33 116.67 700.00 V 3%
Low Fellside
Contract Spaces (double) 1,166.67 233.33 1400.00 V 3%
Low Fellside
Contract Spaces (single) 583.33 116.67 700.00 V 3%
Bowman
Replacement  Business Permit 41.67 8.33 50.00 V 0%
Replacement Permit 29.17 5.83 35.00 V 0%

Penalty Charge Notice
(50% reduction if paid within 14 days)
Higher level 70.00 0.00 70.00 X 0%
Lower level 50.00 0.00 50.00 X 0%

Notes:

BLUE BADGE HOLDERS Receive 1 extra hour free of charge on top of parking period paid,
including addition of 1 hour to the 3 day and 7 day permit.
 - Parking of Lorries is permitted at Rothay Holme, at the tariffs shown.
 - Parking of Coaches is permitted at Low Fold, Rothay Holme, Windermere Rd and Berners 
   Close at the tariffs shown
 - all charges are inclusive of VAT (VAT code V)
ELECTRIC CHARGING POINTS - vehicles parked within and charging from the points are exempt from 

purchasing a Pay & Display ticket or displaying a SLDC permit.

Appendix 2

P
age 262



      APPENDIX 3 

Statutory Report of the Chief Finance Officer on setting the 
2019/20 Budget 

1. Purpose of this Appendix 

1.1 In setting its Budget Requirement, the Council is required under the Local 
Government Act 2003 (Section 25) to consider: 

i) The formal advice of the statutory responsible financial officer on the 
robustness of the estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of 
the reserves for which the budget provides; 

ii) The Council has to determine what levels of borrowing, if any, it wishes 
to make under the Prudential Code that governs local authority 
borrowing. 

2. Robustness of Estimates 

The 2019/20 Budget has been prepared at a time of relative financial uncertainty.  The 
economic climate appears to be recovering as reported by central government but 
there is still some uncertainty around the impact this will have on budgets.  The 
assumptions have been reviewed and amended where necessary.  This is particularly 
relevant in respect of investments, with low interest rates continuing but believed 
possibly improve mildly in the medium term. In these circumstances, it becomes 
increasingly important to adhere strictly to the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
its Treasury Management Strategy while keeping a tight rein on budget monitoring so 
that adverse trends are identified quickly and acted upon promptly. The impact of Brexit 
on the finances of the country and Council increase the level of uncertainty but 
developments on this are being closely monitored. 

The Council’s revenue and capital budgets are integrated in that the financial impact 
of the proposed capital programme is reflected in the revenue estimates. 

Service estimates have been prepared on a sound basis that reflects trends identified 
through the improved budget monitoring.  Finance staff and budget holders continue 
to liaise closely on the monthly financial position.  Monthly finance reports are produced 
Senior Management Team to consider. The emphasis will remain on accurate 
forecasting supplemented by clear action plans to deal with areas where variances are 
experienced. 

Senior Management Team, Service Managers, and Financial Services staff are closely 
involved in budgeting and cross-checks for reasonableness are carried out on all 
information, prior to the submission of draft budgets to Members, giving confidence in 
the estimates. 

There are risks however involved in projecting budget particularly over the medium 
term and the year- end position will never exactly match the estimated position.  Areas 
of specific risk in the current five-year period under consideration are: 

 The Government’s 2015 Spending Review (SR15) indicated that Central 
Government funding of Local Government will be much tighter over the next 
four year period than the last four years.  The provisional local government 
funding settlement confirmed these cuts to Council funding until 2019/20.  The 
impact has been partially mitigated by increased grant support in 2019/20 only 
in the final settlement.  The 100% localisation of business rates is expected to 

Page 263



      APPENDIX 3 

be accompanied by reallocation of resources nationally including additional 
duties and costs for local authorities. 

 The Council will become increasingly reliant on income from business rates as 
the proportion retained locally increases to 75% from April 2020.  In a system 
where the level of income is largely influenced by external factors the balance 
of risk and income will shift substantially.  There is still uncertainty around the 
rates revaluation exercise of April 2017 which introduced a new system of 
check, challenge and appeal.  Rate revaluations will become more frequent and 
resets will reallocate growth on a regular basis.  The first reset will also be April 
2020.   

 The Senior Management Team (SMT) have continued with the previous year’s 
practice to consider options to meet the future forecast deficits much earlier in 
the Budget Process.  Consideration of budget reduction options (including 
raising additional income and savings in expenditure through efficiencies and or 
transfers) commenced in April 2016.  SMT have been in consultation with SLDC 
Cabinet Members to balance the 2019/20 position and much improve the future 
years’ positions. This work continues. As shown in the budget report the 
Council’s Customer Connect programme contains an efficiency target of £750k 
in 2019/20 rising to £1.550m by 2020/21. Progress against this is being 
monitored by the Customer Connect Board. SMT are also continuing to review 
the efficiency of the services that fall outside that programme. These will be 
reported to Members to consider as part of the ongoing financial management 
process. Options are being developed to enable any increases to the deficit 
position due to external funding or internal pressures to be offset. 

 The present economic climate has necessitated a thorough review of 
investment income.  Although detrimental to the Council’s finances, an element 
of risk has been minimised by the assumption that replacement investments will 
be at minimal interest rates, while the Council has limited exposure to increases 
in borrowing rates. 

 The impact of the economic climate will continue to be closely reviewed, 
particularly in relation to income and interest earned on investments.  It is 
unclear how long it will take for the effects in some service areas to be reversed 
and it is assumed that recovery will be limited during 2019/20.   The Council is 
also dealing with a reduced number of counterparties it is able to place deposits 
with (continuing on from the Icelandic banking crisis).   

 The estimated level of income generated from fees and charges has been set 
at a prudent level to take account of actual levels of income being generated in 
2019/20. 

 The implications of the Welfare Reform Changes and the introduction of 
Universal Credit to replace Housing Benefit will continue to be closely monitored 
and planned for as information is forthcoming. 

To the best of my knowledge, the proposed Budget makes reasonable allowance for 
pay and price inflation and provides for all known commitments and legislative 
changes. 

Page 264



      APPENDIX 3 

3. Adequacy of Financial Reserves 

The level of and usage of the Council’s reserves is undertaken annually as part of the 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

In preparing the 2019/20 Revenue Budget I have reviewed the level of reserves and 
balances and assessed their adequacy against a range of factors, including; 

 the potential impact of unexpected events or emergencies; 

 the predictability of cash flows demand-led pressures, inflation and interest rates; 

 estimates of the level and timing of capital receipts and grants; 

 the overall financial standing of the Council and its track record in budget 
management and capacity to manage in-year pressures; 

 the adequacy of the Council’s insurance arrangements; 

 the financial risks in the medium term plans, including the robustness of those 
plans. 

As part of my review of the adequacy of reserves, an assessment of financial risks and 
financial exposure has been carried out. Section 6b of the Draft Budget Book shows 
the risks taken into account in the assessment of the desired level for the General Fund 
Working Balance and the Council’s General Reserve. 

The Council’s key financial reserves are summarised at Section 6a in the 26/02/2019 
Council Draft Budget Book.  In total, reserves are forecast to total circa £9.6m as at 31 
March 2020. General Reserves remain in a sound position when taken together with 
the £1.5m General Fund Working Balance. 

The Budget provides sufficient reserves for major repairs and IT replacement, with 
foreseeable expenditure allocated from these funds. 

No significant recurring expenditure is funded from reserves, consistent with Council 
policy. 

4. Advice 

In respect of the General Fund, the proposed reserves and the £1.5m working balance 
place the Council in a sound financial position for 2019/20 and are adequate for the 
medium term.   The Council will continue to review the medium and longer term 
pressures projected as part of its Medium Term Financial Plan.  It is important that 
reserves are maintained at robust levels in order to respond to these challenges and 
as a cushion against forecast risks and unforeseen events.  

5 Determination of Borrowing 

The Prudential Accounting regime enables the Council to borrow subject to meeting 
criteria of affordability.  The draft Prudential Indicators have been established and 
these will be finalised for Council approval once decisions on the overall Capital 
Programme have been made.  The level of investment in the 2019/20 Draft Capital 
Programme has been maintained at a level that does not require borrowing other than 
for the Vehicle and Plant replacement programme, revenue generating projects and 
loans to third parties.  A capital prioritisation process was applied to proposed capital 
projects and strengthens the assessment of the financial impacts of the investment.  

Following the housing transfer the Council receives capital receipts from South Lakes 
Housing (SLH) under a VAT sharing arrangement.  This income is based on actual 
spend by SLH on improvement works and is reviewed regularly.  The Council also 

Page 265



      APPENDIX 3 

receives a proportion of capital receipts from Right to Buy Sales.  Due to the volatility 
of this income, it is not allocated within the capital programme until actually received.    

For the period under review the need for borrowing will be kept under consideration 
dependent on the level of capital receipts being generated and the future potential 
capital projects.  

 

Shelagh McGregor, Chief Finance Officer 
South Lakeland District Council  
26 February 2019 

Page 266



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

Appendix 4  

 
  

  

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2019/20  
  

  

1.0  INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE  

  

Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to appoint 

officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the Authority thinks fit”. This Pay Policy 

Statement sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance with the requirements 

of Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011.    

The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the Council’s approach 

to setting the pay of its employees by identifying:-  

  

• The methods by which salaries of all employees are determined;  

• The detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, as defined 

by the relevant legislation;  

• The detail and level of remuneration of the senior managers;  

• The Committee responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement are 

applied consistently throughout the Council and recommending any amendments to the 

full Council.  

 

 

2.0  LEGISLATION RELEVANT TO PAY AND REMUNERATION  

  

In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council will comply with 

all relevant employment legislation.  This includes legislation such as the Equality Act 2010, 

Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000, the 

Agency Workers Regulations 2010 and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings 

(Protection of Earnings) Regulations.    

 
The Council ensures there is no pay discrimination within its pay structures and that all pay 

differentials can be objectively justified.   

  

3.0  SCOPE OF THE POLICY  

  

Legislation requires Pay Policy Statements to provide information relevant to ‘chief officer’ 

posts as defined in the Localism Act 2011.  In South Lakeland District Council the posts 

classified as chief officers are the Chief Executive and Directors.    

  

This Pay Policy Statement includes Information on the Senior Management Team which 

consists of the Chief Executive, Directors and Assistant Directors as per the current Senior 

Management structure (see table for link to Appendix A1). The Council is however undertaking 

a senior management restructure which, subject to transitional arrangements, will be in place 

from 1 April 2019 (see table for link to new structure at Appendix A2). 

 

The new structure will operate within 3 tiers, rather than 4 and has been designed to bring 

greater efficiency in management, creating complementary roles in operational and functional 

Page 267



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

leadership, promoting stronger, more joined up services and utilising the organisational know 

how and resources to maximum effect. It is expected that the restructure will make estimated 

savings of £200,000 for 2019/20. 

 

4.0  ACCOUNTABILITY AND DECISION MAKING  

  

In accordance with Part 3 of the Constitution of the Council titled Responsibility for Council 

Functions (see table for link to Appendix B), the Human Resources Committee is responsible 

for decision making and if appropriate, proposing to Council changes in relation to recruitment, 

terms and conditions and severance arrangements in relation to employees of the Council.    

  

5.0  PAY STRUCTURE  

  

 5.1  Chief Executive and Directors  

The Chief Executive’s pay scale is considered and reviewed each time the post becomes 

vacant or at the request of the post holder.  The salary paid to the Chief Executive is 

determined locally by the Council.  A review of the Chief Executive’s salary was undertaken 

by bench marking the salaries of other district Councils regionally and nationally and the 

current pay scale was approved by the Human Resources Committee on 18 August 2010.   

  

The Directors’ pay scales are reviewed each time there is a proposed senior management 

restructure or at the request of the post holder/s.  The salary paid to Directors is determined 

locally by the Council.  A formal review of the existing Directors salaries was last undertaken 

in 2005 which involved a bench marking exercise conducted by the North West Employers 

Organisation.  A further salary bench marking exercise was carried out in September 2018 as 

part of the proposed senior management restructure to be implemented from April 1st 2019.    

  

There are no recommendations for changes to the pay scale for the Chief Executive. There is 

an approved change to the pay scale of the Directors in the new senior management structure.  

  

 5.2  Other Employees   

The Council uses the nationally negotiated pay spines as the basis for its local pay structure, 

which determines the salaries of its workforce excluding Chief Executive and Directors, 

together with the use of locally determined rates (see table for link to Appendix C).    

  

The Council adopts the national pay bargaining arrangements in respect of the establishment 

and revision of the national pay spine.   

  

In determining its grading structure and setting remuneration levels for any posts which fall 

outside its scope, the Council takes account of the need to ensure value for money in respect 

of the use of public expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and retain employees 

who are able to meet the requirements of providing high quality services to the community, 

delivered effectively and efficiently and at times at which those services are required.    

  

In December 2018, the Human Resources Committee and Full Council considered the 

implementation of the National Joint Council pay agreement for 2018-20, and approved the 

introduction of a new pay spine on 1st April 2019. 

  

 5.3  Bonus Payments  

The Council does not operate a bonus scheme for any employee.  

  

 5.4  Other Pay Related Allowances  

All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally negotiated rates, 

having been determined from time to time in accordance with collective bargaining machinery.    

  

Page 268



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

 5.5  New Appointments  

New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant pay scale for the 

grade, although this can be varied where necessary to secure the best candidate.  Where the 

appointment salary is above the minimum point of the pay scale and is not affected by other 

Council policies, for example promotion, redeployment or flexible retirement, this is approved 

in accordance with section 9.3.2 of the Recruitment and Selection Policy (see table for link to 

Appendix D).  

  

 5.6  Market Supplements  

From time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay levels in the labour 

market in order to attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills and capacity.  

Where necessary, the Council will ensure the requirement for such is objectively justified by 

reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant market comparators, using data 

sources available from within the local government sector and outside, as appropriate.   

  

The Council currently does not apply supplements to posts.    

  

 5.7  Additional Remuneration  

To meet operational requirements it may be necessary for an individual to temporarily take on 

additional duties to their identified role. The Council’s arrangements for authorising any 

additional remuneration relating to temporary additional duties are set out in the Acting Up 

Guidelines (see table for link to Appendix E).  Individuals may also receive additional 

remuneration as detailed in the Exceptional Effort/Merit/Qualification Success Guidelines. 

(see table for link to Appendix F).  

  

6.0  SENIOR MANAGEMENT RECRUITMENT  

  

The Council’s procedures with regard to recruitment of chief officers follows the Officer  

Employment Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution (see table for link to Appendix G).   

 

For the expressed purposes of recruiting to the new senior management structure, Council 

approved a delegation of authority to the Head of Paid Service to take the necessary steps to 

appoint to those roles with notification of those appointments being reported to a future Council 

meeting.  

  

When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper account of all provisions of 

relevant employment law and its own Equality and Diversity, Recruitment & Selection and 

Redeployment Policies as approved by the Human Resources Committee.  

  

The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed chief officer will 

be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at the time of 

recruitment.    

  

Where the Council is unable to recruit chief officers, or there is a need for interim support to 

provide cover for a substantive senior management post the Council will, where necessary, 

consider engaging individuals under a ‘contract for service’.  These will be sourced through a 

relevant procurement process ensuring the Council is able to demonstrate the maximum value 

for money benefits from competition in securing the relevant service.  In assessing such it 

should be noted that in respect of such engagements the Council is not required to make 

either pension or national insurance contributions for such individuals.  The Council currently 

does not have any senior officers engaged under such arrangements.  

  

7.0  SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION  

  

Page 269



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

The senior management posts are set out below with details of their basic salary as at 1 

January 2019, along with details of their basic salary following the Senior Management 

Restructure from 1 April 2019 The relevant pay scale is reviewed and changes are 

implemented on 1 April each year:  

  

Chief Executive     

The salary falls within a range of five incremental points between £102,522, rising to a 

maximum of £109,236. The salary package of the post as at January 2019 is £109,236.  

 

The salary package of the post from 1 April 2019 will be £104,572 - £111,421. 

  

The Chief Executives terms and conditions of service are determined by the Joint Negotiating 

Committee (JNC) for Local Authority Chief Executives.    
  

Directors  

The salary package of the existing posts designated as Director falls within a range of five 

incremental points between £69,891 rising to a maximum of £76,881.  

 

Subject to any requirements for the existing Directors to perform transitional arrangements, 

from 1 April 2019, their salary package will range from £71,289 to £78,419. 

 

As approved by Council in October 2018, the salary package for Directors appointed to the 

new senior management structure will be £77,266 pa. 

 

From 1 April 2019, the salary package will be a spot salary of £78,811 

 

The Directors terms and conditions of service are determined by the Joint Negotiating 

Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers.  

  

Assistant Directors  

The salary package of posts designated as Assistant Director falls within a range of four 

incremental points between £57,677 rising to a maximum of £60,125.  

As part of the approved senior management restructure, Assistant Director roles are removed 

from the establishment from 1st April 2019. 

 

Subject to any requirements for the existing Assistant Directors to perform transitional 

arrangements, from 1 April 2019, their salary package will range from £58,831 to £61,328. 

 

The Assistant Directors terms and conditions of service are determined by the National Joint  

Council (NJC) for Local Government Services as per all employees under Chief Officer level.  

The salary level forms part of the Pay and Grading Framework  

 

Operational Leads and Lead Specialists 

 

From April 1st 2019, these roles are established through the senior management restructure 

and together with the Chief Executive and the Directors will form the Extended Leadership 

Team of the Council. 

 

The salaries for these roles fall within a grades M,N and O of the Council Pay Grades. From 

April 1st 2019: 

 

Grade and number of 

incremental points 

From To 

Grade M – 4 incremental points £43,662 £46,572 

Grade N – 4 incremental points £47,546 £50,494 

Page 270



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

Grade O – 4 incremental points £51,462 £54,669 

 

The Operational Leads and Lead Specialists terms and conditions of service are determined 

by the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services as per all employees under 

Chief Officer level.  The salary level forms part of the Pay and Grading Framework 

  

8.0  STATUTORY OFFICER REMUNERATION  

  

In addition to basic salary, the following posts receive additional pay as set out below:  

  

Returning Officer  

The designation of Returning Officer is made by full Council and currently sits with the Director 

Policy and Resources however this position will be reviewed following the restructure.  

  

In accordance with the national agreement the Returning Officer is entitled to receive and 

retain the personal fees arising from performing the duties of Returning Officer, Acting 

Returning Officer, Deputy Returning Officer or Deputy Acting Returning Officer and similar 

position which he or she performs subject to the payment of pension contributions thereon, 

where appropriate.  

  

In respect of District and Parish Council elections an allowance of £3,327.84 per annum is 

paid.    

  

Fees for election duties for other elections (County Council, National and European Elections, 

etc.) are paid as an additional sum at the rate prescribed by government as and when they 

arise, they are distinct from the process for the determination of pay for Chief Officers.   

  

Monitoring Officer  

The role of Monitoring Officer is currently designated to the Director Policy and Resources 

(Monitoring Officer). From April 2019, this post will be appointed to the Legal, Governance 

and Democracy Lead Specialist. 

  

 Allowance Paid:    

 

An additional allowance of XX% of annual salary will be paid to the Legal, Governance and 

Democracy Lead Specialist. .  

  

Section 151 Officer  

The role of Section 151 Officer is currently designated to the Assistant Director Resources, 

however from April 2019 this role will be appointed to the Finance Lead Specialist.  

  

Allowance Paid:  

Subject to the performance of any transitional arrangements, the allowance payable to the 

Assistant Director Resources will be a rate of £11,183. This was based on a rate calculated 

at 16% of the Chief Officer SCP1 (£69,891 as at 1 April 2018).    

 

From 1 April 2019 the allowance will be paid at the rate of £12,609.76. This will be based on 

16% of the Director spot salary as of 1 April 2019.  

 

An additional allowance of XX% of annual salary will be paid to the Finance Lead Specialist. 

  

9.0  PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS   

  

Subject to qualifying conditions, employees have a right to belong to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme. The Council is required to make a contribution to the scheme representing 

Page 271



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

a percentage of the pensionable remuneration due under the contract of employment of that 

employee.  The rate of contribution is set by Actuaries advising the Cumbria Pension Fund 

and reviewed on a triennial basis in order to ensure the scheme is appropriately funded.  The 

proposed rate to be used in the financial year 2019/2020 is 24%.  

  

The employee contribution rates effective from 1 April 2018 (and remain current) are based 

on actual pensionable pay as detailed in the table below.    

  

Actual Pensionable Pay  

£  

Employee  Contribution 

Rate  

Up to 14,100 5.5%  

14,101 – 22,000 5.8%  

22,001 – 35,700 6.5%  

35,701 – 45,200 6.8%  

45,201 – 63,100 8.5%  

63,101 – 89,400 9.9%  

89,401 – 105,200 10.5%  

105,201 – 157,800 11.4%  

More than 157,801 12.5%  

  

  

10.0  PAYMENTS ON TERMINATION  

  

The Councils approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of employment 

of chief officers, prior to reaching normal retirement age, is set out within the Early Retirement 

Policy (see table for link to appendix H) or the Voluntary Redundancy Policy (see table for link 

to Appendix I) in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local Government (Early 

Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 2006.   

  

These policies are applied equally to all employees regardless of seniority.  

  

Should there be a need to consider a termination which does not fall within the above policy 

this would be subject to a formal decision made by the Human Resources Committee.    

 

It is noted that the Government is proposing to introduce a cap on public sector exit payments of 

£95,000 (including the capital cost of unreduced pension benefits for staff aged 55 or above). The 

Council’s policies will incorporate any changes to legislation. 

11.0  PAY ANALYSIS  

  

Calculations in this document are taken using the January payroll data and include all taxable 

bonuses, allowances and variable pay elements payable.  This figure excludes pension 

benefits.  

  

Median Salary  

This calculation is made including all staff within the paid services of the Council, including the 
Chief Executive.  The median salary using the December 2018 payroll was £22,401. This is 
based on a staffing number of 415 and total remuneration of £7,933,912 (based on all posts 
at their full-time equivalent rate).  
  

Page 272



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

Lowest paid Employees  

The lowest paid persons employed under a contract of employment with the Council, are 

employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in accordance with the minimum spinal 

column point currently in use within the Council’s grading structure (see table for link to 

Appendix C).  Using the December 2018X payroll data, the lowest paid employee was on a 

salary of £16,626X per annum (Full Time Equivalent).    

  

The exception to the above are apprentices where they are paid a rate according to their age 

for the 2 years duration of the apprenticeship.  The rates from April 2019 are; under age 18 

£4.35 per hour; age 18 to 20 £6.15 per hour and age 21 and over £7.70 per hour.  This is 

above the national apprenticeship rate of pay for year one which is those under age 19 and in 

the first year of apprenticeship receive £3.90 per hour.   

  

Pay Multiple  

 

The Council uses an established process of defining roles, determining job size and salary 

levels. This process determines the relationship between the rate of pay for the lowest paid 

and senior manager post, including chief officers, described as the pay multiple. The Chief 

Executive’s remuneration (including essential car user allowance) as at January 2019 was 

£110,199 per annum.  This provides a ratio of approximately 1:5 when compared with the 

median salary of £22,401 (actual ratio of 1:4.92).  

 

This is currently within the limits recommended by The Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the Public 

Sector (2010) and will be monitored and recorded annually. 

  

12.0  TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME  

  

South Lakeland District Council recognise Unison and GMB trade unions for negotiation and 

consultation purposes and has a Trade Union Time Off & Facilities Policy (see table for link to 

Appendix J) which outlines guidance for allowing time off to undertake trade union activities.  

  

There are 6 employees who are union representatives.  There is currently no union 

representative who devotes at least 50% of their time to union activity.  

  

So far during the financial year 2018/19 approximately 1.5 days per month paid time off has 

been given to trade union representatives.  

  

The average salary at the Council is £25,490 (note this is different to the median salary).  Based 

on the average salary the estimate of spending on unions as a percentage of the total pay bill 

is 0.001%  

  

The median salary at the Council is £22,401.  Based on the median salary the estimate of 

spending on unions as a percentage of the total pay bill is 0.001%.  

  

  

13.0  RE-EMPLOYMENT/RE-ENGAGEMENT OF FORMER CHIEF OFFICERS   

  

The authority does not re-employ or engage former chief officers under a contract for service.  

  

14.0  PUBLICATION OF THE PAY POLICY STATEMENT  

  

Upon approval by full Council, this statement will be published on the Councils Website and 

intranet.    

  

For posts where the full time equivalent salary is at least £50,000, the Council’s Annual  

Page 273



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

Statement of Accounts will include a note setting out the total amount of:-  

• salary, fees or allowances paid to or receivable by the person in the current and 

previous year;  

• any sums payable by way of expenses allowance that are chargeable to UK income 

tax;  

• any compensation for loss of employment and any other payments connected with 

termination;   

• any benefits received that do not fall within the above.  

  

15.0  REVIEW  

  

Once approved by Council, this policy statement will come into immediate effect and 

will be subject to review on a minimum of an annual basis, the policy for the next 

financial year being approved by 31 March each year.   

  

Amendments may need to be made throughout the relevant period and proposed 

amendments will be reported to the Human Resources Committee for recommendation 

to full Council.   

Page 274



Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

APPENDICES  

Appendices are located on the SLDC internet.  Please refer to the following URL for access 

to the following documents: (Please copy and paste link into the browser to view the 

document)  

Appe

ndix  

Document Type  SLDC Internet link  

A  

1. Senior Management  

Team Structure (Please 

note this structure relates to 

April 2017 details) 

  

2.New Senior Management 

Team Structure 

Appendix A1: https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5131/ 

01seniormanagementstructure_july2017.pdf 

 

 

 

Appendix A2: 

http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/documents/s23928/ 

Senior%20Management%20Restructure%20-

%20Appendix%201.pdf 

B  

Responsibility for  

Council Functions – Part 
3 SLDC  
Constitution   

Appendix B: 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/2790/south-

lakeland-district-council-constitution.pdf 

C  

1.SLDC Pay and  

Grading Structure 1  

January 2018  

  

2.SLDC Pay and  

Grading Structure 1  

April 2019  

Appendix C1: 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5922/payscale-

2018.pdf 

 

Appendix C2: Awaiting link  

D  

Recruitment &  

Selection Policy - Section 

10.3  

Appendix D: Recruitment and Selection Policy  

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6235/recruitment_and_ 

selection-002.pdf 

 

E  Acting Up Guidelines  

Appendix E: Acting Up Guidelines  

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6232/acting_up_ 

guidelines.pdf 

 

F  

Exceptional  

Effort/Merit/Qualification 

success Guidelines  

Appendix F: Exceptional Effort Merit Payments 
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6234/ 
exceptional-effort-merit-payments-guidelines.pdf 
 

G  

Officer Employment  

Procedure Rules - Part 
4 SLDC  
Constitution  

Appendix G: Officer Employment Procedure Rules, part 4 SLDC 
Constitution   
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/2790/south-lakeland-

district-council-constitution.pdf 

H  Early Retirement Policy  

Appendix H: Early Retirement Policy  

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6233/ 

earlyretirement.pdf 

I  Redundancy Policy  

Appendix I: Redundancy Policy 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6236/redundancy-

policy.pdf 

Page 275

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5131/01seniormanagementstructure_july2017.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/5131/01seniormanagementstructure_july2017.pdf
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33636
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6235/recruitment_and_selection-002.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6235/recruitment_and_selection-002.pdf
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33637
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6232/acting_up_guidelines.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6232/acting_up_guidelines.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6234/exceptional-effort-merit-payments-guidelines.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6234/exceptional-effort-merit-payments-guidelines.pdf
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46668
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46668
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6233/earlyretirement.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6233/earlyretirement.pdf


Author: K Wallace  Version 1.1  January 2019  

J  

  

Trade Union Time  

Off & Facilities  

Policy  

Appendix J: Trade Union Time Off and Facilities  

Policy /  

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6237/2014-

tradeuniontimeoff.pdf  

  

Page 276

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6237/2014-tradeuniontimeoff.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6237/2014-tradeuniontimeoff.pdf


Draft 2019/20 Budget 

Appendix 5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EIA 
Title:  

 
1.0 The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected 

characteristics: 
 

Age, disability, ethnicity, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.  
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the 
elimination of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0). 
 

1.1  SLDC includes “rurality” and “socio-economic disadvantage” as 
additional categories in its equality impact assessments. Although socio-
economic status and rurality are not recognised protected characteristics 
under the Equality Act, people on low incomes or in rural isolation are highly 
likely to be affected by services that are intended to support vulnerable 
people. 

 
2.0 The General Equality Duty.  

SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:  
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Act.  
b.  Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a  

protected characteristic and those who do not.  
c.  Foster good relations between people who share  

a protected characteristic and those who  
do not.  
 

Page 277



Step 1 

Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA. 
This EIA covers the 2019/20 Budget process carried out by the Council to agree what is to 
be expended in future years. This includes revenue and capital expenditure and income.  
The net position on the Revenue Budget provides the foundation for setting the Council 
Tax for the following year. The expected outcome is the agreement of a financial plan 
which does not have a disproportionate impact on specific sectors of the community. 

Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken 
(include surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.). 

The below data is the most up-to-date available at District level. Data is not available to breakdown 
population statisitcs for all Protected Characteristics.  
Population - In mid-2017 South Lakeland’s resident population was estimated to be 104,321. In 
2016 18 million visitors came to South Lakeland, of which 85% were day trippers and 15% were 
staying visitors.  
Over the last ten years the population of the district has increased by 355 residents.  
Age  
In mid-2017 it was estimated that 13.8% of the population of South Lakeland are aged 0-14 years 
of age, 58.5% are 15-64 years of age, and 27.7% are aged over 65.  
Children and young people  
It is projected that numbers of 0-14 year olds in South Lakeland will decrease from 2017 onwards 
to 2041. Between 2017 and 2041, the number of young people aged 0-14 is forecast to fall by 
12.0%.  
Working age  
In South Lakeland the number of 15-64 year olds are projected to decrease by 8,400 (-14%) to 
2041.  
South Lakeland has the lowest proportion of young and working age people in the county and both 
are in decline. Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage decrease occurred in the 30-44 age groups 
(-23.9%).  
Older people  
In South Lakeland numbers of residents aged 65+ are projected to increase by 8,300 persons 
(+28.4%) to 2041.  
Since mid-2007 the greatest percentage increase occurred in the 90+ age group (+140%)1.  
Disability  
18.8% of the population have a long-term health problem or disability, while 4.6% describe their 
general health as bad or very bad.  
Race  
95.6% of South Lakeland residents are White British, 2.8% are White Other, 0.6% are mixed race, 
0.8% are Asian, 0.2% are Black, and 0.1% are from other ethnic groups.  
Of Cumbria’s six districts, South Lakeland has the second highest proportion of residents from 
BAME groups (4.4%).  
Religion and Belief  
68% of residents are Christian, 23% have no religion. 0.4% are Buddhist, 0.2% are Muslim, 0.1% 
are Hindu, 0.1% are Jewish and 0.4% are members of other religions 
Gender  
49% of residents are male, 51% are female.  
There is a gender pay imbalance in South Lakeland, the median gross weekly earnings of a male in 
full time employment is £579, whereas for a female in full time employment the figure is £479.  
SLDC Employee and Member information  
As of 1 April 2017, SLDC employs 422 staff and has 51 councillors. The workplace profile on our 
website highlights the employee profile of SLDC compared with South Lakeland as a district:  
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/our-workforce-profile/ 

 

 

Page 278

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/our-workforce-profile/


Step 2 

Equality Action Plan 
 

In providing this service, what are the impacts 
for the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including 

rural deprivation, ‘rurality’) 
 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Positive 
impacts 

Negative 
impacts 

Mitigating actions (to 
avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead 
Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

Revenue Budget  
 

Not material Not material Equality implications are 
considered for each suggested 
significant change to the 
budgetary position. 

CMT 
February 2019 

Yes 

Budget Savings and Income Growth Not material Not material The savings include: corporate 
budgets efficiencies (insurance, 
business rates) plus reductions 
in funding of services provided 
by third parties and and 
increased income for some 
direct service areas as set out in 
Section 3c of the Draft Budget 
Report. 
The changes proposed are not 
believed to disproportionately 
disadvantage the groups set out 
as 1-10 above. 

As above Yes 

P
age 279



In providing this service, what are the impacts 
for the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including 

rural deprivation, ‘rurality’) 
 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Positive 
impacts 

Negative 
impacts 

Mitigating actions (to 
avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead 
Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

Fees and Charges Not material Not material The changes proposed in 
Appendix 2 are not believed to 
disproportionately disadvantage 
the groups set out as 1-10 
above.  
 

As above Yes 

Capital Budget Not material Not material The Capital Prioritisation Criteria 
which is a set of measures 
against which capital investment 
decision are taken includes an 
EIA question for each proposed 
capital scheme. 

As above Yes 

P
age 280



Step 3 
 

Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues used 
are accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments) 

All employees (except apprentices) will be paid the equivalent of the Foundation Living Wage 
from April 2019.  Apprentices will be paid in accordance with national pay agreements. 

 
The council has a list of equality contacts who can be contacted for consultation or to ask advice. 
The list is on the intranet under Equality and Diversity. If you need any support when completing 
this Equality Impact Analysis, please contact the Partnerships and Funding Officer.  

 

Date: 05.02.2019 

EIA Author(s): Helen Smith 

Assistant Director: Shelagh McGregor 

Document version number: 0.2 

Date for Review: December 2019 

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer Y 

 
 

Glossary 
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 
year-olds).  
 
Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples 
on a range of legal matters.  
 
Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse 
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning 
disability. 
 
Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is 
undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing 
physiological or other attributes of sex. 
 
Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection 
against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.  
 
Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, 
Asian, Black and White minority ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.  
 
Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and 
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, 
Buddhism, and non religious beliefs such as Humanism. 
 
Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.  
 
Socio-economic disadvantage: This includes people on low incomes, as well as issues around rural and urban deprivation, such 
as access to services and transport. Rurality should be specifically considered as South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this 
means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and larger market towns. 

 

 

Page 281



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 282



South Lakeland District Council 

Council 

Tuesday, 26 February 2019 

CALCULATING AND SETTING THE 2019/20 
COUNCIL TAX 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Andrew Jarvis - Finance Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources (S.151 Officer) 

Report Author: Michael Fisher – Revenues and Benefits Services Manager 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1  This report is presented to enable the Council to calculate and set the Council Tax for 
2019/20. The precepts from Cumbria County Council and the Cumbria Police and 
Crime Commissioner are due to be confirmed on the 14 February and 20 February 
respectively. A Council Tax increase of 3.99% is proposed for Cumbria County 
Council. This includes the Adult Social Care Precept of 2%. The Cumbria Police and 
Crime Commissioner proposes to issue a precept with an increase of 10.29%. 

 
1.2  If the recommendation is approved then Council Tax bills will be issued to each 

household in South Lakeland during March 2019 in accordance with the amounts set, 
subject to any reductions for discounts, exemptions or reliefs. 

 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the suggested Council Tax Resolution at Appendix A 
be approved 

 
3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Localism Act 2011 made significant changes to the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 and requires the billing authority to calculate a Council Tax requirement for 
the year. 
 

3.2 The Council is required to undertake a series of calculations in order to determine the 
Council Tax to be set for each parish within the District as detailed in the appendices 

3.3 The precept levels of the major precepting authorities have been assumed in 
preparation of this report as shown in paragraph 1.1 above. 

 
4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Consultation exercises have been undertaken by all major precepting authorities in 
relation to budgets but the purpose of this report is to enable the Council Tax to be 
set based on the precepts issued.  

Page 283

Item No.12



5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There is no alternative option as the Council Tax recommended for each parish is 
based on the precepts issued by all the preceptors.  

 
6.0 Links to Council Priorities 
 
6.1 Not applicable 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 It is recommended that the Council Tax for each parish be set in accordance with the 
Appendices to this report.  

7.1.1 If the formal Council Tax resolution at Appendix A is approved the total Band D 
Council Tax will be as follows: 

 

 2018/19 

£ 

2019/20 

£ 

Increase 

% 

Annual 
Increase  

£ 

South Lakeland 
District Council 

  190.63   195.63 2.62 5.00 

Cumbria County 
Council 

Charge for Adult 
Social Care 

Services 

1258.18 

 

73.95 

1284.69 

 

100.59 

 1.99 

 

2.00 

26.51 

 

26.64 

Cumbria Police 
Authority 

  232.74   256.68 10.29 23.9 

Sub Total 1755.50 1837.59  4.68 82.09 

Average 
Town/Parish 

Council 

35.62 37.20     4.44 1.58 

TOTAL 1791.12 1874.79 4.67 83.67 

 
7.1.2 Town and Parish Councils 

 The Town and Parish Council precepts for 2019/20 are detailed in Appendix C and 
total £1,692,890.40. The increase in the average Band D Council Tax for Town and 
Parish Councils is 4.44% and this results in an average Band D Council Tax figure of 
£37.20.  

Details of this year’s Parish Precepts mirror information included within Customers’ 
Council Tax bills, details of the joined parishes are detailed in the attached appendices. 

 
7.1.3 Cumbria County Council 

Cumbria County Council is due to meet on 14 February 2019 to set its precept.  It has 
been assumed this will be at £63,049,177. This would result in a Band D Council Tax 
of £1,385.28.  
 

Page 284



An additional precept for Adult Social Care was first introduced in the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer’s autumn statement of 2015.   
 
This increase is within the guidelines set out in The Referendums Relating to Council 
Tax Increases (Principles) (England) Report 2019/20. The set the maximum increases 
of up to 3% for Council Tax in addition to the permitted increase for Adult Social Care; 
the County Council precept includes a 1.99% increase for Council Tax and a 2% 
increase for Adult Social Care.  

 
7.1.4 Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner 

The Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner is due to agree his precept on 20 
February 2019, it has been assumed this will be at £11,682,396.97. This would result 
in a Band D Council Tax of £256.68. 

This an increase of £23.94 which is below the maximum increase of £24.00 set out in 
The Referendums Relating to Council Tax Increases (Principles) (England) Report 
2019/20. 

Human Resources 

7.2 Not applicable 

Legal 

7.3 The recommendations have been formulated taking into account the requirements of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Not carried out 

7.4.1 A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out as this report is a 
mathematical calculation of Council Tax levels. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Not carried out  

7.5.1 An equality and diversity impact assessment has not been carried out as this report is 
a mathematical calculation of Council Tax levels. 

Risk 

7.6  

Risk Consequence Controls required 

An error occurs in the complex 
Council Tax setting calculations 

Council Tax setting will not 
comply with legislation and 
amounts due may not be 
recoverable. 

This will have a major 
impact on the Council’s 
finances. 

The report and resolution 
have been prepared in 
accordance with advice 
from a professional body. 

The Council Tax figures 
have been carefully 
prepared and manual 
checks made against at 
least 25% of the figures 
including all the larger 
parishes. 

Page 285



Contact Officers 

Report Author – Michael Fisher, Revenues and Benefits Manager. Tel 01539 793257, email 
address michael.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No.  

A Recommended resolution to set the Council Tax levels for 2019/20. 

B Parish and District Council Tax Levels where a precept has been 
issued. 

C 2019/2020 Tax Base, amount of precept and Band D equivalent in 
parishes where a precept has been issued. 

Background Documents Available 

The Referendums Relating to Council Tax Increases (Principles) (England) Report 2019/20 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_da
ta/file/764254/Draft_Council_Tax_Referendum_principles_report_2019_to_2020.pdf 

 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 07.02.2019 

Section 151 Officer 07.02.2019 

Monitoring Officer 07.02.2019 

SMT 07.02.2019 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director n\a 

Human Resources Manager n\a 

Communications Team 07.02.2019 

Leader 07.02.2019 

Committee Chairman n\a 

Portfolio Holder 07.02.2019 

Ward Councillor(s) n\a 

Committee n\a 

Executive (Cabinet) n\a 

Council n\a 

 

Page 286

mailto:michael.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/764254/Draft_Council_Tax_Referendum_principles_report_2019_to_2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/764254/Draft_Council_Tax_Referendum_principles_report_2019_to_2020.pdf


          APPENDIX A 

 

Full Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 

1. It be noted that on the 27th December 2018, under powers delegated under 

Paragraph 8.1 of Section 8 of Part 5 of the Council’s Constitution , the Assistant 

Director (Resources) and Section 151 Officer calculated the Council Tax Base for 

the financial year 2019/20 by means of an Administrative Decision: 

 

(a) For the whole of the District as 45,513.49 (Item T in the formula in Section 

31(B) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (”the Act”), as 

amended); and 

(b) For dwellings in those parts of the District to which a Parish Precept 

relates as in the attached Appendix C. 

 

2. The Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for the financial year 

2019/20 (excluding parish precepts) be calculated as £8,903,804. No costs are to be 

treated as special expenses 

 

3. That the following amounts be calculated for the financial year 2019/20 in 

accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 

 

(a) £64,062,239.40 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 

for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act taking into account all precepts 

issued to it by Parish Councils; 

(b) £53,465,545.00 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 

for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act; including Revenue Support 

Grant and retained Business Rates 

(c)  £10,596,694.40 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above exceeds 

the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated in accordance with section 31A(4) of the 

Act as its Council Tax requirement for the year (Item R - P in the formula in 

Section 31B of the Act); 

(d) £232.83 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R) all divided by Item T(1(a) 

above) calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as 

the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year (including parish precepts); 

(e) £1,692,890.40 being the aggregate of all special items (parish precepts) referred 

to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the attached Appendix C).   

(f) £195.63 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by dividing the 

amount at 3(e) above by item T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in 

accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax 

for the year for dwellings in those parts of its District to which no parish precept 

relates. 

 

Page 287



4. To note that the County Council and the Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner 

have provisionally issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of 

the Act for each category of dwellings in the Council’s district as indicated in the 

table below. 

 

5. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Act, hereby sets the 

aggregate amounts shown in the tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 

2019/20 for each part of its District and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Valuation Bands 

 

BAND A BAND B BAND C BAND D BAND E BAND F BAND G BAND H 

£130.42 £152.16 £173.89 £195.63 £ 239.10 £282.58 £326.05 £391.26 

 

 

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

Valuation Bands 

 

 BAND A BAND B BAND C BAND D BAND E BAND F BAND G BAND H 

Main 

Precept 
£856.46 £999.20 £1,141.95 £1,284.69 £1,570.18 £1,855.66 £2,141.15 £2,569.38 

Adult 
Social 
Care 

Element 

 £67.06  £78.24 £89.41 £100.59 £122.94 £145.30 £167.65 £201.18 

Total £923.52 £1,077.44 £1,231.36 £1,385.28 £1,693.12 £2,000.96 £2,308.80 £2,770.56 

 

 

POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

 

Valuation Bands 

 

BAND A BAND B BAND C BAND D BAND E BAND F BAND G BAND H 

£171.12 £199.64 £228.16 £256.68 £313.72 £370.76 £427.80 £513.36 

 

 

Page 288



6. To determine that the Council’s basic amount of Council Tax for 2019/20 is not 

excessive in accordance with principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Act. 

 

COUNCIL TAX FOR EACH PART OF THE DISTRICT 

 

Valuation Bands 

 

PARISH 

BAND 

A 

£ 

BAND 

B 

£ 

BAND 

C 

£ 

BAND 

D 

£ 

BAND 

E 

£ 

BAND 

F 

£ 

BAND 

G 

£ 

BAND 

H 

£ 

ALDINGHAM 
1238.21 1444.59 1650.95 1857.32 2270.05 2682.80 3095.53 3714.64 

LINDALE AND 
NEWTON-IN- 
CARTMEL (1) 

1251.24 1459.78 1668.32 1876.86 2293.94 2711.02 3128.10 3753.72 

ARNSIDE 
1251.47 1460.06 1668.63 1877.21 2294.36 2711.53 3128.68 3754.42 

BARBON 
1258.05 1467.73 1677.40 1887.08 2306.43 2725.79 3145.13 3774.16 

BEETHAM 
1240.15 1446.85 1653.53 1860.23 2273.61 2687.00 3100.38 3720.46 

BLAWITH & 
SUBBERTHWAITE 

1242.95 1450.12 1657.27 1864.43 2278.74 2693.07 3107.38 3728.86 

BROUGHTON EAST 
1238.13 1444.48 1650.83 1857.19 2269.90 2682.61 3095.32 3714.38 

BURNESIDE (2) 
1252.25 1460.97 1669.67 1878.38 2295.79 2713.22 3130.63 3756.76 

BURTON IN KENDAL 
1244.83 1452.31 1659.77 1867.25 2282.19 2697.14 3112.08 3734.50 

CARTMEL FELL 
1241.48 1448.40 1655.30 1862.22 2276.04 2689.88 3103.70 3724.44 

CASTERTON 
1259.09 1468.94 1678.78 1888.63 2308.32 2728.02 3147.72 3777.26 

CLAIFE 
1245.22 1452.76 1660.29 1867.83 2282.90 2697.98 3113.05 3735.66 

COLTON 
1242.69 1449.80 1656.91 1864.03 2278.26 2692.49 3106.72 3728.06 

CONISTON 
1253.41 1462.31 1671.21 1880.11 2297.91 2715.72 3133.52 3760.22 

CROOK 
1245.00 1452.50 1660.00 1867.50 2282.50 2697.50 3112.50 3735.00 

CROSTHWAITE & 
LYTH 

1233.94 1439.60 1645.25 1850.91 2262.22 2673.54 3084.85 3701.82 

DENT 
1256.31 1465.69 1675.07 1884.46 2303.23 2722.00 3140.77 3768.92 

DOCKER 
1225.06 1429.24 1633.41 1837.59 2245.94 2654.30 3062.65 3675.18 

DUDDON (3) 
1254.01 1463.02 1672.01 1881.02 2299.02 2717.03 3135.03 3762.04 

Page 289



PARISH 

BAND 

A 

£ 

BAND 

B 

£ 

BAND 

C 

£ 

BAND 

D 

£ 

BAND 

E 

£ 

BAND 

F 

£ 

BAND 

G 

£ 

BAND 

H 

£ 

EGTON WITH 
NEWLAND, 
MANSRIGGS & 
OSMOTHERLEY (4) 

1234.76 1440.56 1646.34 1852.14 2263.72 2675.32 3086.90 3704.28 

FAWCETT FOREST 
1225.06 1429.24 1633.41 1837.59 2245.94 2654.30 3062.65 3675.18 

FIRBANK 
1225.06 1429.24 1633.41 1837.59 2245.94 2654.30 3062.65 3675.18 

GARSDALE 
1238.30 1444.69 1651.06 1857.45 2270.21 2682.99 3095.75 3714.90 

GRANGE-OVER-
SANDS 

1281.32 1494.88 1708.42 1921.98 2349.08 2776.20 3203.30 3843.96 

GRAYRIGG 
1229.54 1434.47 1639.38 1844.31 2254.15 2664.01 3073.85 3688.62 

HAVERTHWAITE 
1244.72 1452.18 1659.62 1867.08 2281.98 2696.90 3111.80 3734.16 

HAWKSHEAD 
1247.06 1454.91 1662.74 1870.59 2286.27 2701.97 3117.65 3741.18 

HELSINGTON 
1254.86 1464.01 1673.14 1882.29 2300.57 2718.87 3137.15 3764.58 

HEVERSHAM 
1245.87 1453.52 1661.16 1868.81 2284.10 2699.40 3114.68 3737.62 

HINCASTER 
1225.06 1429.24 1633.41 1837.59 2245.94 2654.30 3062.65 3675.18 

HOLME 
1251.39 1459.96 1668.52 1877.09 2294.22 2711.36 3128.48 3754.18 

HUTTON ROOF 
1248.02 1456.03 1664.02 1872.03 2288.03 2704.05 3120.05 3744.06 

KENDAL 
1251.13 1459.65 1668.17 1876.69 2293.73 2710.78 3127.82 3753.38 

KENTMERE 
1240.65 1447.42 1654.19 1860.97 2274.52 2688.07 3101.62 3721.94 

KILLINGTON 
1170.34 1365.39 1560.44 1760.50 2145.61 2535.72 2925.84 3511.00 

KIRKBY IRELETH 
1234.42 1440.16 1645.89 1851.63 2263.10 2674.58 3086.05 3703.26 

KIRKBY LONSDALE 
1263.77 1474.41 1685.03 1895.66 2316.91 2738.18 3159.43 3791.32 

LAKES 
1253.75 1462.72 1671.67 1880.63 2298.54 2716.47 3134.38 3761.26 

LAMBRIGG 
1226.52 1430.94 1635.36 1839.78 2248.62 2657.46 3066.30 3679.56 

LEVENS 
1243.38 1450.61 1657.84 1865.07 2279.53 2693.99 3108.45 3730.14 

LONGSLEDDALE 
1231.73 1437.02 1642.30 1847.59 2258.16 2668.74 3079.32 3695.18 

LOWER 
ALLITHWAITE 

1252.83 1461.64 1670.44 1879.25 2296.86 2714.48 3132.08 3758.50 

Page 290



PARISH 

BAND 

A 

£ 

BAND 

B 

£ 

BAND 

C 

£ 

BAND 

D 

£ 

BAND 

E 

£ 

BAND 

F 

£ 

BAND 

G 

£ 

BAND 

H 

£ 

LOWER HOLKER 
1240.35 1447.07 1653.79 1860.52 2273.97 2687.42 3100.87 3721.04 

LOWICK 
1239.82 1446.46 1653.09 1859.73 2273.00 2686.28 3099.55 3719.46 

LUPTON 
1247.34 1455.23 1663.12 1871.01 2286.79 2702.57 3118.35 3742.02 

MANSERGH 
1170.34 1365.39 1560.44 1760.50 2145.61 2535.72 2925.84 3511.00 

MIDDLETON 
1170.34 1365.39 1560.44 1760.50 2145.61 2535.72 2925.84 3511.00 

MILNTHORPE 
1251.01 1459.52 1668.01 1876.52 2293.52 2710.53 3127.53 3753.04 

NATLAND 
1238.70 1445.15 1651.60 1858.05 2270.95 2683.85 3096.75 3716.10 

NEW HUTTON 
1229.60 1434.54 1639.46 1844.40 2254.26 2664.14 3074.00 3688.80 

OLD HUTTON & 
HOLMESCALES 

1235.20 1441.07 1646.93 1852.80 2264.53 2676.27 3088.00 3705.60 

PENNINGTON 
1229.70 1434.65 1639.60 1844.55 2254.45 2664.35 3074.25 3689.10 

PRESTON PATRICK 
1240.19 1446.89 1653.58 1860.28 2273.67 2687.07 3100.47 3720.56 

PRESTON RICHARD 
1257.04 1466.55 1676.05 1885.56 2304.57 2723.59 3142.60 3771.12 

SATTERTHWAITE 
1250.22 1458.59 1666.96 1875.33 2292.07 2708.81 3125.55 3750.66 

SEDBERGH 
1248.57 1456.67 1664.76 1872.86 2289.05 2705.25 3121.43 3745.72 

SEDGWICK 
1262.13 1472.48 1682.83 1893.19 2313.90 2734.61 3155.32 3786.38 

SKELSMERGH AND 
SCALTHWAITERIGG  

1241.53 1448.45 1655.37 1862.29 2276.13 2689.98 3103.82 3724.58 

SKELWITH 
1248.38 1456.45 1664.50 1872.57 2288.69 2704.83 3120.95 3745.14 

STAINTON 
1245.62 1453.23 1660.82 1868.43 2283.63 2698.85 3114.05 3736.86 

STAVELEY IN 
CARTMEL 

1236.77 1442.91 1649.03 1855.16 2267.41 2679.68 3091.93 3710.32 

STAVELEY WITH 
INGS (5) 

1238.47 1444.88 1651.29 1857.70 2270.52 2683.35 3096.17 3715.40 

TORVER 
1250.33 1458.73 1667.11 1875.50 2292.27 2709.06 3125.83 3751.00 

ULVERSTON 
1257.77 1467.40 1677.02 1886.65 2305.90 2725.16 3144.42 3773.30 

UNDERBARROW AND 
BRADLEYFIELD 

1250.59 1459.03 1667.45 1875.89 2292.75 2709.62 3126.48 3751.78 

URSWICK BARDSEA 
AND STAINTON 

1233.83 1439.48 1645.11 1850.75 2262.02 2673.31 3084.58 3701.50 

Page 291



PARISH 

BAND 

A 

£ 

BAND 

B 

£ 

BAND 

C 

£ 

BAND 

D 

£ 

BAND 

E 

£ 

BAND 

F 

£ 

BAND 

G 

£ 

BAND 

H 

£ 

WHINFELL 
1225.06 1429.24 1633.41 1837.59 2245.94 2654.30 3062.65 3675.18 

WHITWELL & 
SELSIDE 

1170.34 1365.39 1560.44 1760.50 2145.61 2535.72 2925.84 3511.00 

WINDERMERE 
1246.31 1454.04 1661.75 1869.47 2284.90 2700.35 3115.78 3738.94 

WITHERSLACK 
MEATHOP AND 
ULPHA  

1245.21 1452.75 1660.28 1867.82 2282.89 2697.97 3113.03 3735.64 

  

Note (1) -  Allithwaite Upper Parish renamed Lindale and Newton-in-Cartmel Parish in 2018 

Note (2) - The Parish of Burneside, comprises Strickland Ketel and Strickland Roger 

Note (3) - The Parish of Duddon, comprises Angerton, Broughton West and Dunnerdale 

Note (4) – The Parish of Egton-with-Newland Mansriggs & Osmotherley comprises Egton with   
Newland,  Mansriggs and Osmotherley                                                                                                                            

Note (5) –  The Parish of Staveley with Ings comprises, Hugill, Nether Staveley and Over 
Staveley 

Page 292



  APPENDIX B 

COUNCIL TAX SCHEDULE FOR EACH PARISH IN THE DISTRICT AND THE COUNCIL 

TAX FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Valuation Bands 

PARISH 
BAND A 

£ 

BAND B 

£ 

BAND C 

£ 

BAND D 

£ 

BAND E 

£ 

BAND F 

£ 

BAND G 

£ 

BAND H 

£ 

ALDINGHAM 
143.57  167.51  191.43  215.36  263.21  311.08  358.93  430.72  

LINDALE & NEWTON-
IN-CARTMEL (1) 

156.60  182.70  208.80  234.90  287.10  339.30  391.50  469.80  

ARNSIDE 
156.83  182.98  209.11  235.25  287.52  339.81  392.08  470.50  

BARBON 
163.41  190.65  217.88  245.12  299.59  354.07  408.53  490.24  

BEETHAM 
145.51  169.77  194.01  218.27  266.77  315.28  363.78  436.54  

BLAWITH & 
SUBBERTHWAITE 

148.31  173.04  197.75  222.47  271.90  321.35  370.78  444.94  

BROUGHTON EAST 
143.49  167.40  191.31  215.23  263.06  310.89  358.72  430.46  

BURNESIDE (2) 
157.61  183.89  210.15  236.42  288.95  341.50  394.03  472.84  

BURTON IN KENDAL 
150.19  175.23  200.25  225.29  275.35  325.42  375.48  450.58  

CARTMEL FELL 
146.84  171.32  195.78  220.26  269.20  318.16  367.10  440.52  

CASTERTON 
164.45  191.86  219.26  246.67  301.48  356.30  411.12  493.34  

CLAIFE 
150.58  175.68  200.77  225.87  276.06  326.26  376.45  451.74  

COLTON 
148.05  172.72  197.39  222.07  271.42  320.77  370.12  444.14  

CONISTON 
158.77  185.23  211.69  238.15  291.07  344.00  396.92  476.30  

CROOK 
150.36  175.42  200.48  225.54  275.66  325.78  375.90  451.08  

CROSTHWAITE & LYTH 
139.30  162.52  185.73  208.95  255.38  301.82  348.25  417.90  

DENT 
161.67  188.61  215.55  242.50  296.39  350.28  404.17  485.00  

DOCKER 
130.42  152.16  173.89  195.63  239.10  282.58  326.05  391.26  

DUDDON (3) 
159.37  185.94  212.49  239.06  292.18  345.31  398.43  478.12  

EGTON WITH 
NEWLAND, 
MANSRIGGS & 
OSMOTHERLEY (4) 

140.12  163.48  186.82  210.18  256.88  303.60  350.30  420.36  

FAWCETT FOREST 
130.42  152.16  173.89  195.63  239.10  282.58  326.05  391.26  

FIRBANK 
130.42  152.16  173.89  195.63  239.10  282.58  326.05  391.26  

Page 293



  APPENDIX B 

PARISH 
BAND A 

£ 

BAND B 

£ 

BAND C 

£ 

BAND D 

£ 

BAND E 

£ 

BAND F 

£ 

BAND G 

£ 

BAND H 

£ 

GARSDALE 
143.66  167.61  191.54  215.49  263.37  311.27  359.15  430.98  

GRANGE-OVER-
SANDS 

186.68  217.80  248.90  280.02  342.24  404.48  466.70  560.04  

GRAYRIGG 
134.90  157.39  179.86  202.35  247.31  292.29  337.25  404.70  

HAVERTHWAITE 
150.08  175.10  200.10  225.12  275.14  325.18  375.20  450.24  

HAWKSHEAD 
152.42  177.83  203.22  228.63  279.43  330.25  381.05  457.26  

HELSINGTON 
160.22  186.93  213.62  240.33  293.73  347.15  400.55  480.66  

HEVERSHAM 
151.23  176.44  201.64  226.85  277.26  327.68  378.08  453.70  

HINCASTER 
130.42  152.16  173.89  195.63  239.10  282.58  326.05  391.26  

HOLME 
156.75  182.88  209.00  235.13  287.38  339.64  391.88  470.26  

HUTTON ROOF 
153.38  178.95  204.50  230.07  281.19  332.33  383.45  460.14  

KENDAL 
156.49  182.57  208.65  234.73  286.89  339.06  391.22  469.46  

KENTMERE 
146.01  170.34  194.67  219.01  267.68  316.35  365.02  438.02  

KILLINGTON 
127.09  148.27  169.45  195.63  232.99  275.35  317.72  381.26  

KIRKBY IRELETH 
139.78  163.08  186.37  209.67  256.26  302.86  349.45  419.34  

KIRKBY LONSDALE 
169.13  197.33  225.51  253.70  310.07  366.46  422.83  507.40  

LAKES 
159.11  185.64  212.15  238.67  291.70  344.75  397.78  477.34  

LAMBRIGG 
131.88  153.86  175.84  197.82  241.78  285.74  329.70  395.64  

LEVENS 
148.74  173.53  198.32  223.11  272.69  322.27  371.85  446.22  

LONGSLEDDALE 
137.09  159.94  182.78  205.63  251.32  297.02  342.72  411.26  

LOWER ALLITHWAITE 
158.19  184.56  210.92  237.29  290.02  342.76  395.48  474.58  

LOWER HOLKER 
145.71  169.99  194.27  218.56  267.13  315.70  364.27  437.12  

LOWICK 
145.18  169.38  193.57  217.77  266.16  314.56  362.95  435.54  

LUPTON 
152.70  178.15  203.60  229.05  279.95  330.85  381.75  458.10  

MANSERGH 
127.09  148.27  169.45  195.63  232.99  275.35  317.72  381.26  

MIDDLETON 
127.09  148.27  169.45  195.63  232.99  275.35  317.72  381.26  

Page 294



  APPENDIX B 

PARISH 
BAND A 

£ 

BAND B 

£ 

BAND C 

£ 

BAND D 

£ 

BAND E 

£ 

BAND F 

£ 

BAND G 

£ 

BAND H 

£ 

MILNTHORPE 
156.37  182.44  208.49  234.56  286.68  338.81  390.93  469.12  

NATLAND 
144.06  168.07  192.08  216.09  264.11  312.13  360.15  432.18  

NEW HUTTON 
134.96  157.46  179.94  202.44  247.42  292.42  337.40  404.88  

OLD HUTTON & 
HOLMESCALES 

140.56  163.99  187.41  210.84  257.69  304.55  351.40  421.68  

PENNINGTON 
135.06  157.57  180.08  202.59  247.61  292.63  337.65  405.18  

PRESTON PATRICK 
145.55  169.81  194.06  218.32  266.83  315.35  363.87  436.64  

PRESTON RICHARD 
162.40  189.47  216.53  243.60  297.73  351.87  406.00  487.20  

SATTERTHWAITE 
155.58  181.51  207.44  233.37  285.23  337.09  388.95  466.74  

SEDBERGH 
153.93  179.59  205.24  230.90  282.21  333.53  384.83  461.80  

SEDGWICK 
167.49  195.40  223.31  251.23  307.06  362.89  418.72  502.46  

SKELSMERGH AND 
SCALTHWAITERIGG  

146.89  171.37  195.85  220.33  269.29  318.26  367.22  440.66  

SKELWITH 
153.74  179.37  204.98  230.61  281.85  333.11  384.35  461.22  

STAINTON 
150.98  176.15  201.30  226.47  276.79  327.13  377.45  452.94  

STAVELEY IN 
CARTMEL 

142.13  165.83  189.51  213.20  260.57  307.96  355.33  426.40  

STAVELEY WITH INGS 
(5) 

143.83  167.80  191.77  215.74  263.68  311.63  359.57  431.48  

TORVER 
155.69  181.65  207.59  233.54  285.43  337.34  389.23  467.08  

ULVERSTON 
163.13  190.32  217.50  244.69  299.06  353.44  407.82  489.38  

UNDERBARROW AND 
BRADLEYFIELD 

155.95  181.95  207.93  233.93  285.91  337.90  389.88  467.86  

URSWICK BARDSEA 
AND STAINTON 

139.19  162.40  185.59  208.79  255.18  301.59  347.98  417.58  

WHINFELL 
130.42  152.16  173.89  195.63  239.10  282.58  326.05  391.26  

WHITWELL & SELSIDE 
127.09  148.27  169.45  195.63  232.99  275.35  317.72  381.26  

WINDERMERE 
151.67  176.96  202.23  227.51  278.06  328.63  379.18  455.02  

WITHERSLACK 
MEATHOP AND ULPHA  

150.57  175.67  200.76  225.86  276.05  326.25  376.43  451.72  

 

Note (1) - The Parish of Allithwaite Upper was renamed in 2018 as Lindale and Newton-in-
Cartmel Parish 

Page 295



  APPENDIX B 

Note (2) - The Parish of Burneside, comprises Strickland Ketel and Strickland Roger 

Note (3) - The Parish of Duddon, comprises Angerton, Broughton West and Dunnerdale                               

Note (4) – The Parish of Egton-with-Newland Mansriggs & Osmotherley comprises Egton with 
Newland,  Mansriggs and Osmotherley                                                                                                                            

Note (5) – The Parish of Staveley with Ings comprises, Hugill, Nether Staveley and Over 
Staveley 

Page 296



  APPENDIX C 

TOWN & PARISH COUNCIL PRECEPTS         

 
                                  2018/19  2019/20 

Parish /Town 
Tax Base 

Precepts Council Tax 
Band D (£) 

Tax Precepts Council Tax 
Band D (£) 

C Tax 

 Council £ Base £ Increase (%) 

ALDINGHAM 
544.56 10559.83 19.39 548.25 10816.09 19.73 1.75% 

LINDALE & NEWTON-IN-
CARTMEL (1) 

435.62 16892.7 38.78 435.88 17116.3 39.27 1.26% 

ARNSIDE 
1,174.13 42202.05 35.94 1,173.32 46486.07 39.62 10.24% 

BARBON 
135.26 6785.63 50.17 133.33 6598.99 49.49 -1.36% 

BEETHAM 
871.52 19965.69 22.91 881.64 19956.74 22.64 -1.18% 

BLAWITH & 
SUBBERTHWAITE 

129.60 3261.15 25.16 132.47 3555.79 26.84 6.68% 

BROUGHTON EAST 
152.20 3000 19.71 153.06 3000 19.60 -0.56% 

BURNESIDE (2) 
653.02 25754.28 39.44 653.99 26676.85 40.79 3.42% 

BURTON IN KENDAL 
611.84 17500.18 28.60 629.80 18682 29.66 3.71% 

CARTMEL FELL 
253.64 6243.3 24.61 254.13 6258.79 24.63 0.08% 

CASTERTON 
171.60 9108.65 53.08 169.36 8643.97 51.04 -3.84% 

CLAIFE 
238.20 5928.97 24.89 231.48 7000 30.24 21.49% 

COLTON 
506.71 12498.61 24.67 497.52 13154 26.44 7.17% 

CONISTON 
467.74 19535.53 41.77 460.66 19586.23 42.52 1.80% 

CROOK 
220.44 6658.61 30.21 224.26 6706.76 29.91 -0.99% 

CROSTHWAITE & LYTH 
369.17 4984.3 13.50 374.62 4991.07 13.32 -1.33% 

DENT 
348.13 14705.64 42.24 352.31 16514.43 46.87 10.96% 

DOCKER 
26.81 0 0.00 26.81 0 0.00 0.00% 

DUDDON (3) 
534.78 17867.69 33.41 536.50 23300.3 43.43 29.99% 

EGTON WITH NEWLAND, 
MANSRIGGS & 
OSMOTHERLEY (4) 

533.23 7515.44 14.09 532.11 7741.28 14.55 3.26% 

FAWCETT FOREST 
13.98 0 0.00 14.75 0 0.00 0.00% 

FIRBANK 
62.39 0 0.00 60.93 0 0.00 0.00% 

GARSDALE 
123.68 1964.7 15.89 127.23 2526.85 19.86 24.98% 

GRANGE-OVER-SANDS 
2,110.11 170107.05 80.62 2,137.41 180378.92 84.39 4.68% 

GRAYRIGG 
99.57 678.58 6.82 103.32 694.77 6.72 -1.47% 

HAVERTHWAITE 
364.86 11478.23 31.46 389.68 11489.84 29.49 -6.26% 

HAWKSHEAD 
340.76 10593.85 31.09 339.06 11190.09 33.00 6.14% 

HELSINGTON 
166.02 7496.76 45.16 169.33 7568.62 44.70 -1.02% 

HEVERSHAM 
353.21 10567.84 29.92 354.77 11076.37 31.22 4.34% 

Page 297



  APPENDIX C 

HINCASTER 
103.04 0 0.00 109.10 0 0.00 0.00% 

HOLME 
592.08 20920.54 35.33 584.21 23075.43 39.50 11.80% 

HUTTON ROOF 
110.29 3803.76 34.49 110.95 3821.36 34.44 -0.14% 

KENDAL 
10,381.69 376232.64 36.24 10,475.52 409627.94 39.10 7.89% 

KENTMERE 
66.00 1000 15.15 64.15 1500 23.38 54.32% 

KILLINGTON 
74.98 0 0.00 77.57 0 0.00 0.00% 

KIRKBY IRELETH 
506.37 6190.6 12.23 512.13 7190.6 14.04 14.80% 

KIRKBY LONSDALE 
886.03 50818.37 57.36 893.37 51875.79 58.07 1.24% 

LAKES 
2,444.23 104866.25 42.90 2,462.72 105994.3 43.04 0.33% 

LAMBRIGG 
43.02 0 0.00 45.63 100 2.19 0.00% 

LEVENS 
522.27 14606.21 27.97 542.50 14910.57 27.48 -1.75% 

LONGSLEDDALE 
42.34 42.34 1.00 42.87 428.7 10.00 900.00% 

LOWER ALLITHWAITE 
885.65 34862.76 39.36 886.07 36917.54 41.66 5.84% 

LOWER HOLKER 
715.47 16250.34 22.71 710.09 16280.53 22.93 0.97% 

LOWICK 
130.67 2912.75 22.29 130.48 2889.47 22.14 -0.67% 

LUPTON 
87.62 2949.84 33.67 88.69 2964.4 33.42 -0.74% 

MANSEGH 
76.86 0 0.00 75.17 0 0.00 0.00% 

MIDDLETON 
52.39 0 0.00 50.34 0 0.00 0.00% 

MILNTHORPE 
727.52 27233.83 37.43 727.35 28314.72 38.93 4.01% 

NATLAND 
520.26 10501.21 20.18 510.72 10451.64 20.46 1.39% 

NEW HUTTON 
171.15 1189.61 6.95 174.83 1189.92 6.81 -2.01% 

OLD HUTTON & 
HOLMESCALES 

180.08 2690.11 14.94 179.65 2731.96 15.21 1.81% 

PENNINGTON 
753.97 5118.71 6.79 753.54 5247.37 6.96 2.50% 

PRESTON PATRICK 
172.41 3922.49 22.75 175.46 3980.68 22.69 -0.26% 

PRESTON RICHARD 
504.47 23142.98 45.88 504.31 24192.82 47.97 4.56% 

SATTERTHWAITE 
133.70 5000 37.40 132.50 5000 37.74 0.91% 

SEDBERGH 
1,075.36 35651.73 33.15 1,066.95 37629.32 35.27 6.40% 

SEDGWICK 
187.46 10035.18 53.53 185.89 10336.23 55.60 3.87% 

SKELSMERGH AND 
SCALTHWAITERIGG  

199.98 4016.22 20.08 203.98 5039.12 24.70 23.01% 

SKELWITH 
115.27 4075 35.35 118.00 4128 34.98 -1.05% 

STAINTON 
149.32 4167.7 27.91 150.51 4641.11 30.84 10.50% 

STAVELEY IN CARTMEL 
276.45 5226.72 18.91 284.61 5000 17.57 -7.09% 

Page 298



  APPENDIX C 

STAVELEY WITH INGS (5) 
775.64 15045.78 19.40 774.72 15576.58 20.11 3.66% 

TORVER 
70.93 2500 35.25 79.13 3000 37.91 7.55% 

ULVERSTON 
4,052.87 198790.87 49.05 4,063.85 199372 49.06 0.02% 

UNDERBARROW AND 
BRADLEYFIELD 

205.35 7737.95 37.68 213.05 8159.88 38.30 1.65% 

URSWICK BARDSEA AND 
STAINTON 

624.58 8205.2 13.14 624.40 8218.56 13.16 0.15% 

WHINFELL 
80.04 0 0.00 79.69 0 0.00 0.00% 

WHITWELL & SELSIDE 
98.72 0 0.00 99.78 0 0.00 0.00% 

WINDERMERE 
4,141.69 129024.54 31.15 4,132.40 131760.37 31.88 2.34% 

WITHERSLACK MEATHOP 
AND ULPHA  

314.99 9677.63 30.72 318.63 9632.37 30.23 -1.60% 

  
45,265.99 1612265.12 35.62 45,513.49 1692890.4 37.20 4.44% 

 

For clarity Purposes the Parishes shown in the table above mirror those shown on the 

Council Tax bills received by residents.  The figures in brackets are the Tax Base figure for 

the individual element to make the total for each parish. 

Note (1) - The Parish of Allithwaite Upper was renamed in 2018 to Lindale and Newton-

in-Cartmel Parish 

Note (2) - The Parish of Burneside, comprises Strickland Ketel (503.40) and Strickland 

Roger (149.62) 

Note (3) - The Parish of Duddon, comprises Angerton (7.48)/Broughton West 

(447.60)/Dunnerdale (79.70)  

Note (4) – The Parish of Egton-with-Newland Mansriggs & Osmotherley, comprises 

Egton with Newland (390.54)/Mansriggs (21.26)/Osmotherley (121.43) 

Note (5) – The Parish of Staveley with Ings comprises, Hugill (247.11)/Nether Staveley 

(319.15)/Over Staveley (209.21) 

In the cases of notes 2 to 5 the precept is divided by the combined Tax Bases to give the 

same Band D Council Tax for each parish.   

 

Page 299



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 300



South Lakeland District Council 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 1 February 2019 

Cabinet: 6 February 2019 

Council: 26 February 2019 

2019/20 Procurement Strategy and Procurement 
Schedule 

 

Portfolio:   Andrew Jarvis - Finance Portfolio Holder 

Report from: Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan 
as published on 2 October 2018 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 It is expected that Council will ensure Value for Money in the provision of services 
and improve the efficiency of its procurement activities through the approval of the 
procurement exercises proposed for 2019/20 and the updates proposed to the 
Procurement Strategy.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:- 

 (1) consider the updated Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning 
Strategy attached at Appendix 1; and 

 (2) consider the Procurement Schedule for 2019/20 attached at Appendix 2. 

2.2 It is recommended that Cabinet:- 

 (1) recommends the updated Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning 
Strategy attached at Appendix 1 to Council for approval; and 

 (2) recommends the Procurement Schedule for 2019/20 attached at 
Appendix 2 to Council for approval. 

2.3 It is requested at that Council:- 

 (1) approve the updated Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning 
Strategy attached at Appendix 1; and 

 (2) approve the Procurement Schedule for 2019/20 attached at Appendix 2. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council’s three-year Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy was 
approved in 2016.  During 2019 an exercise will be carried out to review the 
document to ensure it meets the Council’s needs in the future under the Customer 

Page 301

Item No.13



Connect model.  During 2018 the Local Government Association has published an 
updated National Procurement Strategy. Many of the proposals in this national 
strategy are already reflected in the Council’s strategy but some minor changes are 
proposed around strategic contact management, supplier engagement and social 
value.  References to legislation and the Council Plan have also been updated. 
Appendix 1 updates the Council’s existing strategy to reflect these changes.   

3.2 Since April 2016 the Council’s Constitution has permitted officers to conduct and 
conclude the contracting processes without further approval providing it is in line with 
the Procurement Schedule, to be approved by Council at least annually.  Where a 
procurement process is over budget then approval will still be required in accordance 
with the Financial Procedure Rules.  Where an officer seeks approval for a waiver or 
exemption under the Contract Procedure Rules this is also included in the 
Procurement Schedule.   

3.3 The Procurement Schedule for 2019/20 is attached at Appendix 2.  There are 78 
procurement projects identified which is slightly lower than the 83 procurement 
exercises originally approved for 218/19. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet will consider the Procurement 
Schedule prior to presentation to Council for approval. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 Council could decide not to approve all or part of the Procurement Schedule.  This 
would mean that separate acceptance reports may be required for all or specific 
tenders. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The Procurement Strategy at Appendix 1 sets out the links to the Council Plan. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no direct financial implications of the report.  Staff resources are required 
to manage individual procurement exercises, both within the Procurement team and 
individual service teams.  Effective procurement will enable the Council to 
demonstrate it achieves value for money.  Where procurement exercises have not 
been run in a lawful manner there may be fines and other additional costs. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no direct staffing implications of the report. 

Legal 

7.3 This report has no direct legal implications at this stage but individual proposals 
resulting from this report may have direct legal implications. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

Equality and Diversity 

7.5 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 3) 

7.6 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: There are no significant equality and 
diversity impacts. 

Page 302



Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure to accept tenders within 
time limits 

Potential need to re-tender 
and/or loss of most 
economically favourable 
tenders. 

Robust procurement 
processes including 
efficient mechanisms for 
accepting tenders. 

Contact Officers 

Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, 01539 793147, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Phil Lowe, Interim Procurement Manager, 01539 793520. 
Phillip.lowe@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy 2016-2019 
(January 2019 update) 

2 Procurement Schedule 2019/20 

3 Equality Impact Assessment 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

None  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 16/01/2019 

Section 151 Officer 16/01/2019 

Monitoring Officer 16/01/2019 

SMT 16/01/2019 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 16/01/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 16/01/2019 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 01/02/2019 

Executive (Cabinet) 06/02/2019 

Council 26/02/2019 

 

Page 303

mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 304



Appendix 1 

1 

Sustainable Procurement & 

Commissioning Strategy 

2016-2019 (updated January 2019) 

 1. Introduction  

The Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy 2016-2019 (‘the Strategy’) sets 

the framework for South Lakeland District Council (‘the Council’) to purchase goods, 

services, and works to deliver value for money and to meet the needs of local citizens. It 

incorporates the most appropriate elements of best practice in structure, policy and 

procedure, and will remain sufficiently flexible to respond to both internal and external 

change.  

In keeping with the ambition of the Councils need’s led approach and aligned with the 

National Procurement Strategy 2018, this procurement strategy sets high standards for 

South Lakeland District Council. Delivery will require commitment, action and buy-in from 

members, staff and suppliers if South Lakeland’s citizens are to receive high quality and 

cost effective services.   

  

This document should be read in conjunction with the Council’s Constitution Rules of 

Procedure Section 4 which details the contract procedure rules to be followed.  Additionally, 

the Council’s procurement Toolkit provides guidance and templates which are available to 

support staff in meeting their procurement responsibilities.  

  

Procurement and Commissioning  

Procurement is defined as the process of acquiring goods, works and services and covers 

the full lifecycle from the initial concept to the end of useful life of an asset or service. It has 

a wider scope than ‘purchasing’ or ‘buying’; as a public authority it concerns securing 

products and services that best meet the needs of the community whilst taking into account 

the fundamental principles of efficiency, economy and effectiveness.  

Commissioning can be defined as securing services that essentially address the needs and 

wishes of the service user as determined through research and planning.   

Procurement and commissioning are interrelated functions that at a basic level combine the 

identification of a need through stakeholder and customer engagement with the ultimate 

goal of sourcing the most appropriate delivery option based on the intended outcome.  

Throughout this Strategy the term ‘procurement’ will encompass both concepts.  

Page 305



Appendix 1 

2 

SLDC’s Vision and Values  

South Lakeland District Council is committed to ‘working together to make South Lakeland 

the best place to live, work and explore’. Responsible and innovative procurement can 

support this vision by embedding the Council’s values of empowering people, excellence, 

and openness and transparency whilst delivering value for money and meeting citizens’ 

needs.  

We will deliver the Council Plan by working across boundaries to deliver to communities, 

creating the right balance across all ages, reducing inequalities where no one is left behind 

and by creating the right balance between a sustainable and inclusive economy. 

There is a substantial challenge ahead with the current economic climate placing public 

sector finance under increasing pressure and scrutiny. In response, obtaining value for 

money and creating opportunities for economic growth will be at the forefront of all 

procurement activity. As an enabling authority this is fundamental to our business 

processes.  

This Strategy is informed and supports the values and priorities of the Corporate Strategy in 

full. It will be reviewed annually to reflect the evolving needs of the Council.   

Purpose of the Strategy  

The Strategy provides a framework for a strategic approach to procurement throughout the 

Council. It emphasises the importance of procurement decisions and will be communicated 

widely to Members, officers, partners, suppliers, stakeholders and the community.  

It is designed to ensure compliance with existing procurement legislation, predominantly the 

EU Procurement Directives, and reflects all related legislation and national policy drivers 

including the Social Value Act, Localism Act, advances in Equalities legislation, National 

Procurement Strategy, Transformational Government Agenda, the ‘Roots’ Review and the 

Sustainable Task Force’s Report ‘Procuring the Future’.    

The importance of sustainable procurement is emphasised; using procurement to support 

wider social, economic and environmental objectives in a way that offers real long term 

benefits. The Strategy is constructed to highlight our commitment to a more sustainable 

district, and to enable us to demonstrate improvement in delivering sustainable outcomes 

through effective procurement practices.  

Ultimately the Strategy paves the way for the Council’s contribution to the broader public 

procurement landscape – one which promotes the needs of the South Lakeland community, 

fosters innovation and efficiency, and uses procurement to develop and shape the local 

economy.   

Intelligent procurement is vital not only in improving the quality and cost effectiveness of 

services across the district, but in demonstrating the type of authority the Council wants to 

be and shaping how we are perceived by our stakeholders.   

Page 306



Appendix 1 

3 

2.  Procurement in Context  

Value for Money  

The Local Government Act 1999, which was later reinforced by the Best Value Statutory 

Guidance 2011, placed a duty on all Local Authorities to secure Best Value, with strategy 

and good procurement skills widely recognised as essential to delivering value for money.  

 National Context  

 Throughout the public sector, there is a growing demand for services and falling funding 

levels. This has meant that authorities must find ways better ways of using resources such 

as increased collaboration, creation of Shared Services, moves to standardisation of 

requirements, purchases, processes and documentation, and increased levels of challenge 

and requirement for competition in procurement.  

  

Authorities are required to evidence continuous performance improvement through 

inspections, audits, spending reviews and national procurement targets. This has led to 

authorities needing to prioritise and adequately resource contract management as a 

mechanism for ensuring value for money is consistently delivered and that demonstrable 

continuous performance improvement becomes a core requirement of all contracts.  

  

Competitive markets and variety of service provision options are very important in 

supporting value for money and choice for customers. This has driven an increased focus 

on market stimulation and supply chain management to ensure a sustainable mix of 

suppliers from all sectors in the long and short term.  

  

Changes in customer demographics, expectations and complexity of requirements 

(particularly for vulnerable customers) has highlighted the need to mitigate and manage 

risk to ensure continuity of quality service delivery to customers and to challenge 

traditional assumptions of service provision and ‘Make or buy?’ decisions. Robust 

business cases and options appraisals should be used to stimulate innovation and 

improvement when selecting in-house or outsourcing of service provision and ensure long 

term consequences of decisions are considered and addressed.  

  

Developments in Technology and extension of its use in service delivery is leading to 

mobile working and automation of transactions. This reduces the effect of geographical 

limitations, aiding process efficiency and supporting the extension of collaboration 

opportunities from a sub-regional to an (inter)national level.  

  

Mounting emphasis on the importance of sustainability of communities and reducing 

environmental impact in all activities with environmentally positive options being taken 

wherever viable and a similar approach encouraged throughout the supply chain, and work 

with organisations such as  Business Link and Chambers of Commerce, to support local 

companies, Small to Medium Enterprises (SME’s) and Voluntary, 

Page 307



Appendix 1 

4 

Charity and Social Enterprises (VCS) organisations to develop transferable skills and 

ability to win business.  

  

There is a growing need for access to experienced, trained and adaptable procurement 

professionals with strong business skills and ‘intelligent purchasers’ within service delivery 

units to support the increase in procurement, contract management, and supply chain and 

market development activities. This requires formalised approaches to skills & capacity 

building and management in order to ensure development of professionals for the 

future and make provision of training and skill development tailored to the differing roles 

of purchasers across local government.  

  

Greater citizen involvement in decisions regarding resource allocation and service 

provision decisions is required. This can reduce the autonomy of service delivery units 

and requires the balancing of customer choice, needs and expectations.  

  

Public procurement in the UK is governed by legislation set out in the EU Procurement 

Directives and enforced nationally by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015. These provide 

a legal obligation to comply with the EU Treaty based principles of non-discrimination, equal 

treatment, transparency, mutual recognition and proportionality.  This is accompanied by 

other relevant legislation including the Freedom of Information Act 2000, Data Protection 

Act 2018 and the General Data Protection Regulation, Equalities Act 2010, Localism Act 

2011, Social Value Act 2012 and the Bribery Act 2010.  

  

The Council’s approach is to adopt best practice in complying with legislation, supporting 

the National Procurement Strategy for Local Government England 2018, and utilising tools 

such as the Sustainable Task Force’s Flexible Framework to embed sustainability as a core 

business consideration.  

Local Context  

Procurement at South Lakeland District Council is governed by the Council Constitution, 

predominantly the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Regulations, and all other 

internal policy and procedures. It also supports the Cumbria Compact and the various 

regional procurement initiatives across the North West.   

The Council understands that in addition to national drivers, local factors are of primary 

importance in ensuring positive results for the South Lakeland community.  

Partnership Working   

South Lakeland District Council recognises the benefits of working with partner 

organisations including Cumbria County Council, other Cumbrian district councils, the NHS, 

Cumbria Constabulary and the Lake District National Park Authority.  The Council has also 

carried out many joint procurement exercises with neighbouring authorities.  

Page 308



Appendix 1 

5 

Going forward it is intended that the Council will work closer with partners and other 

organisations to optimise service delivery and stimulate economic growth.  

3. Our Commitment  

The needs of the community will be fundamental to the decisions we make with innovative 

and agile procurement practices adopted to support the local economy and deliver more 

sustainable outcomes.    

In order to maintain the Council’s reputation and reflect the expectations we have of our 

suppliers all procurement activity will be undertaken to the highest standards of probity and 

professionalism. Members and officers will not only be fair and ethical, but will avoid 

conduct that is capable of being placed under adverse interpretation.   

Procurement will therefore be undertaken in compliance with the following principles:  

All procurement activity will comply with the EU Treaty and Procurement Directives, UK 

Legislation, the Council Constitution and all other relevant policies and procedures  

Procurement will be fair, open and transparent and undertaken to the highest standards of 

probity, integrity, honesty and professionalism  

The Council will undertake procurement activity using the most efficient and effective 

methods and will select the most appropriate delivery mechanisms to ensure value for 

money   

All procurement activity will include due consideration of social, economic and 

environmental factors and will be assessed on whole life costing   

Robust contract management will support improved service delivery through continuous 

improvement in the quality of goods, works and services  

 4.  The Council Priorities  

Procurement activity will be coordinated and focussed to support the delivery of corporate 

priorities by:  

Encouraging a sustainable economy 

 Encouraging local suppliers to bid for Council contracts  

 Writing contract specifications for goods that will make a positive impact on the local 

economy and community  

Creating the right balance across communities at delivers 

affordable homes to meet need  

 Supporting service areas in key procurement activity  

Page 309



Appendix 1 

6 

Protecting, enhancing and improving our environment  

 Delivering environmental and social outcomes from procurement activity, e.g. 

reducing energy consumption; reducing carbon footprint.  

Reduces inequalities  

 Engaging with the community to understand their needs   

 Commissioning services which are environmentally and socially responsible   

  Delivering real value for money for the residents of South Lakeland through our 

procurement decisions  

In order to support the Council’s ambitions this Strategy includes the following procurement 

priorities:  

4.1  Making Savings  

South Lakeland District Council is dealing with significant financial pressures resulting from 

reductions in government funding and rising demand. This means using spending power 

wisely and strategically by the effective use of:  

4.1.1 Category Management of key areas of spend – like energy, ICT and construction, 

This can help to reduce the cost of buying goods and services, reduce risk in the supply 

chain, increase overall value from the supply base and gain more innovation from suppliers. 

When applied effectively, this seeks to reduce demand, simplify the way we buy and 

aggregate spend across the entire council or multiple organisations. The results can be 

significantly greater than traditional transactional based purchasing.  

4.1.2 Partnering and collaboration – identify further opportunities to aggregate spend 

through effective collaboration with other public bodies and Public Buying Organisations 

(PBO’s). Explore options relating to sharing services or posts with appropriate partners.  

4.1.3 Strategic Contract and Supplier Engagement and Management   

Implement a corporate approach to strategic contract and supplier management to obtain 

best value from supply chains through:  

- Measuring contract outputs and key performance indicators to ensure 

competitiveness over the contract  

- Ensuring visibility of supply chains  

- Expecting main contractors to act fairly with supply chains and mandate timely 

payment to subcontractors through contract clauses  

- Developing and sustaining a capacity for good contact management  

- Scrutinising strategic contracts post award to develop strategic relationships and 

ensuring performance improvement, cost reduction mitigate risk and harness 

Page 310



Appendix 1 

7 

innovation. Ensuring improved outcomes  for the public, adding social value and 

innovation   

- Monitoring and enforcing compliance to ‘on contract’ spend  

- Developing and agreeing exit strategies within all major contracts  

This will help to identify and manage the council’s and the suppliers’ risks, and achieve 

savings and continuous improvement throughout the life of the contract.   

4.1.4 Performance and Transparency through effective monitoring of targets 

4.1.5 Risk and Fraud Management  

Understand and develop a proportionate risk management approach by:  

- Integrate and manage risk in the Procurement and delivery processes.  

- Proactively auditing contracts to check for fraud  

- Including whistleblowing policies as part of contract conditions  

4.1.6 Demand Management  

Costs and oversupply are reduced through the implementation of demand management 

techniques within the procurement and commissioning cycle through:  

- Engaging with citizen’s, customers, and users and building in a demand 

management approach before procurement begins  

- Seeking alternative mechanisms to procure citizen’s needs 

- Engaging with suppliers to ensure a greater understanding of the market place  

4.2 Supporting Local Economies  

4.2.1 Economic, Environmental and Social Value  

The Council will focus on providing the maximum benefit to its citizens from every taxpayer 

pound that is spent and will take responsibility for generating economic, environmental and 

social growth in local communities through:  

- Considering how to obtain social value in all tenders  

- Considering sustainability at the ‘identify need’ stage of the procurement cycle  

- Consider and ensure that social value is utilised where appropriate in the tender 

process   

4.2.2 Improving access for SME’s and VCSE’s through:  

- Pre-market engagement  

- Ensuring that strategies for developing procurements into lots does not create 

unwanted barriers for smaller businesses  

- Use of  electronic portals to advertise tender opportunities   

- Promoting skills development to provide local organisations with the tools to compete 

Page 311



Appendix 1 

8 

effectively.  

4.3 Leadership  

4.3.1 Commitment from the top, through:  

- Procurement is recognised as strategically important by the Chief Executive, 

members and senior officers within the Council  

- Designation of a member champion for procurement.  

- The Chief Finance Officer takes overall strategic responsibility for procurement and 

ensures full value is extracted from all procurement decisions  

- The procurement strategy is linked to the corporate strategy  

4.3.2 Seeing procurement as part of a strategic commissioning cycle requiring stronger 

engagement and alignment of procurement with commissioners. Identify strategic outcomes 

in relation to assessed user needs, and design and secure appropriate services to deliver 

these outcomes.  

4.3.3 Procurement Training to develop a more commercially-focussed procurement culture 

through building procurement competencies. Ensuring staff are equipped with knowledge, 

training, and practical skills and empower them to deliver intelligent procurement.  

4.4 Modernising Procurement  

To rise to the challenge local government procurement needs to modernise in terms of 

scope, use of technology and practices and procedures by:   

4.4.1 Procurement activities helping the Council to respond to financial pressures through 

creation of commercial opportunities and income generation.  

4.4.2 Using outcome specifications and other methods to encourage supplier innovation.  

4.4.3 Ensuring terms and conditions are flexible enough to allow for changes in 

technology and enable innovation during the life of the procurement  

4.4.4 Further developing appropriate e-procurement and other solutions in procurement 

practices, e.g. e-invoicing to make best use of technology and to make it easier for partners 

and suppliers to work with the Council.  

4.4.5 Taking advantages of the opportunities presented in the EU Directives which allow 

council procurement processes to be quicker, simpler, and less costly to run.   

4.4.6 Develop strategic relationships with the professional buying consortia and other Public 

sector organisations which can deliver leading-edge practice in category management, and 

reduce duplication of effort through the utilisation of appropriate framework agreements.  

5.  Embedding Delivery  

Page 312



Appendix 1 

9 

In keeping with the ambitions of the Corporate Strategy and the emphasis placed on public 

sector procurement by the Government, this Strategy sets high standards for the Council. 

Delivery will require commitment and willing from Members, officers and suppliers if the 

South Lakeland community is to truly benefit.    

Contract Management Group  

To re-enforce our commitment to continual improvement through robust contract 

management a Contract Management Group will meet regularly. The group will rely on the 

participation of all officers who monitor key contracts and arrangements across the Council, 

and will look at developing current contract monitoring procedures, share best practice and 

ensure a more pragmatic approach to contract management.   

6. Monitoring and Review  

The Council’s Procurement and Contracts Manager will take ownership of the Strategy with 

overall responsibility for maintaining, monitoring progress, and developing it.   

Monitoring  

Implementation of the Strategy will be supported by the Sustainable Procurement and 

Commissioning Action Plan which includes measurable targets for delivery. These targets 

will be placed on the Council’s performance management system which will be utilised to 

monitor progress and demonstrate transparency and accountability. This will be updated in 

line with any developments of the Strategy in support of continuous improvement across the 

procurement function.   

Progress against the Strategy will be reported to Senior Management quarterly and Cabinet 

annually. Alignment with corporate rules and objectives, and compliance with legislation will 

be monitored by the Procurement Team.   

Review  

The Strategy will be reviewed annually to ensure it meets the needs of all stakeholders 

including elected members, officers, public and private sector partners, local and third 

sector organisations, and the South Lakeland community.   

In addressing the fast pace of change in local government the Council will adopt a more 

innovative approach to procurement built on an ethos of continuous improvement.  

7. Seeking Improvement  

In order to support this Strategy it is vital that good practice is shared across all service 

areas and common standards are adopted. Continual improvement and 

Page 313



Appendix 1 

10 

innovation across the Council is essential if we are going to exceed customer expectation 

and deliver improved quality within budget.   

The Procurement Team will:  

- Constantly monitor procurement performance against leading authorities and 

organisations, and create a culture of continuous improvement  

- Provide professional support, advice and informed knowledge to members and staff 

on procurement matters in order to contribute to the wider Corporate Plan  

- Raise procurement standards across the Council and our partners throughout the 

contract lifecycle, with specific emphasis on contract management to ensure the full 

benefits of procurement are realised    

 

Page 314



Procurement Schedule 2019/20 Appendix 2 

TITLE START DATE END DATE Responsible Officer Portfolio Holder Ward DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT Review Date EXTENSION 

(if applicable)

EST.VALUE £ PROCUREMENT 

 PROCESS

DECISION 

ROUTE

CONTRACT 

TYPE

STATUS

3 Electric & Water Bollards for public Jetties at Ferry 

Nab

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Flannigan, Frankie Lake Administration 

Committee

Bowness & Levens Purchase of 3 Electric & water bollards for the 

public jetties at Ferry Nab, Windermere.

N/A 10-100K Quotes Administration One-off Not Started

Abbot Hall Playground improvements 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Kendal Town Improvements to the playground at Abbot Hall, 

Kendal

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Archers Meadow Playground 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Kendal East Purchase of playgournd equipment for Archers 

Meadow

N/A 10-100K Framework Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Automatic Doors and Roller Shutters maintenance 01/04/2019 31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Maintenance of the Automatic Doors and roller 

shutters

N/A 10-100K Quotes Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Boiler Servicing 01/04/2019 31/03/2022 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All All servicing of boilers, gas appliances, gas safety 

inspections, ventilation and boiler control panels

N/A 10-100K Tender Cabinet Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

Braithwaite Fold Car Park Re-surfacing - Consultant 

appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Bowness & Levens Resurfacing work to Braithwaite Fold Car Park 30/09/2019 N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Braithwaite Fold Car Park resurfacing - Contractor 

appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Bowness & Levens Resurfacing work to Braithwaite Fold Car Park N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Braithwaite Fold Caravan Site Management 

Agreement  

01/04/2020 31/03/2030 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Bowness & Levens Management of Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park N/A >OJEU Tender Cabinet Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

Broadgate Meadow, Grasmere Playground 

Improvement

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Ambleside & Grasmere To carry out playground improvements at 

Broadgate Meadow, Grasmere

N/A 10-100K Framework Cabinet One-off Not Started

Car Park investment General - Consultant 

Appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town Investment and general upgrade works needed 

to car parks

30/09/2019 N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Car Park Investments General - Contractor 

appointment 

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town Investment and general upgrade works needed 

to car parks

30/09/2019 N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Car Park Pay by Phone 01/10/2019 30/09/2023 Flannigan, Frankie Graham Vincent All Pay by Phone system for all Car Parks N/A 10-100K Quotes Administration New Contract Not Started

Cash Collection Service 01/04/2019 31/10/2021 Flannigan, Frankie Graham Vincent All Transportation of the Car Park Cash to the bank 1 Year 10-100K Framework Administration New Contract Not Started

Castlefield and Greenbank Play Area 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Ambleside & Grasmere Improvements to the playground at Castlefield 

and Greenbank, Ambleside

N/A 10-100K Framework Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Collection of Clinical Waste 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Collection of Clinical waste from private 

residence throughout the district.

N/A 10-100K Quotes Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

New Contract Not Started

Disable Changing Facility at Millerground 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Windermere To create a changing area and toilet facilities 

suitable for disable access.

N/A 10-100K Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Energy Saving Enhancements across the portfolio - 

Building Contractor

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Part of Capital Programme and there is £149k to 

invest in SLDC building portfolio in low carbon 

solutions

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Engineering capacity assessments to car parks - 

Consultant

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Engineering assessment to look at the access/ 

egress of Rydal Road, Ambleside; assessment to 

look at hardstanding at Braithwaite Fold and to 

consider increased capacity in other SLDC car 

parks.

N/A 10-100K Bloom 

Procurement 

Services

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Feasability Study of South Lakeland House (RIBA stage 

2 & 3)

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town RIBA stage 2 & 3 to provide detailed design and 

cost estimates for the refurbishment of South 

Lakeland House

N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Fire Appliances and Fire & Intruder Alarms 01/04/2019 31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Provision of Fire Appliances and Service contract 

for  Fire, Security Alarms, CCTV and Emergency 

Lighting.

N/A 10-100K Tender Cabinet Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

Fleet Maintenance Workshop Equipment Servicing 01/04/2019 31/03/2022 Florentine, Paul Dyan Jones All The maintenance and servicing of equipment in 

the Fleet Maintenance vehicle workshop

31/03/2021 N/A <10K Quotes Administration New Contract Not Started

Framework for the purchase of Gas oil 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Set up a framework for the purchase of Gas Oil 

for Depots and lake wardens use.

N/A 10-100K Quotes Administration New Contract Not Started

Framework for the purchase of vehicle parts 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Set up a framework for the purchase of vehicle 

parts

N/A 10-100K Tender Cabinet New Contract Not Started

Grange Lido - Consultant Appointment from RIBA 4 to 

RIBA 6

01/04/2019 31/08/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Grange Refurbishment to Grange Lido N/A 10-100K Waiver Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Grange Lido - Contractor Appointment 01/04/2019 31/08/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Grange Refurbishment to Grange Lido 30/09/2019 N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

P
age 315



Procurement Schedule 2019/20 Appendix 2 

TITLE START DATE END DATE Responsible Officer Portfolio Holder Ward DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT Review Date EXTENSION 

(if applicable)

EST.VALUE £ PROCUREMENT 

 PROCESS

DECISION 

ROUTE

CONTRACT 

TYPE

STATUS

Grange Lido structural repair and refurbishment 

works to create public open space

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Grange RIBA stage 2,3 & 4 to provide detailed design 

and cost estimates for the refurbishment fo the 

Grange Lido and to take through to Tender 

following completion of the Business Case.

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Grange Promenade Structural Repairs - Building 

Contractor

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Grange To undertake structural repairs to sea wall 

defence and upgrade the Grange Promenade

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Grange Promenade Structural Repairs - Consultant 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Grange To undertake structural repairs to sea wall 

defence and upgrade the Grange promenade. 

Appoint consultant for all phases.

N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Homeless accomodation for families - Consultant 

appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Refurbishment and remodel to various SLDC 

properties to provide accomodation for 

homeless families

30/09/2019 N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Homeless accomodation for families - Contractor 

apponitment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Refurbishment and remodel to various SLDC 

properties to provide accomodation for 

homeless families

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

In Cab Technology and Vehicle Tracking 01/04/2019 31/03/2029 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All The supply of an electronic management system 

to provide communications across the Street 

Scene service, integrate with existing systems 

and manage performance

31/03/2021 N/A 100K-OJEU Framework Cabinet New Contract Not Started

Kendal Market Service Review 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town Review of the operating model of Kendal Market N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Administration One-off Not Started

Laptops & IT Equipment 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Jonathan Moloney Jonathan Brook All Purchase of laptops & IT equipment throughout 

the year via CCS framework agreement RM3733 

Technology Products 2 Lot 6 catalogue

N/A 10-100K Framework Administration One-off Not Started

Legionella Risk Assessments 01/04/2019 31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Legionella Risk Assessments to all SLDC 

buildings for a fixed 2 year contract which will 

include a full risk assessment and review in the 

second year

N/A 10-100K Tender Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Legionella Servicing 01/04/2019 31/03/2019 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Legionella Risk Assessment, Bi Annual cleaning, 

monthly and weekly site checks

N/A 10-100K Tender Cabinet Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

Lift Maintenance 01/04/2019 31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Service Contract for Lift Maintenance N/A 10-100K Tender Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

New Contract Not Started

Lightburn Park, Ulverston, Phase 1 masterplan 

implementation - Playground Equipment

01/04/2019 30/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Ulverston East Implementation of Phase 1 of the Lightburn 

Park, Ulverston masterplan - Playground 

Equipment

N/A 10-100K Framework Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Lime re-pointing works to Castle Dairy external walls - 

Building Contractor

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town Re-pointing to external walls of Castle Dairy to 

remove sand/cement pointing. Work will 

require listed building application

N/A 10-100K Tender On 

Procurement 

Schedule

One-off Not Started

Lime re-pointing works to Castle Dairy external walls - 

Consultant

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town Re-pointing to external walls of Castle Dairy to 

remove sand/cement pointing work will require 

listed building application

N/A <10K LSH Additional 

Work

Administration One-off Not Started

Management of Service Contracts - Consultant 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Delivery and Management of service contracts N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Multifunctional Devices and Services (Office Printers) 01/09/2019 31/08/2022 McVey, Simon Giles Archibold All To supply Multifunctional devices and services 

throughout SLDC offices

N/A 10-100K Tender Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

New decking for public jetty No. 2 Ferry Nab 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Flannigan, Frankie Lake Administration 

Committee

Bowness & Levens Re-deck jetty no. 2 as in a bad state of repair. N/A 10-100K Quotes Administration One-off Not Started

North Lonsdale Road Playground 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Ulverston East Purchase of playground equipment for North 

Lonsdale Road Playground

N/A 10-100K Framework Cabinet One-off Not Started

Owlett Ash Playground 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Arnside & Milnthorpe Purchase of Playground equipment for Owlett 

Ash playground

N/A 10-100K Framework Cabinet One-off Not Started

Parking Management Software 01/10/2019 30/09/2023 Flannigan, Frankie Jonathan Brook All Renew software licences for Parking Managent 

Software

01/09/2018 N/A 10-100K Quotes Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

P
age 316



Procurement Schedule 2019/20 Appendix 2 

TITLE START DATE END DATE Responsible Officer Portfolio Holder Ward DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT Review Date EXTENSION 

(if applicable)

EST.VALUE £ PROCUREMENT 

 PROCESS

DECISION 

ROUTE

CONTRACT 

TYPE

STATUS

Parkside Road Car Park - Building Contractor 

Appointment

01/08/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All This project is to create a formalised car parking 

area off Parkside Road which will be taken 

forward if proven that this land will offer 

suitable psrking provision for the Town and 

wider area as part of the Kendal and Oxenholme 

parking study.

30/06/2019 N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Parkside Road Car Park - Consultant Appointment 13/08/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All This project is to create a formalised car park 

area off Parkside Road. The project will  be 

taken forward if proven that this land will offer 

suitable parking provision for the Town and 

wider area as part of the Kendal and Oxenholme 

Parking Study.

30/06/2019 N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Administration One-off Not Started

Patrol Boat Engine 01/09/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Graham Vincent Windermere Purchase of a new low emmission engine for the 

patrol boat.

30/06/2019 N/A 10-100K Exemption Administration One-off Not Started

Private Water Supplies Sampling 01/12/2019 30/11/2021 Hall, Sean Dyan Jones All To undertake routine sampling of private water 

supplies within the district.

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet New Contract Not Started

Public Space Protection Order Signage 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones All supply and installation of new PSPO signage 

across the district at specified locations

N/A 10-100K Quotes Administration One-off Not Started

Pump Servicing 01/04/2019 31/03/2022 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent All Servicing of Pumping Equipment N/A 10-100K Tender Cabinet Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

Purchase of 3 upto 12T RCV 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Purchase of 3 vehicles upto 12 t RCV N/A 100K-OJEU Framework Cabinet One-off Not Started

Purchase of 5 x RCV 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Purchase of 5 26T RCV N/A >OJEU Framework Cabinet One-off Not Started

Purchase of a Pressure Washer 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Purchase of a Pressure Washer N/A <10K Quotes Administration One-off Not Started

Purchase of a Tractor for Ferry Nab 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Lake Administration 

Committee

Bowness & Levens Purchase of a tractor for Ferry Nab N/A 10-100K Quotes Administration One-off Not Started

Purchase of Recycling Boxes and Lids 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Purchase of Recycling Boxes and Lids N/A 10-100K Quotes Cabinet One-off Not Started

Purchase of upto 10 3.5T Collection Vehicles 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Purchase of upto 10 3.5T Collection Vehicles N/A 100K-OJEU Framework Administration One-off Not Started

Queens Park Play Area Improvements, Skate Park & 

Football Area Improvements

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Windermere Improvements made to the Play area, Skate Park 

and Football area at Queens Park

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Rayrigg Meadow Car Park 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah Dyan Jones Windermere Extention to Rayrigg Meadow car park to 

provide parking for Motor Homes.

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Rayrigg Road Car Park works - Expansion - Contractor 

appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Bowness & Levens Expansion to Rayrigg Road car Park, Ambleside 30/09/2019 N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Rayrigg Road Car Park Works - Expansion - Contractor 

Appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Bowness & Levens Expansion of Rayrigg Road Car Park 30/09/2019 N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

Replacement Wheeled Bins 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Purchase of Wheeled Bins N/A 10-100K Framework Administration One-off Not Started

Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road Cemetery 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal East Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road 

cemetery

N/A 10-100K Tender Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road Cemetery  - 

Consultant

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal East Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road 

cemetery

N/A <10K LSH Additional 

Work

Administration One-off Not Started

Rydal Road Car Park Works - Expansion - Consultant 

Appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Bowness & Levens Expansion to Rydal Road Car Park, Ambleside N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Rydal Road Car Park works - Expansion - Contractor 

Appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Bowness & Levens Expansion of Rydal Road Car Park, Ambleside 30/09/2019 N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

South Lakeland House Car Park Structural Repairs - 

Building Contractor

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town Phase 2 of the works. Phase 1 was to undertake 

any immediate repairs to the concrete structure 

whilst a feasibility was concluded about the 

Public Sector Hub and therefore the future need 

for South Lakeland House and its Car Park.

N/A 100K-OJEU Tender Cabinet One-off Not Started

South Lakeland House Car Park Structural Repairs - 

consultant

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Kendal Town Phase 2 of the works. Phase 1 was to undertake 

any immediate repairs to the concrete structure 

whilst a feasibility was concluded about the 

public sector hub and therefore the future need 

for South Lakeland House and the Car Park

N/A 10-100K LSH Additional 

Work

Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Supply of Car Park Tickets 01/10/2019 30/09/2023 Flannigan, Frankie Graham Vincent All Supply of Car Park Tickets and the arrangement 

of advertising.

N/A 10-100K Tender Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

New Contract Not Started

P
age 317



Procurement Schedule 2019/20 Appendix 2 

TITLE START DATE END DATE Responsible Officer Portfolio Holder Ward DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT Review Date EXTENSION 

(if applicable)

EST.VALUE £ PROCUREMENT 

 PROCESS

DECISION 

ROUTE

CONTRACT 

TYPE

STATUS

Supply of Office Stationery Requirements 01/10/2019 30/09/2023 Moffatt, Pam Andrew Jarvis All Supply of office stationery for the authority. N/A 10-100K Framework Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

Technical design and contract administration for 

Grange Lido Structural repair and refurbishment 

works (RIBA 2 - 4)

01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion Graham Vincent Grange Refurbishment  of the Grange Lido and to take 

through to Tender following completion of the 

Outline Business Case.

N/A 10-100K Waiver Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

One-off Not Started

Town View Fields Out of Hours Contract 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Inston, Fiona Jonathan Brook Kendal Town Provision of evening and weekend cover for the 

Town View Fields Hostel

N/A 10-100K Quotes Delegated 

Executive 

Decision

Contract 

Renewal

Not Started

Ulverston Leisure Centre Design and Build - 

Contractor Appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Sykes, David Robin Ashcroft Ulverston East & West New Build - Ulverston Leisure Centre 30/09/2019 N/A >OJEU Framework Cabinet One-off Not Started

Ulverston Leisure Centre Developed Design to Riba 

Stage 3 - Consultant appointment

01/04/2019 03/03/2021 Sykes, David Robin Ashcroft Ulverston East & West New Build Ulverston Leisure Centre 30/09/2019 N/A 100K-OJEU Framework Cabinet One-off Not Started

Vehicle Reversing Safety Equipment 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Purchase of Vehicle Reversing Safety Equipment N/A 10-100K Exemption Cabinet New Contract Not Started

Workshop equipment servicing 01/04/2019 31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim Dyan Jones All Provide servicing for all the workshop 

equipment

N/A <10K Quotes Administration One-off Not Started

Enforcement and Collection Agency Service 01/06/2018 31/05/2021 Davison, Alison Andrew Jarvis All Enforcement and Collection Agency Service for 

the collection of council tax, non-domestic rates 

and sundry debts, including overpaid housing 

benefit.

2 Years <10K Tender Cabinet Concession 

Contract

In Progress

P
age 318



Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EIA 
Title:  

 
1.0 The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected 

characteristics: 
 

Age, disability, ethnicity, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.  
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the 
elimination of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0). 
 

1.1  SLDC includes “rurality” and “socio-economic disadvantage” as 
additional categories in its equality impact assessments. Although socio-
economic status and rurality are not recognised protected characteristics 
under the Equality Act, people on low incomes or in rural isolation are highly 
likely to be affected by services that are intended to support vulnerable 
people. 

 
2.0 The General Equality Duty.  

SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:  
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Act.  
b.  Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a  

protected characteristic and those who do not.  
c.  Foster good relations between people who share  

a protected characteristic and those who  
do not.  
 

Appendix 3 

Page 319



Step 1 

Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA. 

The Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy sets the framework for 
the Council to purchase goods, services and works to deliver value for money and 
to meet the needs of local citizens. The purpose of the strategy is to set out a 
corporate framework for how the Council will conduct its procurement of goods, 
works and service based around the following priorities: 

- Making Savings 

- Supporting Local Economies 

- Leadership 

- Modernising Procurement 

The aim of this EIA is to ensure that our procurement strategy does not prompt 
any disproportionate negative impact on people with any of the protected 
characteristics.  Individual EIAs will be prepared for significant individual 
procurement exercises. 

The expected outcome of this EIA is the identification of any potential issues and a 
commitment to undertake the recommended mitigating actions to ensure our 
services are adequately assessable to the whole community. 

Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken 
(include surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.). 

The Procurement Strategy will impact on Council Members and officers, current 
and potential suppliers, partners, stakeholders and the community as a whole. 
We have consulted internally with our Portfolio Holder, Financial Services, and 
Legal Services to ensure we are in compliance with legislation. 
 

 
 
 

Page 320



Step 2 

Equality Action Plan 
 

In providing this service, what are the impacts 
for the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including 

rural deprivation, ‘rurality’) 
 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Positive 
impacts 

Negative 
impacts 

Mitigating actions (to 
avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead 
Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

Socio-economic disadvantage (including rural 
deprevation) 

 

  Pre-market engagement to 
identify the needs of the 
community and users through 
increased consultation and 
encapsulate into 
specifications.  

Procurement 
and 
Contracts 
Manager – 
Ongoing  
 

 

Develop strategies for 
organising procurement into 
lots that do not create 
unwanted barriers for smaller 
businesses.  

Procurement 
and 
Contracts 
Manager - 
Ongoing  

 

Identify the needs of the 
community and include in 
tender evaluation criteria.  

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager - 
Ongoing 

 

P
age 321



In providing this service, what are the impacts 
for the following people? 

1. Age (young and old) 
2. Black and Minority Ethnic  
3. Disabled  
4. Faith/Belief  
5. Sexual Orientation 
6. Gender 
7. Gender reassignment 
8. Pregnancy and maternity 
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership  
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including 

rural deprivation, ‘rurality’) 
 
(See glossary below for definitions) 
 

Positive 
impacts 

Negative 
impacts 

Mitigating actions (to 
avoid negative impact): 
 

Lead 
Officer & 
When 

Complete 
Y/N 

   Reflect sustainability and 
equalities considerations in 
contract monitoring 
arrangements.  

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager - 
Ongoing 

 

Seek feedback on an annual 
basis from customers over 
services available.  

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager - 
Ongoing 

 

Hold supplier briefings for a 
diverse range of suppliers to 
provide them with the tools to 
compete effectively.  

Procurement 
and Contracts 
Manager - 
Ongoing 

 

P
age 322



Step 3 
 

Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues used 
are accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments) 

 
- Ongoing and flexible support to suppliers in preparing tenders to assist with any obstacles 
and ensure a ‘level playing field’  
- Ongoing monitoring of the size, type and locality of suppliers winning contracts and 
participating in procurement exercises  
- A standard approach to feedback adopted to ensure all suppliers are privy to the same 
level of information  
- Utilising the North West e-tendering portal, The Chest to ensure a consistent, accessible 
and non-discriminatory approach to procurement.  
- Revising our procurement documents to allow for greater understanding of our 
requirements across our diverse supplier base and lead to a less resource intensive process 
in preparing a submission.  
- A Quick Payment Scheme has been adopted which supports Small Medium Enterprises 
(SMEs) so that financial concerns won’t deter them from tendering against larger firms. 
- A robust approach to equalities to be included in the contract monitoring procedure to 
ensure the council’s good practice filters through and requirements are maintained.  
- Our Guidance and Strategy documents will be made available in various formats to 
address visual impairments and language barriers.  
- Work with various business organisations to ensure the details of our procurement 
processes and any message of change is far-reaching  

 

 
The council has a list of equality contacts who can be contacted for consultation or to ask advice. 
The list is on the intranet under Equality and Diversity. If you need any support when completing 
this Equality Impact Analysis, please contact the Partnerships and Funding Officer.  

 

Date: 16 January 2019 

EIA Author(s): Helen Smith 

Assistant Director: Shelagh McGregor 

Document version number: 1.1 

Date for Review: December 2019 

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer Yes 

 
 

Glossary 
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30 
year-olds).  
 
Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples 
on a range of legal matters.  
 
Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse 
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning 
disability. 
 
Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is 
undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing 
physiological or other attributes of sex. 
 
Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection 

Page 323



against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.  
 
Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes, 
Asian, Black and White minority ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.  
 
Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and 
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism, 
Buddhism, and non religious beliefs such as Humanism. 
 
Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.  
 
Socio-economic disadvantage: This includes people on low incomes, as well as issues around rural and urban deprivation, such 
as access to services and transport. Rurality should be specifically considered as South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this 
means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and larger market towns. 

 

 

Page 324



South Lakeland District Council 

Cabinet, Wednesday 6 February 2019 

Council, Tuesday 26 February 2019 

Treasury Management and Capital Strategies 
2019/20 - 2023/24 

 

Portfolio:   Finance Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Lee Hurst – Chief Accountant, Claire Read – Financial Services 
Officer  

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Treasury Management Framework 2019/20 to 2023/24 first published 
on the forward plan published on 2 October 2018 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 It is expected that the Treasury Management Strategy and Capital Strategy for 
2019/20 – 2023/24, will be approved by Council on 26 February 2019. The Strategies 
ensure that the Council have robust arrangements for investing and only borrows 
where it is appropriate and affordable. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet:- 

Note and recommend that Council approve the Treasury Management and 
Capital Strategies and the authorised borrowing limits within the report. 
 

2.2 It is recommended that Council:- 

Approve the Treasury Management and Capital Strategies and the authorised 
borrowing limits within the report 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 This report sets out the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy and Capital 
Strategy for 2019/20 – 2023/24. The Strategies have been updated to reflect the 
2019/20 budget and capital programme.  

 
3.2. The framework fulfils five key legislative requirements:  

•  Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA)’s Prudential 
Code requires the Council to set a number of Prudential Indicators setting 
out the expected capital activities and financing.  

•   The Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy, sets out how the 
Council will pay for capital assets through revenue each year.  

Page 325

Item No.14



•  The Treasury Management Strategy Statement sets out how the Council’s 
treasury service will support the capital decisions taken, the day to day 
treasury management and the limitations on activity through treasury 
prudential indicators;  

•  The Investment Strategy which sets out the Council’s criteria for choosing 
investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss.  

•  The Capital Strategy, to demonstrate that the authority takes capital 
expenditure and investment decisions in line with service objectives and 
properly takes account of stewardship, value for money, prudence, 
sustainability and affordability  

 
This report reflects the latest budget proposals being considered as part of this 
agenda.  

 
3.3.  The Council is required to set a balanced annual revenue budget. The timing and 

nature of income and expenditure within the budget needs to be understood and 
managed so that cash is available when it is required. This is a key function of 
the treasury management operation.  

3.4.  The second key function is the funding of the Council’s capital plans. These 
capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council. This may 
involve arranging new or replacement loans or the planned use of cash balances. 

3.5.  CIPFA defines treasury management as:  

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of 
the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. ”  

3.6.  The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals. 
These reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before 
being recommended to the Council. These are as follows:  

•  Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy (this report), setting 
out the expectations for a minimum of three years, linked into the Council’s 
wider budget setting process.  

•  A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report – This will update Members with 
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or 
whether any policies require revision. This report is incorporated into the 
Council’s quarterly corporate monitoring reports.  

•  An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared 
to the estimates within the strategy.  

 

 

 

 

Page 326



3.7.  The Treasury Management Strategy is based on the proposed capital 
programme for 2018/19 – 2023/24 being considered on this agenda. 

3.8 The Capital Strategy includes potential capital expenditure not currently in the 
proposed programme and arising from the review of Council Assets. The 
resulting indicators in the Capital Strategy are therefore higher as it includes 
potential expenditure and borrowing which may not arise, depending on future 
decisions around service delivery.  The Capital Strategy will assist in ensuring the 
Council has funds available in the future to meet future opportunities which may 
arise.  It also considers organisational issues including how the capital 
programme will be prioritised and considerations including capacity to deliver. 

3.9 The appendices to this report contain the strategy for 2018/19 which covers two 
main areas:  

 
Treasury management Issues (appendices 1 and 2)  
•  prudential and treasury indicators;  
•  the Minimum Revenue Provision statement.  
•  high level Treasury Management Policy statement; 
•  prospects for interest rate; 
•  the current treasury position;   
•  the borrowing strategy;  
•  policy on borrowing in advance of need;  
•  the investment strategy including creditworthiness policy;  
•  non treasury management investments 
•  policy on use of external service providers;  
•  Indicative lending list based on the proposed investment strategy.  
 
Capital issues (appendices 3 and 4) 
•  Capital Strategy;  
•  the Capital Programme 2018/19 – 2023/24  
 

3.10.  The Treasury Management and Capital Strategies cover the requirements of the 
Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA Prudential Code, the Ministry of Housing 
and Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) MRP Guidance, the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code and the MHCLG Investment Guidance. They are 
mainly technical documents that also reflects the decisions made as part of the 
wider budget process. 

 
3.9.  It is important to note that the key controls around placing investments focus on 

counterparty security, liquidity and then yield, in that order, in line with the CIPFA 
Code.   

 
3.10.  In addition to the credit rating criteria, the report also details the type of 

investment instruments officers can use. The instruments selected are designed 
primarily to ensure preservation of capital and sufficient liquidity, with yield to be 
considered once security and liquidity are assured.  

 
 
 
 

Page 327



4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The strategies have been prepared in consultation with the Council’s Treasury 
advisor (Link Asset Services). The draft strategies will be considered by Cabinet 
and Overview and Scrutiny Committee before the final version is presented to 
Council for approval on 26 February 2019.  

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 No alternative options are proposed; the Treasury Management Framework is 
driven largely by legislation and external guidance and reflects the 2019/20 
budget.  

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 These arrangements enable the priorities as set out in the Council Plan to be 
achieved. Performance indicators are included within the report. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Although concerned with good financial management, the report in itself has no 
direct financial implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2 This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council. 

Legal  

7.3 This report provides a framework for treasury management in accordance with 
legislation. There are no other legal implications. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
has not been carried out as this policy does not directly impact individuals 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No     

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
has not been carried out as this policy does not directly impact individuals 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Reporting is not compliant with 
the statutory guidance. 

Members do not have the 
opportunity to scrutinise 
the Treasury function. 

Full year TM report to be 
presented to Scrutiny, 
Cabinet and Council. 

Investment and borrowing 
activity is outside of the 
approved TM framework. 

The Council is exposed to 
an unauthorised level of 
Treasury related risk. 

Robust governance 
arrangements to control 
day to day operations, 
based on the approved 
strategy, with regular 
reporting of compliance. 

Long-term borrowing is taken at 
rates that are not advantageous.  

Council incurs 
unnecessary interest 

Treasury advice is taken 
on optimum timing of 

Page 328



Risk Consequence Controls required 

costs.  borrowing  

Repayment of long term 
borrowing at rates that are not 
advantageous  

Council occurs 
unnecessary premium 
costs  

Treasury advice is taken 
on optimum timing of loan 
repayment  

Investment of principal sums 
with insecure counterparties.  

Loss of principal due to 
default by borrower.  

Stringent and cautious 
lending criteria are built 
into the Council’s 
Investment Strategy.  

Investment returns are volatile 
and may fall short of 
expectations.  

Underperformance and 
underachievement of 
budgeted income levels.  

Monitoring performance of 
in-house investments  

Borrowing is not affordable.  Financial pressure on the 
General Fund.  

Prudent borrowing in 
accordance with the 
Strategy and indicators.  
Forecast borrowing costs 
are factored into the 
2019/20 Budget and 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan.  

Brexit - there is considerable 
uncertainty at the time of 
preparation of this report (late 
December 2018) as the format 
of Brexit is yet to be determined 
and as such this report assumes 
no changes to inflation or 
interest rates 

Potential increased costs 
and lost opportunities 

Close monitoring of 
developments surrounding 
Brexit 

Contact Officers 

Claire Read, Financial Services Officer; Tel 01539 793152; 
Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Lee Hurst, Chief Accountant; Tel 01539 793599; Lee.Hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 to 2023/24 

2 Example 2019/20 Counterparty List 

3 Capital Strategy for 2019/20 to 2023/24 

4 Capital Programme for 2018/19 to 2023/24 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

2019/20 Revenue and Capital 
budget 

On the same agenda 

Page 329

mailto:Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:Lee.Hurst@southlakeland.gov.uk


Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 18/12/2018 

Section 151 Officer 18/12/2018 

Monitoring Officer 18/12/2018 

SMT 20/12/2018 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 18/12/18 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader 21/12/2018 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 21/12/2018 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 11/1/2019 

Executive (Cabinet) 6/2/2019 

Council 26/2/2019 

 

 

 

Page 330



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

1 

 

 

Contents 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................................... 2 

2. The principles underpinning the Treasury Strategy .................................................. 2 

3. Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2018/19 – 2023/24 ............................................ 4 

4. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement ........................................... 10 

5. Treasury Management Policy Statement ................................................................ 11 

6. Economic Background and prospects for Interest Rates ........................................ 12 

7. Current Portfolio position ........................................................................................ 13 

8. Borrowing Strategy ................................................................................................. 14 

9. Investment Strategy ................................................................................................ 16 

10. Non Treasury Management Investments ................................................................ 21 

11. Knowledge and Skills ............................................................................................. 23 

12. Review and monitoring of the Treasury Management Strategy .............................. 24 

 

  

Appendix 1 

Page 331



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

2 

1. Introduction 

1.1. The council is required to set a balanced annual revenue budget. The timing and 

nature of income and expenditure within the budget needs to be understood and 

managed so that cash is available when it is required (Liquidity). This is a key 

function of the Treasury Management operation. 

1.2. The second key function is the funding of the Council’s capital plans. These capital 

plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council. This may involve 

arranging new or replacement loans or the planned use of cash balances. 

1.3. This Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 – 2023/24 sets out the Council’s 

approach to ensuring cash flows are adequately planned, with surplus money 

being invested in low risk counterparties (Security), providing access to funds 

when required (Liquidity) before considering optimising investment return (Yield). 

Links to other plans and strategies 

1.4. This Treasury Management Strategy links to, and is consistent with, the following 

other plans and strategies: 

 Council Plan 

 Service Plans & Strategies 

 Medium Term Financial Plan 

 Capital Strategy 

 

2. The principles underpinning the Treasury Strategy 

Background 

2.1. The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy has been set in line with: 

2.1.1. The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) 

2.1.2. The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)   

Guidance on Local Government Investments (2018) 

2.1.3. MHCLG Capital Finance: guidance on minimum revenue provision (2018) 

2.1.4. Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Prudential 

Code (2017) and Treasury Management Code of Practice (2017) 

 

Page 332



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

3 

 

2.2. The strategy also has regard to: 

2.2.1. The Markets in Financial Instruments Directive II (MIFID II),  

2.2.2. International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 Financial Instruments 

Key Requirements 

2.3. The above requires the Council to set out its Treasury Management Strategy for 

borrowing and to prepare an annual investment strategy setting out the council’s 

policies on managing its investments and for giving priority to the security and 

liquidity of those investments. 

2.4. This strategy fulfills the following key requirements, setting the: 

 Prudential Indicators; setting out the expected capital activities and 
managing its capital finances.  

 Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy; which sets out how 
the Council will pay for capital assets through revenue each year. 

 Treasury Management Strategy Statement; which sets out how the 
Council’s treasury service will support the capital decisions taken, the day to 
day treasury management and the limitations on activity through treasury 
prudential indicators;  

 Investment Strategy; which sets out the Council’s criteria for choosing 
investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss.  

This report reflects the budget proposals considered by Council on 18th December 

2018 for consultation. 

2.5. The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports 

each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals. These 

reports are required to be adequately scrutinised by committee before being 

recommended to Council. These are as follows: 

 Treasury Management and Investment Strategy - setting out the 

expectations for a minimum of three years, linked into the Council’s wider 

budget setting process.  

 A Mid-Year Treasury Management Report – This will update Members with 

the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 

necessary, and whether the treasury strategy is meeting the strategy or 

whether any policies require revision. This report is incorporated into the 

Council’s quarterly corporate monitoring reports.  

Page 333



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

4 

 An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual 

prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 

the estimates within the strategy. 

3. Prudential and Treasury Indicators 2019/20 – 2023/24 

3.1. The Council’s Capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 

management activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in 

prudential indicators, which are designed to assist Member’s overview and confirm 

capital expenditure plans 

Capital Expenditure 

3.2. This indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans based on 

the current capital programme projections and potential capital expenditure. This 

is summarised below along with the sources of finance. 

 
Table 1: Capital expenditure and financing  

  
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Capital expenditure  7,501.95 12,338.70 20,566.60 3,406.70 1,928.00 2,828.00 

Financed by:             

Capital receipts 1,835.65 4,376.00 3,746.80 260.00 260.00 0.00 

Grants 1,973.70 3,204.00 5,037.70 2,287.70 628.00 628.00 

Revenue and Reserves 2,477.30 1,942.20 1,198.20 360.00 350.00 100.00 

Increased borrowing 
need 

1,225.30 2,816.5 10,583.90 499.00 690.00 2,100.00 

 

The Council’s borrowing need 

3.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s underlying 

need to borrow for a capital purpose.  This is different to any actual borrowing.  If 

the Council generates the same amount of resources in a year to meet its capital 

expenditure requirements, then there is no change to the CFR.  However, if the 

Council spends more than the resources it generates in year, the CFR will 

increase as in effect the Council has created a borrowing requirement to bridge 

the gap in the resources it needs and the resources it has. 

Page 334



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

5 

3.4. Although the CFR does not necessarily reflect actual borrowing taken from an 

external source, it can reflect the use of internal cash resources, i.e. internal 

borrowing.  

3.5. Where the Council has a positive CFR, i.e. an underlying need to borrow, it must 

make provision to repay that ‘debt’.  This is known as Minimum Revenue Provision 

(MRP).  The Council’s current policy is set out in the MRP Strategy in part 4 of this 

report (page 10).   

3.6. The current forecast for the CFR and MRP based on the current capital 

programme is shown in the table below: 

Table 2: CFR projection  

Capital 

Financing 

Requirement 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

CFR opening 17,992.00 18,478.10 20,542.90 30,122.60 29,565.10 29,098.60 

Add unfinanced 

capital 
1,225.30 2,816.50 10,583.90 499.00 690.00 2,100.00 

Less MRP (739.20) (751.70) (1,004.20) (1,056.50) (1,156.50) (1,338.10) 

CFR closing 18,478.10 20,542.90 30,122.60 29,565.10 29,098.60 29,860.50 

 

Prudence and Sustainability  

3.7. Prudence and sustainability year on year are addressed through the prudential 

indicators for external debt, which must be set and revised taking into account 

their affordability.  

3.8. External borrowing must not (except in the short term to support operational cash 

flow) exceed the underlying level of indebtedness (the CFR) and is intended to 

control any ‘borrowing to on-lend’ or borrowing to support the revenue account.  

3.9. Table 3 confirms that the Council expects to be compliant with this indicator and 

should remain under-borrowed across the period. The increase in borrowing 

reflects the prudent assumption that the unfinanced element of the capital 

programme would be funded through external debt. The revenue budget for 

interest cost has been prepared on this basis to ensure that these investment 

plans are affordable. However, the actual cash need may be met from reduced 

investment balances. 

 

Page 335



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

6 

 

Table 3: Gross debt and the CFR  

  
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

CFR at 31 March 18,478.10 20,542.90 30,122.60 29,565.10 29,098.60 29,860.50 

Borrowing at 31 

March 
12,800.00 12,800.00 30,122.60 29,565.10 29,098.60 29,860.50 

(Under)/over 

borrowing    
(5,678.10) (7,742.90) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Investments at 31 

March 
(17,818.51) (12,924.79) (26,369.39) (29,766.29) (33,736.89) (39,809.09) 

Affordability  

3.10. The fundamental objective in determining the affordability of the authority’s capital 

plans is to ensure that the total capital investment remains within sustainable 

limits.  

3.11. This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long 

term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 

The estimates are presented in the table below: 

Table 4: Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

8.61% 8.57% 15.72% 16.07% 17.20% 19.20% 

 

3.12. This shows that the amount of revenue budget spent financing debt is rising over 

the MTFP period. The main reasons for this trend are:   

a. MRP is rising to the level required to sustain the vehicle and plant programme. 
Older vehicles were grant funded whereas replacement vehicles are financed 
through borrowing. 

b. The net revenue stream (Council Tax, retained rates and non-service grant) is 
forecast to reduce over the period although reductions in grant are partially offset 
by increases to income from local taxation. And; 

c. Increase in borrowing costs due to new property schemes within the capital 
programme which are likely to require funding from borrowing. 
 
 
 

 

Page 336



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

7 

Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment 

decisions on council tax  

3.13. This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to 
the capital programme compared to the Council’s existing approved commitments 
and current plans. This reflects interest income foregone on the use of reserves 
and additional costs where schemes are funded by external borrowing. 

Table 5: Incremental impact of capital investment 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 

  Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Council tax - band D £8.03 £8.82 £16.18 £8.58 £5.82 £10.08 

 

3.14 The Change shown is reflective of the revised timescales for existing projects and 
new capital schemes, along with their anticipated use of reserves and potential 
borrowing requirements. This also shows the impact of rising MRP as discussed in 
3.13 above. 

Treasury Indicators for External Debt 

3.15. Within the Prudential Code are a number of key treasury management indicators 

which are focused on gross debt and involve setting limits on external debt. 

3.16. The Operational Boundary; is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally 

expected to exceed.  This is set at a level consistent with the borrowing need 

(CFR). 

3.17. The Authorised Limit; reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, 

could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  This 

is a limit on the maximum level of debt, beyond which external debt is prohibited 

and the limit can only be set or revised by Full Council. 

3.18. The authorised limit is set as the borrowing need (CFR) plus any anticipated 

further borrowing that may be required to manage operational cash balances. This 

may be required, for example, at year end when operational cash balances are at 

their lowest due to the timing of local taxation collection. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 337



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

8 

Table 6: Authorised limit and operational boundary  

  
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

CFR at 31 March 18,478.10 20,542.90 30,122.60 29,565.10 29,098.60 29,860.50 

Under borrowing 

31 March 
(5,678.10) (7,742.90) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Add operational cash 

limit 
6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 

Operational 

boundary 
18,500.00 20,600.00 30,200.00 29,600.00 29,100.00 29,900.00 

Authorised limit 24,715.00 26,815.00 36,415.00 35,815.00 35,315.00 36,115.00 

 

Treasury Management Limits on Activity 

3.19. In addition to the limits on external debt there are three more debt related treasury 

activity indicators. The purpose of these is to restrain the activity of the treasury 

function within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of any 

adverse movement in interest rates. The indicators are: 

 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a maximum limit 
for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of investments  

 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the previous 
indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates 

 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are 
required for upper and lower limits. 

  

Page 338



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

9 

Table 7: Interest rate exposure limits 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Interest Rate Exposures 

£m Principal Upper Upper Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 

Authorised 
limit 

Authorised 
limit 

Authorised 
limit 

Authorised 
limit 

Authorised 
limit 

Limits on variable interest 
rates  

- Investments 

- Borrowing 

 

 

£20m 

£0m 

 

 

£20m 

£0m 

 

 

£20m 

£0m 

 

 

£20m 

£0m 

 

 

£20m 

£0m 

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing  2018/19 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 25% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 25% 

2 to 5 years 0% 25% 

5 to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 to 20 years 0% 100% 

20 to 30 years 0% 100% 

30 to 40 years 0% 100% 

40 years and above 0% 100% 

 

Other indicators  

3.20. The Council has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: 

Code of Practice and Cross Sectorial Guidance Notes. 

  

Page 339



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

10 

4. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement 

4.1. The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund 

capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the minimum 

revenue provision - MRP). 

4.2. MHCLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve 

an MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are provided to 

councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.  The Council is recommended to 

approve the following MRP Statement. 

4.3. For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be 

Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

 Previous practice - MRP will follow the practice outlined in former CLG 

regulations (option 1); this option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in 

the borrowing need (CFR) each year on eligible debt. 

4.4. From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including Private Finance 

Initiative and finance leases) the MRP policy will be  

 Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 

accordance with the proposed regulations (this option must be applied for any 

expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction). This option provides 

for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s life. 

This method allows for annual payment to be calculated as equal instalments or 

set as an annuity (increasing payments) over the life of the asset. The exact 

repayment calculation will be determined on a case by case basis. 

 For Finance leases, the MRP will be calculated to match the capital repayment 

identified within the annual lease payments. 

 
  

Page 340



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

11 

5. Treasury Management Policy Statement 

5.1. This organisation defines its treasury management activities as: 

5.2. “The management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 

associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 

consistent with those risks”. 

5.3. This organisation regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of 

risk to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management 

activities will be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury 

management activities will focus on their risk implications for the organisation and 

any financial instruments entered into to manage these risks. 

5.4. This organisation acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide 

support towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is 

therefore committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury 

management, and to employing suitable comprehensive performance 

measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management. 

  

Page 341



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

12 

6. Economic Background and prospects for Interest 

Rates 

6.1. The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as its treasury advisor and part of 

their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. 

6.2. It is important to note that interest rate projections are estimates at a point in time 

and are subject to constant revision. However, in terms of managing interest rate 

risk, it is important to be aware of expert opinion around the magnitude, timings 
and direction of travel on rates. Link Asset Services’ view on rates is presented in the 

table below: 

 

6.3. On 2 August the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the Bank of England 

increased the Bank Rate, above 0.5% for the first time since the 2008 financial 

crash, to 0.75%. At subsequent meetings, the MPC left the Bank Rate unchanged, 

and it is thought unlikely that the MPC would increase the Bank Rate, ahead of the 

deadline in March for Brexit. The next increase in the Bank Rate is currently 

forecast to be in May 2019, followed by increases in February and November 

2020, before ending up at 2.0% in February 2022. 

6.4. Growth in the UK was 0.4% in Quarter 2; quarter 3 is expected to be robust at 

around +0.6% but quarter 4 is expected to weaken from that level. However, the 

Chancellor’s Budget announcements of fiscal stimulus are thought likely to add 

0.3% to growth going forward.  

6.5. UK inflations as measured by the Consumer Price index (CPI) has fallen to 2.4% 

in October 2018 from 3.1% in November 2017. The latest quarterly inflation report 

in November 2018, forecasts inflation to still be marginally above its 2% target two 

years ahead. 

6.6. Unemployment is currently at 4.1% just above the long term low and wage 

inflation has picked up to 3.2%. Real earnings growth is currently at 0.8% the 

highest since 2009. 

6.7. Rising bond yields in the US have caused some upward pressure on bond yields 

in the UK and other developed economies.  However, the degree of that upward 

pressure has been dampened by how strong or weak the 

Page 342



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

13 

prospects for economic growth and rising inflation are in each country, and on the 

degree of progress towards the reversal of monetary policy away from quantitative 

easing and other credit stimulus measures. 

6.8. From time to time, gilt yields, and therefore PWLB rates, can be subject to 

exceptional levels of volatility due to geo-political matters (such as Brexit), a 

sovereign debt crisis, emerging market developments or sharp changes in investor 

sentiment. Such volatility could occur at any time during the forecast period. 

6.9. Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external 

influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts, (and MPC decisions), will be 

liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and developments 

in financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments, 

especially in the EU, could also have a major impact. Forecasts for average 

investment earnings beyond the three-year time horizon will be heavily dependent 

on economic and political developments. 

 

7. Current Portfolio position 

7.1. The Council currently has borrowings of £12.8 million from the Public Works 

Loans Board at an average rate of 4.3% with the first maturity not due until 

2046/47. 

7.2. As at 12/12/2018, the council had £38 million invested, made up of £26 million of 

operational cash balances and £12 million of core cash balances. Operational 

balances relate to short term cash management, whereas the core cash balances 

reflect longer term strategic resources (such as the General Fund balance and 

useable capital receipts).  

  

Page 343



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

14 

8. Borrowing Strategy 

8.1. Chart 1 below brings to together and shows the Council’s external debt position, 

Capital Financing Requirement and debt limits together. 

Chart 1 Borrowing v Debt limits 

 

8.2. The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position, where borrowing 

is lower than the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). As a result we are using 

internal cash balances to fund the capital program.  This is estimated to be £5.8 

million in 2018/19. 

8.3. To put this into perspective the Annual Accounts for 2017/18 shows the Council 

has £24.6 million in useable reserves. Assuming the level of reserves stay the 

same, then we are currently using 23.6% of cash supporting the reserves for 

internal borrowing to support the capital programme. 

8.4. The policy of avoiding new borrowing and minimising cash balances has been a 

prudent strategy while investment returns are low, helping to keep borrowing costs 

down and minimising counterparty risk. This policy will be kept under review to 

manage the risk of changes to the availability of internal cash and future borrowing 

costs.  

8.5. The projections include an assumption that the “under borrowing” will be reversed 

in 2020/21. This is to ensure that the medium term projections are prudent, it does 

not mean that the Council will definitely borrow (up to the CFR) in that year. 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

£
0

0
0

 

Year 

Debt limits 

External Debt

CFR at 31 March

Operational
boundary

Page 344



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

15 

 

8.6. The Assistant Director (Resources) will continue to monitor this position through 

out the year and will respond to changing circumstances. As required by the 

Prudential Code,  the MTFP reflects the cost of potential further borrowing and 

sufficient budget is available to ensure that, if requried, an increased borrowing 

requirement is affordable. Any decisions taken will be reported to members at the 

next available opportunity. 

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need 

8.7. The Council will not borrow in advance of its needs in order to on lend. Any 

decision to borrow will be within the approved CFR estimates, and will be 

considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated, and that 

gross long term borrowing will not exceed the CFR. 

8.8. Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraints that: 

 It will be limited to no more than 50% of the expected increase in borrowing 

need (CFR) over the five year planning period and then only where there is 

sufficient certainty that expenditure will be incurred to prevent borrowing 

exceeding the CFR at any year end within the planning period; and 

 The Council would not look to borrow more than 6 months in advance of need. 

8.9. Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 

appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reports.  

  

Page 345



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

16 

9. Investment Strategy 

9.1. As a holder of public funds, the Council recognises its responsibility to the prudent 

management of public funds, and follows relevant Government and CIPFA 

guidance.  

9.2. The Council’s overiding policy objective is to prudently manage council funds; 

ensuring risks are minimised whilst maximising returns. The Councils investment 

priorities, in order, are:  

 Security of the invested capital 

 Liquidity of the invested capital 

 Yield (return on investment), which is in line with security and liquidity 

9.3. In order to minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum 

acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy 

counterparties which also enables diversification and thus avoidance of 

concentration risk.  

Investment Counterparty Selection Criteria 

9.4. The Assistant Director (Resources) will maintain a counterparty list in compliance 

with the following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to Council for 

approval as necessary. These criteria provide an overall pool of counterparties 

considered high quality which the Council may use.   

9.5. This Council will apply the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset 

Services.  This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit 

ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard 

and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the 

following overlays:  

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

 Credit Default Swaps (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in 

credit ratings; 

 Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 

countries. 

9.6. This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit 

outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of 

CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of bands which indicate the 

relative creditworthiness of counterparties and provide a suggested duration for 

investments. 

Page 346



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

17 

9.7. The Council will apply a duration overlay to banks selected under the credit 

worthiness service, such that the investment duration will be the lessor of  1 year 

for UK banks, or 190 days for non Uk banks, and Links’s suggested duration with 

the exception of part nationlised banks. 

9.8. With the exception of the UK, the minimum soverign rating is AAA by 2 out 3 of the 

main rating agencies. The minimum counterparty credit rating criteria is a Short 

Term rating (Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. 

9.9. In addition the the council will also invest in;  

 Building Societies  

 Multilateral Development Banks and Supranational Organisations  

 Money Market Funds 

 Other collective investment schemes 

provided they meet the criteria laid out in Table 5 Counterparty limits. 

9.10. Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of Link’s external service. In additon the 

Council will also use market information, economic data and information on any 

external support for banks to help support its decision making process. 

9.11. The time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s counterparty list are 

as follows: 

9.12. Table 8: Counterparty limits 

 Criteria Money 

Limit 

Time 

Limit 

UK Banks Yellow, Purple, Blue 
or Orange 

£3m 1 year 

UK Banks Red £3m 6 Months 

UK Banks Green £3m  100 Days 

Non UK Banks  Yellow, Purple, Blue 
or Orange 

£3m 190 Days 

Non UK Banks Red £3m 6 Months 

Non UK Banks Green £3m  100 Days 

Banks  No colour £0m n/a 

Building Societies  Top 5 by Asset size 
and assets> £2 billion 

£3m 6 months 

Building Societies  Top 6-10 by Asset 
size and assets> £2 
billion 

£2m 6 months 

Page 347



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

18 

 Criteria Money 

Limit 

Time 

Limit 

Debt Management Account Deposit 
Facility - DMADF 

n/a Unlimited 6 months 

UK Gilts, Treasury Bills  n/a Unlimited 5 years 

Local Authorities n/a £5m 2 years 

Money Market Funds 
- LVNAV 
- CNAV Government Funds 

AAA £5m Liquid 

Multilateral Development Banks and 
Supranational Organisations 

AAA £3m 2 years 

Other Collective Investment Schemes  
e.g. Enhanced Money Market Funds &  
Bond Funds 

AAA S1/V1 £2m 1 year 

9.13. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of all three agencies through its use of 

the Link’s credit worthiness service. In addition a full review will be carried out at 

least monthly. 

9.14. In the event of a downgrade resulting in a counterparty or investment scheme no 

longer meeting the Council's minimum criteria, its further use for new investments 

will be withdrawn immediately. 

9.15. Any changes in counterparty ratings or other criteria that put the counterparty 

below the minimum criteria, whilst holding a deposit for the Council, will be brought 

to the attention of the Assistant Director (Resources) and the Portfolio Holder with 

responsibility for Finance. Further action will be decided on a case-by-case basis. 

9.16. Specified investments are investments less than 1 year in duration meeting the 

criteria for high quality above. 

9.17. Non specified investments are all investments with a duration of 1 year or greater 

and/or not meeting the definition of high credit quality. A maximum of 75% of 

investments can be non-specified. 

9.18. A copy of the Council’s counterparty list under the above criteria is attached as 

Appendix 2 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 348



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

19 

Other Considerations 

9.19. In addition to the credit criteria, due care will be taken to consider the country, 

group and sector exposure of the Council’s investments.  

9.20. In part the country selection will be chosen by the credit rating of the sovereign 

state in Banks 1 above. In addition no more than £3 million will be placed with 

counterparties from any one non-UK country at any one time up to a maximum of 

£9 million being held in non UK countries at any one time (excluding Money 

Market Funds, Multilateral Development Banks and Supranational Institutions and 

Collective Investment Schemes).  

9.21. Limits in place above will apply to a group of companies 

9.22. Sector limits will be monitored regularly for appropriateness, to help mitigate 

against concentration risk. This is the risk of having a significant proportion of your 

investments in one sector of the market and that sector failing  

9.23. To ensure sufficient liquidity, detailed cash flow forecasts will be kept by the 

financial services team to give as accurate a picture as possible of the movement 

and timing of income & expenditure and the resulting daily cash balances.  

9.24. When placing investments, officers will refer to the cash flow forecast to determine 

the best duration for the investment. 

9.25. Funds invested for greater than 365 days are set with regard to the Council’s 

security and liquidity requirements. They are based on the lowest expected 

availability of funds after each year-end (ie the core balances) within the five year 

plan. To allow longer term investment of the core balances, subject to satisfying 

security and liquidity, the Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and 

limit:- 

Table 9 Maximum principal sums invested for more than 365days 

£m 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Principal sums invested > 
365 days 

£12m £12m £12m £12m £12m 

 

9.26. When placing investments the Council will seek to optimise returns commensurate 

with the management of the associated risks, limiting its investment activities to 

the approved financial instruments. The financial instruments authorised for use by 

officers are;  

a. Fixed Deposits; deposits at a fixed interest rate for a fixed duration. 

b. Certificate of Deposits; similar to fixed deposits but tradeable in a 

Page 349



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

20 

secondary market 

c. Government Treasury Bills & Gilts; UK Government debt instruments 

d. Call accounts; instant access accounts with banks at a variable interest 
rate, 

e. Notice accounts; Savings accounts where by we have to give the 
bank/building society notice to withdraw our money. 

f. Money Market Funds; collective investment accounts with a Low Volatility 
Net Asset Value) LVNAV or constant net asset value, generally these allow 
investors instant access and have a variable interest rate. 

g. Other Collective Investment Schemes; similar to money market funds these 
are funds with a variable net asset value, which can invest in a wider range 
of instruments. These are generally instruments whereby the Council would 
invest for longer periods and receive a greater return over time, though the 
value of the fund can modestly fluctuate. 

9.27. Under the Markets in Financial Derivatives 2 (MIFID II) directive the Council is 

classified as a retail investor with the option to opt-up to professional status, 

provide certain conditions are met. The Council meets these conditions and has 

decided to Opt-up to Professional Status to maintain the level of access to the 

money markets it has always had. 

  

Page 350



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

21 

10. Non Treasury Management Investments  

10.1. Some investments are taken out for non-treasury management purposes, and 

these are held primarily or partially to generate a profit. Examples of this include 

investment properties and loans supporting service outcomes.  

Investment Properties 

10.2. The Council has 23 Investment properties including retails units and industrial 

sites. Which at 31st March 2018 had a value of £4.97 million and after expenses 

earned the council £0.426 million in income, creating a return on investment of 

9.3% overall. This will vary year on year depending on maintenance required. 

10.3. As part of the changes to the Treasury and Prudential Codes of Practice and the 

MHCLG guidance a list of non-treasury investments is being compiled and will be 

kept up-to-date.  

10.4. In the future such investments will have to go through a robust procedure to 

ensure that they fit in with the council’s plans, are affordable and sustainable. The 

principles of the procedure are: 

 Ensuring the investment meets the councils risk profile  

 Ensuring the portfolio of assets is prudently balanced to minimise risk of 
income fluctuations and loss of capital value. 

 Ensuring the rate of return exceeds that which could be achieved through 
traditional sources of investments 

 Establishing a comprehensive due diligence process to minimise risks 
including use of specialist external advice where appropriate 

 Establishing appropriate governance arrangements to ensure decisions are 
made in a streamlined and efficient way. 

Service Loans 

10.5. The Council makes loans for a number of reasons primarily economic 

development and investment objectives or to help meet other Council priorities. 

These are often outside of normal commercial terms The Council in making these 

loans ensure they are prudent and secured by: 

 Carrying out a full independent due diligence exercise 

 Using an expected loss model to assess the impact on the balance budget 

requirement if the loan was at risk 

 On-going monitoring of the loans 

 Ensuring adequate security is in place 

 The financial exposure of the Council is proportionate to its size.  

Page 351



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

22 

 All loans are agreed by the Council’s Cabinet 

 

10.6. The loans are accounted for as soft loans and the Council’s accounting policy on 

soft loans is described in the Accounting Policies of the Statement of Accounts. 

10.7. The balance outstanding of these loans as at 31st March 2018 was £110,877. 

10.8. Once such loan that the Council has agreed to make is to South Lakes Housing 

and other housing providers. The aim of the loan is to provide low cost finance in 

order to enable a house building programme to meet the Council Plan target of 

delivering 1000 affordable homes for rent. A loan of £6m over 25 years has been 

agreed in principle by the Council’s Cabinet.  

Commercial Activity 

10.9. The Council is also developing a Commercial Strategy because reductions in 

funding mean the Council Should look at whether it is appropriate to engage in 

commercial activities to supplement its income and support service delivery.  

However, to minimise risk of potential loss of income in the longer term it needs to 

ensure that any investment opportunities are based upon sound decision making 

that consider the future likelihood of investment income reducing. 

 

  

Page 352



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

23 

11. Knowledge and Skills 

11.1. The Council utilises the knowledge and skills of its internal officers when 

considering treasury investment and borrowing decisions and where necessary it 

also relies on the expert knowledge of specialist external advisors. 

Staff 

11.2. Finance staff are professionally qualified to advise the Council on all areas of 

finance. Included within the team is an officer with specialist knowledge of 

Treasury Management. All finance staff undertake Continuous Professional 

Development and they maintain knowledge and skills through regular technical 

updates from appropriate bodies and attending specialist courses. 

11.3. Staff follow Treasury management Practices (TMP) approved by the Assistant 

Director (Resources). 

Members 

11.4. Training is given to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on treasury management, 

this training annually, this training is also open to all members to assist in their 

understanding of the treasury management strategy 

External Advice 

11.5. The Council has appointed Link Asset Services as it treasury advisors and part of 

their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. 

11.6. The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 

remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 

placed upon our external service providers 

11.7. It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 

management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 

The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by 

which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and 

subjected to regular review 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 353



Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20-
2023/24 

24 

12. Review and monitoring of the Treasury Management 

Strategy 

12.1. This Treasury Management Strategy is based on the proposed Budget and Capital 

Programme for 2019/20 to 2023/24 which will be approved by Council on the 26th 

February 2019. The strategy will be monitored and reviewed throughout the 

financial year and may be updated if required.  

Page 354



Appendix 2 

2018/19 Sample Counterparty List 

Counterparty Capita 
Creditworthiness 

Methodology 
suggested 
durations 

SLDC  
Monetary 

Limit 

SLDC 
Duration 

(lower of 190 
days or Capita 

duration) 

Building 
Society Rank 

by Asset 
(size) 

Australia (AAA)         

Banks Australia and New Zealand 
Banking Group Ltd. 

O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Commonwealth Bank of Australia O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Macquarie Bank Ltd. R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

National Australia Bank Ltd. O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Westpac Banking Corp. O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Canada (AAA)         

Banks 
Bank of Montreal O - 12 mths 

3.00 
Million 

190 Days   

Bank of Nova Scotia O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Canadian Imperial Bank of 
Commerce 

O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

National Bank of Canada R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Royal Bank of Canada O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Toronto-Dominion Bank O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Denmark (AAA)         

Banks 
Danske A/S R - 6 mths 

3.00 
Million 

6 Months   

Germany (AAA)         

Banks 
BayernLB R - 6 mths 

3.00 
Million 

6 Months   

DZ BANK AG Deutsche Zentral-
Genossenschaftsbank 

O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Landesbank Baden-Wuerttemberg R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Landesbank Berlin AG O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen 
Girozentrale 

O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Landwirtschaftliche Rentenbank P - 24 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Norddeutsche Landesbank 
Girozentrale 

G - 100 days 
3.00 

Million 
100 Days   

NRW.BANK P - 24 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Luxembourg (AAA)         

Banks 
European Investment Bank P - 24 mths 

3.00 
Million 

2 Years    

     

Page 355



Counterparty Capita 
Creditworthiness 

Methodology 
suggested 
durations 

SLDC  
Monetary 

Limit 

SLDC 
Duration 

(lower of 190 
days or Capita 

duration) 

Building 
Society Rank 

by Asset 
(size) 

Netherlands (AAA)         

Banks 
ABN AMRO Bank N.V. R - 6 mths 

3.00 
Million 

6 Months   

Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten 
N.V. 

P - 24 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Cooperatieve Rabobank U.A. O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

ING Bank N.V. R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Nederlandse Waterschapsbank 
N.V. 

P - 24 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Singapore (AAA)         

Banks 
DBS Bank Ltd. O - 12 mths 

3.00 
Million 

190 Days   

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corp. 
Ltd. 

O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

United Overseas Bank Ltd. O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Sweden (AAA)         

Banks Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken 
AB 

O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Svenska Handelsbanken AB O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Swedbank AB O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Switzerland (AAA)         

Banks 
Credit Suisse AG G - 100 days 

3.00 
Million 

100 Days   

UBS AG O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

United Kingdom (AA)         

AAA rated 
and 
Government 
backed 
securities 

UK Local Authorities Not Applicable 
5.00 

Million 
2 Years    

Debt Management Office Not Applicable Unlimited Unlimited   

Multilateral Development Banks Not Applicable 
3.00 

Million 
2 Years    

Supranationals Not Applicable 
3.00 

Million 
2 Years    

UK Gilts Not Applicable Unlimited Unlimited   

      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     

      

Page 356



Counterparty  Capita 
Creditworthiness 

Methodology 
suggested 
durations 

SLDC  
Monetary 

Limit 

SLDC Duration 
(lower of 190 

days or Capita 
duration) 

Building 
Society 
Rank by 

Asset (size) 

Banks Abbey National Treasury Services 
PLC 

R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB) O – 12 Mths 
3.00 

Million 
1 Year   

Barclays Bank PLC (NRFB) R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Barclays Bank PLC (RFB) R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Close Brothers Ltd R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Goldman Sachs International 
Bank 

R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Handelsbanken Plc O – 12 Mths 
3.00 

Million 
1 Year  

HSBC Bank PLC (NRFB) O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
1 Year   

HSBC Bank Plc (RFB) O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
1 Year  

Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets 
Plc (NRFB) 

R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months  

Lloyds Bank Plc O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
1 Year   

Santander UK PLC R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Standard Chartered Bank R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking 
Corporation Europe Ltd 

R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

UBS Ltd. R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months   

Building 
Society 

Nationwide Building Society R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months 1 (£207 Bln) 

Yorkshire Building Society G - 100 days 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months 2 (£43 Bln) 

Coventry Building Society R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months 3 (£33 Bln) 

Skipton Building Society N/C - 0 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months 4 (£16 Bln) 

Leeds Building Society R - 6 mths 
3.00 

Million 
6 Months 5 (£14 Bln) 

Principality Building Society N/C - 0 mths 
2.00 

Million 
6 Months 6 (£7 Bln) 

West Bromwich Building Society N/C - 0 mths 
2.00 

Million 
6 Months 7 (£5 Bln) 

Newcastle Building Society N/C - 0 mths 
2.00 

Million 
6 Months 8 (£3.4 Bln) 

Nottingham Building Society N/C - 0 mths 
2.00 

Million 
6 Months 9 (£3.3 Bln) 

Cumberland Building Society Not Applicable 
2.00 

Million 
6 Months 

10 (£2.1 
Bln) 

Nationalised 
and Part 
Nationalised 
Banks 

National Westminster Bank PLC 
(RFB) 

B – 12 Months 
3.00 

Million 
1 Year   

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc 
(RFB) 

B – 12 Months 
3.00 

Million 
1 Year   

Page 357



Counterparty  Capita 
Creditworthiness 

Methodology 
suggested 
durations 

SLDC  
Monetary 

Limit 

SLDC Duration 
(lower of 190 

days or Capita 
duration) 

Building 
Society 
Rank by 

Asset (size) 

United States (AAA,AAA,AA+)         

Banks 
Bank of America N.A. O - 12 mths 

3.00 
Million 

190 Days   

Bank of New York Mellon, The P - 24 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Citibank N.A. O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

Wells Fargo Bank, NA O - 12 mths 
3.00 

Million 
190 Days   

 

Key to Capita creditworthiness methodology suggested durations: 

Y – Yellow, 60 months 
P – Purple, 24 months 
B – Blue, 12 months 
O – Orange, 12 months 
R – Red, 6 months 
G – Green, 100 days 
N/C – no colour, 0 days 
 

Page 358



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

1 

 

 
Contents 

1. Introduction .......................................................................................................... 2 

2. The principles underpinning the Capital Strategy ................................................. 3 

3. Capital Expenditure .............................................................................................. 6 

4. Debt, Borrowing and Treasury Management ..................................................... 13 

5. Commercial Activity ............................................................................................ 22 

6. Other Long-Term Liabilities and Investments ..................................................... 23 

7. Knowledge and Skills ......................................................................................... 24 

8. Review and monitoring of the Capital Strategy .................................................. 25 

 

  

Page 359



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

2 

1. Introduction 
1.1. This Capital Strategy sets out the Council’s approach to meeting community and 

service needs through its capital investment programme. The Council’s priorities, 
objectives and corporate outcomes are set out in its refreshed Council Plan which 
is due to be approved on 26 February 2019. The Plan is supported by a set of 
annual service plans. This Capital Strategy describes how the deployment of 
capital resources will contribute to the achievement of these objectives. 
 

1.2. Capital spending is strictly defined and is principally incurred in acquiring, 
constructing or improving physical assets such as buildings, land, vehicles, plant 
and machinery. It also includes grants and advances to be used for capital 
purposes.  The Council’s policy on capitalisation is included in the Accounting 
Policies of the Statement of Accounts, approved by Audit Committee.  The policy 
states the de-minimus level set by the authority for capital expenditure is £10,000. 
Individual schemes must therefore be £10,000 and above to be included in the 
authorities capital programme. The only exception is where the funding for the 
project is external and requires the scheme to be capital. 
 

1.3. The Council owns property, plant and equipment assets, investment properties 
and heritage assets with a total net book value of £73m at March 2018. Council 
assets include 43 car parks, 186 parks and open spaces, 9 cemeteries, 5 depots, 
3 sports centres, 3 public offices and 2 public halls. The Council also owns a large 
number of commercial properties and agricultural land used to generate income. 
 

1.4. The Capital Strategy is written following guidance included in the CIPFA 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities 2017 (The Prudential 
Code) and is required to be approved by Full Council. It forms part of the Council’s 
integrated revenue, capital and balance sheet planning. 

Links to other plans and strategies 
1.5. This Capital Strategy links to, and is consistent with, the following other plans and 

strategies: 

• Council Plan 

• Service Plans & Strategies 

• Medium Term Financial Plan 

• Property and Land Management Strategy 

• Car Park Strategy 

• Risk Management Strategy 

Page 360



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

3 

• Procurement  and Commissioning Strategy 

• Treasury Management Strategy 

 

2. The principles underpinning the Capital Strategy 

Overarching objectives 
2.1. The Council’s Capital Strategy is to deliver a capital programme that: 

• Contributes to the Council Plan, and the Council’s vision, values, 
strategic objectives and priorities 

• Is closely aligned with the Council’s asset management plans 

• Supports service-specific and other plans and strategies 

• Is affordable, financially prudent and sustainable, contributes to better 
value for money 

2.2. The Capital Strategy will be delivered through: 
• Effective political and corporate leadership 

• Adequate and effective performance management arrangements 

• Clearly defined processes for building and monitoring the capital 
programme 

• Clear policies on financing capital expenditure 

• Effective risk management arrangements 

• A clear procurement protocol 

2.3. In prioritising the Capital Programme, particular emphasis will be given to 
schemes that: 

• Achieve the Council’s priorities 

• Improve performance against national and local targets 

• Improve efficiency and effectiveness in service delivery, including 
through partnership working 

• Generate or increase income streams 

• Promote effective asset management, including Disability Discrimination 
Act (DDA) and Health & Safety issues 

  

Page 361



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

4 

The Prudential Code 
2.4. The Prudential Code was introduced by the Local Government Act 2003 and has 

since been updated in 2017. It sets out the concepts of affordability, 
sustainability and prudence as they apply to capital expenditure. To demonstrate 
that these objectives have been met the Code sets out the prudential indicators 
that must be used, and the factors that must be taken into account. These are 
designed to support and record local decision-making in a manner that is publicly 
accountable. This includes the setting of the prudential indicators by Council in 
February and the monitoring of treasury management through the Corporate 
Quarterly Financial Monitoring process. The prudential indicators are discussed 
in section 4 of this Capital Strategy and the concepts of affordability, 
sustainability and prudence as they apply to capital expenditure are discussed in 
the following paragraphs. 

Affordability 
2.5. The fundamental objective in determining the affordability of the authority’s capital 

plans is to ensure that the total capital investment remains within sustainable 
limits. This includes considering the impact on Council Tax. The Council is 
required to take into account all its current and forecast resources, together with 
the capital expenditure plans and revenue income and expenditure forecasts for 
the coming year and the following two years: The Council has opted to forecast up 
to five years ahead. This is done on a rolling basis, with regard to risk analysis and 
risk management strategies. Any significant known variations beyond this time 
frame must also be considered. 

Prudence and Sustainability 
2.6. Prudence and sustainability year on year are addressed through the prudential 

indicators for external debt, which must be set and revised taking into account 
their affordability. 

2.7. The key indicator of prudence laid down by the Code is that net external borrowing 
should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing 
requirement in the preceding year, plus the estimates of any additional capital 
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. This ensures 
that, over the medium term, net borrowing will only be for capital purposes. 

2.8. It is also prudent to carry out treasury management activities in accordance with 
good practice, and the Prudential Code sets a number of indicators to address 
this. 

Value for Money 
2.9. It is important that best value for money is obtained from capital investment. The 

Council is committed to making continuous improvements to 

Page 362



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

5 

processes and practices to increase value for money. Those that are embedded or 
being developed include: 
• Improvements to procurement 

• Investing to improve performance and/or generate efficiency savings (spend 
to save) 

• Working with partners to improve efficiency 

2.10. In assessing capital bids the Council first considers whether the proposed capital 
investment represents the most efficient way of delivering the desired outcomes, 
i.e. whether there are alternative approaches to resolving the problem that provide 
greater value for money. 

Financial Procedure Rules 
2.11. Capital budgets, expenditure and financing are the subject of various Financial 

Procedure Rules within Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution. Capital expenditure is 
only to be incurred in line with key Financial Procedure Rules as follows: 
 
• Capital budgets shall be prepared in the form of a rolling five-year Capital 

Programme. The Chief Finance Officer shall review and estimate the capital 
resources available to the Council over the five year period. Bids for the use 
of capital resources shall be in a form agreed by the Cabinet, to include an 
appropriate level of project appraisal and an assessment of the revenue 
consequences of the capital scheme. The Cabinet shall be responsible for 
the allocation of resources within a viable Capital Programme for submission 
to the Council for approval. (3.4); 

• Capital expenditure shall not be incurred unless it forms part of the approved 
Capital Programme and has been allocated and expenditure account by the 
Chief Finance Officer (8.1). 

   

Page 363



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

6 

3. Capital Expenditure 

Governance process for approval and monitoring of capital 
expenditure 

Capital programme project appraisals 
3.1. All bids for inclusion in the capital programme are supported by a project 

appraisal, the preparation of which is the responsibility of the budget holder or 
project manager. The project manager signs the appraisal to confirm that their 
Assistant Director, Director and Portfolio Holder are aware of and support the 
scheme. 

3.2. All bids for inclusion in the following years programme are considered according to 
a set of objective criteria to assist with the prioritisation of schemes and the 
allocation of funds. This ensures that, in a context of limited resources, the 
community vision and strategy and the Council’s vision, values, objectives and 
priorities form the framework for decisions about investment priorities, and that 
capital allocations are made using clear impartial criteria. 

3.3. The prioritisation process is linked directly to the information given on the 
completed project appraisals, with weighting given to schemes that strongly 
support the Council’s objectives and priorities, and those that fulfil an urgent legal 
or statutory requirement. 

3.4. In summary, each bid can be rated on the extent to which the project contributes: 

• The Council’s objectives and priorities 

• Legal commitments or statutory duties, including DDA & Health & Safety 
issues 

• Equalities 

• Improvements in performance indicators 

• Efficiency savings 

• Value for money 

• The delivery of service objectives 

• Effective Asset Management 

• Extent of ring fenced or specific funding 

• Levels of financial risk involved 

• Impact on the revenue budget and income generation 

Page 364



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

7 

3.5. Prioritisation of the bids enables officers to put forward a recommended 
programme that is within available resources. The weighting within the scoring 
framework will be reviewed on an annual basis as part of a policy of continuous 
improvement and to take into account any relevant factors. Bids for work required 
to meet a statutory or legal obligation will be given a high priority. 

3.6. The prioritised programme is for guidance only. Members are responsible for 
agreeing the capital programme and have the discretion to include or exclude 
schemes as they deem appropriate. 

3.7. Project appraisals have been completed for capital programme bids since 2014. 
The appraisal pro-forma has been designed to ensure that the information 
gathered is sufficient in order to make decisions based on the criteria set out 
above. Project appraisals must consider carefully the deliverability of projects to 
avoid slippage of the capital programme. 

3.8. The project bid template and project prioritisation and assessment criteria are 
included as Appendix A to this Capital Strategy. 

Monitoring the capital programme 
3.9. Project managers are responsible for the proper and effective control and 

monitoring of their projects, including financial monitoring.  This includes ensuring 
that: 

• Only capital expenditure is charged to the capital project; 

• Proper procurement processes are followed, in accordance with the 
Contract Procedure Rules; 

• Only expenditure properly attributable to the scheme is coded to the 
scheme; 

• The scheme expenditure is contained within the agreed budget, and that 
any ‘unavoidable’ variations are dealt with appropriately; 

• Realistic expenditure profiles are determined; 

• A realistic forecast outturn for the financial year and the project as a whole 
are calculated and kept under regular review; 

• Any slippage of expenditure from current to future years is identified; 

• Any grants or third party funding is applied for and all grant conditions met 

• The source of any revenue funding is identified. 

3.10. Project managers are also responsible for carrying out project reviews following 
scheme completion. The finance team is responsible for providing support and 
advice to assist project managers in managing and monitoring their capital 
budgets. It also has a key role in consolidating and co-ordinating 

Page 365



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

8 

the monitoring information that is required for reporting purposes. This involves 
reporting to Corporate Management Team, Cabinet and Council. 
 

3.11. The capital programme position is reported to Senior Management Team, Cabinet 
and Council as part of Corporate Financial Monitoring report and covers the latest 
programme and any amendments to be notified or approved, expenditure to date, 
and the forecast outturn. It also outlines the financing position and any steps 
needed to deal with potential financing difficulties. 

3.12. At year-end, an outturn report and carry-forward requests are taken to Cabinet 
and Council. These will include an analysis of programme slippage to the following 
year, including the reasons for that slippage and how it is to be financed. 

Changes to the Agreed Programme 
3.13. The programme for the coming year is set and agreed by Council prior to 1st April 

(at the February Council as part of the Budget process), but it is essential to also 
have a process that then allows for changes during the year. 

3.14. Changes may be required as a result of proposed additions to the programme, 
amendments to existing schemes or deletions from the programme. For example 
tenders may come in above or below estimate; difficulties may be encountered in 
implementation, which require a change of approach; funding may need to be 
released to support another more urgent priority. 

Proposed additions to the programme 
3.15. The need to add a scheme to the programme usually arises from either access to 

additional funding, such as a grant or third party contribution, or as a response to 
an unforeseen urgent issue (often related to legal or health and safety concerns). 

3.16. In order to bid for an addition to the programme, a project appraisal must be 
completed and signed off in the usual way. The funding for the project must be 
identified at this stage. Where there is no additional funding to support the bid, 
resources must be identified from within the existing programme. The prioritisation 
of the proposed addition will need to be considered with reference to any reserve 
list of projects, as well as projects already in the programme but not yet complete. 

3.17. The request for the addition will either be incorporated into the regular Corporate 
Quarterly Financial Monitoring report to Cabinet or Council, or approved by 
Cabinet and Council. 

Amendments to existing schemes 
3.18. If the proposed amendment is one of substance, which results in a scheme 

materially different from the original project appraisal, then the original project 
must be withdrawn, and a new project appraisal completed to support the new bid. 
If, however, the substance of the scheme remains the same, then 

Page 366



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

9 

the change can be dealt with through the Corporate Quarterly Financial Monitoring 
process or as a budget virement if within the limits set in the Financial Procedure 
Rules, which is currently up to £60,000. 

3.19. Formal variations to budgets for existing projects must be completed and 
authorized in the following circumstances: 

• Forecast total scheme outturn is materially in excess of budget 

• Additional funding has become available to support a scheme 

• A forecast overspend is to be funded by a forecast underspend in 
another project 

• Funding is released due to a forecast underspend on a scheme 

• A scheme is to be withdrawn from the programme 

Long-term view of capital expenditure plans 
3.20. Proposals for new areas of capital expenditure were considered by Portfolio 

Holders on the 5 October 2018 and were prioritised with reference to the funding 
available. The resulting proposed capital programme for 2019/20 to 2023/24 is 
presented at Appendix 4. A summary of the proposed capital expenditure up to 
2023/24 is shown below: 

Table 1: Summary Draft Capital Programme Expenditure 

2018/19 
Revised 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 
2018/19 to 

2023/24 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

7,950.0 10,163.2 16,776.7 3,406.7 1,928.0 2,828.0 43,052.6 
 

3.21. There were a number of significant capital bids prioritised. These are the schemes 
where outline approval has already been given, where expenditure relates to 
health and safety issues or where works are unavoidable and include: 

a) £6.0m in relation to loans to housing associations utilising the Right to Buy 
receipts accumulated to date; 

b) £9.2m in relation to Ulverston Leisure Centre, in line with the business case 
supporting the Cabinet decision to proceed with the next stage of work 
including design to RIBA stage 3; 

c) £461k in relation to developing additional homelessness accommodation 
for families 

d) £100k contribution to redevelopment at Abbot Hall 
e) £1.9m in relation to Grange Lido based on the light-touch proposals.   

Page 367



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

10 

3.22. There are a number of significant potential additional service areas and schemes 
to be added to the capital programme that have yet to be prioritised and allocated 
a capital and or revenue budget. These schemes would lead to additional capital 
budget costs on top of those presented in Appendix 4. These include: 

a) Schemes arising from the Car Parking Study in Kendal and Oxenholme  as 
well as engineering appraisals undertaken on surfacing options at 
Braithwaite Fold, additional capacity options at Rydal Road, Ambleside and 
Rayrigg Road Car Park, Bowness and the siting of electric charging points.    

b) South Lakeland House and Kendal Town Hall accommodation review to 
provide a fit for purpose and fit for future office accommodation and much 
needed Town Hall refurbishment. The capital cost of any improvements is 
likely to be significant and a Business Case for the work will be provided to 
enable an affordable solution to be delivered. 

c) The review of the Kendal depot location is also not included as yet. A report 
setting out the likely financial implications and benefits and timescales will 
be provided in due course. 

3.23. While currently not prioritised and so not allocated budget, these schemes must 
be included as part of the overall longer-term capital plans, as they are 
aspirational should suitable funding be identified. Therefore the table below 
summarises expenditure for all potential identified schemes through to 2033/34. 
These schemes will be subject to detailed business case assessment before they 
become part of the approved draft capital programme and will only be selected 
with overall consideration of the affordability of the capital programme. 

Table 2: Summary Aspirational Long-Term Capital Programme Expenditure 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 24/25 – 
28/29 

29/30 – 
33/34 

2018/19 – 
2033/34 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £’000 

7,949.95 10,290.20 25,651.85 12,906.40 7,004.59 5,908.87 11,951.60 31,984.70 113,648.16 
 

3.24. For those schemes that have been prioritised, a summary of the draft capital 
programme funding is in the table below. This shows the proposed use of capital 
resources in support of the proposed capital programme (see Appendix 4). 

  

Page 368



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

11 

Table 3: Capital Funding 2018/19 to 2023/24 

  
Balance April 

2018 
£000 

Estimated 
Income 

£000 

Use in capital 
programme 

£000 

Potential 
Balance March 

2024 
£000 

General         
Usable Capital Receipts 1,744 417 -1,953 209 
VAT Shelter receipt 831 1,200 -2,031 0 
New homes bonus (capital)**** 1,271 1,138 -2,177 232 
    

 
    

Earmarked or allocated   
 

    
Revenue (LIPS) 185 995 -995 185 
IT replacement reserve 74 480 -480 74 
Major Repairs Reserve 307 800 -868 239 
General Revenue contributions 587 1,574 -1,940 221 
Cap grants and contributions (inc S106) 593 7,924 -8,467 50 
Disabled Facilities Grants 360 3,620 -3,980 0 
Community Housing Fund* 2,309 0 -490 1,819 
Right to Buy receipt** 3,788 4,200 -6,495 1,493 
Borrowing   

 
    

Funding from borrowing***. 0 13,177 -13,177 0 
Total 12,049 35,525 -43,053 4,522 

     

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes, £2.36m less £235k funding revenue 
budgets 

 

**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable 
housing. 

   

***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover 
the cost over the assets' life 
****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement 

   

 

Asset Management Planning 

Strategic Asset Management Planning 
3.25. Until recently the Council’s approach to asset management was set out in the 

Corporate Asset Strategy. A thorough review of property assets was completed by 
the Council’s external property services advisors in December 2017. This in turn 
led to the development of a Property and Land Management Strategy (approved 
by Cabinet on 28 November 2018), which will help guide and advise the Council 
on land and building investment, disposals and acquisitions. The key aims of this 
strategy are:  

• Ensuring investment is prioritised in the right areas with the ever 
increasing financial pressure on Local Authorities. 

Page 369



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

12 

• Ensuring the Council has a balanced estate looking at the medium and 
long term commitments of the Council and in the wider context of other 
assets in public ownership. 

• Ensuring that there is a sufficient governance structure in place to 
allow the estate to flex with ease and consistency. 

• Ensuring that the decisions achieve a balance of requirements for 
capital receipts, investment and revenue income generation. 

3.26. The strategy also lead to the establishment of the Strategic Asset Management 
Plan Board (SAMP Board) which will provide oversight and governance and 
ensure a more strategic approach to the management of its property estate. 

Building Asset Maintenance Programme 
3.27. The Council utilises a property and asset management system to record data on 

the property portfolio to assess building condition and maintenance requirements. 
This data is then used to set the Council’s annual building maintenance 
programme and budget for both reactive and planned maintenance. The Council 
also holds a Major Repairs Reserve to cover the costs of major repairs and 
renewals of Council assets. 

Table 4: Building Repairs and Maintenance Budgets for 2019/20 to 2023/24 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
542.0 541.5 541.0 541.0 541.0 

 

Vehicle and Plant Replacement Programme 
3.28. The Council also maintains a Vehicle and Plant and Replacement Plan which 

outlines the anticipated replacement lifecycle for the main items of fleet and plant it 
requires to operate services.  This plan is updated annually and is fed into the 
budget process to determine the capital requirement. 

IT Replacement Programme 
3.29. The Council also maintains an IT Replacement Plan which outlines the anticipated 

replacement lifecycle for the main items of information technology equipment it 
requires to operate services.  While major IT projects are funded through the 
capital programme, routine replacement is funded from the IT Replacement 
Reserve. 

  

Page 370



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

13 

4. Debt, Borrowing and Treasury Management 

Borrowing 
4.1. The Local Government Act 2003 introduced new flexibilities into the capital 

expenditure and financing rules governing local authorities. The new rules, 
contained in the ‘Prudential Code’, allow local authorities to set their own limits 
with regard to borrowing undertaken to support capital expenditure. Additional 
borrowing may now be undertaken, but a key objective of the Prudential Code is to 
ensure that the capital investment plans of the local authority are, and can be 
shown to be, prudent, affordable and sustainable.  

4.2. In order for borrowing to be prudent, affordable and sustainable, there must be an 
identifiable, long-term source of revenue funding for the associated revenue (debt 
financing) costs. Ideally this will come from revenue savings or additional income 
arising directly from the capital scheme. For example, refurbishment of a building 
may generate maintenance and/or energy savings, or the building of a car park 
could generate income through charges. The cost of borrowing therefore should 
be offset by savings within the service that uses the asset. 

4.3. The Prudential Code sets out the prudential indicators that must be used, and the 
factors that must be taken into account to ensure investment plans are prudent, 
sustainable and affordable. These are designed to support and record local 
decision-making in a manner that is publicly accountable. 

4.4. A summary of the Council’s capital expenditure aspirations based on the latest 
capital programme proposals along with further additional longer-term and 
unprioritised projects is summarised below along with the sources of finance. It 
must be stressed that not all these expenditure plans will be accepted and taken 
forward. The plans are designed to identified all areas of potential expenditure so 
that they may be assessed and in terms of both suitability and affordability. 

Table 5: Potential Capital expenditure and financing  

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 24/25 – 
28/29 

29/30 – 
33/34 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Capital 
expenditure 7,949.95 10,290.20 25,651.85 12,906.40 7,004.59 5,908.87 11,951.60 31,984.70 

Financed by:                 
Capital receipts 1,851.65 4,360.00 3,746.80 260.00 260.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Grants 1,910.70 2,445.00 5,037.70 2,287.70 628.00 628.00 3,015.00 3,015.00 
Revenue and 
Reserves 2,804.30 1,647.20 1,623.20 360.00 350.00 100.00 500.00 500.00 

Increased 
borrowing need 1,383.30 1,838.00 15,244.15 9,998.70 5,766.59 5,180.87 8,436.60 28,469.70 

 

Page 371



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

14 

The Council’s borrowing need 
4.5. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s underlying 

need to borrow.  This is different to any actual borrowing.  If the Council generates 
the same amount of resources in a year to meet its capital expenditure 
requirements, then there is no change to the CFR.  However, if the Council 
spends more than the resources it generates in year, the CFR will increase as in 
effect the Council has created a borrowing requirement to bridge the gap in the 
resources it needs and the resources it has. 

4.6. Although the CFR does not necessarily reflect actual borrowing taken from an 
external source, it can reflect the use of internal cash resources, i.e. internal 
borrowing.  

4.7. Where the Council has a positive CFR, i.e. an underlying need to borrow, it must 
make provision to repay that ‘debt’, or repay the cash used through internal 
borrowing.  This is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).  The Council’s 
current policy, as set out in the MRP Strategy is to charge MRP on a straight line 
basis over the life of the asset.   

4.8. The current forecast for the CFR and MRP based on the current proposed capital 
programme along with the further additional longer-term and unprioritised 
projects is shown in the table below: 

Table 6: CFR projection  

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 24/25 – 
28/29 

29/30 – 
33/34 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
CFR opening 17,992.00 18,636.10 19,722.40 33,983.85 42,961.25 47,501.84 51,271.40 54,131.31 
Add unfinanced 
capital 1,383.30 1,838.00 15,244.15 9,998.70 5,766.59 5,180.87 8,436.60 28,469.70 

Less MRP (739.20) (751.70) (982.70) (1,021.30) (1,226.00) (1,411.31) (5,576.69) (5,576.69) 
CFR closing 18,636.10 19,722.40 33,983.85 42,961.25 47,501.84 51,271.40 54,131.31 77,024.32 

 

Prudence and Sustainability  
4.9. Prudence and sustainability year on year are addressed through the prudential 

indicators for external debt, which must be set and revised taking into account 
their affordability.  

4.10. A key prudential indicator is that external borrowing must not (except in the short 
term to support operational cash flow) exceed the underlying level of indebtedness  
(the CFR) and is intended to control any ‘borrowing to on-lend’ or borrowing to 
support the revenue account.  

Page 372



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

15 

4.11. Table 7 confirms that the Council expects to be compliant with this indicator and 
should remain under-borrowed across the period. The increase in borrowing 
reflects the prudent assumption that the unfinanced element of the capital 
programme would be funded through external debt. That said, a thorough review 
of the affordability of the current plans will need to be carried out. 

Table 7: Gross debt and the CFR  

  
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 24/25 – 

28/29 
29/30 – 
33/34 

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
CFR at 31 
March 18,636.10 19,722.40 33,983.85 42,961.25 47,501.84 51,271.40 54,131.31 77,024.32 

Borrowing at 
31 March 12,800.00 12,800.00 33,983.85 42,961.25 47,501.84 51,271.40 54,131.31 77,024.32 

(Under)/over 
borrowing    (5,836.10) (6,922.40) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Investments at 
31 March (17,500.51) (12,618.77) (21,027.97) (24,389.67) (28,429.77) (31,875.18) (29,260.18) (26,645.18) 

 

Affordability  
4.12. The fundamental objective in determining the affordability of the authority’s capital 

plans is to ensure that the total capital investment remains within sustainable 
limits. This includes considering the impact on Council Tax.  

4.13. This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long 
term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
The estimates are presented in the table below: 

Table 8: Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

7.98% 7.77% 15.46% 18.24% 21.63% 24.56% 
 

4.14. This shows that the amount of revenue budget spent financing debt is rising over 
the MTFP period. There are two main reasons for this trend.  

a. MRP is rising to the level required to sustain the vehicle and plant programme. 
Older vehicles were grant funded whereas replacement vehicles are financed 
through borrowing. 

b. The net revenue stream (Council Tax, retained rates and non-service grant) is 
forecast to reduce over the period although reductions in grant are partially offset 
by increases to income from local taxation. 

 

Page 373



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

16 

Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment 
decisions on council tax  
4.15 This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the 

capital programme compared to the Council’s existing approved commitments and 
current plans. This reflects interest income foregone on the use of reserves and 
additional costs where schemes are funded by external borrowing. 
Table 9: Incremental impact of capital investment 

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 
  Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 
Council tax - band D £8.17 £8.19 £19.44 £14.04 £10.61 £13.65 

 

4.16 The increase shown is reflective of the revised timescales for existing projects and 
new capital schemes, along with their anticipated use of reserves and potential 
borrowing requirements. This also shows the impact of rising MRP as discussed in 
4.15 above 

 

Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary 
4.17. The Council currently distinguishes between operational and core cash balances.  

The operational balances relate to short term cash management whereas the core 
cash balances reflect longer term strategic resources (such as the General Fund 
balance and usable capital receipts).  

4.18. A key prudential indicator is that external borrowing must not (except in the short 
term to support operational cash flow) exceed the underlying level of indebtedness  
(the CFR) and is intended to control any ‘borrowing to on-lend’ or borrowing to 
support the revenue account. As shown in table 7 external debt is £12.8 million 
and internal borrowing is £5.8 million during 2018/19. 

The Operational Boundary  
4.19. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally expected to exceed.  

This is set at a level consistent with the borrowing need (CFR), the anticipated 
level of external borrowing plus any anticipated further borrowing that may be 
required to manage operational cash balances. This may be required, for 
example, at year end when operational cash balances are at their lowest due to 
the timing of local taxation collection. 

  

Page 374



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

17 

The Authorised Limit for external debt.  
4.20. This reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded 

in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. This is a limit on the 
maximum level of debt, beyond which external debt is prohibited and the limit can 
only be set or revised by Full Council. 

Table 10: Authorised limit and operational boundary  

  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023-24 
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
CFR at 31 March 18,636.10 19,722.40 33,983.85 42,961.25 47,501.84 51,271.40 
Under borrowing 
31 March (5,836.10) (6,922.40) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Add operational cash 
limit 6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 6,215.00 

Operational 
boundary 18,700.00 19,800.00 34,000.00 43,000.00 47,600.00 51,300.00 

Authorised limit 24,915.00 26,015.00 40,215.00 49,215.00 53,815.00 57,515.00 
 

Risk Appetite 
4.21. As a holder of public funds, the Council recognises its responsibility to the prudent 

management of public funds, and follows relevant Government and CIPFA 
guidance.  

4.22. The guidance defines a prudent investment policy as having two objectives: 
achieving first of all security (protecting the capital sum from loss) and then 
liquidity (keeping the money readily available for expenditure when needed). 
Provided that proper levels of security and liquidity are achieved, it may then (but 
only then) be reasonable to seek the highest yield consistent with those priorities. 

4.23. Consequently, the Council will seek to optimise returns commensurate with the 
management of the associated risks, limiting its investment activities to the 
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in Treasury Management 
Practice 4 Approved Instruments Methods and Techniques. The Treasury 
Management Practices (TMP’s) are approved by Chief Financial Officer and form 
the framework for operational treasury management practice and procedures on a 
day-to-day basis. 

Counterparty Risk 
4.24. The Council also recognises the need to have, and will therefore maintain, a 

formal counterparty policy in respect of those organisations from which it may 
borrow, or with whom it may enter into other financing arrangements. Before the 
start of each financial year the council will determine though it’s 

Page 375



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

18 

Annual Investment Strategy, within the Treasury Management Framework, the 
credit criteria for selecting counterparties. The Chief Financial Officer will maintain 
a counterparty list in compliance with the criteria which will be approved annually 
by Full Council. Updates will be taken though the year as necessary. These 
criteria provide an overall pool of counterparties considered high quality which the 
Council may use. 

Liquidity Risk 
4.25. This is the risk that cash will not be available when it is needed, causing additional 

costs and potentially compromising the Councils business/service objectives. 
Detailed cash flow forecasts will be kept by the financial services team to give as 
accurate a picture as possible of the movement and timing of income & 
expenditure and the resulting daily cash balances.   

4.26. Individual managers have the responsibility of providing the team with adequate 
notice of any large payments and receipts, to aid the team in keeping the cash 
flow forecasts as accurate as possible, and avoiding causing the Council 
additional costs. 

4.27. The Chief Financial Officer will ensure that adequate, though not excessive cash 
resources, borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities exist to enable 
it at all times to have the level of funds available for the achievement of its 
business/service objectives.  

4.28. The Council will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear business 
case for doing so and will only do so for the current capital programme or to 
finance future debt maturities. 

Interest Rate Risk 
4.29. The risk that unexpected changes in interest rates expose the Council to greater 

costs or a shortfall in the income contained in the annual budget. 

4.30. The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a view to 
containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in accordance with 
the its latest approved budget. 

4.31. It will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment 
instruments, methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and certainty of 
costs and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient degree of flexibility 
to take advantage of unexpected, potentially advantageous changes in the level or 
structure of interest rates. This should be the subject to the consideration and, if 
required, approval of any policy or budgetary implications. 

  

Page 376



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

19 

Exchange Rate Risk 
4.32. The risk that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates expose the council to greater 

costs or a shortfall in income than have been budgeted for. 

4.33. The Council has a minimal exposure to exchange rate risk as it has no powers to 
enter into loans or investments in foreign currency for treasury management 
purposes. 

4.34. From time to time the Council may be exposed to exchange rate risk through the 
receipt of income or the incurring of expenditure in a currency other than sterling. 

Refinancing Risk 
4.35. The risk that when loans or other forms of capital financing mature, that they 

cannot be refinanced where necessary on terms that reflect the assumptions 
made in formulating revenue and capital budgets. 

4.36. This Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership 
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity profile 
of the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer terms for 
renewal or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as favourable to the 
organisation as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market conditions 
prevailing at the time. 

4.37. It will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in these transactions 
in such a manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid overreliance on any 
one source of funding if this might jeopardise achievement of the above. 

Legal and Regulatory Risk 
4.38. The risk that the Council itself, or an organisation with which it is dealing in its 

treasury management activities, fails to act in accordance with its legal powers or 
regulatory requirements, and that the Council suffers losses accordingly. 

4.39. This Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply with 
its statutory powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such 
compliance, if required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such activities. 
In framing its credit and counterparty policy, it will ensure that there is evidence of 
counterparties’ powers, authority and compliance in respect of the transactions 
they may affect with the Council, particularly with regard to duty of care and fees 
charged. 

4.40. This Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may impact 
on its treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably able to do so, 
will seek to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on the Council. 

  

Page 377



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

20 

The Risk of Fraud, Error and Corruption, and Contingency 
Management 
4.41. The risk that the Council may fail to employ adequate systems, procedures and 

other arrangements that identify and prevent losses through such occurrences. 

4.42. This organisation will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may 
expose it to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other eventualities in 
its treasury management dealings. Accordingly, it will employ suitable systems 
and procedures, and will maintain effective contingency management 
arrangements, to these ends. 

4.43. The Council will therefore:- 

a) Seek to ensure an adequate division of responsibilities and maintenance at 
all times of an adequate level of internal check which minimises such risks.   

b) Fully document all its treasury management activities so that there can be 
no possible confusion as to what proper procedures are.   

c) Staff will not be allowed to take up treasury management activities until 
they have had proper training in procedures and are then subject to an 
adequate and appropriate level of supervision.   

d) Records will be maintained of all treasury management transactions so that 
there is a full audit trail and evidence of the appropriate checks being 
carried out. 

Market Risk 
4.44. The risk that, through adverse market fluctuations in the value of the principal 

sums an organisation borrows and invests, its stated treasury management 
policies and objectives are compromised, against which effects it has failed to 
protect itself adequately. 

4.45. This Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies and 
objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the value of 
the principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect its self from the 
effects of such fluctuations. 

Risk Management, Reporting and Review 
4.46. More information on the systems, procedures and policies in place to manage 

these treasury management related risks is available in the Treasury Management 
Framework, Annual Investment Strategy and within the Council’s Treasury 
Management Practices all of which are subject to full Council approval and which 
are included in the work programme of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

4.47. The Treasury Management reporting requirements to full Council are as follows: 

• Annual reporting requirements before the start of the year:  

Page 378



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

21 

- review of the organisation’s approved clauses, treasury management policy 
statement and practices 

- strategy report on proposed treasury management activities for the year 
comprising of the Treasury management strategy statement, Annual 
Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement  

• Regular Monitoring reports, included within Corporate Financial Monitoring report. 
• Annual review report after the end of the year 

 
4.48. Furthermore, Treasury Management activities are subject to internal and external 

audit review to ensure compliance with codes of practice, policies and operate 
within the parameters agreed by Council. 

4.49. More generally, Risk is managed at two levels within the Council: 

• Operational Risks are those that threaten service level objectives and are listed in 
annual Service Plans. The risks are reviewed and updated regularly by 
Operational Managers on a quarterly basis. Operational risks can be escalated to 
Senior Management Team if it is felt that they are more strategic in nature or that 
help is required with mitigation. It helps to fully detail the impacts of the risk and to 
describe why greater authority is needed to control the risk. For example, 
Operational Risks identified in departmental service plans may include individual 
capital schemes for which the service is responsible for delivering and the 
Financial Services Operational Risk Register includes the risk ‘Profiling of Capital 
Schemes’ as it is recognised that outstanding capital expenditure has a significant 
revenue budget implication. 
 

• Strategic Risks can be seen within the Strategic Risks Register and also within 
Council Plan Performance reports to Overview and Scrutiny Committee and 
Cabinet. These tend to be the risks that threaten council wide objectives and 
require senior level management. Senior Management Team manages the 
Council's Strategic Risks by identifying and reviewing risks and ensuring 
mitigation. The Strategic Risk register may contain business continuity risks and 
mitigations. Senior Management Team reviews the risks along with Corporate 
Plan performance monitoring on a quarterly basis. Medium Term Financial 
Planning – delivery of a balanced budget is a key risk identified in the Strategic 
Risk Register, this includes the effects of the capital programme and treasury 
management activities. 

  

Page 379



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

22 

5. Commercial Activity 
5.1. Some investments are taken out for non-treasury management purposes, and 

these are held primarily or partially to generate a profit. Examples of this include 
investment properties and loans supporting service outcomes.  

5.2. The Council has 23 Investment properties including retails units and industrial 
sites. Which at 31st March 2018 had a value of £4.97 million and after expenses 
earned the council £0.325 million in income, creating a return on investment of 
9.3% overall. This will vary year on year depending on maintenance required. 

5.3. As part of the changes to the Treasury and Prudential Codes of Practice and the 
CLG guidance a list of non-treasury investments is being compiled and will be kept 
up-to-date. 

5.4. In the future such investments will have to go through a robust procedure to 
ensure that they fit in with the council’s plans, are affordable and sustainable. The 
principles of the procedure are: 

• Ensuring the investment meets the councils risk profile  

• Ensuring the portfolio of assets is prudently balanced to minimise risk of 
income fluctuations and loss of capital value. 

• Ensuring the rate of return exceeds that which could be achieved through 
traditional sources of investments 

• Establishing a comprehensive due diligence process to minimise risks 
including use of specialist external advice where appropriate 

• Establishing appropriate governance arrangements to ensure decisions are 
made in a streamlined and efficient way. 

5.5. The Council is also developing a Commercial Strategy because reductions in 
funding mean the Council should look at whether it is appropriate to engage in 
commercial activities to supplement its income and support service delivery.  
However, to minimise risk of potential loss of income in the longer term it needs to 
ensure that any investment opportunities are based upon sound decision making 
that consider the future likelihood of investment income reducing. 

 

  

Page 380



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

23 

6. Other Long-Term Liabilities and Investments 

Soft Loans 
6.1. The Council make loans for a number of reasons primarily economic development 

and investment objectives or to help meet other Council priorities. These are often 
outside of normal commercial terms The Council in making these loans ensure 
they are prudent and secured by: 

• Carrying out a full independent due diligence exercise 
• Using an expected loss model to assess the impact on the balance budget 

requirement if the loan was at risk 
• On-going monitoring of the loans 
• Ensuring adequate security is in place 
• The financial exposure of the Council is proportionate to its size.  
• All loans are agreed by the Council’s Cabinet 

 

6.2. The loans are accounted for as soft loans and the Council’s accounting policy on 
soft loans is described in the Accounting Policies of the Statement of Accounts. 
The balance outstanding of these loans as at 31st March 2018 was £110,877. 

6.3. One such loan that the Council has agreed to make is to South Lakes Housing. 
The aim of the loan is to provide low cost finance in order to enable a house 
building programme to meet the Council Plan target of delivering 1000 affordable 
homes for rent. A loan of £6m over 25 years has been agreed in principle by the 
Council’s Cabinet.  

Pension Guarantees 
6.4. The Council transferred in council housing stock to South Lakes Housing in 2012. 

This involved the transfer of Council employees to the South Lakes Housing. 
Employee’s rights are protected under the provision in Transfer of Undertakings 
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE). However, pension rights 
are not fully covered within TUPE regulations. The Council have thus given 
pension guarantees to the South Lakes Housing. This guarantee means that if an 
admitted body fails to pay its pension obligations then the Council will be 
responsible for taking on those obligations. 

6.5. The deficit on the South Lakes Housing pension scheme at 31st March 2017 was 
£2.254m of which SLDC would be responsible for approximately 55%. 

6.6. The guarantee is reviewed annually as part of the closure of accounts process. 
The pension balance is assessed on an annual basis by the Cumbria Pension 
Fund and is subject to change due to the underlying assets. This is rebalanced on 
a three year basis, formerly known as a triennial review.  

Page 381



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

24 

7. Knowledge and Skills 
7.1. The Council utilises the knowledge and skills of its internal officers when 

considering capital investment decisions and where necessary it also relies on the 
expert knowledge of specialist external advisors. 

7.2. The Council employs or contracts professionally qualified legal, finance and 
property officers who are able to offer advice and guidance when considering any 
capital investment decisions. 

Finance 
7.3. Finance staff are professionally qualified to advise the Council on all financial 

aspects of capital decisions.  They also have the necessary experience of how the 
Council works having been in post for a number of years.  Finance staff also 
undertake Continuous Professional Development and they maintain knowledge 
and skills through regular technical updates from appropriate bodies. 

Property 
7.4. The Council operates an outsourced contract for its property and asset services to 

Lambert Smith Hampton. Their team is made up of a number of Chartered 
Surveyors and Valuers who advise the Council on all property matters.  They are 
all members of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and comply 
with the RICS’s rules in relation to Continuing Professional Development.  

7.5. The Council’s in-house Property and Contracts Manager is also a RICS 
Registered Chartered Surveyor. 

Legal 
7.6. Legal Staff are professionally qualified as either solicitors or legal executives and 

are regulated by their respective professional bodies (Solicitors Regulation 
Body/Institute of Legal Executives).  The staff undertake Continuing Professional 
Development and their rules of conduct require that they have an appropriate level 
of skill and expertise to deal with the particular matter with which they are 
dealing.  All staff are aware of the operational structure of the Council.  They 
maintain knowledge and skills through regular technical updates from appropriate 
bodies. 

External Advice 
7.7. The Council uses external advisors where necessary in order to complement the 

knowledge its own officers hold.  Some of these advisors are contracted on long 
term contracts or are appointed on an ad-hoc basis when necessary.  The main 
advisors the Council uses are as follows: 

Page 382



Capital Strategy 2019/20 - 2023/24 Appendix 3 

25 

• Link Asset Services – Treasury Management, including Cash 
investments, borrowing and capital financing 
 

• Lambert Smith Hampton – Property and Asset Management and asset 
development. 

 

8. Review and monitoring of the Capital Strategy 
8.1. This Capital Strategy is based on the proposed Capital Programme for 2019/20 to 

2023/24 which will be approved by Council on the 26th February 2019. It also 
highlights the aspiration and unprioritised capital programme over the longer-term 
to 2033/34. The strategy will be monitored and reviewed throughout the financial 
year and may be updated or replaced as proposals are developed or the Capital 
Programme is updated. 

 

Page 383



Appendix A 

26 

Project bid template 

 

1

2 Type of Project

3

4

5

6

7.0

7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5

7.6
7.7

7.8

8  Costs and Financing

8.1 Capital Budget adjustments required Existing Base (net)
Changes to Capital 

Expenditure (+/-)
Changes to Capital 

Income (-/+)
£000 £000 £000

2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
Years thereafter 
Total 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net capital cost/saving (+/-) 0.0

Delivery risk including planning process.
What are the social, economic and environmental impacts of the proposal, if 
accepted?

PLEASE INCLUDE THE REVENUE IMPACTS OF CAPITAL SCHEMES IN 8.2 BELOW

BIDS TO START 2020/21

Sponsoring Portfolio Holder (if more than 1 Portfolio Holder) Please select …

Equality Impact Assessment implications.
Legislative requirements
Alignment with Property Asset Review
Risk / Business continuity?

External 'partnership' and Localism benefits with public, private or voluntary sector?

REVENUE and CAPITAL 2019/20 Budget Change Pro Forma
This form is designed to capture the information required for budget changes in the 2019/20 budget setting cycle.  
Finalised forms are to be emailed by Assistant Directors to accountancy@southlakeland.gov.uk no later than 
Thursday 30/8/2018 but earlier if possible so that clarrifications may be sought. Please see comment boxes (red 
triangles) and hyperlinks for further guidance. Please complete all grey cells.
Use this form if you are proposing:
 - a revenue budget change that generates a net saving (including extra income) or net additional expenditure (including 
reduced income)
- a revenue budget change that is net £0 but has a gross change to income or expenditure of £10k or more
- a new capital scheme or amendment to an existing scheme

Title of Poject

Sponsoring Portfolio Holder 

Sponsoring Assistant Director 

Officer Responsible for Delivery 

Cost Centre/Service 

Outline description of project/service change

Please select …

Please select …

Alignment with Council Plan priorities?

Page 384



Appendix A 

27 

 
  

8.2 Revenue Budget adjustments required Existing Base (net)
Change to Revenue 

Expenditure (+/-)
Change to Revenue 

Income (-/+)
£000 £000 £000

2019/20 Savings, Budget Pressures & One Off Growth
2020/21 Savings and Budget Pressures only
2021/22 Savings and Budget Pressures only
2022/23 Savings and Budget Pressures only
2023/24 Savings and Budget Pressures only
Years thereafter (Savings and Budget Pressures only)
Total 0.0 0.0 0.0
Net revenue cost/saving (+/-) 0.0

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

9.1

10.1

10.2

11 Assistant Director Declaration 
11.1 Form complete and quality checked? Please select …
11.2 Portfolio Holder in agreement? Please select …

PLEASE COMPLETE SCORING CRITERIA TAB

Scoring overide - if judged to be necessary please provide details why?

Proposed score (please complete scoring criteria tab)

Details of procurement route to be followed

What risks are there around the proposed timing of budget changes (as set out in 
8.1 and 8.2)?
Does the proposal relate to a previous Committee decision? If so, please provide 
minute ref?

Is the proposed saving/growth reflected in your 2018/19 budget monitoring report?

What is the lifetime of the scheme/service change in years?

What is the basis of the figures (eg supplier quotation/market testing etc)?

Please give details of any grant funding or external income

Page 385



Appendix A 

28 

Project prioritisation and assessment criteria 

 

Ref: Weighting Criteria Score
30 STRATEGIC 0

9
Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority - 
Economy - Enabling and delivering opportunities for 
sustainable economic growth. 

No (0), Yes (6), Essential to delivery (9)

9 Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority - 
Housing - Providing homes to meet need. No (0), Yes (6), Essential to delivery (9)

6 Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority - 
Environment - Protecting and enhancing our place. No (0), Yes (4), Essential to delivery (6)

6
Impact on Council Plan priorities and targets. Priority - Culture 
and Wellbeing - Improving wellbeing, reducing inequality and 
supporting cultural activities. 

No (0), Yes (4), Essential to delivery (6)

B 0

Does the scheme  impact on rurality,  age, disability, race, 
religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy, maternity, marriage or civil 
partnership 

Positive impact (+5), negative impact (-5), no impact (0)

25 RISK MANAGEMENT / CONTINUITY OF SERVICE 0

C 5 Is the scheme consistent with the Property Asset Review? No (0), Yes (5)

D1 5 Urgency of investmentdue to condition rating of a property 
asset.

Urgent : Year 1 (5), Year 2 (4), Year 3 (3), 4-5 Years (2), 6-10 
Years (1), Later Years (0)

D2 5 Urgency of investment in order to meet statutory obligations 
(e.g Disability Discrimination Act, Health & Safety, Security)

Urgent : Year 1 (5), Year 2 (4), Year 3 (3), 4-5 Years (2), 6-10 
Years (1), Later Years (0)

E 10 Addressing future business continuity Yes  (10); no (0)
5 PROMOTES PARTNERSHIP / LOCALISM 0

F 5 External 'partnership' and Localism benefits with public, 
private or voluntary sector No (0), Yes (5)

40 FINANCIAL 0

G 20 Spend to Save Initiative - produces revenue savings / 
additional income

Annual net savings per year as % of cost; 1 mark for every 1% 
to a max of 20 marks for 20% and above.

H 10 Is part funded from externally generated resources (e.g. 
grants). 0-19% 5 points, 20-50% 7 points greater than this 10 points.

I 10 Maximises external funding eg NHB and Retained Business 
Rates? No (0), Yes (10)

Total 100 0
Notes

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

A

Please refer to the priorities and targets within the Council Plan. Does the scheme contribute to the delivery of a Council priority or target? Maximum points if the scheme is essential to delivery of
a priority or target.

We need evidence that these factors have been reviewed as part of the EIA on the capital programme. See guidance in the report writing toolkit.

Is the scheme consistent with the Property Asset Review? How and to what extent? Please complete this section in consultation with Sion Thomas (Corporate Asset Manager) who will be able to
provide guidance on whether the change relates to a corporate asset and whether it is consistent with the aims and objectives of the review.

Where there are major Health & Safety issues, or other legal obligations, the Capital Prioritisation Group may choose to override the priority score and recommend a project be included in the
Capital Programme. For existing property assets consider the condition rating of the asset and the technical life.

Yes or no depending on whether the scheme is necessary for continuation of current Council operations. If the proposal relates to an existing asset, is the asset critical to service delivery, could
technical failure of the asset lead to failure of service delivery.

Projects promoting joint working - across Council services, with other agencies, the public, private & voluntary sectors

If a score is given against this criteria, it must be supported by a financial analysis, which shows the estimated revenue savings and capital costs of the project. Where revenue savings are
identified, they will also need to be included in the relevant revenue budget

If a score is given against this criteria, it must be supported by a financial analysis, which shows the estimated reduction of the Council's projected deficits.

Does the scheme draw on grant funding mechanisms designed to encourage Local Authorities to increase the tax base and rates base?

Page 386



Appendix 4

Programme Spending by Project
2018/19 

Approved July 

2018

Re-profiling 

and adj

2018/19 

Revised
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Total 2018/19 

to 2023/24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Play Areas (including community funded schemes and 

schemes arising from the Play Space Audit)
341.0 144.2 485.2 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 585.2

Millerground Public Open Space, Access and Play Project 138.3 22.2 160.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 160.5

Grange Regeneration 0.0 0.0 0.0 157.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 157.3

Nobles Rest 193.4 -15.3 178.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 178.1

Ferry Nab Redevelopment Phase 1 42.6 0.0 42.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 42.6

Cockshott Point Entrance Improvements 0.0 1.8 1.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.8

Waterhead Public Jetty 27.0 4.4 31.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 31.4

Public Realm - The Glebe phase I and II 50.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0

Kendal Town Centre Public Realm 19.5 3.1 22.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 22.6

New Road Common (approved Council 12 Oct 2017) 231.0 0.0 231.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 231.0

Kendal Leisure Centre (including changing rooms) 159.6 0.0 159.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 159.6

Wordsworth Trust contribution 42.0 0.0 42.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 42.0

Festival Infrastructure 64.8 0.0 64.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 64.8

Flood impact works Rothay Park 207.2 0.0 207.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 207.2

Footway Lighting 49.4 0.0 49.4 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 174.4

IT Replacements 80.0 0.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 480.0

Customer Connect 290.0 0.0 290.0 300.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 590.0

Mobile Working 120.0 0.0 120.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 120.0

Town and Car Park signing 16.2 0.0 16.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 16.2

South Lakeland House carpark works 377.5 0.0 377.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 377.5

Car park re-surfacing 339.7 0.0 339.7 25.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 364.7

Vehicle & Plant Programme (inc bins and boxes) 1,169.0 0.0 1,169.0 1,711.0 594.0 499.0 690.0 2,100.0 6,763.0

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24

P
age 387



Appendix 4

Programme Spending by Project
2018/19 

Approved July 

2018

Re-profiling 

and adj

2018/19 

Revised
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Total 2018/19 

to 2023/24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24

Disabled Facilities Grants 743.4 191.0 934.4 661.0 661.0 661.0 603.0 603.0 4,123.4

Right to buy replacement scheme 495.0 0.0 495.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 495.0

Affordable & Empty Homes, Town Centre Properties. 359.0 -191.0 168.0 260.0 260.0 260.0 260.0 0.0 1,208.0

S106 funded affordable homes purchase 146.0 0.0 146.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 146.0

Cross-a-Moor junction improvement 300.0 -300.0 0.0 300.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 300.0

Community Housing Fund 490.0 0.0 490.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 490.0

Kendal Museum contribution 85.0 0.0 85.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 85.0

Coronation Hall alterations 79.8 0.0 79.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 79.8

Energy-saving building enhancements 149.2 0.0 149.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 149.2

Former Knitware Factory (Ulverston) site clearance 89.1 0.0 89.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 89.1

Kendal Town Hall stone work 3.2 29.7 32.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 32.9

Castle Dairy flood damage reinstatement 19.9 0.0 19.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 19.9

Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail 140.0 0.0 140.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 140.0

LIPS (excluding contributions to SLDC property included under 

individual properties) 439.1 -143.7 295.4 165.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 461.2

Grange Promenade Structural works 100.0 0.0 100.0 300.0 300.0 225.0 250.0 0.0 1,175.0

Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extention 214.3 0.0 214.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 214.3

Burton Hertiage Grant Scheme (funded from LIPS) 0.0 0.0 0.0 80.0 80.0 80.0 0.0 0.0 240.0

Kendal Castle (funded from LIPS) 42.0 0.0 42.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 42.0

Car Parking Machines 140.0 0.0 140.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 140.0

Parkside Road, Kendal car park 160.4 0.0 160.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 160.4

Disabled Toilet improvements 50.0 0.0 50.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 50.0

ERDF funded flood defence works 1,556.7 -1,556.7 0.0 1,556.7 1,556.7 1,556.7 0.0 0.0 4,670.1

New Bids

Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations 0.0 0.0 0.0 3,000.0 3,000.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 6,000.0

New Ulverston Leisure Centre 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 9,200.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 9,200.0

P
age 388



Appendix 4

Programme Spending by Project
2018/19 

Approved July 

2018

Re-profiling 

and adj

2018/19 

Revised
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Total 2018/19 

to 2023/24

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Programme 2018/19 - 2023/24

Homeless Accommodation for Families 0.0 0.0 0.0 461.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 461.4

Abbot Hall redevelopment 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100.0

Grange Lido 0.0 0.0 0.0 960.0 1,000.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1,960.0

Bids subject to further assessment:

Accomodation review

Car park investments*

Employment site land acquisition

Rydal Road car park bridge

Depot review 

Total 9,760.3 -1,810.4 7,950.0 10,163.2 16,776.7 3,406.7 1,928.0 2,828.0 43,052.6

*subject to detailed review of car parking strategy including potential new car parks at Oxenholme and Arnside, double decking options on existing car parks, provision in Kendal, Braithwaite 

fold surfacing and electric charging points

P
age 389



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 390



South Lakeland District Council 

Council 

Tuesday, 26 February 2019 

Senior Management Restructure 

 

Portfolio:  Cllr Jonathan Brook - Deputy Leader of the Council and Portfolio 
Holder for Housing, People and Innovation 

Report from:  Lawrence Conway - Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service 

Report Author: Lawrence Conway – Chief Executive & Head of Paid Service 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report updates Council on the customer connect programme and recruitment to 
the Senior Management Structure. 

2.0 Recommendation 

It is recommended that Council receives the update and 

(1) notes the following appointments with effect from 1 April 2019: 

  David Sykes as Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources; and 

  Simon Rowley as Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

(2) notes the transitional arrangements as set out at paragraph 3.4 and 3.5 of 
the report 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 At its meeting on 10 October 2018 Council approved the proposed senior 
management structure as set out in appendix 1 for consultation.  The consultation 
period was concluded on 16 November 2018, following which representations have 
been considered by the Head of Paid Service resulting in no substantial changes 
being proposed which would require further council approval. However, some 
transitional provisions have been considered as detailed below.  

3.2 Applications for voluntary redundancy have been considered in accordance with the 
Council’s Redundancy Policy agreed criteria and budget provision with 20 
applications being approved.   

3.3 Recruitment has now commenced with regard to the senior leadership structure and 
interviews took place for the two Director posts on 22 and 24 January 2019.  A panel 
of members drawn from the HR Committee formed part of the interview process and 
recommendations for appointment have been notified as required by the Officer 
Employment Procedure Rules. The successful candidates have been confirmed and 
are as notified above. Recruitment is ongoing for the remainder of the leadership 
posts. 

3.4 Following the consultation process it was considered appropriate for some 
transitional arrangements to be made pending recruitment to the statutory roles 

Page 391

Item No.15



under the new structure.  It is intended that the responsibility for Returning Officer 
(once confirmed by Council) will transfer following the May elections from 1 June and 
that the existing Returning Officer will continue in the interim.  A report to the March 
meeting will update on this as the leadership recruitment continues. The Monitoring 
Officer function will also be retained by the Director of Policy and Resources during 
this transition. 

3.5 With regard to the statutory officers of section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer the 
recruitment process is ongoing and the Assistant Director (Resources) (section 151 
Officer) will remain in that role until 31 May 2019 to support the production and 
statutory close down of the 2018/2019 accounts. Council will be notified with regards 
to the appointment process and the constitution updated once the appointments have 
been determined. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Following the Council decision of 10 October 2018 formal consultation on phase 1 
commenced on 16 October 2018 and ran until 16 November 2018. All employees 
had an opportunity to feedback on the consultation document. 

4.2 The Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service has taken into consideration all 
proposals submitted and responded accordingly. There have been no substantial 
changes which would require further council approval.  Transitional arrangements 
agreed are as detailed in this report. 

4.3 The recruitment has been in accordance with the Council’s resolutions and 
constitutional decision making for chief officer appointments. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The report is to simply note the outcome of a recruitment process and the transitional 
arrangements made to facilitate the move to the new structure. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The Council Plan 2014-19 states that “through a flexible and skilled workforce” and 
“through our customer connect programme staff will have the ability to work more 
efficiently for the customer and our workforce plan development will set out our future 
requirements for the organisation. We will continue to develop our skilled workforce 
with more digital skills and a more flexible, coordinated approach to work across 
services…” 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 The salaries for the Directors are as approved by Council at its meeting on 10 
October 2018.  These are incorporated in the budget. 

7.2 The applications for voluntary redundancy were determined and are accommodated 
within the overall agreed budget provision for redundancy of £1.2m. 

7.3  The budget for 2019/20 assumes savings of £740k will be delivered from the 
Customer Connect programme.  The transitional arrangements set out above will 
increase 2019/20 salary costs above the current 2019/20 budget based on the 
Council’s staffing establishment in December 2018 before the Customer Connect 
changes.  All salary budgets will be revised during 2019 to reflect the new structures 
as they are agreed, including transitional costs and pay protection where relevant.  
Overall, projections of savings from phase 1 and the impact of voluntary 
redundancies across all phases indicate the savings of £740k for 2019/20 will be 
delivered 

Page 392



Human Resources 

7.4 As detailed within the report. 

Legal 

7.5 There are no legal issues arising from this report which is to update on the 
recruitment to the Management Structure. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.6 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No - not applicable 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No not for this report.  The 
Council’s recruitment processes is conducted in accordance with HR policies and 
equality scheme. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

   

Contact Officers 

d.storr@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Senior Management Structure 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Previous reports to Council on 
Customer Connect programme 

24 July 2018 and 10 October 
2018 

Council website 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 1.2.19 

Section 151 Officer 17.1.19 

Monitoring Officer 17.1.19 

SMT N/A 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager 17.1.19 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 1.2.19 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Page 393



Signed off by Date sent 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council 26.2.19 

 

Page 394



Leadership Structure 

Appendix 1

Page 395



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 396


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Political Balance and Committee Places
	7 Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 3 2018/19
	Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 3 2018/19 2018/19  - Appendix 1
	Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 3 2018/19 2018/19  - Appendix 2
	Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 3 2018/19 2018/19  - Appendix 3

	8 Council Plan
	Council Plan  - Appendix 1
	Council Plan  - Appendix 2
	Council Plan  - Appendix 3
	Live
	Our vision
	Our values
	Empowering people
	Excellence
	Open and transparent

	Our delivery
	Key performance indicators
	Creating balanced communities


	Council Plan  - Appendix 4

	9 Council Policy on Climate Change
	Council Policy on Climate Change  - Appendix 1
	Council Policy on Climate Change  - Appendix 2
	Council Policy on Climate Change  - Appendix 3

	10 Review of the Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme.
	11 2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget
	2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget  - Appendix 1
	1 Introduction 19-20 Budget Book
	2a GF Summary
	2b MTFP projections
	2b2 changes over budget setting process
	3a service summary
	3b Detailed services
	3c Budget Pressures
	3d Growth Proposals
	3e Savings Proposals
	4a Collection Fund
	4b taxbase 1920
	4c Parish precepts
	5 Capital programme
	5 Capital funding
	6a reserves summary
	6b risk assess reserves
	6c Risks and Opportunities
	7 glossary and notes 19-20 Budget
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget  - Appendix 2
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 REs
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 PI
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 SD
	Fees and Charges 2019-20 NS revised

	2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget  - Appendix 3
	2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget  - Appendix 4
	2019/20 to 2023/24 Budget  - Appendix 5

	12 Calculating and Setting the 2019/20 Council Tax
	CALCULATING AND SETTING THE 2019/20 COUNCIL TAX  - Appendix A
	CALCULATING AND SETTING THE 2019/20 COUNCIL TAX  - Appendix B
	CALCULATING AND SETTING THE 2019/20 COUNCIL TAX  - Appendix C

	13 2019/20 Procurement Strategy and Procurement Schedule
	2019/20 Procurement Strategy and Procurement Schedule  - Appendix 1
	2019/20 Procurement Strategy and Procurement Schedule  - Appendix 2
	2019/20 Procurement Strategy and Procurement Schedule  - Appendix 3

	14 Treasury Management and Capital Strategies 2019/20 - 2023/24
	Treasury Management Strategies 2019/20 - 2023/24  - Appendix 1
	Treasury Management and Capital Strategies 2019/20 - 2023/24 - Appendix 2
	Treasury Management and Capital Strategies 2019/20 - 2023/24 - Appendix 3
	1. Introduction
	Links to other plans and strategies

	2. The principles underpinning the Capital Strategy
	Overarching objectives
	The Prudential Code
	Affordability
	Prudence and Sustainability
	Value for Money
	Financial Procedure Rules

	3. Capital Expenditure
	Governance process for approval and monitoring of capital expenditure
	Capital programme project appraisals
	Monitoring the capital programme
	Changes to the Agreed Programme
	Proposed additions to the programme
	Amendments to existing schemes
	Long-term view of capital expenditure plans
	Asset Management Planning
	Strategic Asset Management Planning
	Building Asset Maintenance Programme
	Vehicle and Plant Replacement Programme
	IT Replacement Programme

	4. Debt, Borrowing and Treasury Management
	Borrowing
	The Council’s borrowing need
	Prudence and Sustainability
	Affordability
	Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment decisions on council tax
	Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary
	The Operational Boundary
	The Authorised Limit for external debt.
	Risk Appetite
	Counterparty Risk
	Liquidity Risk
	Interest Rate Risk
	Exchange Rate Risk
	Refinancing Risk
	Legal and Regulatory Risk
	The Risk of Fraud, Error and Corruption, and Contingency Management
	Market Risk
	Risk Management, Reporting and Review

	5. Commercial Activity
	6. Other Long-Term Liabilities and Investments
	Soft Loans
	Pension Guarantees
	7. Knowledge and Skills
	Finance
	Property
	Legal
	External Advice

	8. Review and monitoring of the Capital Strategy

	Treasury Management and Capital Strategies 2019/20 - 2023/24 - Appendix 4

	15 Senior Management Restructure
	Senior Management Restructure  - Appendix 1




